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HEARING ON REAUTHORIZATION OF THE 
CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION AND TREATMENT 
ACT AND THE F AMIL Y VIOLENCE PREVEN­
TION AND SERVICES ACT 

WI<iDNESDAY, APRIL 2H. IHH7 

HOUSE OF REPRESEN'l'ATIVES, 
SUBCOMMIT'I'EE ON SELEC'l' EDUCATION, 

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR, 
Washington. DC. 

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:20 a.m., in room 
2261, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Major Owens (chair­
man of the subcommittee) presiding. 

Members present: Representatives Owens, Biaggi, and Bartlett. 
Staff present: Maria Cuprill, staff director; Lawrence Peters, leg­

islative counsel; Pat Laird, legislative analyst; Yolanda Aviles, re­
search assistant; Lisa Rogers, legislative analyst to Mr. Biaggi; 
David Esquith, legislative associate to Mr. Bartlett. 

Mr. OWENS. The Subcommittee on Select Education of the Educa­
tion and Labor Committee is now in session. I have a brief opening 
statement. I will enter my statement for the record and just read 
part of it. 

This is the third and final hearing that we will be holding as a 
part of the reauthorization process for the Child Abuse Prevention 
and Treatment Act. Among the witnesses we heard from at our 
first hearing, which took place at New York's Founding Hospital, 
was the director of the hospital, a pediatrician and author, Dr. Vin­
cent Fontana. His book, entitled, "Somewhere A Child Is Crying," 
was ground-breaking when it came out in the early seventies, and 
it still has important things to say to us today. 

There is a chapter entitled, "Children's Rights: A New Crusade," 
and that chapter begins with a moving opening, and I quote: "Who, 
in our society, speaks for the children? Who speaks for them while 
they are still live? Not many people. Not very many people are in a 
position to. But even if they were, they would be talking into the 
wind. They can scarcely insist on upholding rights that do not even 
exist. Our cultural and legal traditions virtually deny the child's 
right to be heard or to have a spokesman .... " 

The words are still true, despite some recent changes in our laws 
governing the court system. Very few of us do and can speak for 
children, but in this room today and at this hearing today there 
are many who do speak for children. There are people testifying 

III 
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today who are among those who made the legislation that we are 
about to reauthorize possible. 

Child abuse prevention legislation, family violence prevention 
legislation, sprang from the people. It was as a result of a need felt 
among the people. No political platforms and no Democratic or Re­
public think tanks came up with the legislation that we are reau­
thorizing. It was really a push from the people of a felt need, and it 
is that felt need which will guide us through the reauthorizing 
process and guarantee, despite opposition, that this act will be re­
authorized. 

I think Mr. Biaggi has an opening statement. 
[The prepared statement of Hon. Major R. Owens follows:] 



3 

OPENING REMARKS OF CHAIRMAN MAJOR R. OWENS: CHAIRMAN OF THE HOUSE 

SELECT EDUCATION SUBCOMMITTEE, APRIL 29 

THIS IS THE THIRD AND FINAL HEARING THAT WE WILL BE HOLDING 

AS PART OF THE RE-AUTHORIZATION PROCESS FOR THE "CHILD ABUSE 

PREVENTION AND TREATMENT ACT". AMONG rHE WITNESSES WE HEARD FROM 

AT OUR FIRST HEARING WHICH TOOK PLACE AT NEW YORK'S FOUNDLING 

HOSPITAL WAS THE DIRECTOR OF THE HOSPITAL, PEDIATRICIAN AND 

AUTHOR, DR. VINCENT FONTANA. HIS BOOK, SOMEWHERE A CHILD IS 

CRYING, WAS GROUND-BREAKING WHEN IT CAME OUT IN THE EARLY 

SEVENTIES AND IT STILL HAS IMPORTANT THINGS TO SAY TO US TODAY. 

THERE IS A CHAPTER ENTITLED "CHILDREN'S RIGHT'S: A NEW CRUSADE" 

THAT BEGINS WITH A MOVING OPENING: 

"WHO, IN OUR SOCIETY, SPEAKS FOR THE CHILDREN? 

WHO SPEAKS FOR THEM WHILE THEY ARE STILL LIVE ? 

.. "NOT MANY PEOPLE. NOT VERY MANY PEOPLE ARE IN A 

POSITION TO. BUT EVEN IF THEY WERE, THEY WOULD 

BE TALKING INTO THE WIND. THEY CAN SCARCELY 

INSIST ON UPHOLDING RIGHTS THAT DO NOT EVEN EXIST. 
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, 
OUR CULTURAL AN~ LEGAL TRADITIONS VIRTUALLY D~N~ 

( ~ 

THE CHILD'S RIGHT TO BE HEARD OR TO HAVE A 

SPOKESMAN •• " 

THE WORDS ARE STILL TRUE DESPITE SOME RECENT CHANGES IN OUR 

LAWS GOVERNING THE COURT SYSTEM. VERY FEW OF US DO AND 

CAN SPEAK FOR CHILDREN. I~ THIS ROOM TODAY ARE SOME OF YOU WHO 

DO SPEAK FOR CHILDREN, AND WHOSE DEDICATED WORK ON THEIR BEHALF 

REI1AINS THEIR STRENGTH IN THE FACE OF MINUSCULE GOVERNMENTAL 

INITIATIVES. 

THE WITNESSES, TODAY WILL ADDRESS SOME OF' THE WIDE RANGING 

ISSUES CONNECTED BOTH WITH THE CHANGING NATURE OF CHILD ABUSE AND 

FAMILY VIOLENCE IN THIS COUNTRY, AS WELL AS WITH 

GOvERNMENT'S ROLE WITHIN THESE DEVELOPMENTS. 

FIRST WE ARE GOI~G TO HEAR FROM A PANEL ON FAMILY VIOLENCE. 

AT OUR LAST HEARING WE LISTENED TO THE ADMINISTRATION'S PLANS 

FOR THE "FAMILY VIOLENCE PREVENTION AND SERVICES ACT", A PIECE OF 

LEGISLATION THAT FORMS PART OF THE "CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION AND 

TREATMENT ACT". AFTER CONSIDERABLE QUESTIONING IT WAS REVEALED 

THAT THE ADMINISTRATION DOES NOT SEEK RE-AUTHORIZATION OF THIS 

SMALL.BUT VITALLY IMPORTANT PROGRAM. THEIR VIEW WAS THAT THE 

STATES WERE TO TAKE CARE OF SUCH ITEMS AS SHELTERS FOR BATTERED 

WOMEN, BUT THEY COULD NOT PROVIDE US WITH ANY DATA AS TO HOW THE 

STATES CAN MEET THESE NEEDS IN THE FACE OF INCREASING DEMANDS 
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PLACED ON THE STATES' SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT MONEY. IN THE 

PACE OF OVER 200,000 WOMEN AND THEIR CHILDREN RECEIVING 

SHELTER AND OVER 300,000 BEING TURNED AWAY EACH YEAR, THE 

ADHINISTRATION CALMLY PROPOSES THAT THE PROGRAM BE TERMINATED. 

THE ADMINISTRATION OF COURSE RATHER THAN PRO?OSING AN INCREASE 

IN THE SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT, TITLE XX, KEEPS ITS CURRENT 

FUNDING LEVEL OF $2.7 BILLION THE SAME, LEAVING THE AMOUNT 

$1 BILLION LESS THAN ITS FY '81 FUNDING LEVEL I~ INFLATION 

ADJUSTED DOLLARS. 

ANOTHER COMPONENT PART OF THE "CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION AND 

TREATMENT ACT", THE "ADOPTION REFORM ACT OF 1978" MANDATED 

THE ADOPTION ClP:?ORTUNITIES PROGRAM. OUR SECOND PANEL WILL 

REVIEW THE LEGISLATION AS IT HAS BEEN WORKING SO FAR AND 

ADDRESS THE IM.'?ORTANT NEEDS THAT THE PROGRAM STILL NEEDS TO MEET. 

ADDITIONALLY, THIS PANEL WILL ADDRESS THE PROGRESS THAT HAS BEEN 

MADE IN THE LEGAL ARENA TO DEVELOP REFOR~!S IN THE AREA OF CHILD 

ABUSE AS WELL A3 FOLLOW UP ON INITIATIVES TAKEN BY CONGRESS. O~E 

SUCH INITIATIVE WAS THE "CHILDREN'S JUSTICE AND ASSISTANCE ACT" 

ENACTED IN 1986 AND FOR WHICH WE ARE STILL AWAITING THE ISSUANCE 

OF REGULATIONS. AS WE SHALL SEE DEDICATED GROUPS AND INDIVIDUALS 

STAND READY TO MAKE THIS LEGISLATION WORK SO THAT THOSE WHO 

COMMIT ACTS OF CHILD ABUSE CAN BE SPEEDILY BROUGHT TO JUSTIce. 

OUR THIRD AND FINAL ~ANEL, WILL FOCUS ON THE 

RAPID AND DISTURBING RISE IN THE INCIDENCE OF CHILD ABUSE 
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OVER THE PAST SEV8RAL YEARSr 54.9 PERCENT BETWEEN 1981 AND 1985. 

WE WILL SEEK ANSWERS TO THE QUESTION AS TO WHETHER PRESENT 

FEDERAL EFFORTS ARE ~UFFICIENT TO STEM THIS ENORMOUS TIDE OF 

MISERY AND SUFFERING, AND WHAT CAN AND SHOULD BE DONE TO IMPROVE 

EXISTING LEGISLATION. THIS PANEL WILL ALSO ADDRESS THE PLIGHT OF 

ABUSE AMONG OUR POPULATION OF HANDICAPPED CHILDREN. WE HAVE 

DISCOVERED THAT THIS GROUP STANDS AT INCREASED RISK FOR ABUSE AND 

NEGLECT, AND IT WILL BE OUR TASK TO SEE WHAT MEASURES ARE CAPABLE 

OF REMEDYING THIS SAD AND TRAGIC PROBLEM. 

OUR HEARING WILL BE OPENED BY A CONTRIBUTION FROM 

CONGRESSMAN GEORGE MILLER, WHOSE SELECT COMMITTEE ON 

CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES RECENTLY COMPLETED A 

DISTURBING REPORT ON THE PROBLEM OF CHILD ABUSE ENTITLED 

ABUSED CHILDREN IN AMERICA: VICTIMS OF OFFICiAL NEGLECT. 

WE HAVE ALL BENEFITED FROM THIS MOST COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW 

OF EFFORTS TAKEN BY THE STATES TO STRUGGLE WITH THE 

PROBLEM OF CHILD ABUSE. I GREATLY APPRECIATE HIS 

ATTENDANCE HERE TODAY AND LOOK FORWARD TO HIS TESTIMONY 

BASED ON LONG EXPERIENCE WITH THE ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED 

AT TODAY'S HEARING. MR. MILLER'S TESTIMONY WILL BE FOLLOWED 

BY THE PRESENTATION OF MR. EUGENE THOMAS, PRESIDENT OF THE 

AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION. 
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Mr. BlAGG!. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
My interest in child abuse precedes my service in the Congress, 

which is :::. service of some 18 years. You mentioned Dr. Vincent 
Fontana. He has been a personal friend of mine for some 30 years, 
and in another career he made me mindful of the question of child 
abuse when child abuse was hardly a c;ubject of discussion. It con­
cerned a very few and attracted little or no attention. I guess it 
wasn't until the National Enquirer conducted a survey that result­
ed in the startling revelation that child abuse ranked third in gen­
eral public concerns, that there was a universal awakening. 

As far as this program is concerned, I have been associated with 
it since 1974 when I was an original cosponsor of that law. During 
the past several years this Nation has witnessed a new scandal in 
the ever-continuing tragedy of child abuse and neglect. Our Na­
tion's foster care sj'stem has been rocked by charges of abuse and 
neglect-a system that is overloaded, a system unable to provide 
proper care and services to the millions of children within the 
system. 

I find a sad and tragic irony in this situation. Most of the chil­
dren placed in foster care, especially children with handicaps, chil­
dren of drug abusers, anrl many others were placed in foster care 
because they were victims of abuse and neglect at home, yet they 
are subjected to the same treatment while under foster care. I find 
this to be an appalling situation, and I pledge to work to address 
this problem. 

To this end, I have introduced legislation, H.R. 2038, to assist 
States in developing a high-quality foster care system. It is time we 
ensure that our Nation's children in foster care receive proper care 
and services. 

There is only one other comment I wish to make at this time. 
Since the start of this decade, we have seen a 55 percent rise in the 
number of child abuse cases. At the same time, Federal funding 
has actually declined by $6 million in real dollar8, and now the Ad­
ministration is requesting that funding be stopped for vital compo­
nents of this progr::l.m. I don't think it is necessary for me to elabo­
rate on this abominable situation. We should be getting more, not 
less. 

We have the articulation from every quarter that condemns 
child abuse, but those in the position to do something about it and 
make the criticisms of the conditions that confront us, and do noth­
ing about it, as a mpt.ter of fact are regressive in their attitude, is 
something that is detestable. We intend to work very hard to see 
that we get some more funding, but we can't do it alone, frankly. 
We need the universal, vigorous, unified support of those involved, 
the whole network of those involved in child abuse, as well as the 
American population that I believe would be sympathetic. 

Now sympathetic is fine. Sympathy is great, but it is not suffi­
cient. We need a very energetic and concerted effort to meet the 
problem that seems to be increasing and, unless we get more fund­
ing, will certainly not diminish. That is an understatement as an 
assessment. We, as a government, talk about child abuse and what 
we are doing about it; but, by the same token, we are neglectful in 
honestly addressing the problem. 
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I want to commend you, Mr. Chairman, for the hearings you 
have had and your initiative in this area. You know I pledge 
myself to you and to your predecessors in this undertaking, be­
cause this is not just a narrow, isolated issue of child abuse when 
you consider all of the consequences. You are building generations 
of abusers and victims. We know how it relates to abusing parents 
and what happens to them in society. So clearly this may be the 
last hearing, but we have our work cut out for us, and I know that 
you will lead us to successes. 

Thank you. 
Mr. OWENS. Thank you very much, Mr. Biaggi. 
Our first scheduled witness is Congressman George Miller, who 

is the chairman of the Select Committee on Children and Families, 
the one committee that has an opportunity to view children and 
families in their entirety. We are pleased to have Mr. Miller here 
to testify. The committee recently authored a report entitled, 
"Abused Children In America: Victims of Official Neglect." 

Thank you very much for agreeing to appear here, Congressman. 
We certainly welcome you. 

STATEMENT OF HON. GEORGE MILLER, A MEMBER OF 
CONGRESS FRO:\-l THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Mr. MILLER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, you and your colleagues, 
for your timely consideration of the reauthorization of the Child 
Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act, and for the long-time inter­
eflt that Congressman Biaggi has had in this. When I first came on 
the committee, he was forcing this committee to take a look and to 
take an active role in not only the creation of this act but the ongo­
ing oversight of the act, and I want to thank him for that. 

According to a recent USA Today poll, our family is more impor­
tant to us than anything else, outranking money, health, and 
career, but for many the demands of work, of poverty, of raising 
children singlehandedly, make the demands of parenting over­
whelming. Too often, adults take out these pressures on children or 
on each other. Sadly, the emotional scars of abuse and neglect 
remain with the child long after any physical injuries have healed. 

A nationwide survey by the Select Committee on Children, 
Youth and Families, which I Chair, confirms that the abusA of chil­
dren in this Nation continues to rise but that the resources to pre­
vent and treat abused children and their families barely holds 
steady. It needn't be that way. As our survey, "Abused Children In 
America: Victims Of Official Neglect," demonstrates, we have the 
tools to prevent that abuse. 

Before highlighting those successful programs, let mt'!'take a 
minute to review our committee's findings. A complete listing of 
these findings is submitted for inclusion in the hearing record 
today. 

According to our report, nearly 1.9 million children were report­
ed as victims of abuse or neglect in 1985-a 55 percent increase 
from 1981. Child sexual abuse reports rose dramatically-80 per­
cent between 1983 and 1985-but child neglect continued to com­
prise the majority of cases-58.S percent of those in 1985. The Na­
tional Committee for the Prevention of Child Abuse also reports 

.,'( 
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that in 1986, 29 percent more children died at the hands of their 
parents than in the previous year. 

Unfortunately, as States reported to us, their ability to respond 
to abused children and families or those known to be at risk was 
seriously compromised by shrinking budgets. Despite a 55 percent 
increase in the reports of abuse, Federal, State and local resources 
to address the problem rose less than 2 percent overall. Resources 
either declined or failed to keep pace with the influx of reports in 
over half of the States. 

A majority of the States reported that staff shortages, ina':by'lia:~e .\ 
training, and high personnel turnover severely hampered their 
ability to provide needed services. With low pay and high case­
loads, it is not surprising that the turnover rate among child pro­
tection staff is quite high and the morale strained, at best. 

While child protection and child welfare services require coordi­
nation of many agencies. including social services, health, educa­
tion and law enforcement, several States indicated that difficulty 
in coordinating these efforts continues to be a barrier to better 
services for children. 

Despite these barriers, our report documents several prevention 
and early intervention efforts which have averted incidents of child 
abuse, improved family functioning and avoided costly treatment. 
Most States noted that they offer one or more promising efforts, 
whether cris:;s nurseries or respite care, parent education or in­
home visitors for mothers at high risk of abusing children, or early 
screening for developmental disabilities. 

Yesterday Dr. James Garbarino, president of the Erikson Insti­
tute for Advanced Study in Child Development in Chicago, told my 
committee that Ilprograms of early relationship building, parent 
education, and home health visiting early in life predict reduced in­
juries duf' to assault in the early childhood period," but in most in­
stances these are pilot programs or programs serving a fraction of 
those in need. 

I am particularly distressed by our findings that at least 18 
States do not fund res pitt:! L:are, and in at least 19 States crisis 
nurseries do not exist. These programs help prevent abuse by 
giving parents of handicapped or chronically ill children and other 
stressed parents a temporary break from the burden of caring for 
their children. As I have testified to this committee in the past, 
there is mounting evidence regarding the cost-effectiveness of both 
these approaches. 

Our report also highlights many treatment programs which have 
reduced recidivism, enhanced parent-child interaction, and prevent­
ed unnecessary placement of children in foster care. Of note is a 
trend toward family preservation services, which have proven to be 
far less expensive and far less disruptive than removing a child 
from his or her own family and placing the child in foster care or 
an institutionalized setting. 

A good example is Florida's intensive crisis counseling program, 
whit.:h prevented the removal of all but 5 of 196 children they 
served, and is expected to net the State over $619,000 in avoided 
placement costs. Due to the program's success, the average number 
of children in foster care has dropped by 1,500 over the past 5 
years. 
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The "Children's Place" in Missouri is another exemplary treat­
ment program which has eliminated significant development 
delays in maltreated children and has saved the State thousands of 
dollars per child in special education costs. Unfortunately, this pro­
gram reached only 83 out of a possible 1,500 needy families due to 
the budget const"aints. 

This committee has an opportunity this year to carefully expand 
these proven, cost-effective prevention and treatment services. If 
left to the current administration, despite its rhetoric about the im­
portance of the family, little systemic effort will be made in this 
direction. 

This administration has requested zero funding to improve the 
handling, investigation and prosecution of child abuse cases as en­
acted by the Children's Justice Assistance Act of 1986. This admin­
istration has requested zero funding for the childrt!n's trust funds, 
one of the key innovations States have developed to support child 
abuse prevention activities, and it has refused to allocate any 
monies for fiscal year 1987 for these services, even though the 
funds were provided by Congress. 

This administration has requested no funds for respite care or 
crisis nurseries demonstration programs enacted in 1986, and again 
this year the administration proposed to lump together the chil­
dren's programs, including child abuse prevention, child welfare 
and other social services under a "generic appropriation" and slash 
the total by $100 million. 

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, I fully support re­
authorizing the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act and 
strengthening its emphasis on prevention activiti€.s and prevention 
research. I have made some recommendations that I hope the com­
mittee will take into account during the markup. 

Closely related to the problems of child abuse and neglect is 
family violence. The Family Violence Prevention and Services Act, 
which I authored in 1984 to assist victims of spouse abuse, is 
needed as much today as during the 5 years it took to en(lct it. 
Each year as many as 6 million women are battered by their hus­
bands, ex-husbands or boyfriends, and it is estimated that in half of 
the wife-abusing families, the children are abused as well. 

Yet again the resources to support shelters and related services 
for family violence victims, adults and children alike, are scarce. 
Despite the best efforts by private organizations such as the local 
Junior Leagues, the YWCA's, family services and United Way that 
support these shelters, funds continue to be very limited and many 
communities still have no shelters at all. 'l'he National Coalition 
Against Domestic Violence reports that only 1,200 safe homes and 
shelters exist across the Nation. 

My Sister's Place, the largest shelter program in Washington, 
DC, turns away seven out of every eight women-and the children 
that accompany those women-who seek refuge. In my own com­
munity, in Contra Costa County, Battered Women's Alternatives 
received 5,800 calls from women in need of crisis services in the 
first 3 months of 19R7. 

Many of these women and children have critical medical, hous­
ing and legal needs, as well as serious substance abuse and nutri­
tional problems. In most instances, we are also talking about 
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women whose own resources are minimal or nonexistent and who 
need a chance to get back on their feet economically as well as 
emotionally. As a result, shelters must do more than just provide 
protection and a warm meal. They must provide counseling, hous­
ing and employment referral services, legal advice, child care and 
other services for children. Otherwise, most of these women and 
their children will be forced to go back into the abusive situation. 

I am proud to say that family violence organizations in Califor­
nia's San Francisco Bay area have developed pioneering prevention 
and early intervention services. In June, the Battered Women's Al­
ternatives will have trained emergency room personnel in five Bay 
area hospitals to identify and treat spouse abuse. In addition, Bat­
tered Women's Alternatives is undertaking an exciting project for 
high school students which will include a video on preventing vio­
lence in their teen dating relationships. Battered Women's Alterna­
tives also has 1 of 10 men's treatment groups in the country. About 
75 percent of the men graduating from their program remain non­
violent one year after therapy. 

The administration's response to family violence is just as ne­
glectful as its response to child abuse. As in previous years, it has 
again requested zero funding for fiscal year 1988 for the Family Vi­
olence Prevention and Services Act, to assist battered women and 
their children, and it continues to delay the release of funds to 
States in fiscal year 1987. 

If we really want to reduce family violence and child abuse in 
this country, then reauthorization of both the Child Abuse Preven­
tion and Treatment Act and the Family Violence Prevention and 
SE'rvices Act is essential. I urge my colleagues to join me in making 
sure that these crucial bills are adequately funded and appropriate­
ly implemented. 

I again thank you, Mr. Chairman, and members of the commit­
tee for the opportunity to address the subcommittee. 

[The prepared statement of Hon. George Miller follows: 1 
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THE HONORABLE GEORG'. MILLEK. CHAIRMAN 
SELECT COMMITTEE ON CHILDREN. YOUTH AND FAMILIES 

TESTIMONY BEFORE THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON SELECT EDUCATION 

APRIL 29. 1987 

CHAIRMAN OWENS AND MEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE. I APPRECIATE 

THIS OPPORTUNITY TO TESTIFY REGARDING THE REAUTHORIZATION OF THE 

CHILO ABUSE PREVENTION AND TREATMENT ACT AND THE FAMILY VIOLENCE 

PREVENTION AND SERVICES ACT. 

ACCORDING TO A RECENT USA TODAY POLL. OUR FAMILY IS MORE 

IMPORTANT TO US THAN ANYTHING ELSE -- OUTRANKING MONEY. HEALTH AND 

CAREER. 

BUT FOR MANY. THE DEMANDS OF WORK. OF POVERTY. AND OF RAISING 

CHILDREN SINGLE-HANDEDLY MAKE THE DEMANDS OF PARENTING 

OVERWHELMING. Too OFTEN. ADULTS TAKE OUT THESE PRESSURES ON 

CHILDREN OR ON EACH OTHER. SADLY. THE EMOTIONAL SCARS OF ABUSE AND 

NEGLECT REMAIN WITH A CHILD LONG AFTER ANY PHYSICAL INJURIES HAVE 

HEALED. 

A NATIONWIDE SURVey BY THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON CHILDREN. YOUTH 

AND FAMILIES. WHICH I CHAIR. CONFIRMS THAT ABUSE OF CHILDREN IN THIS 

NATION CONTINUES TO RISE. BUT THAT THE RESOURCES Te PREVENT AND 

TREAT ABUSED CHILDREN AND THEIR FAMILIES ARE BARELY HOLDING STEADY. 
~. 

IT NEEDN'T BE THAT WAY. As OUR SURVEY. "ABUSED CHILDREN IN 

AMERICA: VICTIMS OF OFFICIAL NEGLECT." DEMONSTRATES. WE HAVE THE 

TOOLS TO PREVENT AND TREAT ABUSE. 
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BEFORE HIGHLIGHTING THOSE SUCCESSFUL PROGRAMS, LET ME TAKE A 

MINUTE TO REVIEW OUR COMMITTEE'S FINDINGS. A COMPLETE LISTING OF 

THESE FINDINGS ARE SUBMITTED FOR INCLUSION IN THE HEARING RECORD. 

ACCORDING TO OUR REPORT. 

D NEARLY 1.9 MILLION CHILDREN WERE REPORTED AS VICTIMS OF 

ABUSE AND/OR NEGLECT IN 1985 -- A 551 INCREASE SINCE 1981. 

D CHILD SEXUAL ABUSE REPORTS ROSE DRAMATICALLY -- 80% BETWEEN 

1983-85. 

BUT~~~LECT CONTINUED TO COMPRISE THE rAJORITY OF 

CASES -- 58.51 IN 1985. 

THE NATIONAL COMMITTEE FOR THE PREVENTION OF CHILD ABUSE ALSO 

REPORTS THAT IN 1986, ~ MORE CHILDREN DIED AT THE KANDS OF THEIR --PARENTS THAN IN THE PREVIOUS YEAR. 

BARRIERS TO HELPING MALTREATED CHI~ 

uNFORTUNATELY, AS STATES REPORTED TO US, THEIR ABILITY TO 

RESPOND TO ABUSED CHILDREN AND FAMILIES OR THOSE KNOWN TO BE AT RISK 

WERE SERIOUSLY COMPROMISED BY SHRINKING BUuGETS. DESPITE A 55% 
_7" 

INCREASE IN REPORTS OF ABUSE, FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL RESOURCES TO 

ADDRESS THE PROBLEM ROSE LESS THAN 2% OVERALL. RESOURCES EITHER 

DECLINED OR FAILED TO KEEP PACE WITH THE INFLUX OF REPORTS, IN OVER 

HALF OF THE STATES. 



14 

A MAJORITY OF STATES REPORTED THAT STAFF SHORTAGES. INADEQUATE 

TRAINING. AND HIGH PERSONNEL TURNOVER SEVERELY HAMPERED THEIR ABILITY 

TO PROVIDE NEEDED SERVICES. WITH LOW PAY AND HIGH CASELOADS. IT IS NOT 

SURPRISING THAT THE TURNOVER RATE AMONG CHILD PROTECTION STAFF IS QUITE 

HIGH AND THE MORALE STRAINED. AT BEST. 
~ 

WHILE CHILD PROTECTION AND CHILD WELFARE SERVICES REQUIRE THE 

COORDINATION OF MANY AGENCIES. INCLUDING SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH. 

EDUCATION. AND LAW ENFORCEMENT. SEVERAL STATES INDICATED THAT 

DIFFICULTY IN COORDINATING THESE EFFORTS CONTINUES TO BE A BARRIER TO 

BETTER SERVICES FOR CHILDREN. 

SUCCESSfUL PREVENTION EffORTS 

DESPITE THESE BARRIERS. OUR REPORT DOCUMENTS SEVERAL PREVENTION AND 

EARLY INTERVENTION EFFORTS WHICH HAVE AVERTED INCIDENTS Of CHILD ABUSE. 

IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING AND AVOIDED COSTLY TREATMENT. 

MOST STATES NOTED THAT THEY OfFER ONE OR MORE PROMISING EffORTS. 

WHETHER CRISIS NURSERIES OR RESPITE CARE. PARENT EDUCATION OR IN-HOME 

VISITORS FOR MOTHERS AT HIGH RISK OF ABUSING THEIR CHILDREN. OR EARLY 

SCREENING FOR DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES. 

~~UST YESTERDAY. DR. JAMES GARBARINO. PRESIDENT OF THE ERIKSON 

INSTITUTE FOR ADVANCED STUDY IN CHILD DEVELOPMENT IN CHICAGO. TOLD MY 

COMMITTEE THAT "PROGRAMS OF EARLY RELATIONSHIP BUILDING, PARENT 

EDUCATION. AND HOME HEALTH VISITING EARLY IN LIFE PREDICT REDUCED 

INJURIES DUE TO ASSAULT IN THE EARLY CHILDHOOD PERIOD." 

- 3 -
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BUT IN MOST INSTANCES. THESE ARE PILOT PROGRAMS. OR PROGRAMS 

SERVING A FRACTION OF THOSE IN NEED. I AM PARTICULARLY DISTREdSED BY 

OUR FINDING THAT AT LEAST 18 STATES DO NOT FUND RESPITE CARE AND THAT 

IN AT LEAST 19 STATES. CRISIS NURSERIES DO NOT EXIST. THESE PROGRAMS 

HELP PREVENT ABUSE BY GIVING PARENTS OF HANDICAPPED OR CHRONICALLY ILL 

CHILDREN AND OTHER STRESSED PARENTS A TEMPORARY BREAK FROM THE BURDEN 

OF CARING FOR THEIR CHILDREN. As I HAVE TESTIFIED TO THIS COMMITTEE IN 

THE PAST. THERE IS MOUNTING EVIDENCE REGARDING THE COST-EFFECTIVENESS 

OF BOTH OF THESE APPROACHES. 

SUCCESSFUL TREATMENT EEEOJl.ll 

OUR REPORT ALSO HIGHLIGHTS MANY TREATMENT PROGRAMS WHICH HAVE 

REDUCED RECIDIVI~M. ENHANCED PARENT-CHILD INTERACTION. AND PREVENTED 

UNNECESSARY PLACEMENT OF CHILDREN IN fOSTER CARE. 

OF NOTE IS A TREND TOWARD FAMILY PRESERVATION SERVICES. WHICH HAVE 

PROVEN TO BE FAR LESS EXPENSIVE AND FAR LESS DISRUPTIVE THAN REMOVING A 

CHILD FROM HIS OR HER FAMILY AND PLACING THAT CHILD IN FOSTER CARE OR 

AN INSTITUTIONALIZED SETTING. 

A GOOD EXAMPLE IS FLORIDA'S INTENSIVE CRISIS COUNSELING PROGRAMS 

(ICCP), WHICH PREVENTED THE REMOVAL OF ALL BUT 5 OF THE 196 CHILDREN 

THEY SERVED AND IS EXPECTED TO HII THE STATE OVER $619,000 PER ICCP IN 
.Jr-

AVOIDED PLACEMENT COSTS. DUE TO THE PROGRAM'S SUCCESS. THE AVERAGE 

NUMBER OF CHILDREN IN FOSTER CARE HAS DROPPED BY 1,500 OVER THE PAST 

FIVE YEARS. 

- 4 ~ 
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THE "CHILDREN'S PLACE" IN MISSOURI IS ANOTHER EXEMPLARY TREATMENT 

PROGRAM WHICH HAS ELIMINATED SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTAL DELAYS IN 

MALTREATED CHILDREN AND SAVED THE STATE THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS PER CHILD 

IN SPECIAL EDUCATION COSTS. UNFORTUNATELY. THIS PROGRAM REACHED ONLY 

83 OUT OF A POSSIBLE 1.500 NEEDY FAMILIES DUE TO BUDGET CONSTRAINTS. 

THIS COMMITTEE HAS AN OPPORTUNITY THIS YEAR TO CAREFULLY EXPAND 

THESE PROVEN COST-EFFECTIVE PREVENTION AND TREATMENT SERVICES. 

IF LEFT TO THE CURRENT ADMINISTRATION. DESPITE ITS RHETORIC ABOUT 

THE IMPORTANCE OF THE FAMILY. LITTLE SYSTEMATIC EFFORT WILL BE MADE IN 

THIS DIRECTION. 

THIS ADMINISTRATION HAS REQUESTED ZERO FUNDING TO IMPROVE THE 

HANDLING. INVESTIGATION AND PROSECUTION OF CHILD ABUSE CASES AS ENACTED 

BY THE CHILDREN'S JUSTICE ASSISTANCE ACT IN 1986. 

THIS ADMINISTRATION HAS REQUESTED ZERO FUNDING FOR CHILDREN'S TRUST 

FUNDS. ONE OF THE KEY INNOVATIONS ~ HAVE DEVELOPED TO SUPPORT 

CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION ACTIVITIES. AND. IT HAS REFUSED TO ALLOCATE ANY 

MONEY FOR FY87 FOR THESE SERVICES. EVEN THOUGH FUNDS WERE ApoROPRIATED 

OY CONGRESS. 

THIS ADMINISTRATION HAS REQUESTED NO FUNDS FOR RESPITE CARE AND 
~ ..... 

CRISIC NURSERY DEMONSTRATION PROGRAMS ENACTED IN 1986. 

- 5 -
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AND AGAIN THIS YEAR. THE ADMINISTRATION PROPOSED TO LUMP TOGETHER 

CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS. INCLUDING CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION AND CHILD 

WELFARE. AND OTHER SOCIAL SERVICES UNDER A "GENERIC APPROPRIATION" AND 

SLASH THE TOTAL BY $100 MILLION. 

MR. CHAIRMAN. I FULLY SUPPORT REAUTHORIZING THE CHILD ABUSE 

PREVENTION AND TREATMENT ACT AND STRENGTHENING ITS EMPHASIS ON 

PREVENTION ACTIVITIES AND PREVENTION RESEARCH. 

IN PARTICULAR. I WOULD LIKE TO RECOMMEND THE FOLLOWING: 

1) STRONG SUPPORT FOR COST-EFFECTIVE PREVENTION EFFORTS. SUCH AS 

EARLY SCREENING AND INTERVENTION SERVICES. PARENT EDUCATION. HOME 

VISITOR PROGRAMS AND RESPITE AND CRISIS NURSERY PROGRAMS. 

2) STRONG SUPPORT FOR COST-EFFECTIVE TREATMENT EFFORTS. SUCH AS 

FAMILY PRESERVATION SERVICES. 

3) BETTER TRAINING PROGRAMS FOR CHILD PROTECTIVE PERSONNEL. 

~) INCENTIVES TO IMPROVE INTERAGENCY COORDINATION SO THAT ABUSED 

AND NEGLECTED CHILDREN RECEIVE ALL OF THE NECESSARY SERVICES. 

~~) BETTER DATA COLLECTION ON AT-RISK POPULATIONS. INCLUDING 

HANDICAPPED CHILDREN, SYSTEMATIC INFORMATION COLLECTION ABOUT LAW 

ENFORCEMENT RESPONSES TO CASES OF ABUSEI AND EVALUATIONS OF 

PREVENTION AND TREATMENT EFFORTS. 

- 6 -
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FAMILY VIOLENCE PREVENTION AND SERVICES ACT 

CLOSELY RELATED TO THE PROBLEM OF CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT IS FAMIl¥ 

VIOLENCE. THE FAMILY VIOLENCE PREVENTION AND SERVICES ACT. WHICH I 

AUTHORED IN 1984 TO ASSIST VICTIMS OF SPOUSE ABUSE. IS NEEDED AS MUCH 

TODAY AS DURING THE FIVE YEARS IT TOOK TO ENACT IT. EACH YEAR. AS MANY 

AS SIX MILLION WOMEN ARE BATTERED BY THEIR HUSBANDS. EX-HUSBANDS OR 

BOYFRIENDS. AND IT IS '.STIMATED THAT IN HALF OF WIFE-ABUSING FAMILIES. 

THE CHILDREN ARE ABUSED AS WELL. 

YET. THE RESOURCES TO SUPPORT SHELTERS AND RELATED SERVICES FOR 

FAMILY VIOLENCE VICTIMS -- ADULTS AND CHILDREN ALIKE -- ARE SCARCE. 

DESPITE THE BEST EFFORTS OF PRIVATE ORGANIZATIONS -- SUCH AS LOCAL 

JUNIOR LEAGUES. YWCAs. FAMILY SERVICES AND UNITED WAYS -- THAT SUPPORT 

THESE SHELTERS. FUNDS CONTINUE TO BE VERY LIMITED AND MANY COMMUNITIES 

STILL HAVE NO SHELTERS AT ALL. THE NATIONAL COALITION AGAINST DOMESTIC 

VIOLENCE REPORTS THAT ONLY 1200 SAFE HOMES AND SHELTERS EXIST ACROSS 

THF. NATION. 

My SISTER'S PLACE. THE LARGEST SHELTER PROGRAM IN WASHINGTON. DC 

TURNS AWAY 7 OUT OF EVERY 8 WOMEN (AND HER CHILDREN) WHO SEEK REFUGE. 

IN MY OWN COMMUNITY. CONTRA COSTA COUNTY. BATTERED WOMEN'S ALTERNATIVES 

(BW~} RECEIVED 5.800 CALLS FROM WOMEN IN NEED OF CRISIS SERVICES IN THE 

FIRST THREE MONTHS OF 1987 ALONE. 
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MANY OF THESE WOMEN AND CHILDREN HAVE CRITICAL MEDICAL. HOUSING AND 

LEGAL NEEDS. AS WEll AS SERIOUS SUBSTANCE ABUSE AND NUTRITIONAL 

PROBLEMS. IN MOST INSTANCES. WE ARE ALSO TALKING ABOUT WOMEN WHOSE OWN 

RESOURCES ARE MINIMAL OR NONEXISTENT AND WHO NEED A CHANCE TO GET BACK 

ON THEIR FEET ECONOMICALLY AS WELL AS EMOTIONALLY. As A RESULT. 

SHELTERS MUST DO MORE THAN JUST PROVIDE PROTECTION AND A WARM MEAL. 

THEY MUST PROVIDE COUNSELtNG. HOUSING AND EMPLOYMENT REFERRAL SERVICES. 

LEGAL ADVICE. CHILD CARE AND OTHER SERVICES FOR CHILDREN. OTHERWISE. 

MOST OF THESE WOMEN AND THEIR CHILDREN WILL BE FORCED TO GO BACK TO AN 

ABUSIVE SITUATION. 

I AM PROUD TO SAY THAT FAMILY VIOLENCE ORGANIZATIONS IN 

CALIFORNIA'S BAY AREA HAVE DEVELOPED PIONEERING PREVENTION AND EARLY 

INTERVENTION SERVICES. BY JUNE. BWA WILL HAVE TRAINED EMERGENCY ROOM 

PERSONNEL IN FIVE AREA HOSPITALS TO IDENTIFY AND TREAT SPOUSE ABUSE. 

IN ADDITION, BWA IS UNDERTAKING AN EXCITING PROJECT FOR HIGH SCHOOL 

STUDENTS WHICH WIll INCLUDE A VIDEO ON PREVENTING VIOLENCE IN TEEN 

DATING RELATIONSHIPS. BWA ALSO HAS ONE OF TEN MEN'S TREATMENT GROUPS 

IN THE COUNTRY. ABOUT 75% OF THE MEN GRADUAT:NG FROM THEIR PROGRAM 

REMAIN NONVIOLENT ONE YEAR AFTER THERAPY. 

THE ADMINISTRATION'S RESPONSE TO FAMILY VIOLENCE IS JUST AS 

NEGLIGENT AS ITS RESPONSE TO CHILD ABUSE. As IN PREVIOUS YEARS, IT HAS 

AGAIN REQUESTED ZERO FUNDING IN FY88 FOR THE FAMILY VIOLENCE PREVENTION 
"""'". 

AND SERVICES ACT TO ASSIST BATTERED WOMEN AND THEIR CHILDREN. AND IT 

CONTINUES TO DELAY THE RELEASE OF FUNDS TO THE STATES FOR FY87. 

- 8 -
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IF WE REALLY WANT TO REDUCE FAMILY VIOLENCE AND CHILD ABUSE IN THIS 

COUNTRY, THEN REAUTHORIZATION OF 80TH THE CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION AND 

TREATMENT ACT AND THE FAMILY VIOLENCE PREVENTION AND SERVICES ACT IS 

ESSENTIAL. I URGE MY COLLEAGUES TO JOIN ME IN MAKING SURE THAT THESE 

CRUCIAL BILLS ARE ADEQUATELY FUNDED AND PROPERLY IMPLEMENTED. 

MR. CHAIRMAN, THANK YOU ONCE AGAIN FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO ADDRESS 

YOUR SUBCOMMITTEE. I WOULD BE PLEASED TO ANSWER ANY QUESTIONS OR 

PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INFO~MATION. 

- 9 -
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REPORTS Of CHILD ABUSE, PARTICULARLY SBXUAL ABUSE, ON RISE 

00 In 4 ourvey of the 50 StateD nnd the Dimtrict of Colu~bin, 
between 1981-85, the number of children reported to have been 
abused or neglected rooe S~.g percent. Between 1984 and 1985 
alone, child abuse reports increased nearly 9 percent. In 
addition, many States reported increasingly more serioUS and 
complex cllses. 

•• Among the three major child maltreatment categorieo, ~hysical 
abuse, sexual abuse, and neglect, reports of sexual abuse rose 
the fastest. For the 29 States providing complete information, 
sexual abuse increased 57.4 percent between 1983-84, and 
increased 23.6 percent between 1984-85. 

REPORTS OF CHILD NEGLECT CONTINUE TO INCREASE 

•• Child neglect continues to represent the majority of maltreat­
ment cases (58.5~ in 1985). States providing information by 
type of maltreatment report a continuing increase in the 
number of children reported to have been neglected between 
1981-85. For 1984-85 alonet these States report an overall 
increase of 5 percent • 

• ~ Despite the large number of child neglect cases, several 
states indicate growing inattention to neglected children over 
the pust decade as reports of sexual abuse have increased. 

DiSSPITE INCREASED REPORTS OF CllILD ABUSE, STA'rES UNABLE TO PROVIDE 
NEEDED SERVICES 

A majority of States report staff short~ges, inadequate 
training, high personnel turnover, and 4, lack of resources 
staffing ilS the "principal baLrierll to h,proved child 
protection and child welfare services. 

for 

V. For the 31 States able to provide completo information, total 
resources to serve abused and neglected children increased, in 
real teems, by less than 2 percent between 1981 and 1985. 

•• In 27 of these ~tates, resources to serve abused and neglected 
children deClined in real terms, or failed to keep pace with 
rapidly increasing reports of child abuse. Between 1981 and 
1985, States lost more than *170 million, in real terms, in 
Social Services Block Grant (Title XX) funds alone/ for 27 
states, Title XX was the largest source of federal funds, and 
for 15 of them, the largest sin91e source of funds -- federal, 
state or local -- for providing services to abused and 
neglected children and th"eir f;;,,"111es. 

•• While child protection and child welfa~e services require the 
coordination of many agencies, including social sp.rvices, 
health, education, and law enforcement, several States 
indicate that difficulty in coordinating these e:~ortn is a 
barrier to bettor cervices for children. 

, 
~ 
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STAT~~ CITS TWO pqINC!P~L PACTORS LEADING TO INCREASED CHILD ABUSE 
.!~ 

•• Nearly avary State ranked public a~areneus aD a primary factor 
resulting in increased r~portD of chIld abuse and neglect. 

•• Silty percent of the S~ntea ranked deteriorating economic 
conditions for families as another prl.!Il,~r.y factor roouH!.n.; in 
rising reports of chlld al:lIJZ~ alld "egiecL 

PREVENTTON P.~C1H\lII!G mCit;;;i\St:D ATTENTION, STATES EMPHASI ZING 
PAHILY-BASEO SERVICES TO PREVENT UNNECESSARY PLACEMENT OF CHILDREN 
OUT-OF-HOME 

•• Expenditures for public awareness of child abuse and neglect 
have risen in 27 States. Thirty-eight States have recently 
established Children's Trust Funds to support prevention 
programs. Nearly half of the Statea offer parent education, 
while at least 15 States provide prenatal lind perinatal 
services to high ris~ women and teenagers and their infants. 
In addition, several States provide preventive programs of 
respite care, crisis nurseries, and early screening for 
developmental disabilities, for some portion of the population. 

## Citing the need for permanency in children'S lives and 
dwindling resources available to aid abused children, States 
are increasingly providing services to strengthen and maintain 
families. Homemaker and parent aide serVices received higher 
funding in 22 and 17 States, respectively. Eighteen States 
reported that they are providing family preservation services. 

COST-EFFECTIVE PROGRAMS PREVENT OR REDUCE CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT, 
STRENGTHEN FAMILIES AND REDUCE DEPENDENCY 

t. In a~dltion to the many promising prevention programs, states \ 
identified 19 programs which, according to ev~luations, have 
successfully prevente~ child abuse, improved family 
functioning, and avoided costly treatment. 

•• In addition to the many promising treatment programe, States 
identified 15 treatment programs which, according to 
evaluations, have reduced recidivism, enhanced parent-child 
interaction and prevented placp.ment of childten in foster care. 

STATES LACK SUFFICIENT L~W ENFORCEMENT DATA AND INFORMATION ABOUT HOW 
FUNDS FOR CHILD ABUSE SERVICES WERE SPENT 

•• While nearly all states report involvement of Child Protective 
Ser'lices with law t'uforcement agencies, they cannot report the 
rate of indictment, prrysecution and/or convictions related to 
child abuse and neglect, nor are they able to report the 
percent of SUbstantiated cases of abuse and neglect Which are 
referred to law enforcement authorities. 

~. Host States were unable to report what federal, Btate, or 
local resources they dedicated to Bi~ major services commonly 
ptovided to abused children, or children st· r1sk of abuse. 
These services include: case investigation and assessment, 
substitute care, adoption services, casework and treatment 
services, child care, and staff training and education. In 
addition, the vast majority of States were unable to identify 
the number of children provided with each service. 
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Mr. OWENS. Thank you very much, Congressman. 
I have just two basic questions: Since your committee has the ad­

vantage of having an overview of the wide variety of activities re­
lated to children and families, what would you recommend as the 
single most important contribution that this small effort--:and we 
are a tiny part of the total constellation of programs designed to 
deal with chHdren and families-what would you think is most im­
pOltant for us to focus on in the reauthorization process? 

Mr. MILLER. Well, it's hard for me to pick the most important 
services with respect to families and children, but I think what we 
clearly see is within the child abuse and prevention field, if you 
will, that we have an opportunity with early intervention to pre­
vent the repeat of the violent episode. We have the opportunity, 
with the counseling of families, in some cases after the removal of 
the child or the batterer in some fashion or another, of putting 
those families back together in a nonviolent situation. 

I think the lesson is critical here, in the fact that not only can 
we allow a greater number of families to survive in a nonabusive 
situation, but we can dramatically reduce the requirement to 
remove children from their homes and the entry into foster care, 
which Mr. Biaggi has addressed and many of us have tried to ad­
dress, which in many ways becomes almost as abusive, through the 
systcm- I'm not talking about individual people in the foster care 
system, but within the system-of the future of that child. 

I think what we are seeing, and what I tried to say in the testi­
mony is, what we are now seeing are a number of very, very hope·· 
ful programs around the country where prevention is the key. We 
have to move away from the notion that we are simply going to 
treat these kids after a series of abusive episodes. What we really 
have to look for is to provide the support systems for those fami­
lies, and without p.8.ssing judgment, for those families that find 
themselves under the kind of stress that leads to violence. 

The committee is going to make available to your subcommittee 
just the host of programs that are available in local communities, 
but they are starved for funding. I just think that absent a Federal 
contribution to community prevention programs, they are in no 
way going to be able to compete with the dramatic increase in the 
reports that we are seeing. This committee should not be misled by 
what some people are suggesting, that 50 percent of those reports 
aren't validated and therefore the report is not accurate. 

Mr. OWENS. That is the next question I was going to ask you. 
Mr. MILLER. There is no evidence that that is true. 
Mr. OWENS. Well, even if you make a correction in terms of the 

extra concern-some call it zeal-about children that mi~ht gener­
ate some false alarms, even after you make that correction, don't 
you still have a large number of confirmed cases? 

Mr. MILLER. We have a growing number of confirmed cases ElllU a 
growing number of reported cases. The ratio is remaining the 
same. 

Let's remember where we were just a few years ago. In Virginia, 
the police could be called to a house in a spousal violence case, a 
family violence case, and unless there V/US blood on the 'lIToman's 11 
body or they actually witnessed the battering, they went home and 
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said that this wasn't a cause to be concerned and wasn't a report­
able case. 

What we also know is that the police tell us very often when 
they visited the site of a family homicide, an intra family homicide, 
they have been to that residence five and six times before but in 
many instances there is no report of either the violence or what 
have you, because it is kind of settled down and everybody goes on 
their way. 

I daresay that even if you could believe the critics of the fig­
ures-and I don't think you can-there are enough cases, verifiable 
cases that are overwhelming the system, that it is very clear from 
all of the jurisdictions that we surveyed, that without additional 
federal help we are simply not going to have our resources match 
the political rhetoric of Members of Congress on how terrible a 
prohlem child abuse is. 

I would just hope that you would make every effort to slant this 
program toward early intervention and prevention of those violent 
episodes, because I think the evidence suggests that we have ~ real 
opportunity there to certainly have a child have a better shot at 
healthier development and to teach these families new habits, and 
to put them back together in a nonabusive situation. 

Mr. OWENS. Well, we certainly look forward to consulting your 
committee as we move forward in this reorganization process. 

Mr. MILLER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. OWENS. Mr. Biaggi? 
Mr. BlAGG!. I want to thank you for your testimony and com­

mend you for your activity, George. 
Clearly the new thrust is prevention. We have tried breaking the 

cycle of violenCE: after the fact with a limited degree of success. But 
when you talk about the various prevention programs, some of 
which are very successful, you are really talking about funding. 

In your studies and your activity on oversight, have you found 
that the various levels of government are participating in any rela­
tive degree? 

Mr. MILLER. Well, I think one of the things that I pointed out in 
the testimony, you k'10W, we have seen States move in the direc­
tion of a children's trust fund, and very often the central focus of 
that trust fund is around abuse of children. The States have put 
money into this trust fund to be expended, and there was an effort 
on the part of the Congress to see that the Federal Government 
participate in some kind of match and sharing of that responsibil­
ity. The administration just hasn't even risen to that occasion 
wher~ States have made an effort to create new monies for the pur­
poses of prevention of family violence, because these trust funds 
speak to different types of violence, but to family violence. 

What we have seen is that the 2 percent increase that I'm talk­
ing about has really all been at the State and local level. They 
have tried to come forth with some meager increase in vadous 
States with resources, and we have just walked away from the 
problem, either by funding programs very late in the year-I 
mean, this administration are geniuses at always asking you to 
submit additional information, and pretty soon you are broke be­
cause you have submitted so much information but the funding has 
never come, and that community program has gone by the wayside. 
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In effect, what has happened is that this administration really 
doesn't believe that this is a proper function for the Federal Gov­
ernment, and they have walked away from it. They have used 
every notional delay. They have suggested repeal. They have sug­
gested no funding for these programs, and the record is clear. 

But you are right: You cannot talk about this problem without 
talking about money. This is one field where we are blessed with 
private efforts in terms of local organizations who actively partici­
pate in the community care of abused children, but it is not 
enough. It is not enough, and without being able to additionally le­
verage some Federal participation, we are going to see what I think 
the Select Committee found here in the last couple of months. The 
problem is just going to continue to outstrip whatever local govern­
ment and local private sector initiatives are taking place. They will 
just be outstripped by this problem. 

All of the evidence is in my county, which is a relatively high­
income suburban county, is we are just overwhelmed with the 
number of cases of abused children and clearly have no ability to 
properly place those children. If it is happening in this county, it is 
happening everywhere. I meet with front-line people, and they 
have no money. What they are doing is engaging in the severest 
form of triage, in picking and choosing the most serious, the most 
life-threatening cases. What is happeni.ng, obviously, is that the 
lesser cases over time are becoming more and more difficult, more 
and more expensive, and certainly more unhealthy to the future of 
that child and that family. 

Mr. BlAGG!. How do you reconcile the Administration's very sym­
pathetic comments and concern about child abuse and their con­
duct with relation to funding? 

Mr. MILLER. Well, you have to-in any other world it would be 
called fraud, because they have led people to believe that this is a 
serious concern that they have and they want to do something to 
eradicate the problem, but all of the words and all of the expres­
sions just won't do anything about it. You know, they have stripped 
the resources that we were slowly building up to address this prob­
lem, and they have stripped unfortunately a great deal of morale 
out of' private sector initiatives and local initiatives, so they have 
done just the opposite of what they said their real goal was, was to 
have this taken care of at the local level. It's just not there. 

Mr. BIAGGI. Thank you. They are clearly shortsighted, because 
down the road the cost will be manyfold what it is now, in human 
terms as well as monetary terms. One day, some Administration 
will face the problem and face it honestly, and produce the kind of 
funding necessary. Otherwise, we are just looking at an explosive 
situation. 

Mr. MILLER. I agree. One thing we know is that, left unattended, 
an abused child can become one of'the most expensive citizens this 
society has as its members, and in many, many ways, not just in 
money but ver.y expAnsive to the social fabric of this country. 

Thank you again for your time. 
Mr. OWENS. Thank you again. 
Mr. BIAGGI. Mr. Chairman, I regret but I must leave to attend 

another subcommittee hearing under Education and Labor. As 
soon as I am through with that, I will return. 
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Mr. OWENS. Thank you very much. 
Mr. BIAGGI. I have read some of the testimony. I don't know if 

Ms. Charlotte Fedders is here. I have read that one, and that is pa­
thetic and should make a very emotionel pl'/;;.scntation. 

Mr. OWENS. Thank you very much. I hope you will be able to 
come back, Congressman. 

Our next scheCluled speaker is Mr. Eugene Thomas, the president 
of the American Bar Association. 

Mr. Thomas, thank you very much. I notice that there is a repre­
sentative of the Bar Association who will testify later and will be 
available for questioning, but I appreciate your indicating your 
strong support by appearing yourself on behalf of this reauthoriza­
tion. 

STATEMEN'l' OF EUGENE THOMAS, ESQ .. PRESIDENT OF THE 
AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION 

Mr. THOMAS. Mr. Chairman, thank you for this opportunity to 
make a statement and take a position publicly on what the Ameri­
can Bar Association considers to be one of the foremost issues of 
our day, and one which will become a more significant issue in the 
days ahead if it is not well attended now. 

Mr. Chairman, for the record let me note that there are approxi­
mately 340,000 lawyers in America who choose voluntarily to 
ber::ome members of the American Bar Association because they 
wish to make a commitment and provide service to the public and 
to justice. It is a public service organization of lawyers which no 
one is obliged to participate in or to be a member of. Nonetheless, 
it has attracted over 340,000 people who not only sign and join and 
participate, but pay dues to participate and be members of the or­
ganization. 

We have a role in America, Mr. Chairman, in every community 
of this Nation, watching what is transpiring day by day. Therefore, 
if I may take the few minutes we have together, I would like to 
remark upon those observations and let the testimony that has 
been written and filed speak for itself. 

Mr. OWENS. Your written statement will be entered into the 
record. 

Mr. THOMAS. Thank you, sir. 
The American Bar Association membership is indeed on the 

front line of much of the activity that is of concern to this commit­
tee. We are eyewitnesses to the kinds of abuse and anxiety, stress 
and threat that is concerning the Congress and this committee 
today. We have occasion, through the American Bar Association, 
Mr. Chairman, to study and report upon a wide variety of subjects 
of concern to the children of this land and therefore to the very 
heart of this land and its future. 

I have compiled for my appearance today a few of the reports 
that have been addressed by the House of Delegates of the Ameri­
can Bar Association, which recognizes the subject matter of con­
cern, and I will, if I may, supplement the record by providing a 
copy of this compilation to you. 

Mr. OWENS. Without objection, it will be entered in the record. 
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Mr. THOMAS. The index tells us that the topics addressed in 
recent years include a major study on child support; a major study 
on juvenile court proceedings; serious considerations given to the 
child as a witness; corporal punishment in schools; alcohol and 
drug abuse amongst minors; juvenile court defense and prosecution 
services in America; the State and local bar attention to children's 
issues in America; quality child care resources in our time; learn­
ing disabilities and the American child; capital punishment for ju­
veniles; and abuse, neglect and foster home care cases; particularly 
in recent dates, international child abduction. 

Mr. Chairman, in addition to that exhibit which speaks of the 
work the American lawyer sees as important in our day vis-a-vis 
children, the most recent issue of the American Bar Association 
Journal gives you a :,;napshot oversight of what the lawyers who 
are practicing in America consider to be important, because these 
articles all appear in the current issue of the American Bar Asso­
ciation Journal. I picked it at random, but it is a sampling that 
tells the public how vital this issue is and how right your commit­
tee is. This issue of the American Bar Association Journal goes to 
about 380,000 people in America-the membership, together with 
law schools, libraries, courts, and a variety of other places. 

In this issue this month, a major article deals with spouses alleg­
ing child abuse and sexual abuse of children in divorce cases, a 
traumatic concern not only to the litigation of a divorce matter but 
to the children that are thrown into that controversy and the sub­
ject matter of it. We have an article about an Alabama community 
that is finding cooperation in children advocacy through a center 
that they have put together in a cooperative effort-volunteers par­
ticipating in helping with the problem of children advocacy in a 
small town in America. 

"Are Children Lying?" is the name of the principal article in this 
magazine this month, and it talks about the child who is accused of 
lying until case after case is dismissed because of the difficulty that 
a child has as a. witness in a judicial proceeding. Finally, there is a 
specific public service article on child abuse in out-of-home settings. 

Mr. Chairman, these are random selections from one month's 
publication, and they tell you that the people who practice law in 
America and do it with sensitivity and concern for justice are plac­
ing high priority on the critical needs of children. . 

As a person who himself has practiced law as a prosecuting at­
torney, as one who has helped in the development of the juvenile 
justice code, one who in my work in the ABA chaired the Puqlic 
Education Division, focused on law-related education, youth educa­
tion for children, and in particular interested in juvenile justice as 
it relates to disad, antaged children and illiteracy, I would like to 
mention, sir, that the lawyers of America a.re keenly aware that 
death and severe injury are a part of the life of many children, and 
the principal cause of death of a significant segment of our socie­
ty-juveniles. Where we adults think about stroke and heart attack 
and we worry about cancer, young children have to struggle with 
murder and manslaughter. 

We lawyers know that children's rights in civil matters need to 
be addressed conscientiously and ethically, and we have written an 
ethical code for the bar, but there needs to be an oversight for mat-
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ters that are not before the courts, so that children's rights can be 
observed and carefully regarded. That leads us into guardian ad 
litem programs for children. 

Here again, volunteer lawyers are doing what they can to assist 
but they are observing more than it is possible to put their arms 
around and embrace and to solve, because not all of the matters of 
children's rights come before a court of competent jurisdiction 
where they can be addressed and protected. We must reach out and 
realize that a tiny tip of the iceberg appears in the courts, and the 
majority of these matters never find their way there, never find 
their way into the hands of an ethical lawyer that can see that a 
child is protected. 

Yes, Mr. Chairman, this is a Nation that loves its children, but it 
is a Nation that has become indifferent, euphoric and insensitive, 
because we think in our love that we have observed a condition of 
well-being. In reality, the lawyers of America know that children 
uniquely live in a time where there is still a segment of anarchy 
that prevails in this land. There is still a time in your life as a 
child when the laws do not protect and provide for the essential 
needs. 

If we have a Nation in which postal s~rvice, highways, health 
care are critical, fundamental needs and justify government, then 
how can we question the critical necessity for the continuation of 
the laws we have today and the expansion of the funding of those 
luws for our youth, for our youth and our future? 

We have 2,020 entities within the American Bar Association, Mr. 
Chairman. Some of those are well known to you because they work 
with projects that are funded under some of the programs that this 
Congress has provided for, but virtually all of those 2,020 entities 
are interested and concerned about the law and the child, about 
justice in America and for that major segment in America that we 
call juveniles. 

Mr. Chairman, in the Founding Fathers' days of presenting the 
Constitution of the United States to this land, James Madis0n 
wrote that if all people in this land, if all people in this land were 
saints, if all of them were perfect, there would be little need for 
government, but that is not the case, and with that argument 
Madison proceeded in the Federalist Papers to persuade many, 
many people that we needed this government. He was right then. 

The closest thing we h .... ve to innocence and to saints are indeed 
the children. Your- efforts, sir, which we applaud and support fully, 
try to keep them that way and let them grow into the optimum 
human being in society that America needs and deserves. It is good 
sense and it is compassionate. It lends itself to justice. We support 
you fully. We stand ready to support this legislation on all calls, in 
all places, in every way that we can. 

Thank you for the opportunity, sir, to be here. 
[The prepared statement of Eugene C. Thomas follows:] 
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee 

Thank you on behalf of the American Bar Association for 

asking me to present this testi~ony relating to the Child Abuse 

Prevention and Treatment Act. I appear today to express the 

Association's strong endorsement of this important 

legislation. I also want to say a few words about our 

Association's long-term support of our in-house Child Advocacy 

program. It is an effort I hope to see replicated in other 

national professional associations that have a concern for 

American society in general and troubled families in particular. 

Throughout my tenure as President of the Association, I 

have paid special attention to the ways in which our children 

and youth could be bet ter served by the law and the legal 

process. I have addressed both our own Seventh National Child 

Advocacy Conference and the National Conference on Juvenile 

Justice in order to demonstrate my concern for these issues. I 

believe that an elected association president, particularly in 

an association with a permanent program focusing on the 

protection of children, can have real impact in leading the 

association's volunteer members and related groups to focus on 

children's needs. For example, I have joined several of my ABA 

predecessors in calling on each and every state and local bar 

association in this country to form a special committee on 

children's issues. 
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Imagine, if you will, that my counterpart presidents of 

other national human service oriented professional associations 

responded to my challenge to do what the ABA has done. What an 

even greater difference this major private sector venture might 

make in the lives of troubled children and their families! 

Imagine what more we might do for abused children if major 

trade associations, professional societies, and service 

organizations all established professionally staffed child 

advocacy programs. Imagine the positive effect thes~ entities 

could have by participating in a coordinated network to help 

improve the way our nation deals with this shameful problem. 

Our own Child Advocacy Center, for over eight years now, 

has continued to make ~Ihat I· believe to be a number of 

significant accomplishments related to abused and neglected 

children. Through our work on the monthly ABA Juvenile and 

Child Welfare Law Reporter and quarterly Children'S Legal 

Rights Journal we are keeping lawyers, judges, and child 

welfare system professionals abreast on the latest developments 

in this rapidly changing field. Furthermore, I am proud that 

we are deVeloping a standardized law school course curriculum 

on child abuse which I hope will be used by every law school in 

the country, so that our aspiring lawyers can become familiar 

with this critical area of law and hopefully be drawn to devote 

their careers to this field. 

In addition, we have just published two books to help 

children's advocates and judges use federal and state laws 

- 2 -
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effectively to help keep children from being unnecessarily 

removed from their family homes and placed in foster care. And 

we are presently developing a manual which will help programs 

serving abused and neglected children to improve their agency's 

legal services. Too often, we are hearing that inadequate 

legal consultation and training cause child welfare workers to 

misuse the judicial child protection process, and we want to do 

something about that. 

Let me conclude by mentioning that later today you will 

hear from Alan Kopit, chairman of our Young Lawyers Division, 

who will direct his remarks to the specific impact of the 

~egislation you are reviewing. We at the ABA have always tried 

to publicly support laws that contribute positively to our 

society, and I know that the Child Abuse Protection and 

Treatment Act is one of thpse. We not only favor its 

extension, but also want to help assure that it is effectively 

imflemented throughout America. 

Thank you for this opportunity to state my views on behalf 

of the American Bar Association and our 342,000 members. 

l623M 
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Mr. OWENS. I thank you, Mr. Thomas, for your very informative 
and strongly stated presentation. 

Do you have any questions, Mr. Bartlett? 
Mr. BARTLETT. I will pass on questions at this time, Mr. Chair­

man. 
Mr. OWENS. Thank you again, Mr. Thomas. 
Mr. THOMAS. Thank you, sir, and may I just provide these two 

documents for the record? 
Mr. OWENS. Yes. 
Mr. THOMAS. Thank you. 
Mr. OWENS. Mr. Leslie J. Roberts of the National Black Child 

Development Institute. 
Mr. Roberts, you have a time problem and we would like to move 

you out of order. The bell has just rung for a vote. If you can make 
your statement in 5 minutes, I will not delay you any further. Your 
full statement will be entered into the record. Then you will have 5 
minutes for the oral statement. 

STATEMENT OF LESLIE J. ROBERTS, MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE NATIONAL BLACK CHILD DEVELOPMENT 
INSTITUTE, INC. 

Mr. ROBERTS. Allow me to thank you, Mr. Chairman and mem­
bers of the committee, for your consideration there and for the op­
portunity to testify in these proceedings. Weare pleased to have 
the opportunity to testify on the Child Abuse Prevention and 
Treatment Act and the Family Violence Prevention and Services 
Act. 

I am a member of the Board of Directors for the National Black 
Child Development Institute, Inc., Washington, D.C. I will acknowl­
edge, along with many of the persons who ht:.ve already testified, 
that there is a very serious problem in the area of child abuse and 
protection. We have become aware that although there is consider­
able evidence that in this country we value and love our children, 
there is also evidence that we are neglectful of our children, and 
the latter seems to overwhelm. 

We also would call attention to the fact that black children are 
over-represented, both in incidence reports-black children and 
families are over-represented-and in foster care and so on. Re­
searchers believe that child maltreatment and family violence have 
many overlapping causes. According to the 1980 census, black chil­
dren accounted for about 15 percent of all the children in the 
United States. However, with respect to reported child abuse after 
remaining relatively constant for a while at about 19 percent, we 
see very dramatic and alarming rises in the incidence as reported 
in the statistics. 

The National Black Child Development Institute believes that 
social and economic factors play a crucial role in child abuse. 
Therefore, we believe that it is particularly important to the black 
community and other disadvantaged populations that policies and 
practices be established that address the social context of abuse, as 
well as the individualized identification and treatment of the par­
ents concerned. 
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In an effort to remain within the 5-minute constraint, I want to 
make one point very clear: that the National Black Child Develop­
ment Institute very strongly and unequivocally recommend con­
tinuation of the Center, of the NCCAN. However, we see that since 
1974, a relatively short history, there have been commendable 
gains, there have been commendable services by NCCAN, and we 
want to note those, but our support comes also with a concern and 
with some vision of what needs to be done, and we have some 
rather specific recommendations in that regard that we would like 
to move to. 

We have already heard testimony as to some of the problems of 
agencies out there where the tire meets the road, serving very 
troubled families and children, faced with under-funding, faced 
with morale problems, faced with staff turnover and the like. 
These things come back to adequate funding, largely, and we are 
very, very concerned and have some strong recommendations that 
we look to these conditions within NCCAN itself. If NCCAN is to 
carry out this charge as definc~ 1 in the legislation, there must be a 
deployment of resources there. 

Problems in NCCAN administration and decision making mecha­
nisms have been well documented in previous testimony. Peer 
review systems should be established. 

[The prepared statement of Leslie J. Roberts follows:J 
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To the members of the House Subcommittee on Select Education, 

my name is Leslie J. Roberts and I am pleased to have this opportu­

nity to testify in regards to the reauthorization of the "child 

Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act" and the "Family Violence 

Prevention Services Act." I am a member of the Board of Directors 

for the National Black Child Development Institute, Inc., Washing-

ton, D.C. 

Thf! National Black Child Development Institute (NBCDI) is 

a national, membership organization dedicated to promoting the 

healthy development of Black children. In 33 local affiliates 

throughout the United States, volunteers engage in advocacy act i-

vities and provide services to thousands of children. Our con-

stituency are Black children and families of every economic and 

social group who want to provide a good life for their children" 

It is frequently said that Americ~ is a youth-oriented cul-

ture. While this is true in m,lny,\<{ays - clothing styles, music, 

choice of foods - in other ways, it is a fact that Americans do 

not really care very much for children. The size of the pro-

blem of child abuse and neglect in the United States is evidence 

of this. 

Children have been ill-treated by adults ;throughout history, 
J 

but until recently, the problems of abuse and neglect of children 

were considered only in terms of individuals cases - "that guy 

down the street who is hard on his kids." But we now realize that 
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the "guy down the street" had literally thousands of companions. 

F~ndings continue to show that child abuse, far from being rare, 

isolated events is a chronic condition for many children. we 

have become aware that the abused child is the "littlest victim" 

in our society. The problem of child abuse and neglect now ranks 

as one of the greatest risks to the health of our nation's chil­

dren. 

Arguably, child maltreatment and family ,iolence can be listed 

among the most serious social problems in Black communities across 

the country. Some researchers theorize that child abuse and ne­

g lect, family violence, and homicide are points on a continuum 

and not specific and discrete dYbfunct ions. These researchers 

believe that child maltreatment and fa"11ily violence have many 

overlapping causes. 

According to the 1980 census, Black children accounted for 

about 15% of all children in the uni ted States. From 1976 to 

1980, the proportion of child abuse and neglect reports involving 

Black ch:ildren remained relatively constant at about 19%. In 

1982, the increase in reported cases was obvious as the national 

data indicated that Black children were the reported victims in 

22% of all child maltreatmenc reports. While Black children 

appear to be disproportionately over-I epresented as victims of 

abuse, this increase in reported cases is not a problem found 

only in the Black communi ty. Although the true prevalence of 

child abuse is unkncwo, the number of reported cases, nationally, 
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has increased 146% since 1976. The number of reported cases has 

increased annually, with more than a million reported cases of 

child abus: in 1983. 

The National Black Child Development Institute believes 

that social and economic factors play a crucial role in child 

abuse. Therefore, we beJieve that it is of particular importance 

to the Black community and other disadvantaged populations that 

policies and practices be established that address the social 

context of abuse as well as the individualized identification 

and treatment of the parents concerned. 

The vision, scope, and mission of a National Center on Child 

Abuse and Neglect are well founded. Since the National Center 

has corne into being, the efficacy of a National Health and Human 

Services program has been demonstrated. The accomplishments of 

NCCAN as it pursues the statements of purpose as defined in the 

law are commendable and there is no question that contil'uation 

is warrented. The National Black Child Development Institute, 

Inc. wishes to go on record as firmly and unequivocally recommend­

ing reauthorizatior; rf NCCAN. In addition to the many significant 

contribut ions and ach ievements NCCAN has made, it has been sus­

tained by another very s ignif icant and necessary development. 

That is the strong bi-partisan support which was evident in the 

formulation and development of NCCAN and which must be maintained. 
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We endorse reauth( '."ization even though we recognize that there 

have been excesses and errors in judgment as well as accomplish­

ments in the short history of NCCAN. Available da ta indica te 

that the need for a national center is greater today than when 

it was orginally established. It is apparent too that Black 

children and Black families and some other minorities are at 

relatively greater risk and are over-represented in the incidence 

of abuse and neglect statistics, foster care, and so on. 

We recommend that Black and other disadvantaged populations 

be deliberately included in the beneficial work and assets of 

NCCAN. We want these popula tions to have a greater share in 

NCCAN's effective gains in preventing and treating child abuse 

and neglect. This leads us to urge speci fic procedural reforms 

to improve management of the Center and to ensure accountability. 

A. Management and accountability of Center needs improvement. 

1. Problems in NCCAN administration and decision making 

mechanisms have beer well documentp.d in previous hear­

ings, congressional and administration investigations. 

2. The process of allowing some proposals for fund i ng to be 

administratively reviewed rather than evaluated by 

some mechanism of peer review should be discontinued. 

3. Pelr review systems should be established for determin­

ing funding for external projects. Reviewers should be 

I 
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individuals with professional credentials and expertise 

in the subject matter addressed, with specific terms of 

appointment staggered to ensure continui ty of the review 

process over time. All proposals responding to a pat"ti­

cu1ar priority should be subject to the same review. 

Excluding application of specific confirming criteria, 

approval of funding should accurately reflect reviewer 

prior i ty SCOles for funding. Procedures need to be 

implemented which ensure openness of the review and 

funding p~ocess, including written notification of 

priority scores received, review of reviewer comments, 

etc., as a matter of standard operating procedure. 

4. Specific agency discretionary funds should be set-aside 

to meet legitimate special agency needs/issues (perhaps 

3% - 5% of totall, funding on non-responsive, yet pre­

mising proposals. 

B. Staffing Instability creates problems of leadership. 

1. NCCAN is plagued by staff instability, poor morale, and 

10'1/ level of content expertise. We suggest funding of 

a specific study to address lack of staff stability 

and low morale wi thin NCCAN wi th speci fic procedural 

recommentations. 

a. impact of high frequency of f'taffing changes and 
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overall levels of staffing to effectively carry 

out mandate. 

b. lack of expertise/specialization of many ~urrent 

staff reflecting frequent transfer and replace­

ments. 

c. Procedures/cri teria needed to encourage (rather than dis­

courage) small and minority non-profit organizations. 

1. Requirements for 25% or more matching funds function­

ally discriminate in favor of large, well-established 

mainstream or affluent non-profit organizations and 

agencies. 

2. Lack of pre-application assistance further limits 

capaci ty of small inno,",ative agencies to submit 

viable applications. 

3. Inequities in the decision-making process regarding 

funding decisions disproportionately result in dis­

couraging innovative groups from submitting grant 

applications. 

4. We would recommend: 

a. Elimination of match ing funds requi rements 

demonstration and research projects should be 

judged on merits, not on agency or community 

affluence. 
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b. Specific set-aside programs for research and 

demonstration projects focusing on minority 

popula Hons • 

c. Absolute limits be placed on the amount of funds 

anyone agency or organization can receive 

should be established (suggest 1% of total ex­

ternal project funds). 

d. NCCAN should be mandated to provide pre-applica­

tion assistance to groups/organizations seeking 

funding based on organizational request. 

e. Award processes and procedures need to be stan­

dardized and notification of awards needs to be 

more timely to allow small organizations to 

better plan their applications and to compete 

with large: organizations. 

D. There is a need for improving policy consiste.1cy and agency 

"opennes1" and accessibility. 

1. Clearinghouse 

a. frequent changes in location, policies, and 

procedures result in confusion and increased 

Udowntime .It 
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2. Reporting Data 

a. data collection for 1986 and 1987 remain un­

clear 

b. lack of a consistent approach to data over the 

years makes data difficult to interpret 

c. recommend establishing a consortium of na­

tional agencies to develop acceptable proce­

dures for ongoing data collection 

3. National Incidence Study 

a. consistency over time is needed; organized 

as an "in-house" staffed function rather than 

a competitive grant. 

E. Funding periods should be lengthened. 

1. One year to 17 months is too short a period of time 

to conduct meaningful research in this area. 

2. The funding period is also too short for meaningful 

demonstration projects. 

3. Increase the funding of projects of thret' and five-year 

duration. 

F. Non-federal membership on the Advisory Board should be ex­

panded. 

1. Should be expanded to ensure adequate representation 

of non-federal expertise. 
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2. should ensure adequate minority representation. 

3. Terms of office should be established with staggered 

terms for non-federal representatives to ensure some 

continuity across administrations. 

G. Funding Level of NCCAN is insufficient. 

1. In real dollars, federal effort has declined. 

2. Increased funding is needed. In addition to the 

points made above, specific increases in funding are 

needed in the following areas: 

a. To promote training and support for minority 

researchers: 

1. fund a small research grants program for 

minority researchers; 

2. fund training programs geared toward 

training of minority researchers and 

practitioners specializing in child abuse 

and neglect; 

3. as a matter of policy, all training 

efforts funded by NCCAN should have 

specific content addressing minority 

populations and their needs. 

b. Ensure full implementation of the act 

1. Children's Trust Funds 

2. Service programs (none currently funded) 
but authorized under Section 5103 
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In summary, the National Black Child Development Institute, 

Inc. strongly recommends continuation of NCCAN. We recommend 

further that appropriations in the area of child abuse be increased 

to at least 50 million dollars and in the area of adoption to 15 

million dollars. Concurrently, we suggest that management and 

staff be strengthened and the NCCAN process be reviewed. It is 

important that NCCAN services are developed and delivered in 

ways that those who are the intended receipients of these services 

may effectively use the services. This will require the above 

increase in funding and an increased sensitivity to cultural 

differences of minorities and at least a proportionate representa­

tion of disadvantaged minorities at all staff and advisory levels. 
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Mr. OWENS. Thank you very much. We have your recommenda­
tions in writing. I am sorr: we can't explore it in questioning with 
you but we will, in the child abuse panel, explore some of these 
same questions with the other witnesses. 

Mr. ROBERTS. Thank you again, Mr. Chairman, and thanks to the 
committee for the opportunity to testify. 

Mr. OWENS. Thank you again for coming. 
We will recess for 10 minutes while the vote is being taken. 
[Recess taken.] 
Mr. OWENS. Please be seated. 
I will have to beg your indulgence today. We have a very impor­

tant bill with many amendments, so we may have interruptions 
again to vote. 

We will now proceed with the panel on family violence. Is Ms. 
Fedders, Charlotte Fedders, here? Susan Kelly-Dreiss? Is that the 
pronunciation, Dreiss? 

Ms. DREISS. Dreiss. 
Mr. OWENS. And Gwendolyn Wright. 
Ms. Fedders, would you like to begin? 

STATEMENT OF CHARLOTTE FEDDERS 

Ms. FEDDERS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank you for the 
opportunity to be able to testify today before the Subcommittee on 
Select Education in the House Education and Labor Committee. 

Mr. OWENS. Excuse me, Ms. Fedders. I do hope you know your 
entire written statement will be entered into the record. You have 
5 minutes to make any remarks you wish, and you don't have to 
confine yourself to the written statement. 

Ms. FEDDERS. Okay, I have 5 minutes. 
I am an abused spouse. As you listen to me today, I am probably 

being presumptuous but I do consider myself an expert on domestic 
violence, since I have lived domestic violence. I never wanted to 
speak out on any issue. I wanted to just be a housewife and a 
mother, and to most people I probably achieved this goal. 

There was a great deal of love in my marriage, a honeymoon-like 
environment at times. These were the times that made the years of 
abuse tolerable. I was physically abused. I had black eyes, bruises, 
a broken eardrum, a wrenched neck, and I was emotionally abused. 
I had weeks and months of long silences, and .:ventually I really 
feel I became a non-person. 

Years passed, and I told some people but other people I was too 
embarrassed to tell. Emotional control tightened. I kept trying to 
figure out what I was doing wrong in my marriage. I went to psy­
chiatrists, who never said there was anything wrong with my hus­
band. I was always trying to figure out what the weakness is in me. 
I talked to priests, a priest who told me to go home and love my 
husband. I talked to internists. I talked to my husband's internist, 
who said he could do nothing unless he had my husband come in 
for some regular exam, where there would be headaches or some­
thing that could indicate that there was some mental problem. 

The episodes became more frequent, and my children began to 
witness the violence. I might add that I think this is a very devas-
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tating and subtle form of child abuse that begins a vicious cycle of 
creating another abuser as an adult. 

I called the county police several times. This was over 17 years of 
the marriage, which means it is over the period of 20 years. I don't 
think I ever called the police until maybe 12 years ago, 8 years ago. 
I was never given any suppert of where to go. It was never suggest­
ed that I call a hot line. There was no shelter that was ever recom­
mended to me. I know they exiRt now, but this was in Montgomery 
County, Maryland, which is a rather progressive place to live. As 
recently as 1983, when I had a bruise forming on my eye, I went to 
a police station and was given the same-"You may issue a war­
rant for his arrest" -but no other advice. 

At one point a police officer was called and came to my home. I 
had been hit by a bowl and I was having a bruise formed, and my 
husband had been hit by the flying glass and accused me of having 
hurt him. Although I had two witnesses, because he said that I at­
tacked him we were both advised of our rights and what we could 
do to issue warrants for each other's arrest, and there was no inter­
vention by the police officer. 

My trial created national attention because my husband held a 
sensitive Government position. During the trial he admitted that 
he had beaten me the seven times that I had some sort of proof for, 
but he said I greatly exaggerated these episodes, although I say, 
"How can you exaggerate a black eye or a bruise?" A question that 
friends of mine are often asked is, "Did you ever see him hit her?" 
-which indicates that perhaps the authorities think these are self­
inflicted injuries. One of his lawyers at one point on national tele­
vision even suggested that one does not know what goes on behind 
the closed doors in a marriage, and that it did only happen seven 
times. I say once is too often. 

At the trial my husband broke down and cried. The judge then 
let him have an extension or a continuation of the trial so he could 
try for a reconciliation. This man said he was sorry; therefore, the 
judge believed that he was sorry and it would not happen again. I 
did try a reconciliation, and when it fell through my husband and 
his lawyers accused me of not knowing what was in my own mind, 
and that the end of the reconciliation was forced on me. 

In the past few years I have learned a lot about domestic vio­
lence. I know it has no social barriers. The FBI reports that every 
18 seconds a woman is battered in the United States, and that 
every day four are beaten to death. Four million women a year are 
battered by their husbands or boyfriends. Violence against wives is 
not a phenomenon of this century. The "rule of thumb" came from 
the English common law that gave the husband, the head of house­
hold, the right to discipline his wife with a rod no bigger than his 
thumb. 

Sadly, I now know that unless the system changes, more women 
will be beaten to death. Police reports indicate that 80 percent of 
men arrested and prosecuted for wife abuse are found guilty, and 
that if the court intervenes in an effective way, a woman is 50 per­
cent less likely to be subjected to the abuse again. I also know that 
unless the court system changes, the abuser continues to seek and 
find control over his victim by continuing legal battles that waste 
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energy, money and time that are all needed for these victims and 
their families to begin some sort of recovery. 

We cannot begin cutting funds for programs that have only 
begun to exist. Domestic violence is a fact of our society. In his 
State of the Union Address in 1985, President Reagan said that his 
administration would intensify its drive against horrible crimes 
like sexual abuse and family violence. 

There are those who say I really haven't been hurt very serious­
ly. There are those who say I am being exploited, that I should 
suffer in silence. I believe if more "ladies" refused to suffer in si­
lence, that perhaps domestic violence would be on its way to com­
plete elimination, not fighting for Federal and State funding. 

No one human being has the right to terrorize another, especial­
ly his spouse or his children, and especially at home, a supposed 
place of love and safety from harm. This is a national problem and 
we need national legislation and help. Many States and local juris­
dictions have made progress. 

Mr. O'NENS. Could you take a minute to sum up? 
Ms. FEDDERS. I will. 
Abusers are being arrested, but it is only the beginning. This is 

absolutely the wrong time to cut even a penny from the domestic 
violence program. Mr. Chairman, I urge the reauthorization of the 
Family Violence Prevention and Services Act. We need education. 
We need education of the children who will grow up to be the cou­
ples of the wOl'ld, and we need education of the COUl't system, police 
officers, judges, everyone. 

The system needs to be changed to provide protection for the real 
victims. The fundamental issue, that a man can beat his wife 
whenever he feels he is justified, cannot continue to get lost in the 
existing legal system. This happened to me, and it is still happen­
ing to me. It should happen to no one else. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
[The prepared statement of Charlotte Fedders follows:] 
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TESTIMONY OF CHARLOTTE FEDDERS APRIL 29, 1987 

As you llsten to me today, I hope you will keep In mind 

that I consider myself an expert on domesUc violence. One 

might feel that this is presumptious of me, for although many 

thought I lived a "fairy tale" existence, In truth I lived 

seventeen years as a victim of domestic violence. The very 

fact that I have survived thIs violence makes me an expert, 

for, unless one has experienced this particular tYPd of abuse 

it Is virtually impossible to comprehend all the intricasies of 

the "battered wife syndrome". Just believe that what I say IS 

so. 

My childhood ambition was not to speak out for or against 

anyone or anything. I only wanted to be a wife and mother. 

Through what I saw as Incredible luck, I achieved this goal. 

married the man of my dreams - tall, dark, handsome, ambitious, 

personable, Catholic, willing to give me children and a 

comfortable life, filled wIth little strife. 

We had 6 sons together. We always lived in a lovely home 

In the "right" neighborhood, Joined Congressional Country Club 

and even had the traditional station wagon and labrador 

retriever. 

Our lives were shattered for a while when we lost one son 
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to Spinal Meningitis, but as a st)"Qn~ C;;.thulic tamlly',NI11d, we 

handled this tragedy with strength and dignity. People said 

"there Is so much love there." 

And LOVE there was - a great deal of high, happy 

"honeymoon-like" times. These are the times that made those 

years of abuse tolerable. I was a battered wife - abused 

physically (black eyes, bl'uises, a broken ear drum, wrenched 

neck and more) and emotionally (weeks and months of long 

silences, constant criticism, insults and control of me to the 

point that I became a "non-.erson"J 

Within the first years of my marriage, r admitted to my 

family that my husband had given me a broken ear drum and 

beaten me during my first pregnancy. They told me to leave 

him, but they could not bodily remove me from this situation. 

In the late 60's, I don't think there were any safe houses or 

shelters for women and to be honest, I would not have bad the 

courage to go anyway since things like this were not supposed 

to happen to good wives. I was Ignorant and ashamed and I was 

young and becoming increasingly insecure about my ability to 

survive without him. Even if I had known of a refuge I could 

not have left. I did not tell the doctor bow my ear drum was 

ruptured, for I was sure that be would wonder what J had done 

to deserve such an act by my husband. I felt that no one would 
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do this to someone he loved unless she had done something very 

bad. I decided 1 had to be better wife. I admitted the one 

beating to my obstetl."iclan since I was frightened tor my baby. 

He too suggested that I leave the marriage, but offered no 

other counselor suggestion the the problem was not mine alone. 

The thought at leaving emotionallJ' paralJ'zed me and I prayed 

that the marriage would change tor the better once the baby was 

born. 

Years passed and the abuse escalated to once or more a 

year. The emotional control tightened. I would get desparate 

at Urnes and tell famlly or friends about specific episodes, 

but atter each reconciliation I would Ignore their suggestions 

of separation and would avoid telling them about subsequent 

beatings. Meanwhlle, I kept trying to figure out what I 

continued to do wrong. 

In the first few years, I saw two psychiatrists, nelther of 

whom otfered any suggestion that the problem was something 

other t\an a hOrl'lble weakness of mine. At one pOint, I went to 

illY Internist to show him the many brul:::es from t.lne particularly 

bl'utal beating. He suggested that my husband waa immature. 

But I knew that the fault must have been mine too - r Just KNEW 

it was. 

In the next year, I saw another psychiatrist who spent 6 

months helping me change myself. I lost weight and made some 
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attempt at telling my husband that this type of behavio~ wa::; 

unacceptable, but the docto~ offe~ed no diagnosis to indicate 

that anyone other than myself was "troubled. 

Awhile later I again despaired at the lack of improvement 

in my marriage. I could not find a way to avoid these outbursts 

and I felt like I was going crazy. Surely a priest could find 

a way to help us. went to my pastor, who listened patiently 

and sent me home wtih the advice that I should give my husband 

s orne space and LOVE him. I thought I had been loving him. 

As the epIsodes became more frequent and my children began 

to witness this violence (I might add that this Is a very 

!lubtle and devastating form of child abuse) I became frantic 

for help. Twice I mustered the couragfl to call the county 

pollce who advised me of the procedure for issuing a warrant 

for my husband's arrest.(A friend also called for me once, 

only to be given the same r ou tine) I had thr ea t ened to call the 

police before and my husband advised that such acti.)n would 

ruin his successful legal career and then, where would be? 

The pOlice ')fiered no suggestion of intervention and no 

encouragement to call asocial agency or hotUne. I felt Uke 

I was a bother to the pollce. Years later - in 1983 - I was to 

experience the same feeling when I act ually went to the police 

station with a rapidly forming black eye. had finally found 

the courage to seek some protection and I left the station 
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feeling like a cryba'>y. One other time a police oHlcer came 

to my home. My husband had hit me with a t-eavy glass bowl. A 

bruise was developing on my hlp, but since he had been cut by 

some of the thrown glass, the officer advised us both that we 

could Issue arrest warrants for each other. This time, r had 

two witnesses who corroborated my story, but the pollce officer 

was equally sympathetic to my Set. if) In. husband. I could not 

believe it. 

One time I even called HIS Int ernls t and t old him of my 

husband's moods and advised him ot the physical vlolenc~. This 

docto,', who we also saw socially and was supposedly a "friend" 

said he could del nothing unless my husband came in for a visit 

with zome symptoms o[ headaches or a related pl'oblem. He nev"r 

fnU .. ewed up with me Ill' my husband. 

Finally, r had the good fortune to rind a psychOlogist Who 

encouraged me In th~ reallzatlon that thl. .. was not the n(H'mal 

behaVior of a 'lusband te)wards' his wife and children. As 

ignorant as it must sound, I wa~ shocked to be tclld that I wal 

a battered wlfe, a victim of dome5tic violencf! - a victim of a 

CRIME! It telellt a lot of harr:! worlt, but I finally realized the 

strength to file for divorce from this man I had loved so much, 

Had I Itnown th ... many plt£alls that I would encounter in 

obtaining my freedom, I will tell you that r would have felt 

depressed, but would have gone forward, for I was flnally 
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READY. 

My husband refused a reasonable settlement propusal and our 

divorce wa:; forced Into open court. Our hearing created quite 

a ,ensatlon, for, as you know, my husband had a sensitive 

government position. He adml~ted that he had beaten me the 7 

time.; I had some sort of prooi for, although he said I had 

"greatly exagerrated" these episode>:. How do you "exagerrate" 

a brui:;e or black eye? (By the way, a question that friends who 

have gone t~ my deiense have been frequently a>:ked is "did you 

eVIl\' jee him hit her?" As i£ perhaps they wer'~ self inflicted 

InJurie,;. :\ lawyer for my hU:iband even went on national 

television t ,) say that we do not know what ;;".~~ on bflhind 

cl,)slld duol's and be:;ide::;, it had ONLY happened "7 times" as if 

tho. t was not enough.) 

I stated at the trial that this man was "the great love of 

my life". He crl;d on the stand that he was sorry and he l,)ved 

and adored me. The Judge P<lstp,)ned the hearing at my husband'3 

request and sent us away with the suggestion that we "try 

again" to 3ee if tring:; could work out. I was IncreduloUS! 

had been so positive that I was finally dOing the right thing 

for my children and myself. And now here was a Judge telling 

me that maybe I needed time to thinl( thIngs over and after all, 

my husband had confes;.;ed to thIs silent crimp; hl' promised he 
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would undergo therapy; he was a changed pel's on! Somehow, the 

victimization had shifted from me and my family to my husband. 

It was Incredible t a experience! 

He was so repentive, so persistent, so loving, so full of 

promises of reform. I had loved him so much - maybe this time 

would be different. So I tried for about 3 weeks and although 

there was no violence, I Imew that there was little change, for 

the need to control was obvious. I ended the reconciliation 

attempt. Of course, when the trial resumed, the Judge 

postponed it again since so little time had tJlapsed ~Ince the 

end of the reconciliation attempt and the trial date. Again, I 

was denied an end to this legal nightmare>. ~y husband's lawyer 

argued that I had been rorced ,)ut of the reconciUat i.)n by my 

lawyer and therapist, implying that I did not !m,)w what wa;.; In 

my own mind and heart. But at la~t, the Judge did not talw the 

balt and I was granted a limited divorce. In the state of 

~ryland, a limited divorce means that one cannot rromarl'Y and 

there Is no Unal monetary award. In athol' words, I wao; still 

not free. 1 stll1 am not. The legal has:,:le:: go on. I cannot 

go Into the details of my pl'esent situation, but suffice It t,) 

say, my case could have been handled differently. I pray in 

the upcoming months that it WILL be handled more intelligently 

and sensitively, but I am pe:i:llmi:.;tic. 
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domes t Ic violence. It knows no sl)clal barriers. The rBI 

report:> that every 13 SECONDS a woman ls battered In the United 

States and that every day 4 are beaten to death. Four million 

wompn a year are battered by their husbands or boyfriends. 

Villience against wives is not a phenomenon of thl;; cp.ntury. The 
, 

phru!;o "rule of thumb" comes from the Engllsh common law which 

gavl~ the husband the "head of household" right t.) discipline 

hi:; wife "wlth a r ad no bigger tj.an his thumb." We even 

laughed when Ralph clenched hi:; fist and thre..!t~ned to send 

wife .\lice "To tho moon!" 

Sadly, I Imow now that unless tho sy:>tem changes, more 

women will be beaten to death. Pollce report~ Indicate that 

30% of men arrp.st3d and prn~pcuted for wife abuDe arp found 

guilty and that If the court Intervone~ In an '?ffc<'Uv(' way, a 

woman I~ 50~~ 1es;; 111ee1:1 to be subjected to abuse a;;uln. I also 

len 0 I>' that unle9:; the court system ch;;.nges, th,= abusel' contlnues 

to scele and find control over his Victim by continuing legal 

battleS that wa.;t,= energy, money and time that ar,= all needed 

for these victims and their families to begin 30me sort of 

recovery. 

We cannot begin cutting funds tor programs that have only 

begun to exist. Domestic vlolt~nce is a tact of our SOCiety. 
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In his Stat~ of the Uni',n address In 1935, Ronald Reagan "tated 

that his administration would Int>!nsify Its' dl"lve against 

h"rrlble crlmes like "s,~xual abuse and family violence." But 

lI"e so many Who prefer to ignore this crime when It hits tuo 

close to home, ttl~ White [{ouse said that this wa:l a "private 

matter" and although presidential adviJors were aware of thc 

wife abuse allegations, they did nothing untIl forced to when 

the divorce I' ecei ved publicit y. 

There are those that say I was never hurt that seriously. 

There are thos'~ that 51.y I must have "IUrec! it" or why would 

have stayed. There are those that say I am being flxploited 

and should rflcogn!::e this and keep silent. Lct someone els.! 

~peak out. If more "ladies" refused to ~uffel' In Jllence, 

pprhaps domestic Violence would be on the '¥a:J til complet,· 

eEminatlon, not fiil'htlng for federal aile:! ~tat" (unding. 

No one human being has the right to terl",rize another, 

especially a SPOU$., and/or children and espflc!ally a thorne .. a 

supposed place of love and safety from harm. This is a 

national problem and we need national legislation. Many statez 

and local Jurisdictions have made progress. Abusers ARE being 

arre:.lted. It Is a beginning, but it Is ONLY a beginning. So 

much needs to be done. 

This is the absolute wrong time to cut even one penny from the 

I 
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Thin is the absolute wrong time to cut even one penny from the 

domestic violence p\'ogram. 

I believe that ~ Is crucial to this issue. Yes, we 

can try t,) play "catch up" within the e;dstln~ system, but it 

will not ta!.e care of'the real problem. Surely a simple 

seminar or even "MEMO" or other directlve outlining the 

"battered wife syndrome" that would be c::::~ 

every fi":;:;l:'~..z:; , 

~coUld make a dent. This approach might sound simpl1stic, 

but the ~""'~-'""~l':z::::::=,",-,,,,,o;o.,.~ 

~~ :o~~~ is fairly universal and 

academkally ea;;y to understand. But education, day care, 

\'ehabllitat!on, shelters and olher programs CQst money. states 

The ~."i5;: l'Jl'1"'e~ tg i':s~~the 

"l~ - not the ::lbu:.:er:J Who :Jay they are sorry. The 

~~a. This fundamental issue cannot continue to get lost 

in the existing legal system. It has happened to me ~ it is 

stUI happening tome, it should happen to no one els e! 

Than!, you! 
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JcnuclwFetlrucry 198A 9 

Wife Abuse: The Facts 
The Problem 

V iolenco aga:m.st WlYeS is a crlm~ of enorm~u.s 
proportions. It OCCUIS in families from all mcaL 

eccnOmlC. educational. ond religious backgrounds. 
'1'110 police dopartment inNorwttlk. Connecticut. a city 
with a wide sccio--econcmic range. receives the 5aII19 

number of wile abuse calls as the pollce depamnent 
in Harlem. New York. a dty of comparable size. Eat· 
tered women Wlth lew economic resources are more 
visible because they seek help from public agendes: 
howevet middle end upper class womec. also seek 
refuge end assistcmce. a1j],o'..lgh more often in hc..te13 
and trom private agencies. 

~~~en and run Barrion. mo Battored. Wile 

Each year 1.8 million wives are severely assaulted 
by the" hU!lband.:!. according to a 1976 ncrtional 

survey. Dt Murray SI::rau!i. a pr..ncpal researcher for 
thlS study. believes that tIilil estimate substanbally 
underrepresents tho true extent of the problem. 

Murr:.:y Straus Rlct1::a'd GeilC!I. ,r..:t Sl.ZC:'.r:o Slom­
met:. Eer.ll':CI C:csect :Joe::;: Vo7e.er.a? 111 U':G Amen:::: 
FC:r.;.i';l' 

V iolence c:gc:in5t wive~ will occur crt !P.C!3t once in 
two-tlurcb ::t all lIlaITlageo. est::lmatell researcher 

Maria Roy. SI:raU!l. Gelles. and Sle=e1: estlmate 
that :s percent ot wwes are severely beaten dunng 
the cour-..e of their mamage. 

M:.: ?::y, '!1:a Ab~ve Fbrmcr: 3trcr'.J~, ~Je!l :r.d 
_ S!au-• .'r.a::. Be}O.;.-:d c:c:;ed Doer.; 

I n clmost three quartlJrs of reportedspouze ~ault!l. 
the ViC""..m WCl3 divorced or se~CIatcd at the tlme of 

the mc::.:icDt. This finding suggests that bcrttenng may 
be mere prevalent them cunently estimated. SInCe 
:nest mc:.aoncQ !lurveys Unut thea ~ple!J to marned 
couples. 

:op::::.cnt cl T:..:.:tl.CO. Ra;X:r! ~o r..":o N.X1::.'1 ':;1 C.";..":':o 
ar.dtu:;c;;a 

A battering ~ncident is ramly an. l.::lolatcd OC" 

curance; it =ally rec'= lIequenUy. Ac::erding­
to a 1982 survey of women j.[l Texc:::l. 19 percent of the 
Wt;lm"u wbc were abused. dunng the preVIOUS year. 
and. 25 percent of the women abused duriD.g thoU' 
lUetunes had been v:c:t1mJ.zed crt lea.=n once a week. 

R::r;m::.r.d H,::, TO~J::a ·md !vf.:rrr L PmkOJ: Sf-v: u::a 
Al.::.J!:e In T'~: A ,stu::? -:1 ~t;mena Att.:tL:..isa ::r.d 
E::cpcnem:ca 

B atterinq tends to escalate in severity over time. 
Many of the injuries sustained by battered women 

require medical attention. More than one million 
abused wom.n seek medical help for injuries caused 
hy battering each year: 'lWenty percent of visits by 
women to emergeoc:"[ medical services CIa caused by 
battering. 'lWelva percent of the injuries sustaiI1ed in 
reported incidences of battering in Minnesota re­
quired hospitaJl:zxxtio!1. 

Evan SIa!l: and Ann. FIilcrait. "Mec!iool Th."'PY "" 
Rapres:ncn: Tha Cc;:;o of tho Battorod Women"; Min~ 
nesota Department of CoI'TOdCrtl. Data SummQ'Y Rfr 
!'Crt 

T hirtyperconl of f.male homicide victlm.s are killed 
by their husbands or hayfriew. ao:ording- 10 an 

FBI report. Researchers Slark and Flllaait foWld in 
their study that battering ao:ounled for 2S percent of 
suicide attempts by wome!1. 

Fcd.orcl Buroau of tnVtY-:llqaU::n. Urufcrm Cr.ma Fa­
perts 1982 £oJOrl Slc:-r; end Anr.a Flitcrc::t. wmest:: 
Vlclonco and 7amc.lo Su'od.e~ 

M Bn commit SS percent of all assaults cn spouses, 
according I~ Ncrtional Crime Survey Data from 

1ST.! 10 l!l77. In addition. tho severity and .xtenl of 
injuries inC".JlTed. by men are in::.ignilicant c::nd inccm· 
parable 10 those sustained by WOme!1. 

J)epamr.ent ::l! ru:.t..""Q. Repart to tho Natlcrl en Cr:me 
and/tJ$Jco 

The Response 

There are over SOO shelters in the country that oHer 
emergency refuge and services to battered 

women and their clilldren: it is estimated that these 
sheiters provide only Olle quarter milllon becb an. 
nually fer the several million women and ch11dren 
wbo need them. Datarrom the MionesotaDepartment 
of CorrectiOml indicates that in that .Iate alone. w.il. 
lcoown fer its axtecslVO and innovative .!Iemces for 
battered women, 65 percent ot requests for shelter 
could not be mel during IS81. My Sisler" Place. a 
shelledor battered women in Washington. DC. has 10 = away 7 families fer every 1 they can accept. 
Mmn~ta Cop:mm.ent cf CCrrectlcru, Darcr Summ::uy 
RUp"rt 

R acent federal cuthacks ell funds for sodal s.r. 
vice!) have' forced many shelters to reduce their 

semces or close their doors. Seventy~six percent of 
dcme!ltic violenco PrognInl!J hc:rve reduced their set-

I £i2l;;;!:i4)$'ir®··ii3g:i%j~g:~~~~"llt@$·ni@j¥i·il 
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vices and 79 porcent are not able to meet the need..9 of 
batterod women in their communities because of 
lederallund.i.cg cut.bat:lo on Proq=:J sUc:h c:s CE'I'A. 
nUe xx. Vf5TA. and CSA. 

CantorforWcmenPolu:yStudles, "Fac!.erdEud.:;etCuts 
facpc:rdi:e Domesttc Vloleru:o ~: A Ncrt1cnci 
Swvoy Rope'" 

Police rarely file reports on dome51ic violence and 
. even more mrely arrest: men for bartering. During 
a 9 month pened. C1evaland police taceivad approx· 
imcrtely 15,000 dome51ic violence o:lJ:s. Reports were 
filed in 700 oi these c=es, and arrests W<!re made in 
460, orona out of every 32 calls. 

Cr.lO Attorr'.ay General. The Cillo Raper: on Domest:e 
Vio.'enca 

Although over 33 part;ent oi no==qer =Its 
involvad the usa oi gtm:l, knives. bludgeons. or 

other weapons. and ovar 80 percent of the vio:tim!l 
wanted the police to malee = arrest. the asoailant 
was =esled in only 41 percent oi the c:x:ses. Most 01 
the ccses were prosecuted c:s misdemocmors rcther 
then Ielonies. 

Bc::cn:r South. Ncn-Strcnr;er Vio1em::a: 7i:e Cr.rrur.ai 
C:ut:1 RC!!pC1lSO 

. C 14-rent researc:h !.nd!a:te. thm police should re-
evcluata their common practica of temporcxily 

sapc:tt:ting husbcmc!s and wi."", following a violent 
incident. A recent :rtudy c:::lnducted by the Police Foun· 
dation found that there wc:s a lower incidence of fur. 
ther VlOlenca whon the batteror was c:rzr&.rted than 
when the polico ..,paroted the parties. or iniormally 
medicrted the cooil!ct, 

t..a-nre.,01 Shermc:n end. ruc..l-:ard A. Seri:. Pcilca Rtr 
spc:r.ss !o Dcmesr;.r,: A.zaw't: Preilzmr.c:-r Fond;r::;;s 

Medical clinidcns often fcril to recognize womeos 
inlunes c:J a result of wife abuse. Abuse is ideo­

tilled in fewer them cna out of 25 battery case9 and. as 
a result. the m.edical responsa rarely addresses the 
a:use 01 the prablem. Treatment is usually symp­
tomaec. linuted to the dressing of wounds, serting oi 
bones. and prescriptions for anclgesic:s and tran .. 
quili:er:!. Often the patient Is seen "" the problem 
bP.cause of her rapacrted requests for belp acd failure 
to recover. 

E',"Ql Stcrl: and Anne F'.J.!=:::t. "MCC!~ Thert:j!'/ ":::l 

Re(:fes:::cn: The CQa ci the 2attOred '.\'::~crn.' 

A u stcrte. cmd the Disrnct of Columbia bave en. 
ected leq"lction deSigned to protect battered 

women. Laws in the District and 43 stc::es now enable 
bartered womec. to obtaincivU protec:cn orders with. 
Qut initiating diVOfCO or other civll prcceec::li.Jlgn. as 
previously reqw.red.. Eleven states have enacted leg. 
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islcttion mc:kiDg spouse abuse a crim.inal oHense scp­
arote from other type. of crlmlnal offanses. Thirty. 
three stcrtes hava expanded police power to arrest in 
domestic abuse cc:ses. and 29 stcrte. bave appropri. 
crted funds lor service. for lamilie. :ru1feriog from 
violeoce. 

liSa Lerman and Frend Lvmg:;tcn. 'Stete Lag!slattcn 
on Dcmest1c VlcIen..'""O· 

To rlate, no federallegislction has been enacted to 
address the problem oi wile abuse, although at 

lec::rt ono bill providing federal funds to shelleC! cd 
other dome51ic violence ptogTCII1Jl has been intro­
duced in Congress every year since 1971l. As of I=u· 
ary 1SB4. there were 140 ccepcnsors in the House oi 
Representctivas for the Family Violeoca Prevention 
and Services Amendment to the Child Abuse Preven­
tion and Treatment Act. that would appropriate S;S 
milllon OV'9t a three-year period to fund services !or 
dome51ic violence vic:tims. 

Commenting on the need for passage of the 
Amendment. Congresswoman Barhara Mikulski 
stcrtes. "Being pro-Icmilly means providing this des­
pemtely-ceeded sUpport to ensure thcrt the institution 
oi the fcmillyis free from violence. We must be!f.:1 to 
break the cycle of violence now." 

~ Mll:uIsJ:t ro.MDI Noveml:er t7. t9S3 
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BATTERER 
Tho battGrer is chrracterized by 

•.• containment of mate and em .. 
cloyment of espicnas~ tactics against 
.,er {e.g., checks mileage and times 
:rrandsJ - cleVerness depends on 
eve' of sophistic.tion 

.... no sense of violating others' per· 
ianal boundaries - accepu no 
!llama for failures (marital. familial, 
or occupational) or for viclence 

, •• belief that his forcible behavior 
Is aimed at securing the family nu· 
,Ieus (for the good of the family) 

I 

'~ • apparentfy feeling no guilt on 
motional level even after intellec· 
al recognition 

•• generational history of family 
olenCl! 

t· pa.rticipation in pecking order 
~rtenng 

I • assaultive skills which improve 
th 3ge and experience accompanied 
arise in danger potential and 

hality risks 

• demanding and often times as· 
hive rele in sexual activities -

fnetime:s punishe3 with abstiflen~o 
at time5 experiences impotence 

• increase in assaultive behavior 
en mate i.s pregrnlnt - pregnancy 
en marks the first assault 

exerting control over mate by 
atenin-J homicide and/or suicide 
fren attempu one cr both when 
ner separatC3 - known to com· 
o either or both 

80-390 0 - AS - 5 
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-------.r------------------BATTERED MATE CHILDREN 
The battered male is charnctel ized by Children in battering homes exhibit 

• •• allowing containment or confine· 
ment/restriction by mate, interpreting 
as sign that partner "C3r~" 

••• gradually losing,ight of pe"onal 
boundaries for self and children 
(unable to assess danger accurately) 
- accepts all blame 

••• belief that transient acceptance of 
violent behavior will Ultimately lead 
to long term resolution of family 
problems 

••• emotional acceptance of guilt 
for mata'.s behavior - thinks mate 
"can't help It" - considers own 
behavior provocativo 

, ••• generational history of familv 
violence 

• •• participation in pecking order 
battering 

0-. ~ learning which behavioral avents 
will either divert or precipitate mate's 
violence but level of carelessness 
increasC$ - judgment of !ethality 
potential deteriorat~ over timo" 

.... poor sexual salf.image - assump' 
tlon that role Is to accept totally 
partnE!l"'s soxual behavior (attempts 
to punish partner with abstinencu 
r .. ult in further .buse) 

• •• baing at hi.h ·;isk for '~';"'uli· 
during pre~n.ncy 

• •• frequent contemplation 01 suicide 
- history of minor attempts - oc:c.<l* 

sionally completes eithor suicide or 
homicide of partn ... 

• •• increasir.g deceptiveness: Iving. 
e.lCCuses ror outings, stealing, 
cheating 

.... poor definitian of personal 
boundaries - violation of others' 
personal boundaries, blame­
projections 

• ~. little or no understanding of 
the dynamic: of violence (often 
assumes violen:e to be the norm) 

• •• self·blame (depending on age) 
for family feuding. sep3ratians, 
divorce, etc. - internal conflicts 

• •• continiJ3tian of pattern of 
family violence pattern in own 
adulthood 

• •• pecking order battering - kills 
animalS. batters younger siblings 
and sometimes pDrents in later Ye;)1"3 

I 
j , 

• •• use of violence as prob!em !SOlving I 
technique in school, with peers, with 
family (appea" as .arly .. pr=hooll I 

• •• poor sexual image - uncertaintY 
about appropriate behavior -
confuses model identific:ltion -
immaturity in peer relationships 

' .. . . .. 
••• high;" ;i;k fa; ~~erm;~t (,;;ti,er 
m witnfSSe$ or victims) during 
mother's pregnancy 

••• heightened suicide attcmpu -
increased thoughts of doing away 
with self and/or murdering parents-( 
proneness to negligence ilnd ere- I 
Jes.sness 

0\11(111 D. aQ,d. ,,"0 

~:::I!: :~=I~~I:~::SW J 
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Bl::HA VIORAL CHARACTERISTICS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 

ickl D Boyd Ph~D • Kuil 5 KU",xbcil M S W .. ," . Rc."iMd 1919 suut •• Wuhinl(tc 

BATTERER BATTERED MATE CHILDREN 

Batteren are found in all socia· Battered mBtes are found In all CJuldren of domestic v/olence are 

economic levels. al/ educ:Jtionaf, socio-economir.levels. all edu- found in all socia·economic levels, 
racial, age groups cationsl, racial, age groups educational. racial and age groups 

The batterer is charscteriz9d by Th:J battored mats is characterized by Children in battering homes exhibit 

••• poor impulse control - expla. • •• long su (fering, martyr-like en- • •• a combination of limited toler· 
sive temper - limited tolerance durance of rrust!'lt~on ance, poor impulse centrol and 
ror ((ustration martyr-like long suffering 

• •• stres::: disorders and psycho. _ •• blatant depressive .nd/or hy •• • •• depression, much rtress and 
somatic complaints -: sophistication terica! symptoms - stress disorders psychosQmatizing, absences from 
of symptoms and success at masking and psychosomatic complaints .school, pre-delinquent arid delin· 
dysfunction vary with level of quent behavior 
social and educational sophistication 

• •• emotional depent.l!ncy - sub- • •• economic and emotional depend· • •• economic and emotfonal depend-
ject to secret depressions known ency ..!. sUbject to depression, high ency, high risk for alcohol/drugs, 
only to family risk for secret drugs and alcohol, sexual acting out, running away, 

home accidents isolation, loneliness, fear 

· . _ limited capacity for delayed •• , unlimited patience for discovery • •• combination of poor impulse 
reinforcement - very "now" of "msQic combination" to sulve control and continual hopefulness 

riented marital and battering problems - that situation will improve 
"travels miles" on tiny biu of 
reinforcement 

· •• i--·ti.ble ego needs - quality •• , unsure of own ego needs - • •• very shaky definition of self -
of childlike narcissicism (not defines .elf in term. of family, job, grappling with child·llke responses 
generally detectable to people out- ate_ of parents (or modeling - poor 
side family group) definition of self and/or defines 

self in parenting role 

• . low self-esteem - perc'!ived • •• low self·esteem - continued • •• low self·esteem - sees self and 
,"achieved ideals and goals for self faith and hope battering mate will sibling,. with few options or expec· 
- disappointment in career even jf get "lucky" break tations to succeed 
lJe=ful by othe ... • standards 

• • qualiti~ which suggest great _ •• unr .. listlc hope that chang. il • •• mixture of hope/depression 
>otential fal change and improve-- Imminent - bolief In "promisas" that there is no way out - peer' 
nent, i.e., frequent "prom;sesu 

group can be most important can· 
or the future tact. if available 

· • perception of self as having • •• gradually Increasing soci.1 is.,.. • •• increased social isolation - in-
)(Jor social skills - de5Cribes rela-- latlon, fncludfng 10" of contact with creased peer isolation or completE! 
ionship with mate 8S closest he has own family Identification with peers 
!Yer known - remain: in contact 
vlth own family 

• • accusations against mate - • •• inability to convince partner of • •• bargaining behavior with parents 
salousy - voices great foar of beina loyalty - futilely guard. ag.inst ac· - gets into proving self as does-
bandoned or ~·cheated on'~ cusntions of Usaductiva" behavior mother 

tOWBrd othon 

-



Mr. OWENS. Thank you. 
Susan Kelly-Dreiss? 
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STATEMEN'l' OF SUSAN KELLY-DREISS, EXECVTIVI<J DIRECTOR, 
PENNSYLVANIA COALITION AGA[~ST DOMESTIC VIOLENCI<J 

Ms. DREISS. Good morning. 
My remarks are related to how one State utilized family violence 

prevention funds. When the Family Violence Prevention and Serv­
ices Act was passed by Congress in 1984, there were 45 domestic 
violence programs in Pennsylvania, serving approximately 40,000 
victims a year. Since then, Pennsylvania's statewide network of do­
mestic violence programs has grown to 55 programs, assisting over 
55,000 persons a year. 

One of the reasons why our State has been able to help a grow­
ing number of victims is because of support from the Federal Gov­
ernment through the Family Violence Prevention and Services Act. 
In Pennsylvania, as throughout the country, local community-hased 
programs are still developing in their attempts to meet the needs 
of domestic assault victims. 

These are private, nonprofit organizations providing emergency 
shelter, hot lines, safe homes and counseling centers. They act as a 
coordinator of information and referral services for victims, as well 
as helping the victim to assess the situation and the available op­
tions. Many shelters have developed child care, realizing that the 
children are b. crisis, too, and in need of assistance and support. 
Domestic violence programs have become a community resource 
center for victims, linking them with other community agencies 
and programs such as job training programs. 

We have seen that d·Jmestic violence programs do make a differ­
ence. They literally save lives. They bring tremendous support and 
community resources together for victims to use at a time of crisis, 
and they enable victims to move into a violence-free future. 

The inspiration for the development of domestic violence pro­
grams has frequently come from the victims themselves, particular­
ly from battered women. In fact, local communities have demon­
strated a commitment to services for victims of domestic violence 
which involves many segments of the community. 

Most notable are the volunteers who come from the community 
and perform many tasks such as hot line coverage, child care and 
transportation. Domestic violence services truly depend upon vol­
unteers. Last year in one State alone, Pennsyh'ania, over 350,000 
hours of volunteer time were contributed. 

Likewise, local community fund raising efforts are helping to 
fund programs. In Pennsylvania we have been fortunate to recei.ve 
some State funding. This is not true in every State. However, for us 
family violence funds are a partner w:thin a local, State and Feder­
al effort that is assisting domestic violence victims. 

When the family violence funding that was allocated to Pennsyl­
vania was made, our State-as most States-was better able to re­
spond to the developmental needs of a relatively new service 
system. Family violence funds were spent first of all in unserved 
areas. While Pennsylvania has many programs that have been es­
tablished for some time, we also had many counties-14 in all-
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that had no services at all for domestic violence victims. All were 
rural and poor counties. Seven of those are now receiving funding 
for the first time because of family violence funds. 

The allocation of these funds was made with the help of a needs 
assessment that was paid out of family violence funds and conduct­
ed in all 14 unserved counties. The needs assessment also identified 
community people and agencies who were interested in providing 
domestic violence services. In these counties, family violence funds 
provided the initiative and served as the catalyst for program de­
velopment. 

Family violence funds were also given to existing programs 
which demonstrated great need. For example, a shelter in one 
county had opened with a budget of $3,500 for the year. This shel­
ter was only able to operate by having a group of volunteers. The 
family violence funds helped to pay for a staff person to operate 
that shelter. 

We also have a tremendous statewide problem with lack of shel­
ter space. We have over 8,000 turnaways each year. Our family vio­
lence funds were then used to provide funding for those programs 
with the highest turn-away rate. 

I think that the turnaways are just one indicator of a national 
problem. What has happened in the last few years is that there 
have been a number of bills passed in-State, such as probably cause 
arrest bills and protection from abuse bills. Many of these have a 
notification of rights in the bill, and what is happening out of that 
is that more than ever the police are making referrals to shelters 
for battered women. When Vie just conducted a survey of how 
many referrals we are seeing from police, the increase in some 
counties was up to 100 percent. 

I think we are just really beginning to document the extent of 
domestic violence in our country. We know that battering is the 
single major cause of injury to women, occurring more often that 
auto accidents, rapes, or muggings. We would hope that because 
there is a growing need for services for victims of domestic vio­
lenc'~, that the Family Violence Prevention and Services Act will 
be reauthorized. 

Local communities and the States continue to need the support 
of the Federal Government in developing our services. We would 
hope that this continued support and partnership between local, 
State and Federal resources can continue through this act. 

Thank you. 
[The prepared statement of Susan Kelly-Dreiss follows:] 
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TESTIMONY TO THG SELECT IWUCATION CONl!ITTEE: 
APRIL 29, 1987 

REMARKS BY SUSA.'I KELLY-DREISS 
EXECUTIVE: DIRECTOR 

peNNSYLVANIA COALITION AGAINST DOMESTIC VIOLSNCS 

WHeN THE f'AlfILY VIOLENCS PRCVENTIOI/ & SSRVICCS ACT 

(FVPS ACT) WAS PASSED BY CO!lGRESS Iii 1984, T!lERE 

WSRS 45 DOMS;JTIC VIOLENCS PROGRAMS n 

PE:lltlSYLVANIA, Sl.'RVINa APPR()XI~fA'l'ELY 40,000 VIC·rr,'!S 

P'ER YEAR.. SINce 'PilEi'l, PC:tSl'~VA!lIl1' S STATEI-IrDE 

tlF.:TWORJ< OF DOMESTIC V!O~ENCr; PPr)(;RANS HAS GRt)."!l TO 

55 FRO:1RA.O/S llSSI$'fING Q\!E:a 5$,000 PER":;ONS PE~ 

YEAR. 2!!..E.. OF THe REASONS i/.'!;' (1~R .'IT;lTR H,lS BE:t:ll 
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Tf:STINONY TO 'l'HE SELBCT BDUCATIOII CO/JIIITTBB 
APRIL 29, 1987 
PAGB 2 

THf:IR ATTBM"TS TO NBBT THE NI:E:DS OF DOME:STIC ASSAULT VIC1'IHS. 

T(IE:SE ARE PRIVATE, NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIOIIS PROI'IDIIIG E:,IIEP.GE:tlCY SE:RVICE:S 

SUCII AS 24-I/OUR 110 Tr. I11E: , EIfE:RGE:NCY SIIE:LTE:R, SAFE: 1I0~!ES, AlID COUIISCr.IIIG 

CE:IITE:RS. THEY ACT AS A COORJ)INATOR OF IIiFORIMTIOIi & REPE:RRAL SE:RVICE:S 

!Q.I!. VICTI!J..~, AS Wt:Lr. I\S IIBLPIIIG THL: VICT!.'! TO ASSDSS Tilt: SITrJATII)1I MID 

TilE AVAXLABl.tE: OPTIONS. MANY SHELrE:p.s HAVe iJGVe:"OPETJ CUILD Ci-1RE, 

ASSIST1H1CE AUf) SUPPOR'Z'. DO,',J..-: . .:;'rrc VrQ~EflCC PR~)aRANS fiA '.IE 8t:CONE A 

AGENCIES, SUCH AS .JOB rRAIYING PJ!OGnA~S. 
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TI;E INSPIRATIOII FOil THE DEVELOPMENT OF DOHf:STIC VIOLf:NCE PROGRAMS 1I,1S 

FREQUENTLY COHE FIIOM THC VICTIMS THEMSELVES, PAIITICULARLY BATTERED 

WOHEN. IN FAc'r, LOCAL COHHUNITIES HAVE DENOIISTRATED A COHMITIIENT TO 

SERVICES FOR DONESTIC VIOLf:NCE VICTINS WHICU IIIVOLVf:S IIANY SI'IGHENTS OF 

THE COMHUIIITY. ~JOST NOTABLE ARE TlfE VOLUIITf:f:11S rwo CO HE FROM TUE 

COMMUNITY AlID PCRFORN IIANY FUIICTIOI1S, IIIC:'IlDIII'! HOTLINE (;OVERAGf:, 

TRAIISPORTATIOII, AI/!) CHILD CARC. DOf.!ESTI': VIOLf:IICE SCRV1,:ES D/;PEIID 'JPOII 

VOLUIITEERS - r.AS'f YEAR III PCIIIISYLVIlIIIIl OVER 350,000 flOUR!] .IEIIE COtiTRI-

!JUT ED BY VOLUI/Tr:EI,S. LIKEWISE, ['OCII[' CO!UIUIIITY-FUlIlJR,Hsr:1G EFFORTS !tRE 

IIELPIIIG FUVO PROGRMIS. III PEIIIISY[.VAIlr.q, i{E IIIIVE BEEII FOIlTUIiATE TO liE-

C/lTVe SOlIE STATE FUIIDIIiG FOR DOIJI:STIC VIOLEIICE SCRVICES; 'Till.? IS 1/0'1' 

TRue FOR EVERY STATE:. HOWEVEiR, FOil US, Tift: FVPS ,leT PIIOVIDED FOR A 

PARTNERSIIIP OF ::'OCAL, STAT!':, AlID FCDER"L F'I!IIlIN'; !:'I SUPPDR:'I:IG Sf:fIVIC!':S 

FOR DOIJESTIC VIenSlles VIeTII/S. 
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IHTH TilE: FAUX::'Y VIOC,E:IICE: FUliDIllG THAT liAS ALLOCATE:D TO PENIISYLVAIIIA, OUR 

STATE -AS ~!OST STATES-liAS BETTER ABLE: TO RESPOIID TO TilE: DEVE:LOPME:NTAL 

1ll:E:DS OF A RELATIVE:LY NEW SE:RVICE: SYST~M. FAMI!'Y VIOLE:IICE FUIIDS IlERE 

SPEllT FIRST OF ALL 011 UNSERVE:D AREAS. [mILE PENIISYLVAIiIA lIAS MAllY 

PROGRA!IS THAT Hll VE BE:E:!I ESTABLISllED FOR SOME TIME:, [iE: ALSO IIllD MAllY -14-

";OUNTrr:s - TllAT I1AD !!£ SSRVICES AT ALL FOR DOIlt'STIC VIOL~'NCE VICTINS. 

,~LI. f{CI1E: RUII.lL IlIID POOI~ COllI/TIES. SEVEII OF l'I10SE corlIlTIt'S ARE RE:CE:IVING 

FUNDS FOR THE: PIRST TIIll: THROUGH FAMILY VIOLt'lICE: .'I0IlIES. 

Till: ALJ;UC,lTI,lI/ OI' THESE FUIIDS ["JS .~ADE: I'iITIl TilE HSLP OI' A IIVEDS ASSr:SS-

MEIIT - PAID FOR UUT oI' FAMILY VIULElICE: FUNDS - COIIDPCTE:V III ALL 14 

Ct)rJIITIl:S. Till: lIEE:DS ,JSSESSIICllT .JLS() IlJl:NTIFII:O COMH1Il1ITY PCOPLE AIID 

A~EUCI~S iillO liellE :~rSReSTCD IN PROVIDING DOMESTIC VI()LCNCE SERVICES. IN 

'T:ICSC CUUII':I!:S, F,jIII[.Y VIOLcnCE FUt/DS PIlot'IDSD TfH: IlH'TIATIVE, 1II1D 

SERVEO AS Tur CATALfS: FOR PROGRAM VEVCLop~cnT. 
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FAMILY VIOLENCE FUIIDS .fERE ALSO GIVEII TO EXISTING PROGRA.~S 'mICH 

DENONSTRATED GREAT NCED. FOR EXAMPLE, A SHELTER III ONE COUIITY IIAD 

OPSIISD .HTII I! BUDGST OF $3500 FOR TilE YSAR. TillS SIISLTSR NI1S ONLY ABLE 

TO <)PSRATS BY III1VIIIG A CONIHTTIW GROUP OF VOLUNTSSRS rmo NSRE ffILLING TO 

STAFF TIIS SIISLTeR FOR MI INITIAL PCRI<)D OF TINS. FANILY VIOLENce FUI/DS 

lIeLPSD TO PAY FOR A S2'AFF PSRSOI/. ffS ALSO HAVE II TRSNElIDOUS STATEWIDS 

PROBr.EII fYXT;! "ACK OF SIISLTER SP.~CS. Till: DSi11WD I.e; SI.'IPr.Y FAR GREATSR 

TII<1II TIIS 3UPPLY. TilE IlCSULT IS THill' VICTINS "lIE FREQUENTL\, pr;T O!' A 

f.AITrIlG LIST Oil RSFSRRED SLSS'Vl/SRE UIITIL SPACE IS AVAILABLS. N1: HAVE 

REFERRED TO THESE ';ASES itS "TURri Ar"AY$"-PCNNSY!~"AtlIA liAS ()t,'L'n :lOOd TURN 

AilllYS A YEAR. r.,r: ARE: HO'f PROUD OF J'UAT FAc'r A;lD i'lC ARE TYnI:1G tlllRr liARD 

'fiJ FIIID tlORE A/J1:QU,1TE F,1CILITrCS MID :'/OIU; iJCDS,'!lCE. FOR '1'I/IS YEAR, 
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THE DILEMNA OF "TUIlII AllAYS" IS ILLUSTRATIVE OF A IlATIONAL PROBLf:N. 

I11CIDP.IlTS OF DONESTIC VIOLEIlCE SEEf.! TO BE INCREASING. OR, IF THEY ARE 

NOT INCREASING, THEil PUBLIC AffARENSSS liAS GROWIl TO THE EXTENT TIIAT 

VICTI/IS AIlD AGENCIES ARE REQUESTING 1l0RE IlELP TIIAN EVER BEFORE. IIOffHERE: 

IS TilE: INCREASE: IN RE:FE:RRALS NORE: NOTABLE: TIIAN IHTII THE POLICE:. DURING 

THE PAST 5 YEARS 110RE STATE" HAVB E:I1ACTE:D DOMESTIC VIOLE:NCB LE:GISLATIOII 

I'll All THROUGHOUT AllY PERIOD OF IlISTORY. PROTE:Cl'IOll FROII ABUSE AriD 

PROBABLE CAUSE: ARREST LEGISLATIOIl ARE TilE ~JOS'l' COIIIIOIf. BOTII LAIIS 

ADDRESS THE IIIVQLVEIlENT OF TilE CRI!lIIl,1L JrISTICE .'iYSTEIt III CI1.'iES Ill' 

DOIIE:STIC VIOLENCE. /·IAIIY OF 'l'IIESE LA liS I11CLUDE: II "1l0TIFICATIOII Of' RIGHTS" 

FOP Tiff: VICTHI 111lICII DIRECTS POLICE TO PROVIDE VICTIIlS 'IiTIl IIlFORIfATIOII 

ABOUT TilE LOCAL DOIIE:STIC I'IOLENCE PRI)GRA.~. AFTE:R TUE PAS.'iAGE: OF 

PROBABLE: CAUSr; ARRES'P LBGISLA"'XOII III pr;IHlSYLVAllI.4 (OIlE COIITAII1IlIG A 

1I0TIFICATIOIl Sr;CTIOII) , OUR COALn'IO:1 1/,15 TOLD ay PROGR,lifS TIIAT POLICE 

,.,r;RI: REFBRIlI!lG AS IIE:V::R BE:FORE:. IN II SURVEY WIfICI/ In: C0I1DUC'l'ED I'IE: FOUND 

TIIAT POLICE: RE:F!.'RRALS 1/,1iJ INCREASED DURIII'; Tlfl: 12 NOU1'/IS ilf'TE:1l TUE: 

i:llllCTI.fE:IIT OF PROBABLE: c.wsr; ,WReST LAl~ BY Atl AVE:RAr;J; OF 50 TO oil ~. III 
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SOME COUIITIES POLIC!: Il!:FI:IlIlALS rvERI: elP Bf 1 DO'J. 

PDRIIAPS evl: ARE ,JIIST Bl:fjIlIIIING Til UIID~IlSTAIlD Till: r;XTf.':IT Of' DMlL'STIC 

VIOL!:lIf;r: III OUR COUIITRY. rvE KilO;; TICAT BATTER!!I" I." Til!: STlI(;!',; NAJOI! 

CAUS!: OF IIUURY TO ;;O.'l!:II, OCCURRIIIG !lOR!: uf'r!:1i T,~I::I AUTJ IlCCID!:IITS, 

RAPI::; OR IWGGIllGS. A BUREAU Of' JrJSTICE ,;'rA'rISt'IcS speCIM, m;p·JRT nil ':'ilC 

1978-1982 curue SURVer DATA ALSO INDICATeS THAT AS :IA~Y AS 01E ffA~F OF 

REPORTED DO:U;S'rrc: ASSAULTS IHVOLVI:D BOorLY r,"l,lUP.Y /\",' Si::I?':OU.s or. f.fOr:C 

TIIAT WI:RC EXAMIlieD. 

:JOlIE 2,000 TO ·J,OOO '~~OMF:U ARB nS,,1rC::1 r() DEATJI A:nnJAl.LY ACOl!!l'rrNJ FOP. 

HEPORTSD HO:'IICr:JCS', AS NELL .!IS 1'\ ::'t1.nCil:: PCRCC:ITAG!: UF Sf!ICrDt:S, ARC 
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IN THIS COUNTRY A r10llEli IS MOllE LIKELY TO BE MURDERED llY A MEHBER OF /lER 

orm FMIILY OR All ACQUAINTAIICE TI1AN BY A STRAlIGER. ACCORDIIIG TO THE 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION'S 1984 UIIIFORM CRIHE REPORTS, III 1a~ OF 

THAT YEARS 18,692 IWRDERS, THh' VICTI.'! rillS II FAIIILY MEMBER. 1111 

ACQUAINTANCE r1AS THE VICTI!.J III 30', AI/D A Sri/AlIGER I.'I 18%. 

lJEC1WSE OF THE GROrlIIiG .VCED FOr. SERVICES FJa VICT rl.Js .?F VOIIESTIC 

'v"IOr.SNCE, IT IS CRITICAL THIIT THE.FVPS ACT BE RSAUTHORIZCO. ;:',1C,)L 

';.J:UIU,l/r'fIES AND 'J.'HC ST~lTes COl/TINUE: '1'0 NEeD ':'1IE: SUPPORT OF ':H.~· FeDER/'lL 

GOVSRllNSIlT. IILL STATI.'S [(AVS SERVICSS r1HICIl AI/E II/IDEIl DEVSr.OP,'JEIlT. TIIS 

I1IITIIiTIVS flilICH STARTSD Trw YEARS A"O IIESDS A FilIR CHAlice TO SUCCESD. 

PHE:VEtl'!'ING FA,'1ILi VIIJLI:llCE A.IID PHlH':";'I!IG SEIlVIi:I:S TO Irs VIL."fI.'fS IS AU 

A;"ESO.~l1: TASK. IT REQfJ I1H73 THE CONTINtlCIJ StrppoP.'Z' ~lflD PAR7*NCRSH IP OF 

LOCAL STATE, AIID FEDERAL RSSOURCES. IF #E ili/~ TRULY SERI~aS ABC 



Mr. OWENS. Thank you. 
Ms. Gwendolyn Wright? 
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STATEMENT OF GWENDOLYN WRIGHT, DIREC'I'OR, COMMUNITY 
EDUCATION, NEW YORK COALITJON AGAINST DOMESTIC VIO­
LENCE 

Ms. WRIGHT. Thank you. 
The noise of things being broken in the night were familiar 

childhood sounds at my house. At the age of 10, I first saw my 
faCler hit my mother, and for the next 6 years of my life, my sib­
lings and I were to witness my mother repeatedly battered by our 
father. I made a vow then to never let that happen to me, but it 
did. 

I had been married 6 years, had two daughters, and was 7 
months pregnant. My husband and I had separated 2 months earli­
er and had an informal arrangement around child visitation and 
support. In an earlier separation, when I had turned to the courts 
for legal disposition, a Queens, New York Family Court judge or­
dered support in the amount of $50 a month and told me that my 
husband seemed like a nice guy, so "work out visitation between 
yourselves.' , 

When we separated the second time, I was reluctant to use the 
court system again. The night my husband beat me up, I was terri­
fied and shocked. I didn't know what to do. The next day I felt I 
had no choice but to try the court system again. I was awarded a 
Temporary Order of Protection and was told by a kind Family 
Court judge that there was a shelter in :>ur county for battered 
women and their children. I had never heard of such a place and 
waR reluctant to put my life and the lives of my children into the 
hands of strangers, yet I knew that I could not return home if my 
husband were still there. 

So I tried police intervention, to no avail. Not only did they 
refuse to remove him from my home, but stood by and watched as 
he dismantled my car, my only means of transportation in a rural 
community. 

The only option left to me was to take the advice of the judge 
and go to the shelter. I didn't know what to expect upon arrival at 
the family shelter, but what I found there was a wonderful, sup­
portive staff and an oJ:. :>ortunity to learn and grow. 

When my mother was being battered, there were no shelters. 
The first shelter in New York State opened in 1977 and now, 10 
years later, there are only 49 shelter/safe home projects through­
out the State. In 1986 a total of 7,621 women and children were 
sheltered in New York, while another 11,600 were denied, primari­
ly due to lack of space. 

In a State with 62 counties, almost 20 counties remain with few 
if any domestic violence services. In 198G a shelter in upstate New 
York closed due to lack of funding. As a result, a woman who had 
previously used that shelter, and had no means to travel through 
several counties to another shelter, was killed. 

Although many gains have been made over the years, not 
enough has been done to remedy this problem. This problem has 
national implications. The Federal Government must reappropriate 
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and increase funding in the Family Violence Prevention and Serv­
ices Act. States are trying, but cannot do it alone. 

Federal domestic violence moneys helped 11 programs in New 
York State last year, programs that were struggling to survive. 
Let's not force the closing of other programs committed to provid­
ing refuge to thousands of women and children each year. Instead, 
let's celebrate these gallant efforts by the continuation of funds 
which will ensure that the doors will remain open. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. OWENS. I want to thank you all for your testimony. Certain­

ly the personal testimonies leave an impression far greater than 
that of many others. 

I would like to know from all of you what you think we can do in 
the process of reauthorizing this legislation which would have a 
significant impact on the problem. If you had as many males being 
injured and killed by any process as is occurring in this situation, I 
assure you it would be high on the political agenda and something 
would be done about it. What can we do in the act itself which 
would give greater impetus to citizen action to deal with this prob­
lem? 

Ms. DREISS. I think the primary need is for funding. I think, as 
Representative Miller remarked, there is a very strong contingent 
of support out there. I think right now we are really hurting for 
lack of Federal funds. I think one of the things that we would like 
to see recognized in the authorization act itself is the importance of 
that volunteer component. There may even be a way of saying that 
that part of it needs to be developed. 

Mr. OWENS. We should pay greater attention to the volunteer 
component in the act itself, find ways to give greater assistance to 
volunteer groups? 

Ms. DREISS. Yes. 
Mr. OWENS. Are you the executive director of a governmental 

group or a citizen advocacy group? 
Ms. DREISS. It is a citizen advocacy group. Our group is made up 

of all the shelters in the State of Pennsylvania. 
Mr. OWENS. The funding from your operation comes from where? 
Ms. DREISS. The funding comes from private, State, and Federal 

resources, all three combined. 
Mr. OWENS. A number of t!1ings have been done in Pennsylvania. 

There were some things being done before the act was passed, but 
since then it has certainly multiplied geometrically, it seems. The 
effort has greatly increased. To what degree is the Federal program 
a stimulant in your State effort? The State funds that you have re­
ceived, that you mentioned, are those matching funds or were they 
as a result of Federal funds? Can you tell us a little bit more about 
it? 

Ms. DREISS. In Pennsylvania there is a requirement, whenever 
the State funds programs they do have a requirement for matching 
funds, but even aside from that the programs had already done 
massive fundraisers, so that I would say about 50 percent of the 
program funding really is from private sources rather than from 
government sources. 

I think the really important thing that happened with family vi­
olence moneys in our State was that it did give us the opportunity 
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to look at the State in terms of areas that were totally unserved, 
and this money really enabled the State to contact those county 
people and set up programs, which is the first time the State had 
ever taken that initiative. That was really important for us in 
those seven counties. That would have never ever happened with­
out this money. 

Mr. OWENS. Ms. Wright, there are some people who argue that 
we are generating statistics and generating a problem by establish­
ing shelters and making such an issue out of family violence. You 
mentioned that before your experience, you had watched your 
mother go through the same experience. What would be your com­
ment on those people who say that the problem is not as great as 
we make it, as we want to make it out to be, and our own attention 
to it is encouraging people to come forward and exaggerate situa­
tions? 

Ms. WRIGHT. I would beg to disagree with those kinds of com­
ments, primarily because, as I said in my testimony, my mother 
had been beaten and there was no attention given to that, and I 
think that that is so in most battering cases. The women and chil­
dren that we see in programs are just the tip of the iceberg. There 
are thousands and thousands of women that never come through 
domestic violence programs, that somehow figure out, as my 
mother did, on their own, how to get out and how to live violence­
free lives. 

Prisons, women's prisons, are full of women who have seen kill­
ing their abusers or assaulting them seriously as their only means 
of getting out, because they don't know of programs, and that is 
around this Nation, so that I don't think that just talking about 
it-any more so than in cases of child abuse or child sexual 
abuse-that talking about it is going to increase it. I think what 
happens when we bring it out to the open, people look for re­
sources, and the resources are there to some extent. What I think 
is that we need to increase those resources, to make them more 
available, to increase public awareness so that we can in fact as a 
Nation grant women the permission to talk about spouse abuse. 

Mr. OWENS. Would either one of you, in view of your personal 
experiences-I think in both cases you commented rather negative­
ly about the police and the courts-in view of your personal experi­
ences, would you have any recommendations in terms of what we 
can do with a program like this? We are very small, very limited. 
Courts and police of course are major agencies that really have 
much more latitude and resources to deal with these problems. Ef­
fecting some changes there would do far more for you than any­
thing that we could ever do, no matter how much funding we get, 
so what kinds of changes would you recommend as a result of your 
personal experiences, in terms of the police and the courts? 

Ms. FEDDERS. I have one thing to say about that, and it may even 
sound too simplistic. The battered wife syndrome is, I feel, unless 
you have been through it, almost impossible to believe that men 
and women can do this to each other, but I think a way of starting 
to take care of this situation might be making every police officer, 
every judge, every lawmaker, every whoever you can get to read it, 
to read what I have included in my testimony-just the basic bat-
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tered wife syndrome, tht=> male profile, the female profile-and to 
try to convince these people that it really is the truth. 

In other words, when you have a person goes in to the judge 
when he has just beaten his wife and says, "I am sorry; I will never 
do this again," that the judge knows that more intervention has to 
be taken because this is not enough; this is part of the syndrome. 
In my naivete, I feel it would be a very simple thing to do. It is 
almost a pamphlet-type thing: Read and believe that this is 
what--

Mr. OWENS. Well, some groups have sponsored sensitivity train­
ing with some of the funds. 

Ms. FEDDERS. I think that type of thing is very important, but in 
my opinion it almost has to be-you know, nationally I guess we 
can't do it, but nationally indicated that this is such a severe prob­
lem, that these people in this particular position must read and be­
lieve that this really is so. 

Ms. WRIGHT. I just would like to make a comment on that issue. 
I think also that if we as a Nation take the lead and say that this 
is a serious enough problem, that that will then filter down, and 
that part of that sensitization or understanding of what a battered 
woman endures will be somehow picked up along the way. Police 
officers are born as children, and we teach our children in various 
ways. I think that a lot of the ways that we teach our children 
have negative impacts. Perhaps if we start looking at that now and 
grooming those young people, somewhere in the future it will be 
inherent in each of us to realize that women do not deserve to be 
treated in this manner. 

Mr. OWENS. Mr. Bartlett? 
Mr. BARTLETT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I apologize to the witnesses for not being here for your entire tes­

timony. I have read your testimony, however, and find it to be 
quite helpful and quite productive. 

A couple of questions: First of all on the response of law enforce­
ment agencies themselves, do any of you see changes as you visit 
around the country or visit with people in your areas? Do you see 
law enforcement agencies changing and becoming more willing to 
make arrests, or do you think that making an arrest in a spouse 
abuse case is the correct response, and do you find that changing at 
all? 

Ms. DREISS. Well, I think that we do see the proliferation of prob­
able cause arrest legislation. We just passed a bill last year that 
has now been in effect for one full year. What happened with that 
bill is that about four police departments throughout the State set 
up policy that would implement that bill, but the real piece of the 
bill that is being fully utilized is the notification of rights section. 
So what is happening is, I think the police are looking at the 
victim and trying to connect her more with the assistance that 
shelters can provide, but I think we still have a long way to go 
with recognizing that this is a crime. 

Ofttimes the police will even tell US, even when they do arrest 
and they take this to a preliminary hearing, a district magistrate 
may either lower 01' drop the charges because they don't believe 
that this is a serious case, so I do think there is a whole criminal 
justice system need, therefore, for training actually and also for im-
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plementation of laws. I think we have one way of looking at strang­
er assaults and another way of looking at domestic assaults. 

Ms. WRIGHT. I would agree. What we have seen happen in New 
York is that the Department of Criminal Justice Services has man­
dated that police officers do training, each new class of police offi­
cers, so what happens is that we provide training for the rookies. 
There is no mandate for inservice training, so those officers who 
have been in for many years may not necessarily even get wind of 
some of the material that we are providing. 

This is particularly signifIcant, I feel, in rural areas. I live in an 
upstate New York community, and we have police forces that may 
be five or six people who have been on that force for 10 or 12 years, 
so that they may never have an opportunity to have any kind of 
training on domestic violence other than what they got in their 
original classes, and may never request the voluntary training. So I 
think that some strides have been made but certainly not enough. 

Mr. BARTLETT. Does your training emphasize making an arrest 
and treating it as a crime? 

Ms. WRIGHT. Yes, and treating it as a crime, and I do agree with 
what Susan has said, that what happens then is that the police feel 
that they are in a "Catch 22" because the district attorney does not 
take it seriously or the judge does not take it seriously, and so they 
feel that no matter what they do, it is never going to go any fur­
ther. They are then much more reluctant to do anything. 

Mr. BARTLETT. Ms. Fedders? 
Ms. FEDDERS. I heard a hospital worker in Virginia speak recent­

ly that there needs to be legislation to protect people like hospital 
workers who see a woman come in repeatedly and, as in child 
abuse cases, when there is abuse suggested, that intervention could 
be taken. That type of legislation or push would help also, because 
these type of people who perhaps could intercede are not protected' 
by any law and they could be sued. 

As I said in my testimony, I know Connecticut has made strides 
in the probable cause arrest, and this does reduce the danger to a 
woman when her husband either comes back into her home. Many 
times they don't even come back, but it does reduce by at least 50 
percent if the man has been arrested and prosecuted. 

Mr. BARTLETT. Do you think that would be a useful area of in­
quiry for the reauthorization of this act, to emphasize both arrest 
and, as you said, Ms. Wright, quite correctly, not only arrest but 
also using the whole criminal justice system to treat what is a 
crime as a crime, and to begin with that supposition? Would that 
be a useful area for the Federal Government to provide incentives 
or encouragement or grants or something to help guide States to­
wards changing their basic response to this at the cri.minal justice 
level? 

Ms. DREISS. Yes, I think it could be. As I recall, in the first au­
thorization there was something about an eviction of a spouse, 
similar to protection from abuse, in the act. That possibly could be 
true of probable cause arrest as well. 

Mr. BARTLETT. Ms. Kell~T-Dreiss, you have a very impressive pro­
gram in Pennsylvania, which you have discussed, serving some 
40,000 victims a year, 55 programs and such. I wonder if you could 
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isolate for us, though, whdt Federal money was used for and how 
much was used ac;; a proportion of other resources? 

Ms. DREISS. In terms of those services particularly, I would say 
that--

Mr. BARTLETT. Domestic violence programs. 
Ms. DREISS. I am trying to think in terms of how the dollars 

broke down, but I would say that about one-third to one-fourth of 
the funds that were used to provide those services came from Fed­
eral sources. 

Mr. BARTLETT. Of the operating costs or the capital costs? 
Ms. DREISS. Of the operating costs. We don't have any capital, 

but the operating costs, one-fourth to one-third was from Federal 
sources. 

Mr. BARTLETT. Was it from the domestic violence program or was 
it from other Federal sources? 

Ms. DREISS. It was from a combination of the Family Violence 
Prevention and Services and from a social services block grant, the 
combination of those two. 

Mr. BARTLETT. Mr. Chairman, it would be, if the chairman would 
hold the record open, it would be helpful for us to get a sense of 
where those Federal funds came from in some sort of analysis, or 
how much came from which agencies. It would be helpful if the 
chairman would hold the record open. 

Mr. OWENS. Without objec :on. Please submit that for the record. 
Ms. DREISS. I will do that, and be glad to. 
[Material to be supplied follows:] 
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Mr. BARTLETT. Thank you. I yield back the balance of my time. 
Mr. OWENS. Thank you very much for your testimony. It is very 

useful to the process that we will have to pursue in the next few 
weeks. Thank you very much. 

Mr. Bartlett, did you want to make your statement now or wait? 
Mr. BARTLETT. I will do that at the beginning of the next panel, if 

that's all right with you. 
Mr. OWENS. The next panel-we can have you seated but we are 

going to have to break for a vote-is the panel on adoption oppor­
tunities and children's justice: Ms. Tony Oliver, Ms. Kay Donley, 
Richard J. Arcara and Alan S. Kopit. Ms. Oliver and Ms. Donley, 
Mr. Arcara-I understand you have a time problem, Mr. Kopit. We 
will have to leave to vote in 5 minutes. Can you wait until we come 
back or do you want to make a statement? 

Mr. KOPIT. I believe I can wait. I can give an initial statement, if 
you would like, but I would like Mr. Davidson here for any ques­
tions as well. 

Mr. OWENS. All right. We are going to recess for 10 minutes to 
vote. 

[Recess taken.] 
Mr. OWENS. Thank you for waiting. 
Mr. Kopit, you may begin. 

STATEMENT OF ALAN S. KOPIT, ESQ., CHAIRPERSON, YOUNG 
LAWYERS DIVISION, AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION, ACCOMPA­
NIED BY HOWARD DAVIDSON, DIRECTOR, NATIONAL LEGAL 
RESOURCE CENTER FOR CHILD ADVOCACY AND PROTECTION 

Mr. KOPIT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank you for taking 
me out of order to accommodate our plane schedules. 

My name is Alan Kopit, and I am an attorney from Cleveland, 
Ohio. I appear here today on behalf of the American Bar Associa­
tion, where I presently serve as the Chair of the ABA's Young 
Lawyers Division. You heard Gene Thomas mention the 2,020 enti­
ties of the American Bar Association, and the Young Lawyers Divi­
sion is the largest single entity in the association, representing law­
yers under the age of 36 or those who have practiced law fewer 
than 5 years. 

We also sponsor the National Legal Resource Center for Child 
Advocacy and Protection in Washington. Joining me today on my 
right is Howard Davidson, who is the director of the association's 
Child Advocacy Center. We are delighted to have been given the 
opportunity to provide testimony to this subcommittee related to 
the 1974 Federal Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act, and 
we urge this subcommittee to support its extension for 4 years. 

You have before you the written remarks which I have presented 
to the subcommittee. I will deviate from those remarks entirely 
and stress just two things that I think are important, so that you 
understand why I am sitting here today. 

First I want to mention that the Young Lawyers Division and 
the young lawyers generally of America are the body of lawyers 
that Gene Thomas spoke of, in large part, who are so committed 
and have started being committed to the issues of child abuse and 
neglect very early in their legal careers. We support this legislation 
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and we have demonstrated our support of legislation such as this 
for a number of years. 

First of all, in 1H78 we started the National Legal Resource 
Center for Child Advocacy and Protection, which I believe is the 
preeminent legal resource center in the country dealing with issues 
of child abuse. Starting in 1978 with a staff of two, it has grown to 
a staff of 15 full-time staff. Howard Davidson is the director, and 
on a day-to-day basis he addresses the full variety of child abuse 
issues. He is here to answer questions that you may have specifical­
ly related to the legal issues. 

Second, in addition to the staff that we have here in Washington, 
we have a child advocacy committee which coordinates the activi­
ties of 275 affiliated young lawyer organizations throughout the 
country. One such example of the way we coordinate this network 
is, we are currently undertaking a 50-State survey of all the child 
advocacy legislation throughout the country. We have volunteers 
which we have found in every State of the United States, who will 
be responsible for rL.porting to us the state of the law, if you will, 
in this area. 

Next, I would like to bring to the attention of this body some sta­
tistics from my State of Ohio and my county of Cuyahoga County, 
Ohio, which is the greater Cleveland area, which I think point up 
how important this Federal legislation has been to the States in in­
ducing them to get legislation and to work harder in the area of 
getting the child abuse and neglect cases reported. A look at the 
reports received by children's service", agencies in Ohio-and these 
statist~cs, by the way, are from the Ohio Department of Human 
Services- shows the incredible increase in the reporting of child 
abuse and neglect cases. 

From Ul7H through 1985 the following is revealed: In 1H76, n,861 
cases of child abuse and neglect were reported, but by 1980 that 
number had risen to 15,114 cases, and by 1985 the number had 
risen to the incredible number of 70,923 cases. Thus, in the 10 
years from 197() through 1085, reports received by children's serv­
ices agencies in Ohio increased almost 10.5 times. 

Similarly, in my COUIlty of Cuyahoga County I have statistics 
since 1978 which show that in that year 1,665 cases of child abuse 
and neglect were reported to county agencies. That number in­
creased to 2,4:31 cases in 1980, and H,727 cases in IH85. Thus, be­
tween the years of 1078 and IBR5 the reported cases increased 
almost 5.25 times. 

Another very important area that this legislation has developed, 
if you will, is the appointment of guardians at litem-court-ap­
pointed legal representation of children. In 1D67 the United States 
Supreme Court ruled in in re Gault that a juvenile charged with 
acts of delinquency had a constitutional right to court-appointed 
lawyers, but the Gault case did not address cases involving chil­
dren who are alleged to be abused aud neglected. The Federal 
Child Abuse Act, however, did encourage this type of representa­
tion. 

I have statistics from Cuyahoga County which demonstrate how 
this has improved the situation in the States, in the guardian ad 
litem programs, and let me give you those very briefly. In 1079-­

Mr. OWENS. Would you take about one minute to sum up? 



85 

Mr. KOPIT. Yes, I will. 
In 1979 there were 215 court appointments, and that number by 

1985 had jumped 2% times to 546 appointments. 
In conclusion, the ABA views as essential the m.tension of this 

act and the enhanced support of the National Center on Child 
Abuse and Neglect. It is the only Federal program specifically tar­
geted to prevention, identification and treatment of child abuse. 

We thank the subcommittee members and staff for inviting us to 
present this testimony, and I pledge the assistance of the ABA's 
Young Lawyers Division and the National Legal Resource Center 
for Child Advocacy and Protection in any further explorations of 
how the law can improve the ways in which we respond to the 
needs of abused and neglected children. 

If the subcommittee has any specific questions that they could 
address at this time dealing with legal aspects, Howard Davidson is 
here. He has to catch a plane to speak at a child advocacy confer­
ence in Vermont, but I would like to give him the opportunity to 
answer any questions you have, if that is at all possible. 

Thank you. 
[The prepared statement of Alan S. Kopit follows:] 
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Mr. Chairman, Members of the Subcommittee: 

My name is Alan S. Kopit, and I am an attorney from 

Cleveland, Ohio. I aPfear today on behalf of the American Bar 

Association. Joining me is Howard A. Davidson, Director of the 

Association's Child Advocacy center. I presently serve as 

Chair of the ABA Young Lawyers Division, the largest single 

membprship entity in the Association and the sponsor of its 

Child Advocacy program. We are delighted to have been given 

the opportunity to provide testimony related to the 1974 

Federal Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act, Title 42 U.S. 

Code, Section 5101, and we urge this Subcommittee to support 

its extension for four years. 

The ABA has for many years been involved in both the study 

of the legal system related to the protection of children and 

in the process of helping to improve that system. In 1973, as 

the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act was being 

deVeloped, our Association was in the process of drafting a 

comprehensive set of Juvenile Justice Standards, which included 

nUmerous proposals for improving jUdicial intervention in child 

abuse and neglect cases. These recommendations included a call 

for mandatory court appointment of an independent legal 

representative for every child alleged to be abused or 

neglected. This position was identical to an important 

provision of the federal act, and we will comment upon its 

impact shortly. 
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In October, 1978, the ABA National Legal Resource Center 

for Child Advocacy and Protection was created. Its principal 

mission was to serve as a national clearinghouse of legal 

information and technical assistance for professionals involved 

with child abuse and neglect cases. A summary of the work of 

this Center and other ABA activities related to child 

maltreatment is appended to this statement. We are proud that 

the ABA has done so much since 197B to assist the federal 

government in carrying out the requirements of Section 2 of the 

federal act related to the dissemination of training materials 

and the provision of technical assistance. Next month, we will 

be assisting the government's Nation~l Center on Child Abuse 

and Neglect in examining issues related to Section 3 of the 

federal act, through our sponsorship of an invitational 

conclave which will attempt to refine the definitions of "child 

abuse" and "child neglect" as they apply to the legal 

obligations of state and local child protective service 

agencies. 

The focus of our remarks today will be on some of the 

major effects of Section 4 of the federal act, specifically 

Subsection 4(b)(2) which sets forth the criteria for state 

eligibility for direct federal grants under the act. Most of 

these requirements have induced the participating states to 

change their laws since 1974. Thus, the volume of new state 

child abuse and neglect legislation attributable in some way to 

the federal act has been immense. Bere are some examples: 

1) Subsection 4(b)(2)(E) of the act addresses the need 

- 2 -
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for states to preserve the confidentiality of child 

protection agency records from unauthorized release. 

In 1974 only 5 states had such confidentiality 

provisions in their laws; by 1986 all states had 

enacted such provisions. The issues of privacy of 

these sensitive records and better controls on their 

release continues to be a major concern. This is a 

particular concern for parents who feel that they 

have been wronged by unwarranted intrusions into 

their family's privacy, and who have become vocal 

about the need for systemic reform in this area. 

2) The federal act and its regulations, by defining 

child maltreatment broadly, have had a major impact 

on getting the states La act in a similar fashicn. 

In 1974 when the federal act took effect, there were 

9 states that did not require the reporting of 

suspected child neglect, as distinguished from 

abuse. Only 10 states in 1974 specifically inclUded 

sexual abuse of children in their mandatory reporting 

laws, and only 6 included the concepts of emotional 

maltreatment or mental injury. By the late 1970s, 

all states required that neglected children, as well 

as abused children, be reported. By 1986, 45 states 

had included sexual abuse within their child abuse 

reporting law definitions, and 41 had included 

emotional or mental injury inflicted on children 

within those definitions. 

- 3 -
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3) Subsectt~r 4fb)(2)(F) of the act requires that 

eligible stace& ~rovide for the cooperation of law 

enforcement officials, courts, and human service 

agencies in handling child abuse and neglect cases. 

In 1974 only 8 states had legislation directing such 

cooperation. By 1986 all but 3 states had specific 

laws addressing the issue of coordination of various 

agency efforts to serve maltreated children. 

However, only 27 states had laws which specifically 

dealt with the relationship between protective 

agencies and the police in the child abuse 

investigative process. This area has been a growing 

concern over the past few years, and therefore it is 

fortunate that the cooperative involvement of law 

enforcement and child protective service agencies has 

also been addressed in the recent federal Children's 

Justice and Assistance Act (public Law 99-401), which 

will be covered shortly in this testimony. 

4) Some of the most important new state legislation 

relatpd to child abuse Which has resulted from the 

197~ federal act has been in the area of 

court-appointed independent legal representation of 

children (also referred to as the appointment of 

"guardians ad litem"). In 1967, the U.S. Supreme 

Court ruled in the In re Gault case that a juvenile 

- 4 -
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charged with acts of delinquency has a constitutional 

right to a court-appointed lawyer. AlISO states 

quickly changed their laws to comply with this 

mandate. Yet, since the ~ case did not address 

cases involving children alleged to be abused or 

neglected, there was no federal incentive for states 

to act on their behalf. That is, until the 1974 

federal child abuse act, in Subsection 4(b)(2)(G), 

made state eligibility for grants conditioned upon 

the state providing by law that: "in every case 

involving an abused or neglected child which results 

in a judicial proceeding, a guardian ad l~tem shall 

be appointed to represent the ahild." In 1974, only 

3 states provided for such mandatory representation. 

Ey 1986, 47 states provided a right to representation 

for allegedly abused children under the law, either 

by attorneys or citizen volunteers (frequently called 

"court appointed special advocates" or C.A.S.A.). 

Despite these essential changes in state laws, for which 

the federal act has been instrumental, there are many areas of 

legislative and court reform where continued federal leadership 

~emains essential. For example, in August, 1986, the Congress 

passed the Children's Justi~e and Assistance Act which gave the 

federal National Center on Child Abuse and Neglect increased 

research and information dissemination responsibilities under 

Sections 2 and 4 of the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment 

- 5 -
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Act in the areas of investigation, prosecution, and judicial 

handling of child abuse cases. 

In late 1984, a decade after passage of the original 

federal act, it was further amended to expand the scope of the 

term "child abuse" to include abuse committed by employees of 

residential homes or facilities and persons providing other 

forms of "out-of-home" care. On February 6, 1987, federal 

rules to guide the states in their implementation of these 

provisions were finally published. State legislators and child 

protective agency policymakers will now need considerable 

federal guidance in dealing with the case investigation and 

confidentiality implications of these modifications in the 

federal law. 

In addition, many states have recently passed, or are now 

considering, legislation which changes the evidentary rUles and 

testimonial procedures affecting young child victims of sexual 

abuse. Rowever, without federal efforts to help evaluate these 

widely promoted systemic reforms, and to circulate information 

nationally on proven methods of effectively implementing these 

laws, many states will continue to enact and implement laws in 

a haphazard manner. The ABA is supporting a number of the most 

carefully co~sidered of these reforms through its 1985 

Guidelines for the Fair Treatment of Child Witnesses in Cases 

Where Child Abuse is Alleged, developed by ·~e Association's 

Criminal Justice Section. 

- 6 -
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Many of the most difficult child a~use and neglect ~ases 

go into the judicial system, either as: a) civil, juvenile 

court child protection proceedings; b) domestic relations court 

custody, guardianship, or visitation disputes; or c) criminal 

prosecutions of alleged abusers. In some situations the same 

family may be involved in all three types of proce~dings 

simultaneously. The federal act has made it possible for the 

government's National Center on Child Abuse and Neglect to 

target some of the demonstration project funds available under 

Section 4 of the act for inn~vative, potentially replicable 

local projects which promise to improve the coordination of 

such multiple proceedings, while minimizing trauma to the 

affected child and family. 

Eut this is only the beginning. In 1980 the AEA Child 

Ad70cacy Center, in conjunction with the National Center for 

State Courts, developed the first comprehensive national desk 

book for judges handling child abuse cases. In that year, 

about 13.7% of all child abuse cases serviced by child 

protection agencies led to court action. By 1984, principally 

because of the dramatic increase of sexual abuse cases, this 

figure rose to 30.2%. Problems with the ways in which some 

courts continue to handle child abuse cases need significant 

attention. For example, in a current report on child abuse 

developed by the U.S. House of Re~resentatives Select Committee 

on Children, Youth, and Families, it was noted that in one 

- 7 -
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jurisdiction "the sometimes cumbersome and/or slow moving court 

proceedings can impede timely resolution of neglect or abuse 

cases, and timely placement of children in permanent homes." 

Unfortunately, we believe that this malaise is more widespread 

than in this single example. 

Another area requiring new federal attention through this 

act is the subject of court-related statistics. Although the 

government has contracted with the American ~.umane Association 

since the mid-l970s to cOffipile annual data on child abuse and 

neglect, there has never been any data collected dir~ctly from 

the courts on the total volume of civil and criminal petitions 

or indictments related to child maltreatment. Nor do we have 

any data from the American Humane Association on the temporary 

and final dispositions in any of the court cases known to child 

protective serVice agencies. 

To be specific, we don't know: 

a) the proportion of cases which lead to courts 

issuing emergency orders to temporarily place 

mmltreated children in foster care; 

b) the proportion of cases which ultimately result 

in children being placed in the permanent 

custody of the state child welfare agency (and 

where parental rights are permanently 

terminated); 

- 8 -
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cJ the proportion of civil court petitions filed by 

child protective agencies which are dismissed as 

unproven, as well as adjudicated based on 

sufficient proof; 

dJ the proportion of intrafamilial physical and 

sexual abuse in juvenile court cases which are 

also referred for criminal prosecution; 

eJ the proportion of criminal cases which lead to 

an acquittal, a plea of guilty, and a conviction 

after trial; and 

fJ any nationally-collected data on the ultimate 

sentences given to convicted child abusers. 

In short, we lack vital statistical information which 

would heIr us to better understand whether, over time, we are 

imFroving the way in which juvenile and criminal courts are 

handling child abuse cases, whether the courts are taking 

actions truly consistent with the best interests of children, 

and whether offending parents are being appropriately dealt 

with. Of particular concern to us is the need to collect 

adequate data so that we can determine how the increasing 

involvement of the criminal justice system in child abuse cases 

can lead to outccmes which best reflect the needs of the child 

victims. 

- 9 -
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When the Children's Ju&tice and AssLstance Act was signed 

by the President on August 27, 1986, the states were given an 

important vehicle to help encourage local judicial system 

reforms in the handling of child abuse cases. The act 

specifies that the federal government will playa more active 

role in the identification and ev~luation of effective legal 

procedures in the handling of child abuse cases. And new 

federal funds derived from a portion of fines and other 

penalties assessed in federal criminal trials, estimated at 

$2.8 million from Fiscal Year 1986 collections and $3.6 million 

from contemplated Fiscal ~.ar 1987 collections, should be made 

availabJe to eligible states to help finance systemic 

improvements. 

Yet, to date the two federal agencies responsible for 

implementing this legislation, the U. S. Departments of Justice 

and Health and Human Services, have not completed the necessary 

administrativp steps to either notify states of the process 

which must be followed for applying for these funds, or to 

distribute any of this money. The eligibility criteria for 

state receipt of a share of what are referred to as "Children's 

Justice Act" funds will be a barrier in a fair number of 

states, and many states will require advice and information 

from federal agency staff and other legal reform experts in 

order to come into compliance with the new act's requirements. 

Implementation of the Children's JUstice and Assistance Act is 

- 10 -
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clearly tied to the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act. 

We hope that this Subcommittee will help assure that both laws 

are carried out effectively. 

In conclusion, our Association views as essential the 

extension of the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act and 

enhanced support for the National Center on Child Abuse and 

Neglect, the only federal program specifically targeted at the 

prevention, identification, and treatment of child abuse. More 

than ever, legislators, judges, prosecutors, and other legal 

system professionals concerned with child maltreatment need the 

continued assistance and resources made possible by this 

important legislation. 

We thank the subcommittee members and staff for inviting 

us to present this testimony, and we will be pleased to assist 

in any further explorations of how the law can improve the WdYS 

in which we respona to the needs of abused and neglected 

children. 

- 11 -
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APPENDIX 

Programs and Activities of the American Bar Association 
Related to Child Abuse and Neglect 

o Development, in the 1970s, of a comprehensive set of 
Juvenile Justice Standards designed to improve the process 
of legal system intervention in all types of cases related 
to the custodial cere of children 

o Establishment, in October, 1978, of the National Legal 
Resource Center for Child Advocacy and Protection, a program 
of the ABA Young Lawyers Division, to serve as a focal point 
for th Association's activities related to child abuse and 
neglect 

o Publication of over twenty-five Resource Center books, 
manuals, periodicals, and monographs related to the legal 
aspects of child abuse and neglect 

o Creation of several Resource Center training videotapes 
designed to improve legal and judicial system practices in 
child abuse and neglect cases 

o Funding of child abuse legal education related activities of 
over 40 state or local bar associations 

o Sponsorship of 7 ABA national conference and four 
invitational policy conferences related to the legal 
protection of children 

o Adoption by the ABA House of Delegates of a number of pelicy 
resolutions concerning children, including: support for the 
federal Child Abuse Prevenlion and Treatment Act and the 
Adoption Assistance and Child Child Welfare Act; 
encouragement of state and local bar association efforts to 
create special committees on children; and endorsement of a 
set of Guidelines for the Fair Treatment of Child Witnesses 
in Cases Where Child Abuse is Alleged 

o Support of a number of research and technical assistance 
projects on such topics as: state and local legal system 
reforms in the handling of child sexual abuse cases; 
screening and substantiation of child abuse and neglect 
reports; investigation of cases involving the abuse of 
children in out-of-home care; analysis of criminal sentences 
in child molestation cases; responses to cases of alleged 
withholding of medical treatment to severely disabled 
newborn children; development of a law school curriculum on 
child abuse; and the resolution of allegations of child 
sexual abuse in child custody and visitation disputes. 

- 12 -
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Mr. OWENS. I have no questions. I would like to have you submit, 
if you don't have it included in your testimony, some of the statis­
tics you gave about the State and local situation. 

Mr. KOPIT. I have that and I will do that. Thank you, Mr. Chair­
man. 

Mr. OWENS. Thank you. 
[Material follows:] 



1979 

U80 

1981 

1981 

1983 

1984 

1985 

100 

GliARDIAt\ AD LI~ APPOINTMEt\TS 
Child Abuse, Neglect, Dependency 

Cuyahoga County 

215 

738 (approx. First ten months = 615) 

504 (approx. Five m0nths (Aug.-Dec.) 

476 

492 (approx. First six months = 246) 

696 (approx. Eight months = 464) 

546 

Increased 2.5 times between 1979 and 1985. 

210) 



COIJDtJ 1978 
Adams 9 
Allen 16 
Ashland 65 
Ashubula 119 
Athens 29 
AUltauc I) 

Belmont lSI 
Brown IS 
BUller 367 
Carroll 0 
Champoign 54 
Clark 372 
Clermont 122 
Clinlon 6 
ColumbWl8 102 
Coshocton 4 
Crawford 81 
Cuyahop 1.665 
Darke 41 
Denance 2 
Delaware 2) 

Ene )) 

Fairfield ,~ 

Fey tile " ~~klnl 1,691 
Fulton 59 
Gullia I 
Gelu,", 10 
Greene 124 
Guernsey 98 
Hamilton 760 

Hnncock 57 

Hardins 5 
Hamson 11 
Henry 2 
Hi&hland 7 

HockiJla 8 
Holmes S 
Huron 8 
Jackson 4 
Jefferson I) 

Knox 16 
Lake 8 
lawrence 9 

1971 
10,435 reports 

123 mlssl"tg observattons· 

1979 

13 
22 

102 
137 

39 
17 

181 
89 

499 
8 

72 
262 
276 

I 
25 
20 
63 

2,430 
110 

7 

22 
25 
IS 
82 

1,859 
92 

2 
39 

362 
139 

1,131 

10 
105 

13 
0 
5 

IS 
22 
4 
9 

59 
35 
23 
7 
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Tobl. I 

COt:NTY BREAKDOW~ OF C.\IN REPORTS 

19110 1981 CoulIl,. 1978 

59 97 llckm8 10 
16 312 Losan 8 

10) 100 lOTim 30 
147 90 Lucas 539 
,4 140 Madl50n 10 
)S 67 Mahomna 371 

134 9S' Manon 2S 

104 75 Medina 9 
526 5S2 Mc:ias 17 

10 II Mercer 20 
6) 49 Miami 11 
98 .~ 

34l 4<41 
Monroe 3 
Montgomery 497 

7 84 Morgan I 
138 289 Morrow 16 
II 125 MusklOKum S2 
21 37 Noble 2 

2,431 1.467 OUawa S 
44 146 Pauldmg 36 
4 18 Perry 14 
2 7 Ptckaway 0 

21 20 PIke 5 
9) 2)8 Portage 221 

6' 144 Preble 9 
I,m 1,089 Pulnom 1 

162 97 RIchland 67 

I II Ross 12 
41 74 Sandusky 30 

398 349 Sanlo 3 

121 62 Seneca 6 

1,489 1,744 Shelby 54 

II 149 Stark 135 

95 68 Summit 1,136 

9 14 Trumbull 11 
3 8 Tuscarawas 113 

16 S UnIOn 4 

7 IS Van Wert 65 

S6 .~ 
9 8 

Vinlon 0 
Warren II 

46 129 Washington 165 

123 12 Wayne I 

21 II Wilhams 134 

24 112 Wood 5 

4 7 jWyandot 0 

TOTAL REPORTS OF ABUSE/NEGLECT 

1f19 
13.839 reports 

156 missing observatIOns· 

1980 
15,114 reports 

191 missing observDtlOns· 

1979 
27 

14 
69 

535 
1 

345 
22 
46 
9 

16 
2 , 

10 
620 

2 
4 

01 
2 

38 
41 

38 
S 
6 

226 
I 
3 

66 

118 
28 
3 

II 
169 

940 
1.165 

26 
141 
19 
81 
3 
3 

147 
43 
82 
10 
14 

19110 
54 
4 

87 

922 
16 

308 
21 

89 
10 
74 
,i 

II 
626 

2 
2 

162 
8 

4<4 
27 

199 
24 
6 

223 
7 

2l 
105 
194 

19 
I 

16 
249 

1,201 
1.0l~ 

12 

246 
18 

112 
12 
14 
76 

115 
48 
6 

28 

1m 
16,514 reports 

19111 
47 
67 

181 
Sll 
10 

322 
97 
31 
S 

56 
27 
5 

483 
1 
6 

22 
2 

75 

~ 

205 
26 
l4 

272 
5 

8S 
175 
193 

9 
7 

43 

258 
1,230 

886 
28 

315 
62 

122 
0 

109 
57 
7 

55 

13 
45 

1319 missing observations· 

·Reporu which were received. but not complied because of tcchnH::nl error ie 8. Incomplete (orms, .Uealb!e wntIng, contradictory responses. 
U14blill), to Identify county. "mdiC3led"J 
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ABUSE AND NEGLECT STATISTICS 
Reports Received By 

Children Services Agencies 
(Substantiated and Unsubstantiated) 

1976 
1977 
1978 
1979 
1980 
1981 
1982 
1983 
1984 
19B5 

1978 
1979 
1980 
1981 
1985 

Percenl 
Increase From 

Total Previous Year 

6,B61 
9,537 39% 

10,435 9% 
13,B39 33% 
15,114 9% 
16,514 9% 
15,BBO (4%) 
28,276 7B% 
47,007 66% 
70,923 51% 

Increase almost 10.33 times since 1976. 

CUYAHOGA COUNTY 

1,665 
2,430 
2,431 
1,467 
8,727 

46% 
-0-

(40%) 
495% 

Increase almost 5.25% since 1978. 
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Mr. OWENS. Toni Oliver? 

STATEMENT OF TONI OLIVER, CONSULTANT AND ADOPTION SPE­
CIALIST, NATIONAL CENTER FOR NEIGHBORHOOD EN'fER­
PRISE, ON BEHALF O}<' THE NORTH AMERICAN COUNCIL ON 
ADOPTABLE CHILDREN 

Ms. OLIVER. My name is Toni Oliver, and my testimony today 
will look at the Adoption Opportunities Act and the impact that it 
has had specifically, and how it can have future impact on Black, 
Hispanic and American Indian Children. 

As a board member with the North American Council of Adopt­
able Children, I chair a task force that focuses on the issues of 
Black, Hispanic and American Indian children. The reasons that 
we have looked at this group as a specific population is that, al­
though Public Law 96-272 and the Adoption Opportunities and 
Reform Act have sought to come up with a number of reforms in 
the child welfare system, these reforms have not necessarily had a 
positive effect on these populations of children. 

As an example, in 1977 when we first began to look at national 
statistics for children in out-of-home placement, there were about 
500,000 children in care and about 38 percent of those children at 
that time were minorities. However, after the legislation and the 
reforms that it sought, we find now that there are about 275,000 
children in care and nearly 50 percent of those are Black, Hispanic 
and American Indian. 

If we look at urban centers, the plight for minority children is 
even more grim, in that 80 to 90 percent of these children in foster 
care in urban centers are Black and Hispanic, predominantly. For 
a specific example, in New York City over the past 3 years the per­
centage of Black and Hispanic children in foster care has increased 
from 75 percent to 90 percent currently. 

Although the Adoption Reform Act has been instrumental in 
funding a lot of activities, I feel that there were many demonstra­
tion projects that had a limited period of existence, many of which 
have been very successful. One of the major problems is that those 
successes have not been institutionalized in the traditional prac­
tices of adoption services. 

The major focus of the demonstration projects has been on re­
cruitment of minority families, with the thought being that once 
the families were recruited, then of course the children would re­
ceive placements. However, what has happened is that we look at 
the fact that recruitment projects, when they are offered in a cul­
turally relevant manner. are very successful in identifying minori­
ty families, but there is a problem and a gap in the numbers of 
families that are recruited and the numbers who actually get 
through the system. 

For example, in Indiana there was a one church/one child 
project that was instituted in the State because the State had iden­
tified 197 children, Black children in care, for whom there were no 
families. During a period of 1. year and 2 months, that project had 
identified 150 Black families who were interested in adoption. Cur­
rently, about a year and 4 or 5 months after the inception of that 
project, only 20 of those families ha i!e received a home study, and 
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of that 20, only 7 have received placements, which equals 8 chil­
dren. 

In California over the past 4 years the State has funded recruit­
ment projects for four separate minority organizations at the tune 
of about $600,000, and less than 5 percent of the families who have 
been recruited over that period of time have received placements of 
children. 

Successes in the area of adoption for minority children have been 
confirmed through a study of adoption services for waiting minori­
ty and non-minority children that was submitted to the Depart­
ment of Health and Human Services by Westat, Inc., in April of 
1986. In all instances, success was measured by the increase in the 
pool of adoptive families, a decrease in the time families and chil­
dren wait for placement, and an increase in the actual number of 
placements. 

In reauthorizing the Adoption Opportunities Program, particular 
attention must be giverl to the fact that successful recruitment ef­
forts alone do not ensure the placement of minority children. 
States receiving funding should demonstrate how they will involve 
various segments of the minority community in outreach and in 
the development of eligibility assessment and placement criteria 
that is culturally relevant. This could be done by using members 
and staff from projects that have previously demonstrated success 
in recruiting families, to review and monitor agency practices. 

Recruitment programs that happen to be independent of agencies 
should be funded under the conditions that there exist timetables 
to respond to inquiries; timetables to follow up with families and 
agencies regarding referrals; a system to resolve disagreements re­
garding the appropriateness of prospective families; and agree­
ments from specific agencies holding the custody of children, stipu­
lating the ways in which they will respond and cooperate with re­
cruitment efforts; and, last but not least, mechanisms for account­
ability and sanctions for noncompliance. This would avoid situa­
tions like the one in which the Homes for Black Children agency in 
Detroit received funding to replicate--

Mr. OWENS. Could you take one minute to sum up? 
Ms. OLIVER [continuing]. Its success in seven sites throughout the 

country. However, during the :-l years of the demonstration project, 
not one site identified 100 children, although at that time there 
were 50,000 children legally free for adoption and 42 percent of 
those were Black. 

In conclusion I would like to say that minority children repre­
sent 14 percent of the Nation's populntion, yet they are nearly 50 
percent of the foster care population. Minority recruitment pro­
grams have demonstrated effectiveness, yet the families have been 
screened out rather than s~reened in. There must be coordinated 
efforts between community groups and adoption agencies and ex­
changes, so that proven, successful activities can be institutional­
ized and that the quality of life can be improved for children in a 
relevant and timely fashion. 

Thank you. 
[The prepared statement of Toni Oliver follows:] 
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Hr. chairman and members of the Subcommittee, my name is 

Toni Oliver and the vie\~s I express today are not necessarily 

those of the Naticnal center for Neighborhood Enterpris". I am 

testifying this morning on behalf of and as a board member of r.he 

North American Council of Adoptable Children (NACAC's), an or­

ganization which represents over 800 adoptive parent groups. 

llACAC major purpose is to advocate for the rights of every child 

to a per~anant family, specifically childr~n in need of adoption. 

As a national organization, we hold an annual conference which 

dra\-IS approximately 1,000 adoptive parents t.nd professionals and 

publish a quarterly newsletter that focuses on legislative, prac­

tice, and parenting issues related to adoption. 

As a member of the Board, I chair a task force on Black, 

Hispanic and American Indian adoptions. We have focused par-

ticular attention on these populations not only because they are 

di!.lprOl)ortionally represented in foster care, but the reforms 

so'.\ght through Public La\f 96.272 and the Adoption Reform Act of 

19 7 8 for the foster care industry has not been very positive for 

minority children. In fact, their ranks have continued to swell. 

To illustrate this point, in 1977 when the foster care 

popUlation reached a high of 500,000 children, minority children 

comprised 38 percent of the total. However, of the 275,000 

children currently in foster care nearly 50 percent are members 

of m~p?rity gr0ups. In urban centers the situation is even more 

grim in that as many as 80-90 percent of the foster care popula-

tien are minority children. In New York, for example, the 

1 
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population of Black and Hispanic children in foster care has 1.n-

creased from 75 to 90 percent over the past three years. 

The Adoption Reform Act has been instrumental in funding ac­

tivities to identify barriers to the adoption of minority 

children and programs targeted toward improving adoption oppor-

tunities for them. To this end, training curriculum has been 

developed and training sessions have been conducted for adoption 

workers in public and private agencies; funding for minority 

parent groups was made available for a one-year demonstration 

period; demonstration programs were implemented for recruitment 

efforts targeted toward prospective minority parents; and, a na­

tional exchange and various regional exchanges were funded to 

give children within and across state lines greater visibility to 

prospective parents interested in adopting children with special 

needs. 

These programs have demonstrated that targeted recruitment 

efforts are highly successful in identifying minority families 

interested in adoption and that when culturally relevant and 

flexible eligibility criteria are applied, the adoption rates for 

minority children increased significantly. Why, then, do Black, 

Hispanic am'. American Indian children continue to be over repre­

sented in the group of children waiting to be adopted and to wait 

a disproportionally longer time for adoptive placements? The 

answer to this question is very simple. The ingredients for 
.~ ... 

success have generally been limited to the scope and term of the 

derronstration projects and there has been little cooperation be-

2 
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tween those who recruit and those who have the authority to make 

placements. 

In every instance, successful projects were those in which 

minority communities not only targeted for determining interest 

in adoption but they were integrally involved in all aspects of 

local adoption programs on an on-going basis. From this col-

laboration there developed trust and positive attitudes on the 

part of minority communities regarding agency adoption efforts 

that replaced previous skepticism and reticence. Agencies simul­

taneously broadened their recruitment efforts and designed more 

flexible eligibility criteria that served to screen in rather 

tilan screen out single parents, fixed and lower income families, 

families with children and non-professional persons. All of 

these factors seen as contributors of success have been confirmed 

in a study of Adoption Services for waiting Minority and Non­

Minority children submitted to the Department of Health and Human 

Services by Westat, Inc., in April of 1986. Success in these in­

stan~es is measured by rhe increase in the nool of minority 

famiLigs,-,_ d",c~fL-:i..!L...:the time families and children wait for 

~lacement and increases in the actual number of placements. 

In reauthorizing the Adoption o!;,portunities Program, par­

ticular attention must be given to the fact that successful 

recruitment efforts alone de not ensure the placement of minority 

child:r;en. Activities funded under this program must be tied to 

placement outcomes. States receiving funding must demonstrate 

how they will involve various segments of the minority com-

3 
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munities in outreach and in the development of eligibility, 

assessment and placement criteria that is culturally relevant. 

This could be done by 'Ising as members of advisory boards, staff 

and volunteers who have demonstrated success in recruiting 

families to revie~/ and monitor agency practices and progress in 

improving adoption opportunities for minority children. 

Recruitment programs that are independent of agencies should 

be funded under the conditions that there exist timetables to 

respond to inquiries; timetables to follow-up with families and 

agencies regarding referrals; a system to resolve disagreements 

regarding the appropriateness of prospective Lunilies; and agree­

ments from ~pecific agencies holding the custody of children 

stipulating the ways in which they ~,,':'ll respond and cooperate 

with recruitment efforts and last but nut least, mechanisms for 

a~countability and sanctions. 

Hinority adoptive parent groups should be funded to monitor 

agency adoption acti vi ty; to ass ist in the development of 

relevant criteria; to identify barriers to adoption; to recruit 

and prepare families for adoption; and to support families 

through the adoption process and beyond. Programs should be 

funded that increase the visibility of children waiting and 

demonstrate a decrease in the length of time they wait. 

Children who have the goal of adoption but are not yet 

legally free should be among those receiving increased viability 

and for \·,hom adoptive families are actively sought. 

4 
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For many children, years elapse between the time adoption 

becomes the goals and an actual placement is effected. Last year 

in Maryland, for example, a state task force found that it takes 

five years from the time adoption is identified as a goal for an 

actual placement to occur. In Baltimore city, seven years 

elapsed between the goal and the placement. Professionals in the 

field of adoption attest to the fact that the longer children are 

denied a permanent family, the greater the likelihood they will 

experience social adjustment, academic, behavioral and emotional 

problems. 

Legal risk adoptive placements, that is pre-adoptive place­

ments for children whose parental rights have been terminated, 

should be pursued for these children. Such placements can in-

sure that children are residing and bonding with families who in­

tend to make permanent commitments to them while the legal 

process moves at its' own rate of speed. For 5-7 years in the 

life of children in foster care equals at least half of their 

llfetime. Efforts to redress this ~pecific atrocity against 

children must be coordinated with judicial systems. 

Hinority children represent approximately 14 percent of the 

nation's population under 19 Y'~ar old, yet they represent nearly 

50 percent of the foster care system. They are younger and heal-

thier than non-minority children yet they wait longer for adop-
~~ 

tive·placements. 

Minority recruitment programs have demonstrated th~t 

5 
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minority families respond in significant numbers to the cry for 

adoptive parents yet they are screened out by irrelevant criteria 

or wait for inordinately long periods before receiving place­

ments. 

Coordinated efforts between community groups and adoption 

agencies and exchanges have proven to be successful in increasing 

adoptions for minority children acti.vities funded under the Adop­

tion opportunities Program must be directed at insuring that 

placement, not process, is the only measure of success, and that 

these activities become institutionalized as standard practice 

:.::ather than time limited demonstrations. 

I thank you for the opportunity to testify on this issue and 

I hope the information and suggestions given will enable you to 

direct policy and resources tOI~ard improving the quality of life 

for children in desperate need of permanence. 

6 
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Mr. OWENS. Thank you, Ms. Oliver. 
Kay Donley? 

STATEMENT OF RAY DONLEY, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NEW 
YORR SPAULDING FOR CHILDREN, ON BEHALF OF THE CHILD 
WELFARE LEAGUE OF AMERICA 

Ms. DONLEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the subcom­
mittee. My name is Kay Donley. I am executive director of an 
adoption agency called New York Spaulding for Children in New 
York City, and you have my written statement. I am just going to 
supplement that a little bit, if I may. 

I really would like to speak to the reauthorization of the Adop­
tion Reform Act of 1978 and an expansion of that act. I think it is 
time that we include post-legal adoption service in our purview of 
those things that are necessary to put into motion if we are in fact 
going to successfully recruit families, place children, and sustain 
those placements. 

It boils down to kind of two basic reasons, I think, that this is a 
necessary piece of the process. Increasingly, the children who are 
being placed for adoption, especially that special needs population 
of this country, tend to be very complicated youngsters. They tend 
to have very complex family histories, very extensive multiple 
placement histories, as they come into their new families. They 
also tend to be children who ofttimes have to be placed with broth­
ers and sisters, not just isolated children but whole groups, family 
groups of children coming into new families. 

I think it important that we understand that all of that means 
that the children are very complex, and that we need to be able to 
sustain them in those placements that we make. We are demon­
strating over and over again across the Nation our ability to identi­
fy the kids, to try tv place the children. What we now have to dem­
onstrate is our ability to help those placements survive over time. 

I think the second reason that this is a timely sort of a venture 
on our part, the expansion of that particular program, is because it 
is very clear that we understand a lot more now about separation 
trauma and what it does to those children who are coming to us in 
these programs. These children have been highly traumatized by 
what life has dealt them, and it is naive of us to believe that we 
can resolve their future simply by virtue of offering them a new 
family, a new family relationship. 

The upshot of it is, unless we face this fact head on now, I be­
lieve, and begin putting post-legal services into place for these fam­
ilies, we are going to see significant numbers reentering our service 
system. Especially in group care services, they are beginning to 
emerge in different parts of the country. I have some data on that 
that is included in the written statement that is available to you. 

We did a survey in late 1985, for example, and discovered that 
some 10 percent of children in group care services were in fact chil­
dren with previous adoption experience, so you have to ask yourself 
the question, "Why are those children there?" Largely because 
there are not sufficient community-based services to be of assist­
ance to those families who find themselves in difficulty with a sep­
aration-traumatized child who is now moving through adolescent 
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years. It is a very difficult time for these youngsters and for those 
families. 

If you have any questions, I will be glad to respond to them. 
[The prepared statement of Kay Donley follows:] 
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Mr. Chaiman and Members of the Suba:mmittee, 1II'f name is Kay Donley and I 

am testifying this morning on behalf of and as a member of the ChUd Welfare 

League of America. I am the Executive Director of New York Spaulding for 

Children, a member agerq of: the Child Welfare League, which is a specialized 

adoption agerq dealing with older and handicapped children, often referred to as 

children with special needs. 

'!he Child Welfare League of America, established in 1920, is the only 

national voluntary organization and standard-setting agency in the child welfare 

field. '!he League is o:mprised of 475 public and private voluntary not-for­

profit member agencies and 1600 affiliates who provide various child welfare 

services to children and their families throughout North America. Such services 

include adoption, foster family care, residential treat:.lrent, group homes, hare­

based social services, day treabrent and child day care. Exanp1es of League 

member agencies include, the New York City Deparbrent of Social Services, SPecial 

Services for Children Division; New York State Council of Voluntary Family and 

Child Care Agencies, Inc.; the Texas Deparbrent of Human Services; Juliette 

Fa-der Hanes, Inc., located in Dallas, Texas; the Vermont ChildJ:en's Aid Society; 

the Montana Department of Social and Rehabilitatio'n Services; and, the California 

Association of Services for Children. 

We appreciate the invitation and OH?Ortunity to appear before the 

Subcc:mmittee this morning to share with yoo our views on issues related to the 

programs whim are presently before the Subcanm.i.ttee for purposes of 

l:"fr,,:horization.- '!he Child Ablse Prevention ann Treatment Act, '!he Adoption 

Reform Act of 1978 and the Family Violence Prevention and Services Act. We would 

like to~,focus our remarks particularly on the Adoption Reform Act of 1978 

(hereinafter referred to as the "Adoption cpportunities Program") and c:arurent 
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briefly on the Olild Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act as well as the Family 

violence Program. Specifically, \ore would like to address our remarks to the 

following reo:llTlI!endations which Wfl believe, if enacted, would greatly strengthen 

these programs by addressiI19 the current needs in both the fields of adoption and 

child ab,1Se. 

!i.illl ~ .t2 .l;hg QU!.g ~ Prevention J!Ill:l Treatment ~: 

o OOA ~ Slmt ~ ~ ~ oo.Ch.i.lQ ~ J!Ill:l ~ 

(~ l2ll ~.t2 ~ MIl ~ ~ Mil ~ 

.t2 .l;hg .ll!\t!.!!'.:.! MId .!llItmt 2f officiallY ~ £b.1l.g 

rr.utr:eatrl',i:nt .u.l;.hg ~ ~. 

o Ql!;8!rulm Slmt.tb.fl authorized .fwxllDg llro:~.w..IT ~ l2ll 

incr~.t2 ~o m!l.l1..rul. 

lillh l:.~.t2 .l;!m ~ 9?Portunities ~: 

o QlIA l.1L:9m .!;bru;, ~ authorized .flm;]!ng kW. .w. .IT ill.!! m. 
incrB!lBecj .fmn .l;hg ~ ~ ~ kW. ~ $.[ IIl1ll.i.2n .t2 

$1J2 mil.l.l..2n, J!Ill:l, .thI!t.!!itb.in .tlW!. increased~, $.3. milli2D 

be set-.M1.m.w. tarqated efforts aim>rl st m re;;ruit:ment ~ 

2I!li plilO1iljl?nt .in permanent ~ fot: m.l..!l2.tit:l ~ l'I.!m. .<Wi 

~ oM .~~. ma l'!.lJ.Q At!: ~ ~.fQr.: 

~ .rum ~ n1aq:::mgnt in i! 'lXUllrull'.nt ~. 

o ~'? 9ml ~ £\ .Dl5t ~~ author~, ~ At $lQ milli2D, 

.fQl;, ~-.J&.9i.lJ.. ~~. 
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9lilS ~ PreventiOn ,;mg Treatment ru:!;.: In ror opinion, this program 

should ranain basically as is. We believe that this program, as currently 

written, prOllides states with a great deal of flexibility in administering their 

child protective service systems while insuring adequate and needed protections 

for children who are reported as al:used and neglected. 

However, we would like to recararend one slight: legislative change 

related to NCCAN's alllection of data from the field. As you know, since 1976, 

NCCAN has funded a national reporting study for the purpose of gethering data 

from the states regarding the nunber of reports received Oller the previous year 

related to abuse, neglect and child sexual abure. In 1984, the latest year for 

which this study was published, all 50 states, the District of Columbia, Guam, 

Puerto Rico, the VirgIn Islands and Marianas IslaI1J;le,- r-ontributed data on the 

total nunbers of child abuse and neglect reports received in that year. 'Ibis 

data is ~t produces information regarding the total nunber of reports of abuse 

and neglect each year, al.lcMing us to chart national.' trends with regard to whether 

reports are increasing or decreasing fran ooe year to the next. 

In canbination with the collection of data related to the number of 

reports, NCCAN has also funded a IIlOre detailed analysis, utilizing "case data' in 

the Eoen of c:aI1?uter generated files from the states wherever such information is 

available. In 1984, 30 states and territories representing 61 percent of the 

total O.S. child population provided such data. In 1984, the type of information 

generated from such an analysis included:!! 

., ~ !>2f. ~ ••• neglect, alone Cit in canbination with 

al:use, is the most frequently reported type being reported in 

~T" approxiuately 58 percent of all cases of child abuse and 

neglect. libuse is reported in spproximtely 50 percent of all 

y Highlights of Official Child Neglect and 1\l:use Reporting 1984, The 1me.rican 
Humane iISSOcl:ation ' 
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cases, where arose generally included r!ports of both 

physical and sexual maltreatment •••• 

o ·Source .2f.llmQtt ••• the types of individuals who r!port 

suspected maltreatment to child protective services ager~ies 

are evenly divided between professional soorces and 

nonprofessionals. It is interesting to note that it is the 

victi:n's own friends, neighbors and relatives who constitute 

the single largest group of r!porters ••• • 

o "Substantiation ~ " Based on data from 19 states, a 

national estinate of 727 thousand reported children were 

considered substantiated for child abuse and neglect by CPS 

systems. This r!presents approxinutely 42 percent of the 1.7 

million children who wer," reported in 1984 ••• • 

o .~~.Qf~~ ••• average age of 

involved child was 7.2 years ••• 48\\ W>.lre males, 52% were 

females ••• 67\\ were White, 21% ware Black, 10\\ were Hispanic 

and 31l were categorized as Other.' 

This type of information goes on and on -- Perpetrator 

Descriptors (for example, the average age is 31.5 years); ~.2f. 

Maltreabmmt lIssociated id..th Fatalities (for exanple, major physical 

injury is indicated for 47\\ of fatalities, deprivatiooQf necessities 

ru: nwlect is indicated in 44\l of fatalities and minor physical injury 

accounts for 2l1l); ~ .2f.~, ClJaracteristics .t!! 

Substantiation ~I ClJaracteristics .fl2.t ~t:ionally Maltreated 

~,etc. 
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Funding for !:he 1985 study was the first year in which OCC1\N did not 

fully fund this type of analysis. In fact, the fun:ls made available were 

sufficient only to study data fran five states. It would appear that NCC1\N's 

commitment to this type of data gathering is waning and it is our opinion that 

the collection of same should not be left to the discretion of any Administration 

but rather lMIldated in order to insure the continuing and consistent collection 

of such infomation. 

'Ibe collection of such data is critical to the field of child abuse and 

neglect for the following reasons: 

(1) 'Ibere is a developing continuity of reporting data over the past ten 

years. 'Ibe depth of data is sufficient to begin utilizing it for t.iJre 

series studies which, when coupled with other infomation about the child, 

protective servia! system, have the potential to reveal a great deal 

about the fora!s that interact with and drive the system. 

'Ibis then would allow for th~ developnent of training programs for 

protective servia! workers as well as shore-up state systems based on 

infomation about "what_know" relative to the national profiles of 

maltreatmant, descr.!ptions of involved children, caretiOkers, perpetrator, 

source of report, etc. 

(2) Data collection for a revised National Incidance study oc=red in 1986 

and loS in the proceau of finalization. Ilecause of inportant revisions in 

the incidence study mathodology, more appropriate ~risons with 

reporting data will be possible than was the case with the 1979 inciden=e 

study. 'Ibis hal3 several. inportant ben:!fit:s having 1:0 do ~Iith IIDre 

rl.precise calibration of incidence study data (which is sanp1ed) 1:0 the 

case specific data fran the report:ing study (which is oot saIql1ed.) 
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Calibration of data will prOV'ide us with an ability to adjust the 

reporting data if necessary for "representativeness.· 'nIis means that we 

can have IOOre confidence in our national estinates based on reporting 

data; however, this cannot oc:= until there is IOOre conplete case data 

in 1986. 

Accordingly, lli!A ~ ~ ~ ~.ll;:. ~ iQ ~ sOO 

analyze ~ Ms ~ iQ ~ ~ srui ~ .2f. officially ~ .dlild 

001 treatment .in ~ !lIJi.t.!:g ~, .tS2 ~ ~ ~ .llim ~ JIruIi.mJm 1Il!IJ!m 

.2f. states ~ sOO M.t .l&.§§. .l:bm ~ ~ .2f. ~ ldth ng;ml .tS2 W ~ 

~ analysis .in ll.!1!. 

lillh g9S.(Q .!;Q ~ .!Zi!lli\U.f!mling ~.2f..l.;M guJ,g ~ Prevention 

and Treatment &:;t, .QlIA ~ .iYl ~ .in ~ authorization ~ .f2.t !tildl 

~ .iYld specifically, !Qr. .IT~, ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ .2f. $2.9. 1llil.U2n. 

'lllis, as you knew, c:aq?ares with the current authorization level of $43.1 million 

and we believe could be used by the states in filoring-up their systans in 

whatever way they considered necessary (i.e., training, public education, 

establishnent of 1lIll.t:i-disciplinary teams, etc.) 
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l\dq;ltion CJpporI:llnities program: Since its inception in 1978, the primal:y purpose 

of this prcgram has been to support activities which serve to increase adcpticn 

cpportunities for children in need of pennanent, adcptive families and to ensure 

the adcpticn of children with special. needs by eliminatin;r barriers which might 

prevent such adcptions fran oc::urrin;r. Trerrendws strides have been made in the 

advancement of such goaJ.s t:lu:algh the funding of state and regional.-wide training 

ronferences: the develc:prent of c:ucriculum materials for state adoption workers 

and supervisors: fundin;; of the national. and varioos regional. adcption exchanges 

which help to match a family in one state who is interested in adcptin;r a child 

located in another state: the funding of specific targeted efforts to recruit 

pennanent adcptive hares for waiting children - all of which have o:ntributed 

to forcing systanic chan;Jes a.roorr:l the notion that "no child is un.adcptable." 

9:!!?! believes that ~ activities sholld ~ ally o:ntinue but be ~ 

~ increasing the authorized ~ level ~ $5 million, resultin;r in ~ total. 

authorized level of $10 million for ~ 1988. 

Within this increased level, 9:!!?! ~ that E. millicn be set-aside for 

~ ~ aimed ~ the recruitmmt of and placenent in pe;manent hanes for 

minority children who ~ defined ~ ~ needs" and who ~ ~ free ~ 

~ and awaiting placarent in ~ pexmanent ~. 

We believe that such a targeted effort on behalf of minority children is 

necessru:y since the placanent of these children in pennanent hones has been one 

of the more problenatic issues in the field of "special needs" adcption for the last 

several. years. A=ding to the most recent figures fran the U.S. Department of 

Health.J,IIld Hunan Services (1lHS) apprcod:mately 36,000 children with special. needs 

are awaiting to be placed in adcptive hanes. Of this number, 42% are minority, 

37% are handicapped, the median age iEi 12 and 68% have been in foster care for 

2 years or more. There is much evidence that where targeted, a:nprehensive efforts 
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are made, hanes for minority children are foond, surprisingly, often without great 

difficulty. The next hurdle in the process seans to care after families have been 

identified in tenns of the actual placerrent of the child. Once a family is identified, 

adcptim agencies, either state or private agencies, are chal:ged with insuring that 

the potential family is the best cne suited for and in the best interest of the child. 

The breakcb..n in the process seems to oco.tr at this point - in acblally moving the 

families thrrugh the system to the point at which children are actually placed with them. 

For exarrple, the New York Cooncil en 1\dcptable Children (COI\C) recently testified 

before the House Selzct Carmittee on Children, Youth and Families that they currently 

have ~ average of ill ~ ~ of wha\\ ~ Black and Hispanic) waiting !!!!. average 

of ~ years and ~ ~ before the process E ="1Plete1 iliat is, before the child.is 

actually placed with the family. These families have been recruited by COI\C for 

purposes of placing sane of the 3800 children currently waiting in New YOlX City's 

foster care system who have the goal of adcption. Ninety (90%) of these children 

are Black or HispMic and just u's one agency has been able to locate 424 hones in 

which to place these waiting children yet, because of the1elays ~ienced in 

actually carpleting the process, CON: reports that up to 25 percent of the families 

drcp-Olt. The dwiOlS affect of this is that sane of these children who might otherwise 

have been able to grcw-up in a pennanent adcptive hone, cc:ntinue to wait and g:rc:\ol-up 

in the foster care system. 

What OOA believes is needed is a carprehensive and specifically directed effort 

that l:egins at the "frmt-end" of the process, with outreach and recruitrrent activities 

airred at identifying prospective families and =tinues all the way thrrugh tbe process, 

to the plac:e:rent of the child with a family. A precedel.t exists for such a tarqeted 

effort under the Child Abuse and Treatment Act, with regard to the so-called "Baby Doe" 
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arnenclnents of 1984. SUch arrenclments authorized additional grants to the states 

for the pw:pose of develcping, establishing, cperating and iJrplanenting procedures 

for pro;p:ams abned at disabled infants !:om with life-threatening ccnditions. These 

grants enccuraged states t:o devel.cp pro;rarns of educatien and training of professicnal 

and paraprofessional staff as well as coordinated existing and necessru:y services 

related to such infants. Today, just CNer 2 years following the irrplerrentation of 

these requirements, virtually every state agency has in place a procedure, system 

and pro;ram for addressing the needs of these infants. 

CWIA is suggesting that a similar type of focused effort be develcped, ale 

Io.hich is targeted specifically to the pqmlation of wa,j,ting, minority children with 

special needs. Similar to the "Baby-Doe" pro;rarns, such an effort should include 

pro;rams of educatien and training of professional and paraprofessional staff, whose 

enly responsibility would be the recruitrrent of peonanent hares and the placanent of 

minority children into those hares. This, to insure that waiting minority children 

with special needs do not cx:ntinue to wait a disprcporticnately lenger period of tiJre 

than other children with special needs • 

.!!! addition, ~ ~ ~ legislative authority, under the lIdcpticn Cpportuni.ties 

Pro;ram, for ~ dem::nstration pro;ram for past-legal ~ services. We stroogly 

believe that this is a critically necessary adjunct to the Adcpticn Cl;>port!.mities 

Pro;ran and entirely cx:nsist.ent with its purpose as defined in the Findings and 

Declaration of Purpose, as foll.cMs:Y 

" ••• It is, therefore, the p.u:pose of this title to facilitate the 
eliminaticn of barriers to adcpticn and to provide pelJlIanent and 
loving hare envirroments for children who benefit by adcpticn, 
partiCllarly children with special needs ••• " 
,.: 

Y Fran Title II, "Adcpticn Cl;>port!.mities," P.L. 95-266, "The Child l\OOse 
Preventicn and Treatrrent and Adcpticn Refoon Act" of 1978. 
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a<rA sul:xnits that the respcnsibility of this prcx;ram to insure "pez:manent and 

loving hana envi.rcrarents f= dlildren who WC1Ild benefit by adcptiOl," does ~ end 

!:!!!!!. ~ finalizatim of ~ !'I'?q>tion. 'l'he fact that a o:urt decrees an adq;lticn to 

be final dces not also decree that this new family will autcI!latically becone the 

"loIring hone enviralment" envisicned by this law. If we have learned anything aver 

the last 10 years of the operation of this highly su==ssful program it is that the 

families that "we" have formed t:.IJrI:o.lgh the II'Jrkings of this prcx;ram and other federal 

eff=ts, do not step needing "the system" once the adcpticn has been finalized. 

Indeed, their needs are just beginning while the needs of the system as presently 

established are ending, with placing the child in a so-called "pexmanent arrl lo<ring" 

hare envirc:nment." The present system then tends to view the adcptioo as a soluticn 

unto itself, a solution which is ended at the murthouse steps, with the signing of 

the papers. 

Hcwever, we new knew that the system as presently constructed is not in step 

with reality; that is, the needs of adq;ltive families. And, as a result, as we 

becane more sucx::essful in placing children in pez:manent, lo<riD;J hone envi.ronrrents, 

the mxe families are returning to the system in crisis arrl in need of post-legal 

adcpticn services. Unfortunately, there are cnly a handful of agencies and a few 

private therapists with any kind of specialized adoption ca.mseli.n;J prcgrams. Many 

families report. havin;J enccuntered coonselors and therapists who lacked ~led3'e, 

familiarity = understandinq of adoption. 5anetimes parents struggl.!m to maintain 

a family with a t:l:olbled adq;lted child were asked why they adcpted and were advised 

to "send the child back. ~ 

!!.!. ~ ~ then ~ keepiD;J ~ ~ tcgether, ~ believes that 

the necessru:'1 and apprq;>riate support services ~ be provided .!:2 ~ ~. 
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~ ~ subnits that such services should be available to every adq:ltive family 

inasmuch as current data indicate a grcM.ng incidence of families having adcpted 

children as infants, tuming to the child welfare system for help and finding ncne, 

place the child in foster care. 

As previrusly indicated, CW!A has within its tranbership, agencies providing the 

total range of rut-of-hare care services and for the past several years, many of these 

agencies have been reporting that mare and more children who were adq:>ted as infants, 

often nt:M at the age of puberty or adolescence, are being placed in their care. 

Approximately 2 years ago, an effort to quantify this was undertaken by an 11 year-old 

project within CW!A, kn= as the Fanily Builders Networ1(, a grrup of non-profit adoption 

agencies dedicated to serving older, handicapped, minority children. Under the auspices 

of this project, a survey was conducted of 107 gra.tp care facilities located in II 

statesYrepresenting 4100 children. This suxvey frund that approximately 10 p&cent of 

children in care were adq:>ted. Of this number, 38 percent had been adcpted as infants 

and 62 percent had been adq:>ted as older, possibly "special needs" children. Arrund 

the sane time, a similar survey was undertaken by the Amarican AssociatiCl'l of 

Children's Residential Centers (AllCOC) in ccnjunction with the National AssociatiCl'l 

of Pychiatric Treatment Centers for Children (Nl\PTCC), both natiCl'lal organizatic:ns 

whose manbers provide interdisciplinary mental health treatment for emotionally disturbed 

child::en and their fanilies. Although the MCOC;'NAPro: sw:vey was snall.er, based 

OIl respcnses fran 51. facilities, the resUlts were sCIOe\olhat similar: 14 percent of 

children in care were adcptedl 51 percent of this number had been adq:>ted as infants 

and 49 percent were adopted after infancy. l'/hat is perhaps most str:iking aboot this 

Y These states include, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Kansas, Massachusetts, 
Michigan, Ne" Jersey, New York, Scuth carolina, Texas and Washington. 

80-3nO 0 - 88 - 5 
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data is the fact that of the total. u.s. child population under age 18, adq:>ted children 

o::nprise only 2 percent. Therefore, the perc:entagesindicated by these two SUl:Ve'jS 

point up a disprq;ortiooate number of adcptive children going into out-of-hane care. 

Moreover, as substantiated by our member agencies, at the base of the far.ily crisis 

giving rise to the child's Olt-of-hane p1ace:rent, are issues related to adcpticn. 

For the child, such issues may relate to never having resolved the loss of 

their birthparent(s) or never fully believing that their adq:ltive parents are their 

"real" parents. Society can be inadvertently cruel to children who are adq:lted by 

giving insidicus messages that being adcpted means never really belooging to any 

family. In the pz:ocess of be=ning fullyfunctiating adults, with strong egos and 

realistic self-ccncepts and .images, we all search for our identity and go through the 

pz:ocess of understanding "who we are." It is a process made all the more difficult 

for children who are adq:lted, given such messages. lind, adq:ltive parents, in order 

to help their children t.'1rough these issues, need to believe that they are "real" 

parents and that their children are tl-.e.ir "real" children. Before such issues, t.mich 

are uniquely related to adq:ltion, are dealt with, the "nonnal." process of deve1q:ment 

for children, for parents and for families, will not occur. 

For children who are adq:lted as "special needs" or who cane fran other ccuntries, 

these issues are even more =npo.mded. Children with special needs are typically 

children who have been adcpted often after a prolonged period of time spent in foster 

care - 5 or 10 years is not unUSUill for sane of these children. Many of these children 

cane into the "system" at yeung ages, having been abused or neglected by their parents, 

whose legal rights to their children are subsequently terminated, a process which is 

itself .¢ten prolonged and extranely traumatizing to the child. Many of these children 

cane into the "system" after haviN; been bom with severe physical handicaps and, 
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because their parents may be unable to adequately provide for their care, the 

state becanes their legal ClStodian. It is for these children that efforts under 

the Adc:ptien ClJportunties progrcrn and other federal initiatives are primarily 

focused. H~ver, it is a focus that is ene-sided. -- related. cnly to recruiting 

a fanily and placing the child. Once this ocan:s, we shut the door in their faces 

and. beymd wishing them "a nice day" effectively wish them "a nice life." When they 

ret::unl ~ the systen seeJdnq support and CXlunselin;r, 6 mcnths or 6 years later, we 

respond as though we have fulfilled cur obligaticn by placing the child and nCM have 

no further respcnsibility. But, we do. I\e must do =e for these fanilies - we 

have helped. to create t:.hat>. and we must help them stay together. 

What CWI:A prc:poses is: 

o A dancnstratien program of post-legal adopt.icn sexvices with 

an authorizatien of 4 years, be;Ji.tlnin;J FY 1988, funded at $10 

millicn for each year. 

o Grants woold go to state social services agencies to develop a 

program of post-legal adoption services. States would design and 

direct their prograns to the adoptive fanilies havin;r the greatest 

need as deteJmined thl:cugh CXJnSUltatien with apprc:priate adepticn 

and =mnmity groups having an interest in the field of adopticn, 

includin:;r parent groJps, private non-profit adoption agencies and 

other apprc:priate state agencies. 

o A report to Congxess by the Secretary of the U.S. Department of 

Health and Human Services would be provided danonstrating the 

.;!leeds of adepti ve fanilies and the effect! veness of meeting such 

needs. 
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The Child Welfare League of l\rnerica believes that a prcgrarn of post-legal 

adoptiCl'l services authorized and funded under the l\dcptioo cpportunities l?rcgram 

is absolutely critical if we are to fully realize the PW:pOSeS enbcxlied in the law 

aimed at providing "petmanellt and J..ov:i.ng hone enviror.nents for children wno wculd 

benefit by adoptioo~ We have, for several years nCM, referred to the efforts 

to date under this law, as hav:ing placed chi:J.drpJ1 in pem1aIlent hones only nOl<T to 

leam that true pem1aIlenC1{ requires anotl;er step -- ongoin; support after finalization. 

We w:ge this Sub=nru:ctee to provide for this next step by authoriziN;r a new prcgram 

of post-legal adoption serv:i= so that adoptive families can be maintained in hanes 

that are truly pem1aIlent and lcv:i.n;r. 
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Family Violence Prevention Services JI.ct: rnIA strcng1y urges this Subcarmittee 

to reauthorize this prcqram for 4 years, with incremental increases in the authorized 

funding level for each year, beginning with IT 1988. Specifically, for FY 1988, we 

walld recamend an authorizatien level of $30 million which, as yOJ. kncm, wc:u1d 

provide for needed increases over the present authorized level of $26 millien. 

ve believe this is a necessru:y program and critical adjunct to the Child l\buse 

Act because of its specific eIlphasis en the problem of family violence which so often 

affects children. Ths grants which are proviJed under this program to ststes and 

non-profit =nmunity organizations for shelter and related services to the victims of 

family violence help to maintain children with at least part of their family during 

such situations. Critical too is the program of law enforr:e:oont training and technical 

assistance. 

Acmrdinq to the Center for Waren Policy SbJdies, naticnally, 20% of the visits 

to ererqency roans are made by waren who are victims of spousal abuse and 2 million 

ware'l per year are reoort:ed as battered due to family violence. Given these alanning 

statistics, CW!A sul:rnits that a system of ererqency shelters, prevention and CXlUIISeling 

services, all which are provided for under this program, are clearl,y needed. 

~, therefore, strcng1y ~ this SUbo::mnittee !2 reauthorize this ~, 

~ =.t1y enacted, including the present fonnula for ~~: stributien of granb, 

for ~.! ye= ~. beqinni.nq IT 1988. 
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Mr. OWENS. Thank you very much, Ms. Donley. 
Mr. Arcara? 

STATEMENT OF RICHARD J. ARCARA, ESQ., PRESIDENT, 
NATIONA~_DISTRIC.T ATTORNEYS ASSOCIATION 

Mr. ARCARA. Mr. Chairman, my name is Richard Arcara. I am a 
former United States Attorney for the Western District of New 
York, the present District Attorney for Erie County, Buffalo, New 
York, and as its president, I speak to you today on behalf of the 
National District Attorneys Association. The National District At­
torneys Associatior is the professional association of America's 
local prosecutors, fo nded in 1950, with approximately 7,000 active 
and associate members. 

I will focus my remarks, with the chairman's indulgence, on the 
1986 amendments to the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment 
Act, commonly cited as the Children's Justice Assistance Act of 
1986. As a prosecutor whose office handles hundreds of such cases 
yearly, I can attest to the critical need for improvement in the 
criminal justice system response to child sexual abuse victims. 

Though my office policies have changed, too often we have seen 
children needlessly subject to an array of bewildering interviews 
with often untrained professionals. Too often we have seen law en­
forcement, child protection and mental health personnel working 
at cross-purposes to the detriment of the victim. Too often we have 
seen archaic courtroom practices used to bar the testimony of 
young victims we should be protecting. This is changing slowly 
across our country today. I believe an effectively implemented Chil­
dren's Justice Act can provide an important impetus for speeding 
that change. 

However, there are times when effective implementation of 
worthwhile programs is often hampered by convoluted and com­
plex plans, at the expense of simple solutions and a good measure 
of common sense. America's district attorneys are concerned that 
this not happen with the implementation and the execution of this 
legislation. One tool that we can use to prevent such unnecessary 
distortion is to begin to formulate a simple and clear vision of how 
the Children's Justice Act can be used to achieve the dual goals of, 
one, improved investigation and prosecution of child abuse cases 
and, two, reduced trauma to the child victim. 

There are two main points I want to make this morning about 
the effective implementation of the Children's Justice Act. Point 
number one, the act will have the greatest impact ;f it is used as 
an opportunity to train local law enforcement in the state-of-the­
art techniques of investigation and prosecution of child abuse cases. 
Point number two, this training should be designed and carried out 
by prosecutors with expert skills and lengthy experience in child 
abuse prosecution. 

We suggest that the delay in implementing the Children's Jus­
tice Act and the great concern it causes both you as an oversight 
committee and us as prosecutors can be easily remedied by 
NCCAN's utilization of the mechanisms already in place and ac­
tively functioning under the auspices of the National District At­
torneys Association. The NDAA, through its research affiliate, the 
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American Prosecutors Research Institute, has created our National 
Center for the Prosecution of Child Abuse, which will within the 
next 30 days distribute to the fIeld what we believe to be a land­
mark publication in the legal system's response to child abuse, en­
titled "Investigation and Prosecution of Child Abuse." 

For the first time, a comprehensive manual by and for investiga­
tors and prosecutors on effective ways to handle child abuse cases 
will be available. It contains authoritative guidance on trial strate­
gies, legal reforms, child development issues, medical advances, 
treatment options, and service resources affecting child abuse pros­
ecution. It contains step-by-step procedures for investigating child 
abuse reports, coordinating law enforcement with child protection 
and treatment efforts, protecting victims throughout the criminal 
justice process, and responding to and preparing child victims, in­
cluding the very young, adolescents, and multiple victims. This 
manual represents the collective experience and expertise of many 
of America's finest child abuse prosecutors, literally from all over 
the United States. 

I see that I am running out of time, and I will just rely upon my 
written report. 

Just in conclusion, Congressman Miller indicated that the name 
of the game here is money. I think he said it very forthrightly, and 
I think he is very accurate in this. 

Three years ago I implemented a program in my offIce called the 
CARE unit, a Comprehensive Abuse, Assault and Rape Unit. The 
purpose of that unit was to deal with the fragile victims in the do­
mestic violence area and rape. The funding for that program came 
from the private sector. I went to the government for funding in 
this program and I was turned down every which way. I thought 
the importance of this type of approach dealing with these kinds of 
crimes was paramount. . 

Fo:ctunately, in Buffalo I was able to go to a local foundation and 
they provided the funding for that program. I think the program 
that we have is a model program. It has been very effective. It has 
brought together all the various agencies, private and government, 
that deal with this problem. 

I can say that when I first initiated this program, I met with all 
these various agencies, the social groups, the various agencies that 
were involved, and there was much suspicion: "What is this district 
attorney going to do? He wants our help. What is his real angle on 
this thing? Is he really sincere? Is he really addressing the problem 
or is he trying to build a little fiefdom for himself?" 

Many of these groups I found were suspicious of each other be­
cause they were all funded from many of the same sources, and 
they were all concerned about whether or not this program that we 
were initiating would in some way at all have some adverse effect 
on their programs. Well, I am very happy to say that it did not. 
After a few months, they recognized where we were c:oming from 
and that we really had a common purpose here. Even though our 
interests were different, the common purpose was to protect chil­
dren from being abused, and to make sure that when these chil­
dren-and battered wives-go through the criminal justice system, 
that they go through the system with the least amount of trauma 
as possible. 
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Thank you very much. 
[The prepared statement of Richard J. Arcara follows:] 
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Mr. Chairman and members of the House Subcommittee on Select Education: 

My name is Richard J. Arcara. I am a former United States Attorney for 

the Western District of New York; the present District Attorney for Erie 

County, Buffalo, New York; and, as its President, I speak to you today on 

behalf of the National District Attorneys ASSociation. The National District 

Attorney> Association (NOAA) is the professional association of America's 

local prosecutors. Founded in 1950 with an initial membership of sixteen, the 

Association today has nearly 7,000 active and associate members representing 

virtually every community in the country. The Association is currently 

qoverned by a board of dlrectors with representation from every state. In 

this way, a consensus of opinion on \~idely divergent topics can be achieved. 

I appreciate the opportunity to offer testimony on the reauthorization 

of the Child Abu~e Prevention and Treatment Act. I will focus my remarks, 

with the Chairman's indulgence, on the 1986 amendments to the Child Abuse 

Prevention and Treatment Act, commonly cited as the "Children's Justlce 

Assistance Act of 1986." I appreciate that there are many issues of 

importance to the work of this Committee. However, I believe that this 

Committee will be interested in the specific recomm~ndations for 

implementation that I will make. 

Title 1 of the Children's Justice Act authorizes the National Center on 

Child Abuse and Neglect (NCCAN), operating under the Department of Health and 

Human Services, to award grants to states for programs which improve the 

investigation and prosecution of child abuse cases and the handling of those 
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cases in a manner which limits additional trauma to the child victim. 

The emphasis is on cases of child sexual abuse. 

As this Committee is aware, in order to qualify for Children's Justice 

Grants, states must meet the existing eligibility criteria in the Act (P.L. 

93-247), A state must also have established a multi-disciplinary task force 

on children's justice to review current state investigative, administrative 

and judicial handling of child abuse cases and recommend ;mprovement~. 

The recommendations of the t~sk force must include: 1) reforms to 

reduce t~e trauma to the child victim and ensure procedural fairness to the 

accused; 2) pro9rams for testing innovative aPproaches to improving judicial 

action in' child abuse cases; and 3) reform of state laws and procedures for 

providing protection for children. 

The Act a I so requi res NCCAN to deve lop and d i ssemi nate mode I tra i ni ng 

procedures for professionals working in child abuse investigative. 

administrative. and judicial proceedings, and to conduct researCh on 

appropriate procedures in child abuse cases. 

TheSe are worthy and important goals. They deserve our support and 

appreciation for those who worked to pass thiS potentially far-reaching 

legislation. 

2 
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As a prosecutor whose office handles hundreds of cases yearly. I can 

attest to the critical need for improvement In the criminal justice system's 

response to child sexual abuse victims. Though my office policies have 

changed, too often we have seen children needlessly subjected to an array of 

bewilderinq interviews with often untrained professionals. Too often we have 

seen law enforcement, child protection, and mental health personnel working at 

cross purposes to the detriment of the victim. Too often we have seen archaic 

courtroom practices used to bar the testimony of young victims we should be 

protecting. This is changing slowly across our country. I believe an 

effectively implemented Children's Justice Act can provide an important 

impetus for speeding that change. 

However, tht're are times when effective implementation of worthwhile 

programs are hampered by convoluted and complex plans, at the expense of 

simple Solutions dnd a qood measure of common sense. America's district 

attorneys dre concerned that this not happen with the implementation and 

execution of this leqislation. One tool that we can use to prevent such an 

unnecessary distortion is to beqln this morning to formulate a simple and 

clear vision of how the Children's Justice Act can be used to achieve the dual 

goals of improved investigation and prosecution of child abuse ca&es and 

reduced trauma to the child victim. 

There are two main points I want to make this morning about the 

effective implementation of the Children's Justice Act. Point number one: 

the Act will have the greatest impact if used as an opportunity to train 

3 
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prosecutors in state-of-the-art techniques of investiga}ion and prosecution of 

child abuse cases. Point number two: this training should be designed and 

carried out by prosecutors with expert skills and lengthy experience in child 

abuse prosecution. 

We suggest that the delay in implementing the Children's Justice Act, 

and the grea t concern that it causes both you as the overs i ght commi t tee and 

us as prosecutors, can be easily remedied by NCCAN's utilization of the 

mechanisms already in place and actively functioning under the auspices of the 

National District" Attorneys Association. 

The NOAA, through Its research affiliate, the American Prosecutors 

Research )nstitute, has created our own National Center for the Prosecution of 

Child Abuse which will, within the next 30 days, distribute to the field a 

landmark publication in the legal system's response to child abuse entitled 

INVESTIGATION AND PROSECUTION OF CHILD ABUSE. For the first time, a 

comprehensive manual by and for prosecutors on effective ways to handle child 

abuse cases will be available. It contains authoritative guidance on trial 

strategies, legal reforms, child development issues, medical advances, 

treatment options, and services resources affecting child abuse prosecution. 

It contains step-by-step procedures for investigating child abuse reports; 

coordinating law enforcement with child protection and treatment efforts; 

protecting victims throughout the criminal justice process; responding to and 

preparing child victims, including the very young, adolescents, and multiple 

victims. Practical checklists, sample transcripts, interview guidelines, 
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supplemental resources, state statutes and caselaw references are also 

included. 

This manual represents the collective experience and expertise of many 

of America's finest child abuse prosecutors. In addition to the manual, our 

Center is using a variety of other resources to bolster the efforts of 

district attorneys interested in improving the investigation and prosecution 

of these cases. These include the publication of monoqraphs on such topics as 

"Special Hearsay Exceptions", "Competency of Child Witnesses", "Videotaping 

Child Victim Interviews or Statements", and "Videotaped Depositions and Closed 

Circuit Television Testimony," and in the provision of technical assistance in 

response to a wide range of requests from local prosecutors. The technical 

assistance provided to date has consisted of legal research, advice on trial 

techniques, recommendations about investigativE approaches, and information 

about how to handle child victim witnesses. 

Our Center i~ also as~istirlg loral prosecutors .1,,,1 ',tat" <l',',ociations in 

the development and presentation of training pvents and local conferences to 

meet the needs of prosecutors and involve professionals from other disCiplines 

in a coordinated approach to child abuse on thp 1nca1 levpl. 

At the state level, district attorneys dre members of state district 

attorneys associations. In many states, these associations are supported by 

expert professional ,taffs headed by prosprlltor coordinators who plan and 

conduct training for prosecutors, produce manuals and handbooks, provide 
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research assistance and help local offices to improve their operations and 

practices. It would be a natural ~nd logical extension of the services 

already offered by these prosecutor coordinators to address the training needs 

of 1 oca 1 prosecutors under the Chil dren' s Justice Act and as members of the 

5tate multi-disciplinary task forces called for in the Act. 

NOAA feels strongly that the expertise represented by the state 

prosecutor associations and the work of our National Center are invaluable 

resources to aide in the implementation of the Children'S Justice Act. We 

note the language in the Act that calls upon the Secretary of Health and Human 

Services to carry out the Act through NCCAN "in consultation with the Attorney 

Genera1." The Department of Justice has a day-to-day familiarity with the 

\~ork of 1 Dca 1 prosecutors and for that reason we bel i eve that active 

consultation with Justice will improve both the quality and the speed with 

which the Act is implemented. 

We can be of ass i s lance in the fo 11 owi 11g areas: 

First, th~ Act calls on NCCAN to develop and disseminate model training 

procedures to improve the investigation and prosecution of child abuse. Our 

manual INVESTIGATION AND PROSECUTION OF CHILD ABUSE is thE most comprehensive 

manual ever produced 011 the subject. 1t provides a complete practice tool for 

working prosecutors, and a starting point for the task force recommendations 

called for under the legislation. 

6 
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Through the Children's Justice Act resources could be m. e available for 

development of state-specific supplemelits, rather than each state devoting 

resources to develop material already contained in the manual. 

Second, the governor of each statr is required to appoint a task force 

to develop a plan to implement the Act on the local level. In this process, 

the NDAA, our National Center and prosecutor coordinators can playa useful 

role by provid;ng support to the local prosecutor members of these task 

forces. 

ThirD, our National Center can work closely with NCCAN to identify the 

concerns and needs of prosecutors in improving the handling of child sexual 

abuse cases. It can also serve as a conduit for disseminating information 

about NCCAN's activities and priorities affecting child abuse prosecution to a 

nationwide network of practitioners facing tnese cases on a daily basis. 

Rarely is legislation enacted with the potential for having great impact 

for little money. Because Washington is conditioned to equate great impact 

with great ~ppropriations, there is the danger that a small program like the 

Children's Justice Act will not receive the attention it deserves because it 

represents such a small amount of money. Indeed, we are convinced that if 

this money is diluted into a fund for broad general purposes at the state 

level and blended into the vast social services budgets of the states that it 

will have no appreciable impact. We feel it is essential to allocate theSe 

funds so that their benefits flow directly to prosecutors. 

7 
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NOAA feels strongly that the expertise represented by the state 

prosecutor associations and the work of our own National Center are invaluable 

resources for the implementation of the Children'~ Justice Act. We urge NCCAN 

to consult with NOAA and our National Center in the pl'ocess of developing 

their guidelines. State associations should be actively involved in 

developing state plans and providing services to local prosecutors to 

accomplish the goals of the Act. 

We are determined to work with the states to improve responses to child 

sexual abuse. We urge NCCAN to take advantage of our expertise and membership 

network. This hearing is, we hope, a start in that direction. We aopreciate 

the opportunity to testify on behalf of the reauthorization of the Child Abuse 

Prevention and Treatment Act and commend your concern for child abuse victims 

in this country, 

8 
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Mr. OWENS. Thank you very much, all of you, for your testimony. 
I would just like to first ask the lawyers who are present, the dis­

trict attorney and the two gentlemen from the Bar Association, are 
you-in addition to what you have recommended in your written 
testimony-are you saying also that if not in this act, then some­
where there should be some mandates on the way the criminal jus­
tice system operates or the way the law schools train lawyers? The 
kind of thing you were talking about in the manual and the new 
procedures, et cetera, should that not be a routine part of the train­
ing of lawyers on the district attorney staff? 

Mr. ARCARA. Is that directed at me, Mr. Chairman? 
Mr. OWENS. Either one of you. Feel free. 
Mr. DAVIDSON. Well, first of all, the National Center on Child 

Abuse and Neglect has the ability to fund demonstration programs 
in a variety of areas related to your question, such as to fund inno­
vative law school programs that involve law students, social work 
students, and other graduate students, criminal justice graduate 
students as well, in the child abuse area. Those types of programs 
are very important, and without the Federal involvement in sup­
porting those kinds of demonstration models and then disseminat­
ing information about those demonstration models, I don't think 
they are going to happen, because it is hard to raise private funds 
for those kinds of very special, very unusual projects. 

I mentioned in our testimony that we are developing a standard­
ized curriculum for law schools so that students who are taking 
family law or juvenile justice in law school can get part of a course 
directly devoted to the issue of child abuse, and hopefully some of 
those law students will have the incentive to go on and practice 
law in this field. 

Mr. OWENS. Mr. Bartlett? 
Mr. BARTLETT. Thank you, Mr. ChaIrman. 
I was just notified that my amendment in the Housing Subcom­

mittee is up right now, so I am going to have to go over there for 
the markup, but I did want to inquire of Ms. Oliver some of the 
things that you said in your testimony. 

Could you tell us, do you have any data to quantify the-on page 
6 you say that adoptive parents are being screened out by irrele­
vant criteria or wait inordinately long periods of time-do you 
have any data that you can provide for this committee as to the 
number of adoptive parents? 

Ms. OLIVER. There are a number of recruitment programs across 
the country that are documenting, now, the numbers of families 
that are recruited and comparing that with the numbers that get 
through and some of the isolated reasons for rejection, yes. 

Mr. BARTLETT. Well, if the chairman would hold the record open, 
I think that would be very useful information for this subcommit· 
tee to know, as far as the number of adoptive minority parents 
that are being screened out. 

Could you give us some examples of the irrelevant criteria that 
are used in that screening process? 

Ms. OLIVER. Well, several come to mind immediately. Let me 
take Indiana. A two-parent family who are interested in adopting a 
child, the home study has been put on hold because they live in a 
two-bedroom house, and the agency feels as though they need to 
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live in larger quarters before an adoption could be effected. A 
woman who has raised three children and is in a wheelchair, 
raised them while she was in a wheelchair, was rejected because 
the agency felt as though because she was in· a wheelchair, she 
could not raise children. A minister who had suid that he was in­
terested in adopting a sibling group has been approved since Janu­
ary of 1986, and even though there are 197 children in Indiana, the 
"right" child has not come for him and so he is still waiting, and it 
just goes on and on, if you want to hear others. 

Mr. BARTLETT. Well, it does seem to me that that is a productive 
inquiry for this subcommittee in terms of reauthorizing the law. I 
would suggest that in the last reauthorization of Public Law 98-457, 
we had thought that we had started the agencies and the Federal 
agency on the right road. We added language that struck out the 
words "parent groups" and inserted the words "adoptive family 
groups" and "minority groups," and we thought we had given the 
agencies at least some guidance, but you might be able to help us 
on some ways to improve that guidance out of the Federal law, and 
perhaps we can be of some assistance. 

Ms. Donley, the problem you talked about of post-placement serv­
ices with regard to health care, is it a problem that the health in­
surance companies are treating adopted children differently 
from--

Ms. DONLEY. Well, it is twofold. In the first instance, a lot of 
these are considered preexisting conditions and so they are not cov­
ered under existing insurance coverage, but in many instances we 
are not talking about things that could be covered by health insur­
ance. We are talking about the kind of assIstance-for example, I 
call this, when I am teaching social workers how to do this kind of 
work, I call this remedial service. 

You are working with a family who came through the system 
some time ago, and at that point someone didn't properly prepare 
this child for placement. It may have been an older, school-age 
child who really wasn't informed on their antecedents and their 
family connections, and so the child has come on into the new 
family, and he is now older and he is questioning and he is puz­
zling over these things. 

Well, now, that is not the kind of thing that you need to have 
health insurance coverage to handle. You need somebody who is 
skilled in providing good, quality, basic child welfare services, who 
can reenter the scerle. But in most States, you see, if in fact your 
adoption was legally completed last year or whatever, there is no 
service money left for you now. You are just going to have to go 
whistling or hope that you stumble into the hands of a helpful 
social worker. 

Mr. BARTLETT. Would it be productive to approach it as a cover­
age gap in Medicaid, for example, with regard to the special chil­
dren, the handICapped children? Is there a gap? 

Ms. DONLEY. With those children it could be, but I am more con­
cerned, to be honest about it, in terms of the kind of handicapping 
condition that doesn't fall into that category, specifically those chil­
dren who have some measurable emotional disturbance. See, I 
happen to believe, and many of us practitioners do, that every 
child who is placed for adoption really suffers some degree of sepa-
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ration trauma. They have to cope with that as they move through 
life, and it is those pieces of assistance that we have to put into 
place. Otherwise, we are going to see increasing numbers of these 
children at adolescence who are coming back into our child care 
system at much greater cost to us as a community. 

Mr. BARTLETT. Thank you. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. OWENS. Thank you, Mr. Bartlett. 
Did I hear you say, Ms. Oliver, that the recruitment effort has 

reached its peak? It is doing the job. We don't need to push that 
much more. It is far head of the effort to place--

Ms. OLIVER. Where they exist. I think that there is a need to 
have recruitment efforts across the country. Every agency that has 
custody of children and has an adoption arm should have some way 
in which they recruit families for the populations of kids that just 
wait in the system, but the ones that have been implemented have 
been extremely successful-the one church/one child projects, the 
Homes for Black Children projects. There are exchanges that do re­
cruitment programs and they are able to identi~y thousands of fam­
ilies who are interested in adopting, but it doesn't equal action 
placements. In fact, the percentage of those recruited and those 
placed with are miles apart. 

Mr. OWENS. You mentioned Detroit before. At one time, didn't 
they have a model program for adoption and almost no children 
were--

Ms. OLIVER. Federally funded. Yes, that was the one I was talk­
ing about. It was seven sites that were to replicate the Homes for 
Black Children project out of Detroit and in each of the sites, what 
the agencies-the State agencies or Ioeal public agencies-were 
supposed to do was to identify 100 children that they could recruit 
for and prepare families to adopt, but in none of those seven sites 
were 100 children identified. In fact, in some of the sites no chil­
dren were ever identified in a 3-year period, so although Federal 
money supported the implementation of that replication of a suc­
cessful project, there was no coordination between the federally 
funded project and those who had the custody of the children. 

Mr. OWENS. Thank you. 
To return to the representatives of the Bar Association and the 

district attorney, I still am distressed by the fact that on such a 
basic issue, with so many problems mushrooming related to child 
abuse and family violence, that the call here appears to be for Fed­
eral funding or nothing will be done. I mean, it is being treated by 
the criminal justice system at the local level as an auxiliary prob­
lem, a supplementary kind of problem, when it seems to me the 
numbers show that it is a basic problem. 

We usually have, I think, domestic courts that handle large num­
bers of cases. Large numbers of family problems related to foster 
care children, adoptions, and family violence, end up in court. All 
of it must occupy a large part of the judicial system, not only the 
courts but the district attorney as well, and more and more the 
police, and yet I hear the statement being repeated over and over 
again that if the Federal Government doesn't continue to playa 
major role in this, nothing significant is going to be done. 
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Could you just comment on how we can get the local systems to 
pick up their responsibilities for a basic problem that is there in 
the population that they serve? 

Mr. ARCARA. I think we have recognized this problem more in 
the last 5 years than we ever have, ever. The local governments 
are recognizing it. I have done it in my office, and there are many 
other district attorney's offices throughout the United States. 

However, we think that because of the complexity in this area, 
that more has to be done and that this problem, as I heard earlier 
today, is a national problem, that we are becoming more aware of 
it, the numbers are increasing every year, and that the Federal 
Government really should not walk away from this problem and 
say, "Well, it is strictly a local matter." 

We feel that it is a local matter but we need help. When I have 
to go to a private foundation for funding for what basically would 
be a government interest, it is quite embarrassing as an elected of­
ficial, where the money was not available in the first instance after 
we put the program in place when the State of New York recog­
nized the importance of it. 

What I am suggesting here is that because of the complexities of 
this, the training that is necessary--in this area as prosecutors, in­
vestigators, we are learning new techniques every day and it costs 
money to train. Most prosecutors that are in this area have a real 
high burnout problem, so new prosecutors need more training. 

The National District Attorneys Association, through the Ameri­
can Prosecutors Research Institute, on our own came up with this 
manual which will be released next month, which was an effort 
that we made independent of the Federal Government. We would 
like to do more with this but we are limited in the funds that we 
can have. We recognize it as a major problem in the United States 
today, and I hope that as a result of these hearings, that there is a 
new sense of urgency that can come out of this. 

This child abuse area, the domestic violence, it was in vogue 2 
years ago and now it all of a sudden seems to have lost its popular­
ity. Well, the problem isn't getting any smaller. I can tell you that. 
The numbers in my office are increasing every day, and it is very 
difficult, and you have to have-you just can't put a prosecutor or 
a policeman to investigate these kinds of cases. There is the re­
quirement of an interrelationship between the other various agen­
cies that are necessary here, that requires cooperation on all parts 
and the Government. 

The Federal Government, as Congressman Miller said today very 
accurately, cannot run away from this problem. The best way to 
deal with it is to set up programs, and we certainly can help you in 
that area because we are working in that area, but it is going to 
require funding. To say we are just going to leave it to the locals, it 
is a local problem, it is not just a local problem. It crisscrosses all 
throughout the United States. 

Mr. DAVIDSON. If I could comment, as we indicated in our testi­
mony, in 1980 it is estimated that about 13.7 percent of child abuse 
cases went into the court system. By 1984 that figure had risen to 
30.2 percent, and there is reason to believe that that figure is still 
rising. The courts need help. Judges need help. Lawyers who repre­
sent child welfare and child protective service agencies need help. 
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The Children's Justice and Assistance Act, which uses not appro­
priated funds but money collected from criminals in Federal crimi­
nal cases, under the Children's Justice and Assistance Act the Gov­
ernment has already collected in the last fiscal year about $2.8 mil­
lion that should be distributed to eligible States to help them on 
the road to implementing some of these reforms, and. we don't see a 
lot of forward movement on that legislation. This year it is project­
ed that $3.() million will be available for distribution to the States. 

The concept of giving the States some small amount of money 
and saying, "'rarl!et some attention to this area of reform of the 
way the legal and judicial process handles abused children," it is 
the legal and judicial process, Congres<anan, that gets the most crit­
icism in the child protective community. It is what happens when 
cases go to court, that we hear the most criticism. We are all trying 
to do a lot about it but it is an issue that really needs Federal at­
tention and Federal incentives to supplement the interest of the 
private sector and the local and State governments. 

Mr. OWENS. Thank you very much. I thank all of the witnesses 
for their testimony. In the cases where we asked for additional in­
formation, the record will be open for 10 days for the additional in­
formation to be submitted, and we would appreciate your submis­
sion of it. 

The next panel is the child abuse panel: Ms. Ann Cohn; Leslie 
Roberts has already testified; David Chadwick; Victoria Young; 
Rick Veutura; Tom Nerney; and James Bopp. 

I understand, Mr. Bopp, you have a time problem, and we will let 
you testify first. Mr. Bopp. 

STATEMENT OF JAMES BOPP. JR.. PRI<~~nDENT. NATIONAL LEGAL 
CENTER FOR THE MEDICALLY DEPENDENT AND DISABLED, INC. 

Mr. BoPI'. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. OWENS. You know your written testimony will be entered 

into the record. llnd you are free to make some comments for 5 
minutes. 

Mr. BoPI'. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and if the record may be 
held open for the footnotes which were not available at the time 
the testimony was printed, I would appreciate that as well. 

Mr. Chairman, I am testifying as president of the National Legal 
Center for the Medically Dependent and Disabled, located in Indi­
anapolis, Indiana, which is a national support center for the Legal 
ServiceiS Corporation. We have a special interest in the "Baby Doe" 
provisions of the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act, inas­
much as our responsibility as a national support center is to defend 
the rights to medical treatment of medically dependent and dis­
abled persons. 

I think you correctly read in your opening remarks, Mr. Chair­
man, from Dr. Vincent Fontana, who in his book, "Somewhere A 
Child Is Crying," in exposing the nature and extent of the child 
abuse problem, also correctly discussed the problem of what has 
become to be known as the "Baby Doe" situation which was exist­
ent at that time-widespread infanticide of particularly disabled 
newborns-which has continued to the present day. 
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The "Baby Doe" problem is best represented as the discriminato­
ry denial of available beneficial medical care from an infant, due to 
nonmedical social and economic criteria. Said another way, it is the 
problem of denying medical treatment because of a quality of life 
standard where the value of the child's life jeo measured, rather 
than whether or not the available medical treatment can assist in 
ameliorating a problem that the child has. 

We represent, along with the American Civil Liberties Union, 
Carlton and Sharon Johnson of Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. Carlton 
Johnson is a 4-year-old black child who was born with spina bifida • 
and denied beneficial medical care at Oklahoma Children's Memo­
rial Hospital. Sharon Johnson is a single parent on AFDC, and the 
hospital published an article in "Pediatrics" describing the quality 
of life criteria that they utilized to deny Carlton Johnson necessary 
surgery because of nonmedical social and economic criteria, or the 
application of the quality of life standard. 

Children who are poor, who are disabled, who are racial minori­
ties, are the most vulnerable when these criteria are used. It is our 
fear that despite the Child Abuse Amendments of 1984 and their 
clear rejection of the quality of life standard in this area, that this 
problem persists. We have cited in our testimony the extensive 
record of physicians and medical organizations who are continuing 
to advocate the use of quality of life criteria which make the poor 
and the racial minorities the most vulnerable. 

We believe that the child abuse amendments as they existed in 
1984, in terms of their standards, ought to be reauthorized; that 
they provide appropriate protection for the at-risk population. I do 
think we have a legitimate concern, though, about the implementa­
tion of this congressional standard within hospitals and the medi­
cal care setting. 

The preliminary analysis of the Inspector General of HHS is 
really quite troubling in terms of the data which has so far been 
accumulated, and that data is, I submit, insufficient, and additional 
data needs to be accumulated. However, there are inferences that 
can be drawn from what has been done so far. 

First, they report that 21 cases were reported to child protective 
service agencies within the 50 States, and that of those cases, qo 
percent involved situations where the treatment decisions were 
changed due to child protective service i.ntervention. That is 30 per­
cent of the cases, which is a rather large number of cases in which 
there was not the application of the appropriate congressional 
standards for medical treatment for these children. 

But, second, they also looked at 10 hospitals and found some 20 
to 36 cases in which hospital ethics committees looked at "Baby 
Doe" cases, and found that only three of those caBes were referred 
to child protective service agencies. What is troubling about this 
data are two things. 

Number one is, the only thing that the Inspector General looked 
at was to determine whether or not these 20 to 36 cases were "re­
solved." "Resolved" meant that everybody agreed to whatever the 
decision was. What we do not know is whether or not that decision 
comported with congressional standards in terms of treatment and 
care for those infants. Secondly, if there were 20 to a6 cases in 10 
hospitals and suspected cases of child abuse are required under the 
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act to be reported, we could have a very large under-reporting 
problem. 

Therefore, my recommendation to this subcommittee is that they 
urge the Inspector General's office, in completing its final report 
on this matter, to go back to these hospitals, to examine in a confi­
d.ential way the records, to summarize the circumstances of each of 
these cases and determine, number one, whether or not the appro­
priate congressional standards were complied with once these cases 
were "resolved" internally within the hospital; and, secondly, 
whether or not when these cases were determined to be suspected 
cases of child abuse, they were properly reported as the law re­
quires. 

There are people who advocate hospital ethics committees to be 
the mechanism by which this matter may be resolved. We have no 
data on whether or not these cases are being resolved within hospi­
tal ethics committees in conformation with the standards adopted 
by Congress. We mge that this committee help and urge the In­
spector General's office to accumulate that data, so that we may 
determine whether or not the standards are being implemented. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
[The prepared statement of James Bopp. Jr., follows:] 
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Chairman owens and Members of the Subcommittee, I am pleased to testify 

in my capacity as President of the National Legal Center for the Medically 

Dependent and Disabled. 

As the Program Director of a national support center for the Legal 

Services Corporation that concentrdtes on discriminatory denial of 

lifesaving medical treatment to indigent people with disabilities, I am 

naturally most concerned with the impact of reauthorization of the Child 

Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act on poor people. 

want to focus on that part of the Child Abuse Amendments of 1984 

commonly known as the "Baby Doe" section. It addresses a problem of 

particular relevance to poor people, and especially to those who are members 

of racial minorities. Together with the American Civil Liberties Union's 

Children's Rights Project, our legal services program is currently 

representing Carlton Johnson, a black child to whom Oklahoma Children's 

Memorial Hospital doctors denied lifesaving surgery for his spina bifida. l 

We are also representing his mother, Sharon Johnson, who is an AFDC 

recipient. 

There is every indication that the doctors at the Oklahoma state 

hospital left Carlton to die untreated precisely because of their prejudice 

and stereotypes about the child of a single black welfare mother. These 

doctors published a medical journal article in which they described how they 

had decided to let die 24 out of 69 babies with spina bifida they saw over a 

five year period. 2 The article said they used a formula, ."QL=NE x (H+S)," 

in deciding whether to recommend that children live or die. 3 "In this 

formula, ••• QL is quality of life, NE represents the patient's natural 

endowment, both physical and intellectual, H is the contribution from home 
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and family, and S is the contribution from society.,,4 As Martin Gerry, 

former Director of the Department of Health and Human services (HHS) Office 

for Civil Rights, has written, there is an "obvious potential of the highly 

selective 'contribution from home and society' criterion ••• for irtroductng 

race, sex and socio-economic bias into the decisionmaking process •••• "S The 

doctors themselves admit that its use means that fo. two children with an 

identical degree of disability, the recommendation may be for one to live 

and the other to die "depending on the contribution from home and society.,,6 

A black welfare mother whose "contribution" was apparently judged 

unacceptably low, Sharon Johnson was manipulated into giving uninformed 

consent to the death of her child. To induce that consent to let her son 

die, she was told clear untruths about her son's condition--that he was 

blind, that even with surgery, he would die within a year, that, as she put 

it, "Everything was negative, no positive, no hopes, nothing • ••• He was 

going to die. That was the bottom line." 7 In fact, due largely to 

the courageous intervention of a nurse at the Children's Shelter where he 

was sent to die, Carlton's plight was publicized by a national news 

documentary, and he w~s--very belatedly--given the surgery needed to 

survive. Today, as one journalist reported, he "careen[s] around in a 

small red wheelchair."a 

The ACLU and our legal services program will be seeking class 

certification in this case to obtain justice and recompense on behalf of the 

many other indigent victims of the Oklahoma hospital's discriminatory 

practices. 

Such discrimination against those with disabilities who are the children 

of poor people is hardly restricted to Oklahoma. In a recent American 

Medical Association Journal article whose analysis logically applies to 
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children with disabilities, H. Tristum Bngclhardt, Jr., and Michael Rice 

argue that, while anyone who is rich enough to afford comprehensive access 

to intensive care should be allowed it, those who are poor should face 

rationing under which they are denied treatment if their "quality of life" 

is judged to be too low. "[L)osing at the natural and social lottery does 

not per se vest any individual with a claim on innocent others for care," 

they write. "[lIt the goods sought [--the intensive care units in 

hospital--) are privately owned, then the fact that individu~ls in need do 

not find resources for treatment may be an unfortunate circumstan~e, not an 

unfair circumstance."9 

A survey by Adams confirms that whether phys!cians refer children with 

disabilities for treatment is influenced by their parents' socioeconomic 

status. lO Pediatrician John Britton of the University of Arizona Health 

Services insists that "economic implications for the family and society must 

be weighed in the deciSion-making process" concerning provision or denial of 

treatment to children with disabilities. II In the context of advocating 

that treatment be provided only to those with an adequate quality of life, 

the Chairman of the Bthics Com~ittee of the American Pediatric Surgical 

Asso~iation, Dr. Anthony Shaw, has given a3 the example of one with a poor 

quality of life "a child born normally formed but ••• in an urban ghetto to 

an unwed teenage drug addict." According to Shaw, even with a "respectable 

quantity· of natural endowments, such a child's quality of life would be low 

because nothing would be contributed to the child's welfare by his or her 

home. 12 Dr. Joel Frader, a pediatrician at Pittsburgh Children's Hospital, 

has written, ·Why shouldn't non-medical considerations, like family and 

community resources .,. become important to the decisions? Good reasons for 

permitting death may exist."13 
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Those we represent and whose lives we defend frequently have three 

strikes against them: The health care system discriminates against them 

because of their disability, the health care system discriminates against 

them because of their pOverty, and--because racial minorities are 

disproportionately represented among poor people--the health care system 

discriminates against them because they are black or Hispanic. 

Given this context of prejudice and discrimination--discrimination that 

results in death--the Child Abuse Amendments of 1984 must be evaluated by 

asking how good are the tools they create to attack the discrimination, and 

their implementation must be judged by measuring how well and how frequently 

these tools are being used. 

The standard of care embodied in the legislation is a largely sound and 

protective one. It establishes that "disabled infants with life-threatening 

conditions" must always receive "aFpropriate nutrition, hydration and 

medication."14 With three exceptions, they must also recei',e "treatment 

which, in the treating physician's (or physicians') reasonable medical 

judgment, will be mast likely to be effective in ameliorating or correcting 

all such conditions."IS F~llowing the expressed intent of the Congressional 

sponsors, Health and Human Services regulations define a "reasonable medical 

jud9ment" as one "that would be made by a reasonably prudent physician 

knowledgeable about the case and the treatment possibilities with respect to 

the medical conditions involved."16 

The three exceptions--circumstances in which the most effective 

treatment may legally be omitted, although food, fluids, and medication must 

still be given--apply when the child is "chronically and irreversibly 

comatose," when treatment would be futile in doing more than prolonging 

dying, and when "provision of such tr"atll'ent ~Iould be virtually futile in 
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terms of the survival of the infant and ~he treatment itself under such 

circurr.stances would be inhumane. "17 

These standards are obviously incompatible with discrimination based on 

socioeconomic status, and they go far in barring discrimination based on 

degree of disability. In its "Interpretative GuIdelines' concerning the 

statute and its implementing regulations, the Department of Health and Human 

Services appropriately emphasized that "consideration of the infant's future 

'quality of life' ••• would be inconsistent with the statute."IB 

Because they set forth relatively clear and workable policies that 

carefully cabin the discretion of physicians and others who may wish 

selectively to deny lifesaving health care to the disatled children of poor 

people and members of racial minorities, these provisions are essentially 

sound from a civil rights point of view. Therefore, we are pleased with the 

standard of care set forth in the Child Abuse Amendments of 19B4, and we 

believe these Ltandards should be reauthorized without change. 

There is cause for concern, however, in an effort to distort these 

standards, reinterpreting them in a manner that is significantly less 

protecti ve. 

There have been suggestions in publications and by the medical 

defendants in a Minnesota "Baby Doe" case that the plain meaning of the 

language of the first exception, "chronically and irreversibly comatose," 

should be be ignored and that this exception should be interpreted to 

exclude from protection those in a II pers istent vegetative state." 

Those who seek to reinterpret the statute maintain that the real meaning 

of the exception is to exclude those who are permanently unconscious, and 

that this includes those who are not comatose but in a persistent vegetative 

state. 19 But, as Martin Gerry, one of the principal negotiators of the 
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compromise that became the Child Abuse Amendments, writes in the current 

number of Issues in Law and Medicine, 

[Iln the negotiations leading up to the consensus language 
formen in the Child Abuse Amendments, !-.he term unconscious WIIS 

explicitly rejected •••• The term ·coma" was, in fact, adopted 
because it was substantially more reslrictive and was applicable 
to few children. Thus, the consensus language was plainly 
intended to have n26row application, not the expansive application 
suggested by some. 

In the Minnesota case of In re Steinhaus, Judge George Harrelson 

properly rejected the medical defendants' contrary pos1tion. The court 

held, "It's clear that the statute that's appli~able does make an exception 

to a chronic and irreversible coma. It does not make an exception to a 

persistent vegetative state so that the court would have to find that the 

child is in a chronic and irrevereibel coma in order for heroic measures 

beyond food, water ~nd appropriate medications [to te withheldl."2l 

The record should be unmistakeable that this statute means what it says, 

and that this effort at reinterpretaton is ar, abuse inconsistent with the 

spirit and letter of the la>l. 

Beyond the adequacy of the standards of care and the appropriateness of 

their interpretation, legal advocates for health care rights of poor people 

are of course concerned with the adequacy and effectiveness of their 

implementation and enforcement. 

Unfortunately, there is presen~ly insufficent data to make a 

comprehensive judgment about this. We are eager to work both with this 

Subcommittee and with other appropriate sectors in conducting the sort of 

surveys and other inquiries that are necessary to evaluate properly the 

effectiveness with which the "Baby Poe" provisions of the Child Abuse 

Amendment~ of 1984 are being implemented. 
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What information we do now have suggests two conclusions. 

The first is that when Baby Doe incidents are reported and the 

Amen~ments are faithfully applied, they appear to be doing their intended 

job. 

In the one case in which, to my knowledge, a Baby Doe case has reached 

the courts since the effective date of the Amendments, the judge carefully 

analyzed the statute and regulations and meticulously applied them to the 

facts of the case before him. This is the Steinhaus case, which I ment:oned 

a moment ago. The judge ordered that antibiotics that were being denied the 

child be provided and, until the evidence was clear that he was in fact 

chronically and irreversibly comatose, required that resuscitation and other 

lifesaving treatment be made available. 22 

On April 20, 1987, the HHS Inspector General submitted a preliminary 

report on a "Baby Doe National Inspection.· 23 It found that, of the 21 Baby 

Doe reports since the effective date of the Amendments, Child Protective 

Service "intervention is credited with changing treatment decisions in 

approximately six cases.· 24 This means that in nearly 30% of reported 

cases, the existence of the Child Abuse Amendments prevented or reversed 

discriminatory denial of lifesaving health care, presumably saving the lives 

of children who otherwise would have died. 

The second conclusion that may be drawn from the indirect evidence that 

we presently have, however, is more disturbing. It suggests that instances 

in which the requirements of the Child Abuse Amendments are being flouted or 

simply ignored may be widespread. 

Initially, it should be understood that, although the Child Abuse 

Amendments of 1984 are an important and progressive contribution to the 

civil right~ of children with disabilities, especially the children of poor 
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people and those who belong to racial minorities, they ne7ertheless suffer 

from three inherent limitations. 

First, the ~mendments are not necessarily binding on the states. Th,'y 

apply onll' to those states that choose to accept funding from a 

comparatively minor federal program of grants under the Child Abuse 

Prevention and Treatment Act. Three states, California--which has the 

largest population in the United States--Indiana, and Pennsylvania, do not 

receive funding under this Act. Thus, poor children in those states receive 

no protection from the Amendments. 

Second, the Amendments commit the principal responsibility for 

enforcement to child abuse and neglect agenc;es in eac', state. There are 

indications that, as a general rule, workers in these agencies are not those 

most sympathetic to or equipped for enforcement of the Amendme~ts. They 

often face a contlict of interest, since their primary sources for reports 

of traditi0nal child abuse cases--the beating or neglect of n0ndisabled, 

typically older children--are physicians. Yet physicians are commonly the 

subjects of investigation in Baby Doe cases. State child neglect and abuse 

workers do not usually have experience working with chi!dren who have 

disabilities, and they may well share in the often pervasive devaluation of 

persons with diabilities all too common in the general population. Indeed, 

when the Child Abuse Amendments were first proposed, their national 

organization, the Natlonal Council of State Public Wplfare Administrators of 

the American Public Welfare Association, opposed them, describing "denial of 

health care for handicapped infants" as "most often the result of difficult 

medical/ethical judgments ••• , and not instances of willful abuse or neglect 

"25 Furthermore, the public records of state child abuse and neglect 

agencies In well-publicized "Baby Doe" cases in Indiana, Illinois, New York 
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and Oklahoma has been far from exemplary: In these cases, they supported 

denial of treatment, acted only under extreme federal pressure, or failed to 

acr. at a11. 26 All of these factors combine to create reservations in one's 

confidence about the vigor with which these state agencies enforce the Child 

Abuse Amendments. 

Third, standing alone, the Amendments lack the strong federal role and 

encouragement of private action that experience has proven vital in other 

areas of civil rights law. All the pre~edents in the fields of racial and 

sex discrimination demonstrate that reliance on state and local authorities 

alone--people often beholden to powerful local institutions (such as major 

hospitals) and likely to share the common mindset in areas where 

discrimination is pervasive--is inadequate to root out well-entrenched and 

longstanding discriminatory practlces. 

There is, I said, indirect evidence that suggests that impl~mentation of 

the Child Abuse Amendments has in fact been less than universal. Some of 

this comes from the HHS Inspector General's Preliminary Report. It 

describes the results of visits to 10 hospitals in 8 major cities, all of 

which have "committees in place to review and advise on the handling of 

neonatal cases, including treatment of severely disabled infants.· 27 These 

committees, the Inspector General reported, "estimated that they had 

reviewed between 20 and 36 potential Baby Doe cases since the Baby Doe 

Regulations went into effect. Only 3 cases were reported to CPS units 

because they could not be resolved by the committee."28 The term "potential 

Baby Doe cases" is not defined. However, it is a reasonable inference that 

these were cases in which it was at least suspected that medically indic3ted 

treatment was being or would be withheld from disabled infants with 

life-threatening conditions. If so, then it is disturbing .hat only 3 of 
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those cases were reported, and those only when the comlf.ittees could not 

"resolve" them. 

The Amendments and their implementing regulations require "prompt 

notification by indi~iduals designated by and within appropriate health care 

facilities" not just of instance when an internal review mechanism such as a 

hospital committee has determined that withholding in violation of the 

standards has occurred, but whenever such withholding is "suspected."29 

Still less is it justifiable to hold back on reporting until a committee has 

decided whether it can "resolve" the situation internally. 

Apart from the apparent failure to abide by the reporting requirements 

that is so far documented by the Inspector General's Preliminary Report, it 

would be desirable to learn precisely how the committees "resolved" the 17 

to 23 cases that they did not report. Was the treatment provided to each of 

these children in fact in strict accordance with the standards of care 

specified by the Child Abuse Amendments? 

The Inspector General's Report suggests further grounds for concern. As 

it notes, "The volume of cases reported to CPS units remains small"--21 in 

the entire nation since October 1985 when the Amendments went into effect. 30 

We have seen that the number of "potential Baby Doe cases" reviewed by 

committees in 10 hospitals alone was 20 to 36. Yet the likelihood seems 

large that these are a distinct subset of cases of withholding of treatment 

even in those hospitals. As the Inspector General explains, 

Specific criteria for reviewing cases very from hospital to 
hospital. Most committees review cases involving disagreement 
between the treating physician and parents regarding appropriate 
treatment. All committees serve as a consultant when the treating 
physician is uncertain as to the appropriateness of treatment. 
Only one committee requires mandatory review sf any case where 
withdrawal of life-support is being proposed. 

In general, therefore, a "potential Baby Doe case" does not get reported 
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to a hospital review committee--let alone a statp agency--unless there is a 

dispute among health care personnel and parents, or unless a physician is 

sufficiently self-questioning to seek review committee involvement. When 

those concerned are in agreement to withhold treatment in a manner that may 

violate the standards of the Act, there is no indication that there is any 

review or check on the process at all. 

While, again, there is insufficient information at present to say for 

sure, these data suggest that there may be significant underreporting and 

underenforcement. This suspicion is reinforced by the profusion of medical, 

legal, and ethical publications since the adoption of the Child Abuse 

Amendments that strongly advocate denial of treatment required by the 

Amendments. Inde~d, one article openly calls for what amounts to a 

conspiracy between hospital review committeee and local child protection 

agencies to ensure that there is no interference when such committees 

"ocasionally condone non treatment in circumstances not contemplated" by the 

Act and its implementing regulations. The authors eVen suggest that the 

committees "educate" local child protection agency personnel so that they 

"come to appreciate all of the morally relevant factors involved and will, 

accordingly, defer to the decisions made by parents, doctors and committees, 

except in cases where the child's best interests are clearly being 

threatened." This approach, they say, "if put into practice, would easily 

compensate for the shortcomings" they f.nd in the treatment mandates 

contained in the Child Abuse Amendments. 32 

H. Rutherford Turnbull, II, President of the American Association on 

Mental Deficiency and himself the parent of a child with a disability for 

whom physicians once recommended denial of treMtment, recently surveyed the 

medical literature and found that "the recent ~Qmmentary on the issue is 
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overwhelmingly in favor of denying treatment to those deemed to lack a 

sufficient 'quality of li£e.,·33 The results of his survey, embodied in 

testimony before the U.S. Civil Rights Commiss'.on, are appended to this 

testimony. I shall quote only two of the many physicians' opinions he 

excerpts. 

In an article published after the passage of the Child Abuse ~mendments, 

widely reprinted in medical newspapers and in YSA Today, Dr. George Crile, 

former head of the Department of General Surgery of the Cleveland Clinic, 

denounced the Amendents for forCing society to su~port what he called "the 

growing numbers of hopelessly disabled, often unconscious people whose 

costly existence is consuming so much of the gross national product." "No 

child with Down's Syndrome ever grew up to be ~elf-6ustaining," he 

proclaimed. "If the parents still want to rear their child, that should be 

their decision, but there should be no support from the community or the 

state."34 

In less vivid language, a New England Journal of Medicine editorial in 

Spring of 1986 protesting requirements for treating children with 

disabilities stated, "Quality of life is ~n important consideration as the 

weight of our ethical, medical and legal traditions suggests."35 

It would be comforting to think that the passage of the Amendrr.ents 

itself played so great an educ~tional and deterrent role that the only "Baby 

Doe" cases that req~ired state agency intervention to enforce the standards 

of care they mandate were those six cases reported by the HHS Insp~ctor 

General. However, given the very widespread and often deeply felt 

opposition to the prir.ciples embodie·] In the Amendments, particularly among 

members of the medical community, it seems far more likely that those cases 

represent only the tip of the iceberg. The handing down of ~wn v. Board 
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of Education and the passage of the Civil Rights Act of 1984 did not 

immediately abolish racial prejudice or result in the sudden cessation of 

discriminatory practices. They required--and, indeed, still 

require--vigorous and unf~iling enforcement on a federal as well as a state 

level. There is no reason to suppose that any less effort will be required 

to enforce the rights of children with disabilities, especially those who 

are poor and/or members of racial minorities, to equal treatment. 

In sum, then, I want to emphasize the importance of the Baby Doe 

provisions of the Child Abuse Amendments to the civil rights of poor people 

with disabilities. The standard of care in those provisions is protective 

and pOI'urful, and I call for no change in it. The record should be clear, 

however, that weakening interpretations are inconsistent with the statute 

and unacceptable. We currently have insufficient information fully to judge 

the effectiveness of implementation of the Amendments. Where they are being 

applied faithfully, they appear to be effective, but there are significant 

grounds for concern that they are not being consistently and vigorously 

enforced. Our center is eager and willing to cooperate in appropriate 

efforts to evaluate more fully the degree to which the Amendments are being 

enforced. 

Thank you very much. 
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Mr. OWENS. Thank you very much. You have stated your case 
quite forcefully, with quite a bit of documentation. 

Mr. Bopp. Thank you. 
Mr. OWENS. Ms. Anne Cohn? 

STATEMENT OF ANN COHN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NATIONAL 
COALITION FOR THE PREVENTION OF CHILD ABUSE 

Ms. COHN. Congressman Owens, the Federal child abuse program 
is not a big one, averaging $24 to $25 million a year, but its accom­
plishments in the last 13 years have been quite substantial. In con­
trast to 1974, today we have a good sense of the size of the problem, 
we know a lot about the underlying causes, we are beginning to un­
derstand how to treat the problem and certainly how to prevent it, 
and there are literally thousands of professionals from a wide vari­
ety of disciplines now working in the field, but we haven't accom­
plished enough. 

Our knowledge still remains inadequate, particularly with re­
spect to the long-term consequences of treatment and prevention. 
There are no standards or generally accepted principles of practice 
in the field. There is no standardized method of data collection, 
particularly with respect to child abuse deaths. The Children's Pro­
tective Service System is literally on the verge of collapse, but to 
me most important when you look in relation to 13 years ago, it is 
not clear to me that we have seen any reduction in the size of the 
child abuse problem. In fact, there appears to be an increase in the 
number of child abuse deaths. 

Given this, I believe that as we continue the Federal child abuse 
program, which I hope we will do, we need to expand our emphasis 
on prevention as opposed to treatment or after-the-fact interven­
tion. There are several reasons why I think we ought to do this. 
The first is a humane one. It shouldn't hurt to be a child, and 
when we wait until abuse has occurred, we are letting children be 
hurt. But, second, there are very significant economic reasons 
which two Congressmen this morning already alluded to. 

We know that abused children suffer a wide variety of different 
kinds of emotional and developmental problems, and those prob­
lems may 'veIl lead to them having difficulties with the law as ju­
veniles, rulming away from home, problems with alcohol and 
drugs, even attempting, and sometimes successfully, to take their 
own lives; and then later on in life when they become narents 
themselves, getting involved not only in abuse of their chilu, ,n but 
possibly abuse of their spouses. 

I believe the only way we will see a reduction in the amount of 
child abuse is to focus on prevention. We have learned a lot about 
prevention in the last 18 years. We have learned a little bit about 
some of the kinds of interventions, but there is still a tremendous 
amount we need to know. 

We need to know about the relative effectiveness of different 
kinds of prevention strategie:,. We need to understand better what 
kinds of prevention strategies we ought to be putting into place for 
different kinds and types of child abuse. And, most significantly, 
we need some long-term studies that allow us to follow up people 
who have been in prevention programs for 5 years or longer, to 
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really measure whether or not these programs are making a differ­
ence. 

To do this, we need more money. To do this, we need the Federal 
challenge grant program for the Children's Trust Funds to contin­
ue, so that those Children's Trust Funds can grow stronger and can 
grow larger, and we also need a substantially larger proportion of 
the NCCAN dollars to go directly into the funding of prevention re­
search and demonstration programs. 

In addition to more money, which I think is quite important, we 
also need more leadership. We need more leadership from the Na­
tional Center on Child Abuse and Neglect. There are a number of 
specific areas where I think thin leadership can be tended to, and I 
have outlined them in my testimony. There are three that I would 
like to mention right now. 

First, I think that the National Center on Child Abuse and Ne­
glect now needs to begin to do some long-range planning. We know 
a tremendous amount more about this problem today than we did 
1:~ years ago, and it is time to stop funding programs from one year 
to the next, sprinkling money in various areas of interest, but to do 
so with a focus and to do so with a purpose and to do so with a 
direction, so we can move toward a day when we will actually see a 
reduction in the amount of child abuse. 

Second, I believe as the National Center sets about a course of 
long-range planning, I believe that they need now to seek more 
input from the field. Child abuse is a very complex problem. There 
are many different professionals, many different agencies involved. 
I think the National Center needs not only to rely on its Federal 
Advisory Board, which sadly at the moment only meets twice a 
year, but needs to look out at the other agencies and other pro­
grams in the field and to seek their input early on, before priorities 
have been established, before this long-range plan has been put 
into place. 

Then, finally, I think that the National Center needs greater vis­
ibility within the Government. To accomplish any plan to reduce 
child abuse, there is need for some power, some clout, some influ­
ence. NCCAN is buried, as you might well know, well into the bu­
reaucracy. It needs to be elevated. It needs a full-time director. It 
needs a well-qualified staff. It needs a chance to make a difference. 

In closing, let me just say that the National Child Abuse Coali­
tion, made up of 25 different national organizations, has outlined 
four specific recommendations for the continuation of the Federal 
Child Abuse Act. One is to extend the act for at least 4 or possibly 
5 years and, second, to make sure that the authorization level is 
increased to $50 million. 

Thank yOll. 
[The prepared statement of Anne H. Cohn follows:] 
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Presented Before The 
House Subcommittee on Select Education 

April 29, 1987 

By Anne H. cohn, D.P.H. 
National committee for Prevention of child Abuse 

I am pleased to present testimony which r hope will lead to 

the reauthori~ation of the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment 

Act of 1974 and to the strengthening of the National center on 

Child Abuse and Neglect (NCCAN). When the Act was first passed in 

1974, little was known about the child abuse problem. In fact, at 

congressional hearings leading to the enactment of the Child Abuse 

Act, the late Dr. C. Henry Kempe testified that there could be as 

many as 60,000 cases of child abuse. We now know the number of 

cases annually even at that time -- to be closer to one 

million. At that time an estimated lout of 10 adults had heard 

of the child abuse and neglect problem. Today, essentially all 

adults have heard of the problem; most are concerned and want to 

do something about it. In the short 13 years since the federal 

government shone a spotlight on the child abuse problem much has 

happened: 

- a cadre of thousands of professionals from law enforcement, 

social worle, medicine, public health, psychology and other 

fields have become actively involved 

- state children's protective service agencies have developed 

systems for identification, diagnosis and treatment of cases. 

- we have a better idea of the size of the problem 
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- we know a lot about the underlying causes of the different 

types of maltreatment 

we have a developing knowledge base about treatment 

- we have a sense of promising prevention programs 

- prevention activities have exploded -- support programs for 

new parents, prevention education for elementary school 

children and the like can be found in every community 

- 40 states now have Children's Trust Funds, spurred on by the 

national matching grant program 

- the public have become aware of the problem and the private 

sector has become involved 

- child abuse is recognized as a top social problem: 66% of 

the public say they as individuals can do things to prevent 

it; 23% say they did something in the last year. 

Much of this progress can be attributed directly to the 

existence of a federal child abuse program. However, despite all 

this progress, we face a number of significant problems: 

- the Child Protection service (CPS) system in many locations 

is in a state of what I would call collapse -- significant 

numbers of cases diagnosed as child abuse, for example, are 

opened up for treatment and never receive any and o"rious 

reabuse occurs 

- there are no standards or generally accepted principles of 

practice; as a result investigative, diagnostic and treatment 

practices across the country are quite inconsistent 

2 
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- we still know very little about the long term effec~s of 

treatment and prevention strategiee 

- the child abuse field remains relatively isolate~ from othe~ 

social problem areas -- such as family violence -- with which 

there are clear connections 

and most important, ther r does not appear to be any reduction 

in the amount of child abuse and indeed, the nlllnbe:t' of deaths 

due to child abuse appear to be increasing. (See Appendix) 

Today I would like to address the~e concsrns and why I think 

the reauthorization of the fedEIl:al Child Abt.ae and Neglect 

Treatment Act is vital, and how I think tha federal program can be 

strengthened so that, in turn, our efforts in the field can be 

more effective. 

child abuse is an extremely complex problem. Not only are 

the causes and consequences many, but so too are the types of 

agencies and professionala involved -- law enforcement, medicine, 

psychiatry and psychology, social work, public health and the list 

goes on. For well over a decade now a growing movement natlonwide 

has addressed the issue. And, a growing consensus appears to be: 

1) Child abuse is a problem which is not going a~: We 

have no reason to believe that the child abuse problem has gotten 

any smaller during the last decade, even though one study suggests 

that violence toward children in certain segments of the 

population (namely two-parent households) has diminished. Reports 

of child abuse continue to rise -- at a national average rate of 
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6% last year. And sadly, deaths due to child abuse and neglect 

seem to have increased 23% nationwide last year. It would appear 

that one million children are seriously abused and/or neglected 

each year and that at least 1,200 die as a result. 

2) our efforts must increasingly be on prevention: 

Preventio.1 is wOJ:thy of our primary focus for several reasons. 

First, it is humane. It does not make sense to wait until a child 

is hurt to do something. second, it is cost-effective. When we 

do wait until abuse has occurred and then intervene our success 

rates are low (less than 50%); the abuse continues as nationally 

we spend over $2 billion. Dollars are saved by intervening early 

so that children do not suffer severe emotional a~d developmental 

difficulties which can -- and often do -- lead to teenage 

runaways, school problems, juvenile delinquency, drug and alcohol 

abuse, teenage prosti tlltion and tragically , abusive behavior as a 

parent. The costs of these social problems are enormoUs and they 

could be avoided. 

Recent analyses of the cps system suggest that prevention is 

crucial to cut down on the n~mber of cases coming into the system 

so that those cases which are reported can receive quality 

diagnoses and treatment. Recent analyses of deaths due to child 

abuse suggest that prevention efforts beginning in the community 

are crucial to curbing the numbers. 

3) We have much to learn abo~t how to effectively prevent 

abuse: As we study the prevention literature and look for 

research that will survive close scientific scrutiny, we find few 
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studies which prove we can prevent child abuse (such as that by 

Dr. David Olds). There is a lot we know about the underlying 

causes of child abuse that points toward promising preventive 

strategies. Indeed, there are literally hundreds of different 

types of child abuse preventive programs now in place in 

communities across the country. We need well design~d, long-term 

evaluative studies of the various approaches to improve our 

knowledge base so that our preventive efforts can be focused on 

those strategies which are most effective. 

4) We have to focus our prevention efforts more: Most 

prevention approaches to date, with the exception of sexual abuse 

prevention education for children, have been relatively generic, 

e.g., have focused on the "child maltreatment problem" without 

specific attention to one type of abuse or another. Given the 

differences in the underlying causes of different t}~es of abuse 

and neglect, prevention s~rategies should also differ. For 

example, given thnt physical abusers so often lack parenting 

skills and know very little about child development, prevention 

should include parenting education and support p1:'ograms for new 

parents. with emotional or verbal abuse, parents seem to need to 

be made aware of the impact of their words, whereas with neglect, 

parents too often need changes in their enviro~ment better 

housing, jObS, more stable income. There is a need to test and 

measure different prevention strategies for different types of 

abuse. 
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5) We need more and longer term research on prevention: The 

only way to expand our knowledge about prevention is to commit 

more funds to prevention research. And, that research must be of 

such length (5 years) to allow for sUfficient follow up on program 

interventions to determine what their impacts truly are. with the 

exception of the alds study, prevention research has typically 

been 1-3 years in length. 

6) We need more funding for prevention: A total of 41 

states have created Children's Trust Funds. Another two have 

state-level prevention funding mechanisms. These are currently 

the only institutionalized funding sources for prevention and few 

of them are stable or significant in size. Last year, total 

funding nationwide from the mechanisms amounted to approximately 

$25 million. Slightly over 54 million was available through the 

federal challenge grant program and an additional slight amount 

through NCCAN grants. In contrast to the $2 billion plus spent on 

treatment, it is clear what a meager commitment we have made to 

prev~ntion. The public now seems to understand the importance of 

prevention. Most who work in the field acknowledge that the way 

to stop the problem is by focusing on prevention. It is time that 

the dollars followed suit; and most important dollars from that 

authorized for spending by NCCAN. In fact, perhaps the majority 

of NCCAN funds in the next 4-5 years should be used for prevention 

activities to assure significant breakthroughs in this area. 

7) We need more leadership from the federal government: 

NCCAN is the only opportunity the federal government has to 

6 
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address the issue of child abuse directly. Happily, the 

legislation creating NCCAN is currently crafted in such a way to 

allow NCCAN the flexibility to address the range of issues of high 

importance which arise in this field from year to year. Given the 

importance of the issue of child abuse and the relatively small 

amount of funds NCCAN has at its disposal, NCCAN must operate as 

effectively as possible, building on and working with other 

resources which exist in the field. 

It seems to me that, given the complexity of the problem and 

the variety of professions, agencies and interests involved, MCCAN 

should play a leadership role, it should be a catalyst, a beacon 

for action in this field. It is not that NCCAN should be making 

decisions for the field or even necessarily espousing specific 

positions on issues. Rather, NCCAN as a leader should facilitate 

decision making and discussion of issues and should help set 

directions for the field. And NCCAN should be an active partner 

with the field in a variety of critical activities. As examples 

of how NCCAN could serve as a leader over the next five years, the 

federal program would be strengthened if there were: 

a) More use of research findings: Since 1974, NCCAN has 

funded several hundred demonstration treatment programs and 

research programs Which have resulted in usef~l information. For 

example, over 80 of them have been subject to extensiv~ evaluative 

research. The findings across studies are consistent and useful. 

This is just one example of research findings gathered by MCCAN. 

And, as with most research findings, they haven't been used as 
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extensively as they might be. The findings from these studies are 

logical leads for subsequent stu.:ties ill the field. And states and 

local treatment facilities would benefit from knowing the 

conclusions of this work which NCLAN spent over $40 million on. 

They also offer unique methodologies which can be improved upon 

and used elsewhere. If NCCAN made the findings from these and 

other research and evaluation projects funded by NCCAN readily and 

regularly available to the field, we would m~ke more progress. 

b) More pUblicity of NCCAN's Clearinghouse: NCCAN has put 

literally millions of dollars into the development and maintenance 

of a clearinghouse on child abuse and neglect. The Clearinghouse 

features a computerized data base on key literature in the field 

and other important information. The only problem is few 

professionals working in the field know of the existence or 

capacity of the Clearinghouse because there has been little 

publicity about it. If professionals in the field do not know 

about the Clearinghouse, not only do they fail to use it, but they 

also do not let it know about their own work, Which 3akes th2 

Clearinghouse incomplete. Efforts should be made to publicize the 

ClE'aring'louse capability. 

C) More collaboration with other social problem fields: 

Family violence, drug abuse, alcoholism, juvenile delinquency all 

I'>~ve strong connections with child abuse. In fact, one often 

cannot address the child abuse problem without addressing some of 

these other issues. While NCCAN h3s, over the past 13 years, been 

involved in a variety of co?perativp- projects with groups such as 

8 



173 

the National Institutes of ~Iental Health, more can be done. 

NCCAN's cooperative ventures could serve as a model for state and 

local efforts to do the same. certainly in areas such as family 

violence, where the overlap of client families is substa .. tial, 

much collaborative work needs to be done. 

d) More attention to the development of standards in the 

field: currently several different nation~l organizations are 

setting about to develop standards of practice for their 

particular constituency in the field. Even the u.s. Surgeon 

General is working on the development of protocols for the field. 

The field has much to gain if these efforts were coordinated. If 

NCCAN helped to do so, the field \;ould benefit greatly. 

e) More attention to the collapse of cps: As reports of 

child abuse have climbed during the last decade, funding for 

Children's Protective services has not increased at the same rate. 

Consequently, CPS systems, particularly those in urban areas, 

appear overburdened, overwhelmed and essentially on the verge of 

,ollapse. Many states have established task forces to respond to 

,:lS problem. Some national organizations, such as the American 

Public Welfare Association, has gotten involved as well. If NCCAN 

helped to lead these efforts, minimally facilitating communication 

among the various groups struggling with this problem, NCCAN would 

be seen as a resource the states can draw on and progress would be 

hastened. 

f) MPre gathering of national data including full fundi~ 

£be only national data base: For a decade now, NCCAN has funded a 
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national reporting data study which gathers information on child 

abuse reports from all 50 states. This is the only national data 

base in the field. Although nc.t a perfect data base, it does 

provide important trend information on the types of child abuse 

cases being handled nationwide. In the past year, NCCAN cut the 

funciing of this national data gathering effort substantially. The 

result? The study may now only analyze data in depth from a 

maximum of five states. such analyses have little utility. If 

anything, this is a study which should receive more funding .. 0 

that it can work on perfecting its weaknesses and it could, for 

example, gather data nationally on child abuse-related deaths. 

The federal government in other areas has long played a role ir. 

measuring society's economic, social and health well being. So 

too must it be the case with child abuse. A million dollar 

incidence study funded by NCCAN every 5-10 years is important, 

too. But, it must not take the place of this t~ends data 

particularly since this trends data provides crucial insight into 

what is happening with CPS across the country. The solution, 

clearly, is to reinstate full funding for this study and put 

energy behind making this study as useful as possible. 

g) More support of staff: The people who work ~lithin NCCAN 

have not been allowed to become professionals in the field. They 

are not allowed to travel, ~o go to conferences, to educate 

themselves about what's going on. This is a fast moving, rapidly 

changing field. Its hard to be isolated or removed from the field 

and provide any guidance or leadership to the f:!.eld. A priority 
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for NCCAN should be for its staff to be fully up-to-,iate on 

developments in 'the field, to be, in fact, experts to whom the 

field would turn. 

Addressing thecle areas of concern should result in a National 

center which well serves the field. But more could be done to 

enhance NCCAN's leadership role, including: 

- Improve the visibility of NCCAN not only within the federal 

governmant but nation~lly as well: NCCAN not only needs its 

own full time director, it needs a clear and distinct 

position within the federal government so it is not 

overshadowed by or melded in with other equally important 

programs. 

- Expand opportunities for the field to advise NCCAN on the 

directions it should take and to work in partnership with 

NCCAN: NCCAN needs an active partnership with its Advisory 

committee as well as with liaisons from the states and the 

many other organizations working in the field -- such as the 

members of the National Child Abuse coalition --to assure 

that as new issues emerge in the field, NCCAN can and does 

address them. 

- Do some long range planning to set an agenda for itself and 

in turn for the field: NCCAN's programs and priorities from 

year to year should be related to a long range plan. Rather 

than develop annual research and program priorities in a 

vacuum, they could be related to longer term concerns. 

11 
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Research activities, drawn from such a plan, could lead to 

demonstration programs -- so we can try out the ideas we 

learn from research. The public's opportunity to comment on 

annual priorities is very important. As NCCAN does long 

range planning, the field should be able to comment n these 

plans as well. 

The problem of child maltreatment will not be solved by laws 

alone. state governmental programs will not be enough to reduce 

the numbers of children who are abused and neglected. Private 

agencies at the local, state and national level have important 

roles to play. So, too, does the federal government. Through the 

vehicle of the National Center on Child Abuse and Neglect, it 

malees good sense to work toward a federal program which is as 

effective as possible. 

Reauthorization Issue& 

Beyond these opportunities for strengthening NCCAN's 

leadership position, there are some issues basic to the 

legislation itself which we hope will be addressed during the 

reauthorization process. The following basic positions have been 

adopted by the National Child Abuse coalition, an informal 

coalition of 25 major national organizations concerned with child 

abuse. Those positions include: 

(1) Extend P.L. 93-247 for an additional five years. (This 

program has proven its importance; the child abuse problem 

will not diminish in the near term. with longer term 
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certainty, the program could do separately needed long range 

planning.) 

(2) Increase authorized funding to $50 million for FY 88. 

(Authorization for FY 87 is at $43.1 and appropriations are 

at $25.898 million.) Not only should the authorization be 

increased to reflect the importance of this problem, but the 

appropriations must be at the full authorization levels. 

(3) Amend the grant years limit from three years to five years to 

promote long-term research. (We remain handicapped by our 

lack of knowledge about the long term effects of both 

treatment and prevention programs. Longer term research is 

essential.) 

(4) Do not expand the responsibilities of NCCAN more than the 

definitions of child abuse currently in the law. (NCCAN'S 

responsibilities are already extensive. Successes with the 

charges NCCAN has will only be possible if NCCAN can remain 

focused.) 

In sum the National center on Child Abuse and Neglect should 

be a leader for the field, providing guidance and coordination on 

issues which emerge in the field while pursuing a thoughtful plan 

of research and demonstration. The issue of child abuse is too 

important for the federal government to do anything but give this 

program prominence and priority. In reauthorizing the Child Abuse 

Prevention and Treatment Act I hope it will be possible to 

identify ways to strengthen this essential program. 

Thank you. 
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APPENDIX 

Inc~ease in Child Abuse Deaths 

since 1982, the National committee for Prevention of Child 

Abuse (NCPCA) has conducted a semi-annual fifty state survey in 

order to monitor trends in the number and characteristics of child 

abuse reports nationwide and in the funding and scope of child 

welfare services. Twice a year, the federal government's liaison 

officer for child abuse and neglect in each state is contacted by 

telephone and asked a series of questions with respect to child 

abuse reports as well as other issues of concern to the field. In 

our most recent round of telephone calls to the states, we 

gathered, among other things, information on reports of child 

abuse-related deaths during 1986. 

By March, 1987, 34 states were able to provide actual 

comparable figures for 1985 and 1986 with respect to reports of 

child abuse-related deaths. Overall, for these 34 states, 727 

children were reported dead ~s a result of child abuse; this 

repres~nts a 23% increase between 1985 and 1986. (A report 

released by NCPCA earlier this year cited an increase of 29% based 

on 24 states.) We now project at least 1,200 children died last 

year as a result of maltreatment. The actual number could exceed 

this projection, given that (a) a number of states only count 

those deaths which occur in cases being handled by the child 

Protective service agency and, (b) a number of child abuse-
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related deaths are not reported as such but are labeled as sudden 

infant death syndrome (SIDS) or some other category. 

Approximately half of the fatalities involved physical abuse. 

In some instances, death was the cumulative result of repeated, 

severe beatings while in other cases death resulted from a single 

violent episode. The other half of the victims died as a result 

of child neglect, most often because parents failed to provide 

adequate supervision. While we do not have detailed data on those 

children who died in 1986, studies suggest at most 75% of the 

victims of child abuse deaths are one year or younger, and they 

are more likely children of younger caretakers. 

Although only an estimate, we felt that the magnitude of this 

increase was striking enough to warrant serious attention. Of 

course, of initial concern was Whether this increase may reflect a 

mor~ accurate reporting system. While the increase is consistent 

with current trends in infant mortality rates and levpls of 

serious family violence and violent crimes, we felt it would be 

important to know what the states felt the cause of the increase 

was -- better recor6 keeping or other social or systems problems. 

To this end, on March 19, 1987 we held a meeting in Washington, 

D.C. to discuss the reported increase in the number of child abuse 

fatalities. Representatives from all fifty states ~ere invited to 

attend. 1 Acr.ording to the individuals present at the meeting, 

1 states and organizations sending representatives 
included: California, connecticut, Delaware, Georgia, Illinois, 
Maryland, Massachusetts, Minnesota, Missouri, Montana, New Jersey, 
pennsylvania, South carolina, Texas, Utah, West Virginia, American 
Humane Association, Child Welfare League of America, National 
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(and the states with the most significant increases were present) 

the increase ca;lnot be attributed solely to more accurate 

identification systems. Most of the states reported that their 

statutes pertaining to the identification of fatalities have been 

in place for a number of years. And the numbers remain under 

counts of child abuse deaths in part because some unknown number 

of child abuse deaths get labeled as SIOS cases. Therefore, with 

a few notable exceptions, ~hese numbers regrettably reflect an 

actual increase in the number of children dying as a result of 

maltreatment. 

with a consensus on the reality of this statistic, the group 

identified some of the underlying causes contributing to the 

increase in child fatalities. Three major themes were evident 

among the reasons for the increase: (1) growing social problems, 

(2) problems within the current child protective service 

structure, and (3) the lack of a coordinated effort among the 

other systems dealing with children. 

Several of the state representatives, particularly those from 

the nation's largest urban areas, indicated that growing drug 

problems, higher rates of teenage pregnancy, and poverty in 

general appear to have contributed to an increase in child deaths 

due to maltreatment. States reported seeing a higher number of 

very severe cases, particularly among families involved in child 

Association of Publlc Child Welfare Administrators (APWA), 
National Association of Social Workers, Parents Anonymous, 
National Child Abuse Coalition and National committee for 
Preventi~n of child Abuse. 
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neglect. While not all states identified teenage parents as being 

more likely than older parents to harm their children, the limited 

resources in single parent, female headed households appear to 

contribute to a higher risk that the child may experience serious 

harm. Also, households which have a number of adults moving in 

and out present more volatile and potentiallY dangerous situations 

for children. 

outside of these social issues, the shortcomings within the 

child protective service agencies may also contribute to an 

increase in certain deaths. 2 Participants cited an inadequate 

level of available resources, resulting in the number of child 

protection workers being too small ~o handle the volume of 

reported cases. Overburdened with heavy caseloads, the workers 

devote so much time to the initial investigations that they are 

unable to adequately follow-up and monitor families once they are 

on the caseload. When families are identified and labeled as 

abusive and do not receive direct services, the children become 

even more vulnerable. Because of the unu3ually high turnover rate 

among child protective service workers, caseworkers are responding 

to reports without having been given sufficient training in crisis 

intervention. Neither schools of social work nor CPS agencies 

have taken the initiative to provide the workers with the skills 

necessary to be effective child protectiv~ service workers. It is 

also important to point out that some number o{ the child abuse 

2. It is important to note that between 25% to 50% of child 
abuse deaths involve children reported to local children's 
protective service agencies prior to their death. 
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information they need and all the service support their caseloads 

require. The failure to interpret child protection as a community 

problem and a shared responsibility was another proble~ discussed 

at the meeting. The lack of a coordinated effort among law 

enforcement, juvenile court judges, medical professionals, 

coronArs, and other public health officials necessitates CPS 

workers having to make decisions without all the facts. By 

failing to respond or offer help initially, these professionals as 

well as members of the community do not leave time for the 

protective service agency to adequately deal with their cases. 

A number of crucial issues emerged from the discussion which 

must be addressed by individual states and the field in general: 

- How to achieve better, more coordinated nation-wide data 

collection which reflects the total number of deaths 

including those now counted as SIDS deaths or those not 

counted at all. 

- How to facilitate obtaining and monitoring the details 

surrounding a child's death so we can learn more about 

prevention. 

- How to educate the public on the severity and impact of child 

neglect as well as physical abuse as triggers of child abuse 

deaths. 

- How to provide better training and working conditions for CPS 

workers to avert child abuse deaths. 

- How to put into place an improved diagnosis and screening 

eystem to assure that families at risk do get support. 
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- How to encourage and train social work students to go into 

the field of child abuse prevention and treatment. 

- How to best apply permanency planning guidelines in reducing 

a child's risk for serious abuse. 

- How to plan and implement an expanded child protection system 

which involves the community in preventive activities. 

Consensus at this meeting was that we lleed ~ national 

gathering soon of all 50 states and those studying child abuse 

deaths to spend more time pooling our knowledge and identifying 

solutions to the above. The National Committee for Prevention of 

Child Abuse along with other members of the National child Abuse 

Coalition will hold such a meeting within the next four months. 

There is tremendous enthusiasm from the states and a number 

of private agencies for the action now being taken with respect to 

child abuse deaths. collectively, I believe that there is a sense 

of relief that we are finally addressing this issue as both a 

state and a national concern. 
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STATEMENT OF DR. DAVID CHADWICK ON BEHALF OF THE 
AMERICAN ACADEMY OF PEDIATRICS AND THE WESTERN AS­
SOCIATION OF CHILDREN'S HOSPITALS 

Dr. CHADWICK. I am David Chadwick. I am a pediatrician. I am 
the director of the Center for Child Protection, which is a part of 
the Children's Hospital in San Diego. I am here representing the 
American Academy of Pediatrics and the Western Association of 
Children's Hospitals, and our written statement has been submit­
ted. 

I do child abuse work. I have been a pediatrician all my life, and 
for the last 2 years I have done child abuse work full time. I have 
always seen abused children. I document their abuse. I confirm it. I 
go to court about it. On Friday I will go to court on an infimticide 
case in a nearby county, and I do that about every month. I have 
been to court about 250 times on child abuse cases, and perhaps 20 
of those have been fatal cases. 

At this point I want to say that dealing with child abuse and the 
criminal justice system is a lot like treating heart disease using 
CPR. It is late. It is a late approach. You have to do it. You can't 
refrain from doing it. You can't stop doing it, but you have to rec­
ognize that you are coming in at a terrible stage of the game. It is 
ineffective, inhumane, and it is certainly not cost-effective. 

A similar thing is true of putting children out of their homes in 
order to interrupt abuse. That is not quite as late as dealing with a 
death or dealing with a criminal situation but it is also late in the 
game, typically, by the time a child has to go out of home, and ear­
lier interventions must be sought. 

Ann has told you that we do know something about prevention. 
We know quite a lot about it. We don't :really know how to prevent 
child abuse across the board but we have a handle on that. We 
have a beginning. Our efforts thus far have been micro efforts. We 
have demonstrated the preventability of abuse on a tiny scale. We 
need to begin to enlarge that. When I say that, we have done that 
for physical abuse and neglect and we are beginning to do it for 
sexual abuse with the school-based prevention programs and the 
early treatment of victim perpetrators. We need some carefully de­
signed, medium-scale field trials of these early methods that have 
worked. 

We need some long-term projects. You are dealing with some­
thing that is generational, that goes on and on. It is ingrained. To 
deal with it in short-term projects tends to be frustrating because 
you never really learn what the outcomes are for the people that 
you are looking at. 

I think the heart disease analogy is pretty good. I think child 
abuse tends to be a cataclysmic event, superimposed on a chronic 
and visible dysfunctional process that is going on and on and on. 
Unless you can understand how that process works and intervene 
before the abusive event occurs, you are never going to be effective. 

I do believe that we need more of a health science approach. I 
guess that's natural. I am a doctor. I don't think you can throw out 
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justice and social services. We couldn't possibly deal with child 
abuse in any other way than what we are right at the moment, be­
cause the cases are upon us and they must be dealt with, but I do 
think we need more of a health science approach. I would like to 
see a health science present in the National Center for Child Abuse 
and Neglect. 

Last year Dr. Koop reached out and said that violence is a public 
health problem. He is absolutely right. All kinds of violence, in­
cluding child abuse and other forms of family violence, are includ­
ed in that statement. 

I am going to get done and leave an extra minute for somebody. 
I strongly urge you to reauthorize the NCCAN at the $50 million 

level suggested. Let me just say that if you talk about the thing 
that we are all most interested in, which is money, the out-of-home 
placement budget for the State of California is pushing toward 
$500 million a year. California is about a tenth of the United 
States, so it is $5 billion or so for all of the United States, so the 
NCCAN budget is 1 percent of that, but we are talking about au­
thorization. We are not talking about real money because they will 
get 60 percent of that, so that puts things in perspective for you in 
terms of the money that we might bra spending. Reauthori~e it, 
push it up, increase the health component, increase prevention, in­
crease long-te.rm projects. Or, if you like spending money ineffec­
tively, we can just keep doing what we are doing. 

I would like to conclude by inviting any Californians en your 
committee, none of whom are present, or any of you for that 
matter, to come and see us, see how we work, visit us in the field to 
get a better idea of how this works. 

Thank you. 
[The prepared statement of Dr. David L. Chadwick follows:] 
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Mr. Chairman, I am David Chadwick, Director of the Center for Child Prot,ection, 
San Diego Children's Hospital and Health Center and a member of' the American 
AcadelDY of Pediatrics Task l"orce on Child Abuse nnd Neglect. I am here today on 
behalf of the Academy and the Western Associat1on of Children's Hospitals. 

At the outset I want to commend you, Mr. Chairman, for convening this hearing 
today. Child maltreatment is clearly one of the most difficult issues facing 
our children and our society. Despite the public debate and rhetoric about 
child abuse, it appears too few truly appr~ciate the ramifications of the abuse 
and neglect of our children. Child abuse pervades many of our major societal 
problems. A high proportion of delinquents, sUbstance abusers and suicide 
victims are the victims of abuse. Moreover, the problem is self perpetuating. 
Without treatment and attention, abused children are more likely to abuse their 
offspring, and so the cycle continues. On the positive side, we know much more 
abnut how to treat children and how to prevent certain forms of abuse. 
Tragically, we have just begun to implement what we know, so that abused 
children still are never identified; others are never treated -- we fear that 
many die. 

My testimony today will review 1) the nature and scope of the problem of child 
abuse and neglect; 2) problems and developments in child abuse and neglect 
within the past five years; 3) the role and effectiveness of the National Center 
on Child Abuse and Neglect (NCCAlI); 4) the import of the "Baby Doe" language; 
and 5) recommendations for reauthorization. 

t. CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT: NATURE AND SCOPE OF THE PROBLEM 

Child abuse and neglect is not a single entity. 1. therefore demands a multidis­
ciplinary strategy. The problem includes physical abuse, sexual abuse, emotional 
abuse, physical neglect, emotional neglect, and medical neglect as well as othel' 
entities such as poisoning, sexual exploitation and homicide. Child abuse and 
neglect is an international problem; it crosses all socio-economic lines. 
Although physical abuse seems to be more prevalent among those in lower socio­
economic strata, sexual anu emotional abuse seem to be equally prevalent in all 
groups. 

" I.ast ycar approximately 2 million cases 01' child abuse and neglect were 
reported. This figure does not include the 2,000 - 5,000 deaths which were 
probably the result of abuse and neglect. Unfortunately, as I will discuss 
later in my testimony, exact figures on child abuse and neglect are impossible 
to obtain for we do not have a gOOd reliable incidence study on the problem. 
Nevertheless, these numbers are a good benchmark as to the scope of the problem 
and the resulting crisis in terms of unmet needs and demands on child protective 
service workers. 
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II. POSITIVE TRENDS 1981-198~ 

In the past five years we have witnessed a dramatic change in puolic, private 
and professional awareness of child abuse and neglect. As the House Select 
Committee on Children, Youth and Familjes recently published report concludes, 
we expect much of this increased attention is due to "rediscovery" of child 
sexual abuse. I emphasize "rediscovery" since the first report in the medical 
literature on sexual abuse was in an 1868 paper by a French physician, Ambroise 
Tardieu, who described his findings after evaluating 616 sexually abused 
children under age 11 in Paris. 

On the positive side, as noted, there clearly is an increased public awareness 
of the problem of child abuse and neglect. All fifty states have passed 
reporting laws and protections for families against abuse of their rights and 
privacy. Many states have provisions for guardians ad litem for children 
including protective court cases and support for identifiable child protective 
services at the local level. We hdve advanced our knowledge about child 
maltreatment and developed effective programs, approaches and practices. 
Notably, our research and evaluation efforts have become more sophisticated &nd 
confirm that we do know how to prevent and to treat the most prevalent forms of 
abuse. Federal efforts, particularly during the past two years, have dramati­
cally improved also. While inadequate authorities and fundings continue, the 
new direction taken by the Children's Bureau and the National Center on Child 
Abuse and Neglect is excellent. New program initiatives in interdisciplinary 
training, national resource centers, hetter coordination between state child 
protective services (CPS) agencies and mental health and law enforcement systems 
are commendable. Indeed with the help of the National Committee for the 
Prevention of Child Abuse, the National Child Abuse Coalition and many state and 
local groups, 38 states have now enacted children's trust funds to focus addi­
tional resources on prevention. We are confident these efforts will begin to 
yield positive results in the next decade. . 

Concomitant with the increase in public awareness, there has been a healthy 
surge in professional awareness. The AAP, AMA, American Psychological 
ASSOCiation, American Academy of Child Psychiatry, National Association of 
Social Workers, Child Welfare League, NAPCWA and many others have formed task 
forces or committees to plan how to contribute to the solutions to our problems. 
Further, an increasing number of our students are taking electives and doing 
their doctoral training in the field of child abuse and neglect. These men and 
Women have grown up in a time when abuse and neglect were regular media fare. 
Unlike their older mentors, they do not have to redo their basic education and 
overcome a long history of denial of the existence of the problem, 

III. ADVERSE TRENDS 1981-1986 

Nevertheless, there is still cause for great concern. Although we have made 
progress in our knowledge about the causes, consequences and treatment needs of 
abusod children and their families, further progress in actual prevention and 
treatment has been stalled. 
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1. Repo .. t.ing 

Ove .. all .. epo .. t.s of child abuse and neglect. have increased by 55 percent 
within t.he last. five years; although for t.he first time last year, the 
rate of increase in sexual abuse caSes declined. The Nat.ional Center on 
Child Abuse su .. vey concludes that the 2 million reports of child 
maltreatment in 1986 represent a 6 percent. increase from 1985. This 
increase is wall below the 10 percent increase between 1984 and 1985 as 
reported by the American Association for P .. otecting Children, a division 
of the American Humane Association. The Center cautions that thi~ 
apparent decline in the rate needs t.o be interpreted cautiously since 
these numbers were based on projections for 33 st.at.es during t.he initial 
six mont.hs of the year. 

Nevertheless, the overall increase in report.s comes at a time when the 
Stat.e Child Protective Service Agencies are struggling t.o survive against. 
budget reduct.ions and a manpowe .. shortage. Consequently, as the CPS 
syst.em's ability to keep pace has lagged, the number of "unsubstantiated" 
reports has increased. Some have w"ongly equated "unsubst.ant.iated" with 
"false". Thus, it has been said that 60-65 percent of all repo,'ts to CPS 
agencies are false, when, in fact, many of t.hese cases are inadequately 
evaluated because of staff shortages 0 .. insufficient. time. We should no 
more label these cases as "false" than we should label them "t .. ue". They 
should be labelled "insufficient information". 

As .. epo .. ts have inc .. eased, so too have false allegations of abuse, espe­
cially in the a .. ea of sexual abuse, involving custody disputes. ca .. eful 
stUdies have shown that while false allegations exist they a .. e mo .. e com­
monly instigated by adults (6.5 pe .. cent of .. epo .. ted cases) than children 
(1.5 pe .. cent of repo .. ted cases). It is, in fact, not t .. ue to say 
"child .. en never lien -- they do, but more commonly they lie when they 
have been questioned and say they have not been sexually abused, but we .. e 
(4 pe .. cent), than when they say they were sexually abused, and we .. e not 
(1.5 percent). It is even mo .. e common for children never to .. eveal 
sexual abuse. 

2. Child Treatment Issues 

No .. have government agencies mandated to provide services and treat 
abused child .. en and thei .. families been able to keep pace with the su .. ge 
in repo .. ted cases. The cu .... ent child protective se .. vices system, 
although required by state law to p"ovide "t .. eatment plans" to families, 
falls far sho .. t of its goals. For example, .. ecent surveys shaw that 
mental health services for abused child .. en barely exist in many places. 
The treatment plans fa .. abusive families consist of a series of 5-10 
"parenting classes," a weekly phone call and a monthly visit from a CPS 
worker. Those families whose children have been molested in day care, 
school 0" other institutional settings .. eceive even less help. 

Additionally, community mental health and private community centers are 
full due t.o the deinstitutionalization of the ch .. onically mentally ill. 
Our failure to meet the needs of these child .. en and thei .. families will 

80-390 0 - 88 - 7 
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dramatically impact on present as well as future generations. For 
despite other efforts, the best way to break the cycle of abuse and 
neglect is to treat its current victims. 

3. Child Fatalities 

An extremely alarming trend has been the recent increase in child abuse 
fatalities. The National Committee for the Prevention of Child Abuse 
found a 29 percent increase in the number of confirmed or suspected 
deaths due to maltreatment between 1985 and 1986 fer the 24 states able 
to provide such numbers. Between 1984 and 1985 the number of child 
deaths declined by 2 percent. The Committee found for many of these 
children, death occurred after the child was reported to local child 
protective services agencies. In some cases, the children died in 
protective custody as a result of abuse or neglect by their foster 
parents or emergency care providers. 

It is not clear what has caused this increase. At least 3 possibilities 
exist: 

1) We know there is a relationship between unemployment and serious 
physical abuse of children. At a 1983 Congressional hearing in 
Salt Lake City, data was presented from the Child Protection Team 
in Denver which demonstrated that physical abuse cases rose and 
fell in parallel with the Colorado unemployment rate over a 14 
year period. The data from the past three years extends and 
confirms toe earlier association. 

2) The diagnosis of a child abuse fatality requires a careful 
investigation and an autopsy. In many parts of the United 
States, children die, they are buried, no one examines the body, 
and the death certificate is labelled "unexplained", "natural 
causes" or SIns (Sudden Infant Death Syndrome). This practice 
is, happily, decreasing as more cities and counties pull together 
multidisciplinary child death review committees. The increase in 
child abuse fatalities may be a component of better recognition. 
Unfortunately no one tracks these data. 

3) The changing demography of the American family has led to more 
children being left in unsafe settings by teenage or working 
mothers. Many child abuse deaths are now caused by boyfriends or 
oth~r caretakers in contrast to the situation 20 years ago. 

This lack of certainty in knowing why child abuse fatalities are rising 
points toward another disturbing problem: the fact that data collection 
in this field is terrible. Indeod, efforts to monitor trends for 
research or policy purposes are severely hampered by the continuing lack 
of reliable data in this field. While our government carefully tracks 
our labor force, agricultural and industrial production, imports and 
exports with great care, no one tracks our children. 
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4. Children with Disabilities 

There are 2 issues of great concer .. regarding abuse and children with 
dl.sabilities: 1) the degree to which children with disabilities are 
being abused; and 2) the number of children who have acquired 
disabilities because of abuse. 

Research has acknowledged that children with disabilities represent a 
disproportionate number of child abuse victims (Chotiner and Lehr, 1916; 
Friedrick amd Boreskine, 1916; National Center on Child ~buse and 
Neglect, 1915; Sandgrund, et aI, 1914.) Other isolated stUdies have 
indicated a relationship between child abuse, mental retardation, 
emotional, behavioral and physical disabilities. In a recent study, 
Diamond and Jaudes (1983) examined the occurrence of child abuse among 
86 children with cerebral palsy. or 18 children with postnatal onset 
of cerebral palsy, eight resulted from child abuse, five from infection, 
and three frnm accidents. Nine other children were abused after the 
onset of cerebral palsy, and one child was abused after the onset of 
cerebral palsy which resulted from prior abuse. Thus, in this study, 
20$ of the children with cerebral palsy were abused. Another 14$ were 
considered at risk for abuse. 

Despite theue findings, it is difficult to determine accurately the 
incidence of abuse among children with disabilities because of the lack 
of specificity in state repDrting requirements. cambll.n (1982) found 
that seven out of 51 state child protection agencies do not have standard 
reporting forms which would facilitate data collection in child charac­
teristics. Of the 44 states that do have standar'd reporting forms, 18 do 
not identify pre-existing handicaps of abused children. Further, Camblin 
found that in those states requiring this information, 43~ of the state 
agencies regarded the information as inaccurate. 

It is important to note, as the PACER group concluded, that ch!ldren 
with disabilities are at high risk for child abuse for a number of 
reasons. These children are generally less able to defend themselves 
physically. Some children with disabilities may be unaware that they are 
being abused as they are unable to differentiate between appropriate 
and inappropriate behavior. Some of these children may be less able to 
articulate the instance of abuse. 

In conclusion, it appears some children with disabilities are at high risk 
for abuse. Emphasis should be placed on collecting reliable nationwide 
data on the incidence and needs of children with disabilities ,who are 
abused, as well as training programs for parents and all personnel who 
deal with these children to prevent and to treat such abuse. 

[Material for this aection was excerpted f'rom the Couno11 on Exceptional 
Children briefing paper on Incidence of Child Abuse Amone Childrp.n 
With Disabilities.) 
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IV. THr: NATIONAL CENTER ()~~I!.ND NEGLECT (NCCAN) 

The National Center on Child Abuse and Neglect was founded in 1974. The origi­
nal law called for NCCAN to: 1) compile, analyze and publish a summary annually 
af recently and currently conducted research on child abuse and neglect; 2) 
develop and maintain an information clearinghouse on all programs, including 
private programs, showing promise of success for the prevention, identification 
and treatment of child abuse and neglect; 3) compile and publish training 
materials for personnel who are engaged or intend to engage in the prevention, 
identification and treatment of child abuse Bnd neglect; 4) provide technical 
assistance (directly or through grant or contract) to public and non-profit 
private agencies and organizations to assist them in planning, improving, 
developing and carrying out programs and activities relating to the prevention, 
identification and treatment of child abuse and neglect; 5) conduct research 
into the causes of child abuse and neglect and into the prevention, identifi­
cation and treatment thereof; and 6) make a complete and full study and 
investigation of the national incidence of child abuse and neglect, including a 
determination of the extent to which incidents of child abuse and neglect are 
increasing in number or severity. 

As you are aware, the Center's responsibilities have been expanded since that 
time to include an emphasis on sexual abuse, family violence prevention and 
se"vices, and promotion of children's trust funds. As you are also well aware, 
funding for this agency has never approached needed levels. 

The Academy and WATCH believes that the Center is extremely important if we are 
to build a strolg federal presence in the field of child abuse and neglect. 
Indeed there is no question that compared with years prior to 1973, there is 
more of a federal effort in child abuse and neglect. Although we have been cri­
tical of the Center in the past, we are very pleased with the directions 
currently being pursued by the NCCAN and the Children's Bureau. Nevertheless, 
there is an urgent need for a stronger, federal effort in the area of child 
maltreatment. Several of these issues demand Congressional support and atten­
tion: 

1. National Incidence Study 

The first national incidence study mandated by law WilS poorly conceived. Rather 
than utilize the expertise of other federal agencies, such as the National Centel' 
for Health Statistics, the Census Bureau and tbe national Centers for Disease 
Control, the study done under contract to NCCAN used figures voluntarily 
submitted by the states -- a notoriously poor method of data collection. The 
study, therefore, has led to the impression that child abuse and negl~ct is 
primarily a problem of the poor and tends to understate the severity of the 
problem. Sexual abuse also has been grossly underreported in this study. 

2. Research efforts 

Despite the fact that research on prevention and demonstration programs is one 
of toe NCCAN's primary aims, in a 1983 review article in Child Abuse and 
Neglect: The International Journal, Ray Helfer was able only to cite three 
studies that were adequately controlled in the research area in the last 10 
years. One of these was privately supported, and the other two were supported 
by the NCCAN. 
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Nor has the research effort funded by NCCAN reflected the multidisciplinary 
nature of the field. Ralher it has focused primarily on the social aspects of 
the problem 4ith little attention focused on the pediatric, psychiatric or 
epldemiologl~ aspects of child abuse and neglect. The Center has failed to 
develop interagency efforts with NIMH, NICHD or CDC which would have served 
to multiply the impact of research efforts. Unfortunately, these other agencies 
involved with ch ld abuse and neglect systematicallY decided not to fund 
related projects, assuming the NCCAN's leadership. As a result we are years 
behind in our research, prevention and treatment efforts. 

It is perhaps our greatest concern that the most important research question 
what is the natural history of abused children -- h·JS never been addressed 
adequately. We do not know h",., many of these childl'en grow up and abuse or 
neglect their own children, or how many are appropriately treated and continue 
on to lead non-abusin~ lives. The Center has been curtailed in its ability to 
pursue this. ObViously, the results of such a study would dramatically affect, 
if not alter, our prevention and treatment efforts. However, to be done well 
such a study will demand a collaborative and multidisciplinary approach. 

3, Manpower 

,nere is a great need for increased federal l~adership in the development of 
programs to help meet the desperate need of state and local child protective 
service'" agencies as they stagger under the weight of enormous increases in the 
repol·ting of cases of child abuse and neglect b:' an increasingly aware public. 
Our perception is that there is an even greater crisis in child protective 
service professionals than existed 20 years ago with the lack of primary care 
physicians. At that time the government recognized the need to develop 
incentives and training programs for family physicians, pediatricians and other 
primary care specialties to meet an unmet and growing need. The crisis today 
for child protective service worlcers is even greater. Schools of social work do 
little to train peoplJ in child protective services; thus most of these workers 
are t~alned on the job. There is also an enormous shortage in mental health 
professionals and child therapists. It is interesting to note that the 
Depart~ent of Justice has recognized this problem and is encouraging district 
attorneys to work collaboratively with social work and mental health. 

4. Administrative Standing 

As you know, the National Center on Child Abuse and Neglect is buried within 
the enormous bureaucracy of the Department of Health and Human Services. 
The NCCAN's present position beneath the Office of Human Development Services, 
Administration on Child youth and ~amilies and the Children's Bureau .. seve~ely 
inhibits the Center's ability to develop appropriate collaboration with other 
federal agencies, e.g. NIMH, NICHD, Office of Maternal and Child Health, Head 
Start, Run Away Youth and Social Services and the CDC. ~urther, the Center's 
lack of authority seems to have decreased over the pas~ several years as the 
Office of Assistant Secretary has assumed even greater responsibility for this 
area and has attempted to merge the Center's activities into the overall agenda 
for the Office of Human Development Services. This continued layering of 
bureaucracy and authority has exacerbated the Center's inability to achieve its 
goals, as each decision must be cleared and approved by three offices. 
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v. "BABY OOC;" 

As you are well aware, the 198~ reauthorization of the federal child abuse law 
Was dominated by debate surrounding treatment issues for seriously ill newborns, 
the so-called "Baby Doe" issue. After two years of intense controversy and 
debate, nearly twenty organizations, representing health, disability and anti­
abortion issues, and 7 key Senators agreed to language in ti1e child abuse law 
pertaining to treatment for disabled infants. Specifically the law expanded the 
definition of medical neglect to include a new category entitled the withholding 
of medically indicated treatment from disabled infants. The definltion 
described the parameters within which the withholding of treatment, other than 
appropriate nutrition, hydration and medication, was appropriate, as defined by 
reasonable medical judgements. The law required states to establiSh procedures 
to respond to this category of medical neglect, including identification of a 
key contact person in the hospitals, and legal authority to pursue these issues 
as necessary. Compliance with these requirements is necessary for states to 
receive their share of federal child abuse funds. 

A review of state procedures shows that with the exception of California, 
Pennsylvania and Indiana (the latter two have not taken the federal monies for 
several years due to legislative issues) all the states enacted procedures which 
call for immediate or high priority response to such calls. The special "'onies 
to help states establish these procedures were used primarily for parent and CPS 
'Iorker education courses and to pay for medical consultants. Of note, not all 
the states used, or needed the monies to respond to the new requirements. It 
must be recalled that the language was intended to build onto existing state 
procedures and not establish a new CPS system. Thus for some states monies were 
not required. This does not mean these states were not interested in the issue 
or failed to comply. 

The law also encouraged the creation of hospital review committees to help 
parents with these difficult decisions. Although such committees were not 
mandated, it is significant that according to a recent survey which the AcademY 
pursued with the Connecticut Research and Training Center for Pediatric 
Rehabilitation, University of Connecticut Health Center, most hospitals have or 
are in the process of establishing such commit. tees • Hospitals surveyed were 
those with neonatal intensive care units or over 1500 live births annually. The 
survey reveals two other significant points: 1) committees have been used 
actively by hospitals; and 2) many of the hospitals which do not have committees 
use some form of multidisciplinary decisionmaking or refer these cases to a more 
sophisticated center. The details of the report will be shared with you 
shortly. 

These figures indicate that a significant number of hospitals, withi~ a 
relatively short period of time, have instituted review committees. Clearly 
this percentage represents a dramatic change in the way decisions are being made 
regarding disabled newborns. The Academy and WATCH have long supported -- and 
continues to advocate -- the creation of such committees to assist with the 
decislonmaking process in difficult cases. To this end, the Academy has deve­
loped a set of guidelines to facilitate the establiShment of such committees. 
Additionally, the Academy has convened a number of seminars, workshops and edu­
cation COUrses at Academy meetings to help members with this issue. We believe 
additional and ongoing education is requireu in this area. 
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Despite the dirficu~t path to compromise, you should be pleased to know that the 
law appears to be working. As such, the Academy and WATCH along with the 
National Coalition on Child Abuse and other organizations does n"t recommend any 
changes or modifications to this section of the law. We will continue to devote 
our energies to the successful implementation of this law and to helping physi­
cians, health care professionals and families deal with the ever increasingly 
difficult biomedical ethical issues. 

VI. RECOMMENDATIONS 

There is no one "solution" to the problem of chlld abuse and neglect. Rather, a 
problem of this complexity and magnitude demands an array of approaches and 
strategies, involving: 

1. IMPROVED COORDINATION BETWEEN THE NCCAN, ALCOHOL, DRUG ABUSE AND 
MEtITAL HEALTH ADMINISTRATION, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND THE OFFICE 
OF SPECIAL EDUCATION AND REHABILITATIVE SERVICES, THE DIVISION OF 
MATERNAL AND CHILD HEAL'rH, DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, NATIONAL INSTITUTE 
ON MENTAL HEALTH, AND BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS. 

Unfortunately, recommendations such as this for increased cooperation 
between federal agencies often result in token interagency agreements 
which are confined to the paper on which they are written. I can not 
overstate the need for such cooperation. Indeed this theme runs 
through most of our individual recommendations -- the need for iden­
tification, prevention, research and treatment to involve all those 
agencies and program~ which deal w:th these children and their families. 
No one agency can deal effectively with this problem --particularly 
one as underfunded and seemingly undervalued as the National Center 
on Child Abuse and Neglect. Rather the Center should serve as the 
lead agency to direct and coordinate the efforts of all programs in 
this area. 

This reauthorization bill should look to promoting a "total approach" 
to child abuse -- emphasizing early identification, intervention 
through home visits, support services and case management of the 
families' needs. Hawaii is one example of where sach collaboration 
is working beautifully. In 19811 some clever, progressive thinkers 
obtai~ed funds for a demonstration project to fund the Hawaii Family 
Stress Center and Child Health Plan. After being funded for 2 years 
(at $400,000) the results of Project Healthy Start were dramatic --
a 100 percent reduction in abuse and 87.5 percent reductian in 
neglect among infants from birth to age one. Notably, this occurred 
in the county in Hawaii which had previously reported the highest 
inoidence of abuse and neglect. (See attached materials for details.) 

The point is that prevention can be accomplished. But it involves 
the support of an array of professionals ~nd agencies. The Hawaii 
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mo~el relies upon the concept of a "medical home" and a reinstatement 
of the community health system that will provide comprehensive 
primary health services which address all the child's needs. The 
essentials of an adequate "medical home" include: (1) geographic and 
financial accessiblity; (2) continuity of care from the prenatal 
period through early childhood and adolescence; (3) coordination 
through identification of needs and linkage of the family to services 
needed by the child; and (4) community orientation of awareness of 
child health problems and resources within the community. This model 
also emphasizes the need for a greater emphasis by the NCCAN on 
health issues as part of their child abuse strategy. 

Another related example is the Office of Special Education and 
Rehabilitative Services (OSERS). The recently enacted P.L. 99-457, 
Education of the Handicapped Act Amendments, gives states monies to 
establish systems t'o provide early intervention services to disabled 
infants from birth. To date, it appears little attention is being 
focused on how this program be used to prevent the abuse of these 
infants -- that is, family and parent support programs to help them 
better deal with the additional stress of a child with disabilities. 
Emphasis should be placed on using these programs to help special 
education teachers identify, and help prevent abuse of these children. 

The examples are numerous -- the possibilities endless: efforts with 
AOAH/IA to deal with the substance abusing mothers who neglect their 
children; the Head Start network to provide a therapeutic envi,'on­
ment to three to five year olds, etc. 

At a minimUm, the reauthorization legislation should require model 
demonstration programs between the NCCAH and other agencies to facil­
itate these efforts. Some efforts is this area have already taken 
place, for example with the OSERS, however these efforts must be 
expanded. On a broad scale, the legis' tion might call for the NCCAN 
or a special task force to develop a model for such linkages. What 
is clear is that these efforts are not taking place to the degree 
necessary. Nor can the National Advisory Committee as currently 
constituted or directed fulfill this function. The Center and the 
Children's Bureau should be commended for their efforts to elevate 
this committees importance -- however, the effort that is required to 
implement such agreements exceeds the power and authority of an 
advisory committee. ' 

A portion of the above problem is related to the IICCAli's lowly status 
within the OHHS Bureaucraoy as previously explained. The elevation 
of IICCAN to a position opposite the Assistant Secretary level (either 
for Health or Human Services) would permit the interagency coopera­
tion necessary to fulfill the Center's goals and objectives. Such 
cooperation has not occurred with the present alignment for 16 years, 
and cannot occur unless NCCAN has the status necessary to work with 
NIMH, NICHO, the CDC and the Office of Maternal and Child Health, 
Head Start, Run Away youth and Social Service Research efforts. 
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3. REDESIGN THE RE:SEARCH EFFORT 

The National Center should: 1) Coordinate and fund a collaborative 
multi-site longitudinal study -- in cooperation with the NIMH, CDC, 
NICHD, MCH Office -- into questions regarding the natural history of 
the abused child, e.g. how many are treated effectively, how many 
grow up to become abusive parents, etc. As such, the grant period 
should be extended from 3 to 5 years. The agency should be 
authorized specifically to conduct a four year longitudinal study on 
ch1ld abuse and authorized to more effectively disseminate this 
information. 2) Encourage the above agencies to sponsor resear~n 
on prevention of family dysfunction which leads to physical and 
emotional harm to children; and 3) Conduct more research into the 
physical diagnosis of sexual abuse and into sexually transmitted 
diseases and sexual abuse in this population. 

~. DEVELOP AN INTENSIVE MANPOWER TRAINING EFFORT 

The need for a qUick, "crash" course to trFlin child pro'"ective 
service professionals cannot be overstated. The cUI'rent ch1ld 
protective services system is on the verge of collapse and, without 
support, the backlash will be staggering. Clearly there needs to be 
a federal effort to stimulate schools of mediCine, social work and 
mental health to develop programs in the area of child abuse and 
neglect. This effort should be coordinated with Lhe NIMH, ADAMH and 
Bureau of lIealth Manpower. 

5. STIMULATE PROGRAMS FOR CHILD TREATMENT 

Both public sector and private sector funds must be used more effec­
tively to improve the treatment of abused and neglected children and 
their families. By collaborating efforts -- and funds -- with other 
agencies, the NCCAN can leverage its admittedly scarce dollars. For 
example, the NCCAN should develop a program with the Department of 
Education to develop therapeutic programs for abused children Which 
could be delivered through the schools. We think the legislative 
authority for this already exists in P.L.9~-1~2. Joint efforts could 
be initiated with the Department of Defense to address the unique 
needs of abused and neglected children who are military dependents. 
We also encourage the Center to continue its program of matching 
funds, whereby programs linked to a match are privately supported 
within th,·eO'. years. 

6. INCREASE ~UNDING LE:VELS 

Although the collaboration of efCorts and other recommendations 
detailed above will leverage the NCCAN's funds, there is no question 
that this agency is consistently grossly underfunded. Despite the 
dramatic rise in reports of abuse and neglect in almost every state, 
and the corresponding increase in demands on social service alld 
mental health agencies, the Reagan administration has Cailed to 
recommend an increased federal investment to deal with this crisis. 
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We agree with the recommendations of The National Committee for the 
Prevention of Child Abuse that P.L. 93-247 be extended for four 
years; the authorization level be raised from its current level of 
$43.1 to $50 million; and appropriated levels accordingly raised. We 
appreciate the constraints and limitations of a Gramm-Rudman era; yet 
anything less suggests OUr government ' s commitment to this area is 
nothing more than symbolic. 

7. ISSUES SURROUNDING CHILDREN WITH DISABILITIE~ 

The Center should: 

1) Conduct an incidence study into the numbers of children with 
disabilities who are being abused. This will require coopera­
tion with the DMCH and OSERS. 

2) Develop training programs to help all personnel who routinely 
interact with disabled children to identify and prevent abuse 
and access the child protective services system as necessary. 

3) Develop and disseminate programs with the DMCH and OSERS for 
parents at risk of abusing their children which includes stress 
management and other parenting techniques. 

In conclusion, the Academy and WATCH appreciate the opportunity to testify on 
this important issue and look forward to working ulosely with you on this and 
other issues during the lOath Congress. 
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CHAPTER VI 

Summary, RecoIDQendations. and Future Planning 

6.100 Anal\'s;s and Overall Strategy of the Child Health Care Plan 

Introduc~ - Child health probleQ5 are unique and important for several 

reasons. These are primarily related to the vulnerability of the infant, tl\e 

rapid growth in all areas of development during childhood, and the fact that 

development of optimal health in childhood can prevent other conditions of poor 

health later i~ 11fo. 

The first few hours of life are the most precarious, and more deaths will 

occur during that short period of time than ""ill occur during the next twenty 

)'cars. The first year is also quite vulnerable, as attested by the fact that a 

major indicator of a cOD~unity or a nation's general level of health is the 

infant mortality rate. 

DUB to th·"! c;~tremely ;:apid physica.l, e.m0tionnl, ~ogni::i\'e ant! sccial 

&rowth rate of the first several years of life, the young child has special 

needs, which, if not met can rpsult in less than maximal development of perma­

nent damage~ 

tleeting the special needs of adolescence is also critical to the development 

of healthy, productive adults. Successful psycho-social development occuring 

in adolescence is nec.ss~ry to the establishment of a sense of identity ana 

sclf .. ·esteem needed to function as an adult. 

Thus a major focus upon child health as a special population ig'worthwhile 

and rewarding in terms of promoting de.elopment of happy, healthy children now 

and also as a cost-effective investment of a more healthy, less dependent 

adult population in the fulure. That is, early remediation or prevention of 

problems which may be much mor-e costly later in life, or result in dependency 

upon public institutions, i.e. the mentally retarded, the mentally ill, the 

6.1 
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econoQically dependent and those incarcerated in prisons, is cost effective • 

. ~1 of these dependencies occur at tremendous public expense. 

There are particular strengths in the child health services in liaYaii which 

should he mentioned. liawaii now has a good immunization program, as evidenced or 

tow incidence of communicable disease among children. The State also has an 

infant death rate considerably lover than the national rate. The merger of 

Kapiolani and Children's liospitals has the potential f~r strengthening maternal-

infant and child health services. A Regional Perinatal Center is already being 

established. Children's liospital has several special progr3ws, including a 

Pediatric Residency Continuity of Care Program, the Child Guidance Clinic and 

the Hawaii Family Stress Center (a demonstration program for innovative services 

in child abuse and neglect). The latter program has established a State Council 

on Child filiuse and Neglect. There is also a Developmental Disabilities Council. 

~hich has compiled a comprehensive plan for services to the developmentally 

disabled. TIlere are Children's }Iental liealth Teams in each mental health 

cachement area. 

The initial plan will examine child health problems and existing re~ources. 

identify gaps in services. establish priorities and make recommendations for a 

coordinated system of services. The plan will build upon some work already 

completed or in process in the development of plans for specific problem areas. 

including developmental disabilities. children's mental health services. maternal 

infant and child ~ealth services, child abuse/neglect services. The plan will 

advocate for coordin~tion of services, to result in a cohesive system of services 

from two viewpoints. One of these represents a holistlc view of the child, so 

that all health needs of the 'indivinual child can be met in a smooth, .. nfragmented 

manner, and the family can utilize serV1ces relatively easily. TIle other viewpoint 

would reflect a comprehensive system.of services on a continuum including early 

identification and prevention/intervention of health problems. emergency and 

acute care, follow-up care and rehabilitat:on services. 
6.2 
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5ummarv of Problem Statements - "!he infant mo~tality rate has declined 

significantly overall but remains disproportionately high among part-Hawaiian 

and Filipino ethnic groups and in certain geographic areas of the stllte, usually 

associ~1ted "..ith low-income neighborhoods _ Lcarlinr. causes of infant mortality 

include congenital anomalies, prematurity, diarrhe~l disease, septicemia, 

pneumonia, and "I)t:.her causes, II 

A study correlating the incidence of infant mortality, prematu~itYJ 

illegitimacy, .prenatal visits, standard fetal deaths, families below poverty 

level and families receiving DSSU benefits for 30 geographic areas indicates 

the relative need of these areas for improved mattrnal and infant health care. 

Areas most in need of improved care include Uanalei, Waikiki, Kauaikau, 

~flimalH.tlo, Lanai, Ra.Iih! Palama, toolauoloa, South Kona, Waianae, North Hilo, 

anJ Holokai. 

Hany health problems are ConmlDn tv all socioeconomic levels. However , the 

needs assessment data shows that there are wide variations in indices of pre-

and post-natal well being among infants and young children in different geographic 

areas and ethnic groups in the state. The geographic areas most needing.assis­

tance are defined, and they are low-income, under served areas. The on-going 

planning effort should look more closely at the children in these areas to find 

out who these children and families are and why they are underserved. We know 

that problems of the underserved are related to inequalities of income and 

resources whiCh ereate barriers to accesS and utilization of servic~~. 

Leading causes of death among children 1-4 are ac~idents, infective and 

parasitic disease, congenital anomalies, and all other diseases. Age 5-14 

showed leading causes of death as accidents, malignancies, congenital anomalies 

and other diseases. 

Bajol' organic illness of childhood have been greatly reduced by appUcation 

of medical science; however, behavioral and physiosomatic illnesses related to 

6.3 
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socioeconomic aspects of the child's environment are increasing. A total of 

32,85LI children in Hilwai! are suffering from some form of emotional disturbance; 

2,146 of ~hcse are experiencing severe emotional illness. True incidence of 

child abuse is unkno"n and is undoubtedly much higher than that "'hich is 

reported. 506 ne~ cases were confirmed on Oahu alone from January to July, 

1977. Child abuse and neglect are causall.y related to many other problems 

including mental retardation, p.motion~l and relationship difficultie~, school 

failure er.d dropout, status offenses and deliquency. 

The prevalence of developmental disabilities in Hawaii includes 

approximately 6,989 mentally retarded, 618 children with cerebral palsy, 1,209 

with epilepsy, and 124 autistic children. 

Data on morbidit;' of childrp.n is not substantial. Available data indicates 

that respiratory conditions, infective diseaser., injuries and other acute 

conditions are leading cuuscs of illness among children. poor children are 

less likely to receive medIcal care and are more likely to become ill. A 

rubella epidemic yas the only communicable disease outbreak. Most children are 

n', 'W immunized against the seven preventable diseases. There is an increcrcing 

rate of venereal disease among the 15-19 year old group reflecting an 800% 

increase in the rate since 1967. 

Leading health problems of adolescents include tee!;age pregnancv, emotional 

disturbances, substance abuse. dropping out of school, status offenses and 

juvenile delinque~y, and developmental disabilities. This suggests,n wide 

range of problem., many of which are preventable early in life. We need to know 

",ho these youth are, ",here they come from I'nd what kind of health care they 

grew up with, or without. Are they fror.. the same areas and families as the 

infant~ and children with poor health indices? What are the situations of :he1r 

parents, and what practical approaches might be taken to improve their health 

status within service sy.tems at an acceptable cost? The questions of cost 

6.~ 
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alone are a critical factor in actual implementation of any plan, as children's 

services most compete with all other public programs for state nnd DHEW dollars. 

We as a society quote such trHisms as "children ",re our most important resourcell , 

"children are the future of the nation", but the political reality is that 

children don't vote. Services for children too often get lost in the politi~al 

process and becotLe a very loY priority for allocation of scare·1.! fiscal resources. 

Tne health status section shows a high correlation between poverty, the 

health care underserved, and children ~ith health and developmental deficits. 

The low-income areas evidence the poorest MCH i.ndices, high rates of teenage 

pregnancies, school dropouts, delinquency and crime etc. While child abuse 

and substance abuse cut across economic groups, low income families are clearly 

under greater pressures which precipitate these problems and have less resources 

with which to cope. 

Lo~ income and lack of family resources, ~hich is often linked ~ith race, 

result in inequality and discrimination in access to health care services. 

TI1US social and economic forces beyond the parent's immediate control create 

barriers for hmilies who might othe=ise care more effectively for thei.r' chil.dren. 

Obviously, a hedlth care plan.cannot provide social equality and an adequate 

income for the family, but it can assur~ access to comprehensive and uninter­

rupted basic health care for the children of all families, through sliding 

scale fee mechanisms ~hich provide the same quality serivces to all children 

regardless of abi"lity to pay. This in the long run will be cost eff,\,ctive 

because of tne many disabilities, physical and social, which can be prevented 

among the population, ~hich ~ould later become a burden upon the public in costs 

related to medicaid, public assistance, mental illness, mental retardation 

and delinquency/crime. 

6.5 
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Thus one premise of this plan is that health care resources, particularly 

primary care, should be developed with priority attention to the underserved ~ho 

are largely located in low-income areas. A critical related problem which has 

been identified in under utilization of health services) particularly by lo~-

income) less well-educated and motivated groups. There appear to be at least 

several reasons for this, including lack of awareness of need for services and 

Use of services on an emergency, episodic basis rather than in a planr.ed way 

which pennits .continuity of C;3.SC. Also, bClvices are often not readily 

accessible or acceptable to families. One way to effe~t attitude changes across 

large segments of the population will be through a broader family life education 

program in the schools, which begins in elementary grades and focuses upon a 

wide range of subjects related to health, the family, etc. Accessibility of 

servIces in terms of geographic distribution is an area of focus for long-range, 

in-depth planning. Acceptability of services is related to the manner in which 

services are provided and is addressed under the medical home. Each individual 

must be able to seek out a medical home which will support them. 

Another premise of the plan is that it will emphasize prevention. Health 

statistics provide information on both physical and emotional developmental 

problems with roots in infancy and early childhood. Particularly in view of 

scarce resources, development of a better integrated system of child health 

services should give priority to maternal-child health services. Within that 

context, emphasiS"'will be placed u~)on prevelltion and positive developmental 
.' 

aspects of infant and child health, beginning in the prenatal period and with 

a view to early detection and remediation of all developmental problems. 

I<e need to design a system of health care which truly addresses these 

problems in the most effident and economical ",ay. The overall approach of 

this plan will be to facilitate the development and coordination of an integrated 

6.6 
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SystEUJ of set vices which focus upon the well-being of the child~ \".-ithin the 

context of the family. This concept will implement the concept that every child 

will have a "cedical horne,1! uhich provides primary health care services which 

are comprehensive in a sense of addressing the needs of the ""hole child. The 

essential nature of an adequate medical home includes (1) accessibility, both 

geo!;raphical and financial; (2) cond.lUity, i.e. prenatal through early childhood 

and through adolescence; (3) coordination, which requires identification of needs 

and linkage of. the family to all services needed by the child; and (4) a 

co~unity orientation, i.e., an awareness of child health problems and resources 

in the overall community. The IImedical horne" may be within the context of private 

practice, maternal-infant care clinics, children and youth clinics, hospital 

out-patient clinics, and community health centers. All of these modes of service 

delivery will have to be more comprehensively developed in order to provide a 

medical home as described above. 

A range of preventive health care efforts will be implemented within the 

fracework of the medical home. This will include prenatal screen Jg for all health 

problems for which high risk is predir.table, intensive periodic screp.nin& during 

the first year of life, and annually thereafter until age five. After age five, 

annual checkups would be conducted for preventive health maintenance. 

6.7 
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•.• every child /leeds a medical home 

The Role of the Medical Home in Child Abuse 
Prevention and Positive Child Development 

Calvin C.J. Sia, MD~ and Gail F. Breakey, RN, MPH" 

The. Hawaii MaRcol As.focintion and Ihe.llawali Chaput' o/,he. Amtrican Academy 
0/ Pediatrics adopfl?d a Child Heolth Pia" in 1978, which ,,,cognited that child health 
prob/~ms art unique. ond Important Jar stvtral 'taJons. Tlltse "rt primarily rtlaled 10 
lht vulntrobllilJ' o/Iht in/ollt and tile rapid grow,II in Ihe areas 0/ phys;c"l, emallanal. 
cogn;livt. social Dnd language dt"~/opmtnl during this ptriod. E"rly f:l~nllficQlton 0/ 
Dnd In{trvtatlon with dysfunctions in {hlSt ortas can prevent faltr conditions 0/ gtntral 
poor heallh. leam;ng disabilities, menial relardation. juvenile delinquency. school 
dropout Dnd sulcirlts. ond bthllvioral dysfunctions a/later life. Bt(aus~ 0/ t.'r/umelj 
.rapid ,rol'llh In tht /irst Iwo flars a/lilt. 'he in/ant Ilos spedal netds which. If not 
mtl. can ftJIIII in leJS than oplimal development and JomelimB in Ihe child's becoming 
Q burden 10 ,~/s or her family and Joc/eIY. 

The Child Health Plan strcsses pre­
venllon in early nfe, through develop­
ment of a beller·1ntcsratcd system of 
child health services. This system of serv. 
i:-es focuses on the well·being of the child 
wilhln Ihe conlal of the ramily. II cen­
leu on Ihe con~pllhal every infanl born 
will have a "medlcal homelO Ihal pro­
vides primary hulth care services, com­
prehensive in nalure, which addlcss the 
needs or the whole child. The essenlials 
of .m adequate "medical homc" include 
(I) geographic and finimclal DCUSlibllily. 
(2) conllnul17 of care from che preRlllal 
period through early childhood and 
adole~encc. (3) coordinallon through 
identification of needs and IInkagc.,of the • 
family to servlce1 necded by Ihe child, 
and (4) community orienlallon of aware­
ness or chtld hetdlh problems and re­
saulen within the tommunity. 

Ht3hh care is rendered. for (he most 
part. by an u"nsuue1urcd syslem that 
lack." the coordlnadon to provide Infor~ 
maHan. tralnfn. and direction. The ~IJsy 
pradieins physician is of len unable to 
ullnk" the family successfully 10 all of 
.he services needed by the child In the 
ttfdcaJ early infanc)' period. Pe.haps Ibis 

~ukbt. IIawIlilMr-dln1 Aundallon; AinU. 
!eM Itadcnrr or rrdilldn 
.. Dlrtdor.II ... ..a.famil, Sur" ("elllff.1)19 hna. 
bou Se •• IIcnohJtII. tlll.,11 96126. 

A;;i7ot ~~fdA ,.h, 1fU, 

242 ,. -

11 due (0 lack or Orien1alion to communi· 
ty rcsources. bu~ commonly h is dlle 10 a 
lack of adequl1tl: communication and 
working relationships between public and 
privatI: agencies a.nd Ihe physician and 
family. Episodic. fragmented servfces do 
not contribute to the suctess(ul drvelop­
meni of the indlviduallnfanl and (bild. 

The 19805 H'aw:all Slate Legisla!Ure pro· 
"id~ funds for a demonstration program 
that can provide a framework for IInkins 
infanls al high psycho-social risk wilh a 
"medical home:' and to support Ihe 
physician In re(errlng the family to other 
service resources as needed. This pro­
gram was funded as part of the Slatc's 
initiative In prevention of child abuse and 
neglect. 

All children should have 3 medical 
home. but ror children born 10 dys· 
functional families, .he need bc-come1 
crhlcal. Child ubu!e Dnd ncgl«1 hnvc 
long ~en fccogni1:ed as significant medi. 
cal :md social problems and recent Slud~ 
ies Indicate Ihal the consequences or 
abuse nnd neglect and Ihe 3ctompanying 
dysfunctional parenting are of equal or 
greater concern. 

Roy Helfer. MD. co·aulhor o( "The 
BaHered Child," has allribuled a hosl of 
problem!!: of childhood lind youth 10 
breakdowns In the parent.chlld .ela .. 
tionship. Highly dysfunctional parendng 
and chaotic. family rnvironmenr1 resull 

not only in nbusc. and neglect but also In 
problems 1uch as learning dlsabililiCjf 
emotional problc:ms. acting out ~hav~ 
jars. menial illness. some incidence of 
cerebral paby or menial retardalion re· 
lated 10 physical abuse. Iru:mc)', sub· 
stance abuse. runaways. delinquency and 
crime. These problems hlndcr youth of 
our community rrom becominR produc. 
live adulu and Ilre also e;'(tremely costly 
In s~laJ and financial tenlls. 1\ vast ar-
1::1y of serviccs must be mobilized to cor· 
rtct or deal with these: problems. Ihe 
most cosily being the juvenile and adult 
corrections "yslcms. 

Prevenriol,1 of child abuse lind neglect 
,IUd other (orms of dysfunctional par .. 
enting b«omes mOSl-dcslrable, as often 
th~c cause much iueparable damage. 

Numerous studies ot abwive: famlUts 
have: kd to the Ide:ntificntion of "promes:' 
or characteristics, of abusive pDrents. 
from this information il has been possi. 
ble 10 c:nnslruel screening instruments for 
use in identifyinR o3t·dsk tamlltes sa 
preventive suppor!ivc servlcd em be ,up-­
plied~ 

families are avail .. bJe (or wid~pread, 
systematic: Kreenlng only at seven,) 
points In their lives, including :11 binh of 
:m inranl. when 1he ehild ellters schoof 
and aaain (ull cycle al pregnancy • 

Data reeenily analyzed by rhe director 
or Ihe Children·s Protective Services 
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MeJI~al Unir. James DH.Jlbau~h. MU. 
indicates Ihal abuut 840;"4 or !etious 
"bust cases and 0.111 14 deaths since J980 
111 Ha",aii have occurred oUlong children 
under f'iv.e yt':lU of age. Intervention wilh 
al·risk ra.milies 01 binh is cssenlial (or 
Ihis lcason. and also because the nUl (ew 
;leats Qf liCc arc so Ctllical fer healthy 
~hild development. Intervenlion at Ihis 
lime Is abo prob:lbly the most acceptable 
10 the family. as services can be:' in· 
corporaled into routine pr:rinntal Servo 
ices. • 

The Hawaii Family StH~SS Center at 
Kapiolanl Wom~n't and ChUdrtn'~ Med. 
kal Center and family Support Service 
projects' at hospitals in· Hila,· KOlla. 
Maul. Molokaj and Kauai have been can· 
duclinj ,creenlng (or st-rlsk fnmllJes us· 
jng a checklist deyeloped by E. Henry 
Kempe, MD. HOnle visitor services arc 
pfO'#idtd for aH:is'l:. families utiUting the. 
·Iay therapy· approach. (ollowing Dr. 
Kempe's model program. .,' . 

The neW demonstration program will 
be conducted at Kapioiani through the 
Strc:~s Center. . 

This prpjc:ct has several gona. The first 
h \0 demOnlUille errec\'vcne!.~ of c'ally 
inlcrvc:ntian in significantly reducing 
abuse of infants in aile carefully derined 
geographic 3re~, The second is 10 "link" 
the infant nnd family to a medical home 
(or monitoring or the infant',. safety. 
early and periodic screening in ac· 
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conJallce "'III! Ihe:' HMA and i1I:W MellI. 
caid Huidelines. rdeHal of Ihe IJIIl.ly 10 
needed serVIces, nnd providing cOlliinuily 
of care during the c1ult!'t early years Qf 
life (i.e. biuh to kindergarten). 

FollowlIlB screening. at-risk familit's 
will be u:ferrtd I) the projt'f.I hOllle 
outreach wOlhn, who W1\\ {aclhtnlt: pllr· 
ent-infant aU;J.chment. provide emotional 
support and assist parents 10 tSlablhh 
socia1 suppor( .sySlems. lnlensive involve. 
ment of the worker WlU continue for the 
first 12 10 24 momh.s. according to Ihe 
r:hild's needs. and then Inper off 10 a 
monitoring function with visits apP{Ol\' 
imately 4 to 6 times a )lear. 

Abo. the worker will !llink" the fam· 
jJy 1o a 'Imedical horne" (or Ihe infant. 
Projccr prof::ssJonal nnd parapro" 
fessIonal staff will maintain cool act with 
fhe pbysidan to review the child's status 
and \0 asslSl in fncUi\tltina needed rtfer. 
rals. 

In this way. Ihe physiCian becomes the 
case mlln;l.ger for ontein& follow·up, nnd 
the projecl staff provides support as 
nc:cdc:-J. collecls data and conducu peri­
odic mOltitoring until the child enters 
schoDt 

It is essenlial that lole IImedical home" 
physician develop nne: main lain aware­
ness of early childhood probt~ms as well 
as intervention and management skills 
relaled ro Ihese problems on an ongoing 
bilSIS. 

.' 

Project slaff also will Ricci with pIO·· 
videu of v.uious services needed by the 
projcci famdies. The purpose or Illest: 
meetings WIll be 10 enhance nelworking 
nnd 10 define flaps III service. DeSired 
outcomes will be 10 inerc;lsc awareness 
among service providel$ of the needs or 
nHb'Jc. r~mmtl antS rOlmal doeumc.nla" 
tion or these needs ..... ilh recommenda­
tions on gaps Inservices available. 

This project writ provide nn organized 
.system of identirying at·risk ramiliel. 
linkins them 10 the medical home and 
~upporllng the physician in carrying out 
the rotc:. or medical management. The 
project will provide intensive emotional 
support to the. family inhiaJly aner lJirlh, 
and then move lownd ,I monitoring 
funellcn Ihrough periodic home visits 
and contact with Ihe phy.sldan.;· . 
. The overall F.i'al or tt.e project·fs to 
dcmons\[I.\\e the dfec\\'#encss. or \be' 
prevenlion of abUSe and the establish •. 
menl or support networks 10 promOle 
positive child devclopmen: (or at-risk in" 
fanu. 

lr successful. h is hoped that the pro. 
gram will be expanded. as was the pilot 
School Health Progflllll. . 

This is a unique opportunity to de­
velop nn excellen; system of preventive 
health services for children, Success or 
the Medical Home. concept highlightlng 

.' early periodic screeni!1g and continuity or 
. lcare for the infant will be key. 
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AGENCY: lIawai i Family Stress Center 
Kapiolani Homen's & Children's '1edical Center 
1319. pur.ahou Street, lIonolulu, Hawaii 96826 

pnOJECT OIRECTOR: Gail Breakey 

Contract Date: From 1011/86 to 10/1/89 

Area Code: 801l - 941 8225 

PROJECT: FACILITATION OF PRIMIIRY CARE PHYSICIAN PARTICIPATION Itl PREVENTIVE HEALTII 
CARE OF CHILDREN AGE 0-5 FRO"! UNDERSERVED, DIVERSE CULTURAL POPULATIONS 

Underserved. diverse cultural populations have poorer health characteristics than the 
general population. and are more at risk for psycho-social and behavioral problems, 
termed the "new morbidity". These problems are critical for the 0-5 age group who 
have much grea tel' preventive health care needs than adults and for whom preventive 
services are most cost-effective. The EPSDT Ioledicaid program designed to address 
this problem reaches only 25% of the eligible population for appar~ntly minimal levels 
of service and a.ttracts limited physician participation. 

The health status problem selected includes developmental delays and psychosocial 
problems of children 0-5 from underserved. culturally diverse populations. Contri" 
buting factors to the health status problem are a range of family stresses which re­
sult in dysfunctionlng,parenting. ·'Ii1Stargi!1!';gnoup is most at-risk for and most vul­
nerable -to the effects of these conditions. Consequences in terms of impaired func­
tioning in later life ar,d costs a~e considerable. including SUbstance abuse. school 
dropout, delinquency. crime, emotional and mental illness which require expensive 
remedial services. 

The project proposes to intervene with this problem by promoting the involvement of 
the primary care physicians, pediatricians. in early screening and intervention with 
the target population. based upon the medical home concept and according to American 
Academy of Pediatrics Health Supervision Guidelines. Contributing factors to present 
low physician participation in ;ervices to this target group include low Medicaid 
reimbursement, physician experience of Medicaid families being mnre difficult to work 
with. a historic pediatric orientation to treating illness rather than providing pre­
ventive care, lack of knOlfledge/awareness re community resources and sense.?f being 
part of a community team. _ 

The proposed MeilIP project would be "piggy baCked" to Project HP,.lthy Start". which 
identifies 125 infants/year from low income diverse ethnic families to prevent child 
abuse and to promote positi ve chil d development. The target group will be primarily 
low income Part-Hawaiian and Filipino children 0-5 of families from an underserved 
area Jf: Oahu, Hawaii. The number of children served would be 125-250 in the first 
project year, 250-375 in the second year and 375-500 in the third year. 

A core group of physicl"n leaders who have met with us in planning this MelilP will 
assist in a developiny baseline data questionnaire related to present. physician at­
titudes and services to the project popUlation; in sponsoring training for physicians 
related to the "new morbidity", needs of project families. MP Health Supervision 
and Guidelines. early screening tools. such as DOST and use of community resources. 
Healthy' Start staff and the core physician group have already successfully lobbied 
together in bbtaining an increase in the "!edicaid reimbursement during the 1986 le9is-
lative session. 'leHIP project health coordinator and two home visitors will conduct 
quarterly followup with families regarding safety of the home and parent-child inter­
action. and conduct case conferences with the physician. Small group meeting with 
physicians. '~CHIP staff and core group physicians will focus on project families and 
issues of preventive care. Evaluation will utilize the same indices used in the base­
line data collection, and will be conducted at months at 18 and 30. A dissemination 
plan is provfded. The project should ~e of national interest and signlflcance in 
demonstrating a practical ap,proach to services to the 0-5 underserved, culturally 
diverse children. and as a 'missing link" in establishing a comprehensive, integrated 
system for health care services for this target group. 



210 

Mr. OWENS. I don't think we have any California Members on 
my subcommittee. 

Dr. CHADWICK. Congressman Hawkins. 
Mr. OWENS. Oh, you mean on the larger committee? 
Dr. CHADWICK. Yes. 
Mr. OWENS. I'm sure he will follow up and make the visit. 
Ms. Victoria Young? 

STATEMENT OF VICTORIA YOUNG ON BEHALF OF THE CONSOR­
TIUM FOR CITIZENS WITH DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES 

Ms. YOUNG. I am Victoria Young, and I am one of those profes­
sionals who is out there in our overwhelmed child protective agen­
cies. I am a supervisor at Montgomery County Child Protective 
Services in Maryland, and I am here today on behalf of the Consor­
tium for Citizens with Developmental Disabilities. The Consortium 
represents over 60 national, consumer, professional provider orga­
nizations but, more importantly, it represents children with disabil­
ities and other handicaps. 

I would like to talk with you a little bit. I have 5Ll.bmitted my 
testimony but I would like to talk with you a little bit about what 
is going on in our field and also about how I came to be interested 
in the link between children with handicaps and disabilities and 
child abuse. 

I came to Protective Services from a prior position in an institu­
tion for the mentally retarded, and before that I was in early child­
hood development as director of a child development center, so I 
have a real sound basis in child development, and when I came to 
Protective Services I began to notice as I carried cases-first as a 
social worker, later as a supervisor-that so many of the children 
that we were seeing, not only victims but the siblings of the chil­
dren that were being victimized, were disabled in some way. 

I didn't see that there was a significant amount of research on 
this problem, although I began to look around. I began to come to 
know other professionals who were concerned with this problem, 
and that's how I happen to be here representing the consortium. 

We do have some research but it is scattered, and again it is not 
national, truly national research relating child abuse to develop­
mental disabilities. We know that there is a correlation, that a dis­
proportionate number of children with disabilities and handicaps 
are being abused, and we also know that they are being abused for 
a longer period of time and that they are less likely to be able to 
report that abuse. 

We feel that much more could be known about the link between 
developmental disability and other handicaps and child abuse, if 
there were a uniform reporting system throughout the States and 
uniform definitions of both handicapping conditions as well as the 
types of abuse that can be suffered by children. We know that 
there have been studies done with regard to l:'J'Y many States have 
reporting laws which can enable us to pick up this information, 
and it simply is not adequate to the need for developing 0111' data in 
this area. 

We believe that disability and we know that disability does not 
cause abuse, but it clearly makes a child more vulnerable for a 
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number of reasons. Children who are disabled are less able to 
defend themselves physically, obviously. They may be unaware 
that they are being abused. They are often more dependent on 
others for assistance and for care, and they are fearful of losing 
this assistance and care. They may be more trusting because of 
their isolation. They may be and usually are lacking in self-esteem 
in some way, and so they are fearful about reporting and they hesi­
tate to provoke anger or lose love. Finally, these children may not 
be able to speak. They may lack the verbalization skills to report 
abuse and neglect. 

I would like to tell you a little bit about some of the cases that I 
have dealt with. I have seen a lot in the 8 years I have been at 
Protective Services. One child that we saw, who came into our serv­
ice when he was about 6, is now 9 or 10. His mother was retarded 
and alcoholic; his father was alcoholic; and he was forced by his 
father, his mother and he were forced to commit sexual acts with 
each other and with the father. 

The mother was finally able to report this, and in many ways 
you would think, "Well, this is the end of the story." The child 
abuse was disclosed and he was arrested and sent to prison, but 
that was really just the beginning because she was left alone to 
care for this child with very few survival skills and very few living 
skills. Protective Services practically moved in, I must say. I was a 
social worker, and we provided practically every service and we 
tried to coordinate practically every service that this family would 
need in order to remain in the community. 

These are the kinds of things we are dealing with. We have a 
cerebral palsy child who we have had five reports on, this child, 
because she comes into school with bruises all over her and. she 
doesn't really-she has very little speech and she always says, 
"Mommy did it." No matter what you ask her, she says, "Mommy 
did it." The school is mandated to report, we are mandated to go 
out and investigate, but it is very hard to determine with a child 
like this exactly what has happened. 

There are other cases. There are a lot of cases that I could tell 
you about, but I would like to close with letting you know what our 
recommendations are. 

We would like to see more data collected in the area of the link 
between handicap and child abuse. We would also like to see dem­
onstration projects and training grants so that professionals could 
be trained, as well as special education teachers, and the children 
themselves trained to identify abuse and to report it. 

We would like to see more research into this area, and we would 
like to see the implementation and funding of respite care, crisis 
nurseries, and early intervention programs. We are supporting the 
continuation of the "Baby Doe" provisions, and we hope that the 
committee will be able to support all of these recommendations. 

Thank you. 
[The prepared statement of Victoria Young follows:] 
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Good morning. I am Victoria Young, Supervisor with Montgomery County, 
Maryland, Child Protective Services and I am here today on behalf of the 
Consortium for Citizens with Developmental Disabilities (C.C.D.D.). The C.C.D.D. 
represents over 60 national, consumer, professional provider organizations 
but more importantly, millions of children with developmental disabilities and 
other handicaps. 

I would like to talk with you about child abuse and neglect and, most 
especially, about th~t abuse and neglect which is inflicted upon children with 
disabilities and handicapping conditions. 

Before I review the research and data and present the Consortium's 
recommendations, I would like to share with you a little bit about our work and 
how I came to be concerned with this particular area of child protective 
services wo,'k. 

When I first came to our agency eight years ago, I was assigned a caseload 
of 20-25 families which required long-term services to correct conditions which 
had led to the abuse or negleot ot' the children. As I became acquainted with 
these families and began to talk with teachers, counselors and health care 
professionals who were also providing services, I came to realize that there 
were, in these abusive and negleotful families, a disproportionate number of 
children with disabilities and handicapping conditions. This realization was so 
compelling, that I began to seek out other professionals concerned with this 
problem and to look to the research for more int'ormation. 

Indeed, there is research which acknowledges that disabled children 
represent a disproportionate number of child abuse victims (Chotiner and Lehr, 
1976; Friedriok and Boreskine, 1976; National Center on Child Abuse and Neglect, 
1975; Sandgrund, at aI, 1974.) other isolated stUdies have indicated a 
relationship between child abuse, mental retardation, emotional, beha,vioral and 
physical disabilities. In 1970, Morse, SadIe.' and Friedman t'ound that 42 
percent of the children who were abused had an IQ of less than 80. Information 
available indicated that all but one of the children were diagnosed as retarded 
prior to abuse. In one of the largest child abuse studies conducted, Gil found 
that close to 30 percent of the 6,000 abused ohildren studied demonstrated some 
form of emotional or behavioral disorder prior to being abused. Diamond and 
Jaudes (1983) examined the oocurrence of child abuse among 86 children with 
cerebral palsy. Of 18 children with postnatal onset of cerebral palsy, eight 
resulted from ~hild abuse, five from infection, and three from accidents. Nine 
other children were abused after the onset of cerebral palsy. and one child was 
abused after the onset of cerebral palsy which resulted from prior abuse. Thus, 
in this stUdy, 20S of the children with cerebral palsy were abused. Another 14% 
were considered at risk for abuse. 

What research we have has also shown that children with handicaps are more 
likely than other children to be abused for a longer period of time. In 1979, 
Glaser and Bentovim found that among 111 abused ohildren, 32 percent of the 
children with disabilities Were abused after the age of 2, compared with 5.2 
percent 01' the children without disabilities. Further, 29 percent of the 
children with disabilities were abused after age 5, as compared with 9 percent 
for children without disabilities. 

It is encouraging to note these stUdies have been undertaken whioh document 
the inoreased vulnerability of children with disabilities to child abuse and 
negleot; however, so much more could be known if all the states had uniform 
reporting requirements. Camblin (1962) found that seven out of 51 state ohild 
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protection agencies do not have standard reporting forms which would facilitate 
data colle~tion in child characteristics. Of the ~~ states that do have stan­
dard reporting forms, 18 do not identify pre-existing handicaps of abused 
children. Further, Camblin found that in those states requiring this infor­
mation, ~3~ of the state agencies regal'ded the information as inaccul'ate. 
Surely this reflects on a need for training of child protective professionals so 
that they become sensitive to the various handicapping conditions and also a 
need for standardized definitions. 

We believe that the Child Abuse and Neglect Prevention and Treatment Act 
could be substantially strengthened if it required that all states report fully 
and clearly with regard to pre-existing handicapping conditions in child victims 
of abuse and neglect and that there be standardized definitions of the various 
entities throughout the United States. 

It is important that the Committee understand some of the reasons that 
children with disabilities are at high risk for mistreatment and neglect. 
Disability does not cause abuse, but it clearly makes a child more vulnerable. 
Children with handicaps are often less able to defend themselves physically. 
Many of these children may be unaware that they are being abused as they are 
unable to differentiate between appropriate and inappropriate behavior. 
Additionally, these children are often more dependent on others for assistance 
and care and may, therefore, be more trusting or more fearful of the loss of 
this vital support. Disabled children are frequently lacking in self-esteem and 
they may fail to report abuse for fear of provoking anger or losing love. 
Finally, disabled children may be unable to articulate or verbally report abuse, 

It is difficult for all children to establish their credibility as valid 
reporters of abuse and neglect. It is even more difficult for disabled children 
to do so, due to limitations in speech, cognition o~ intellectual functioning. 

Statistically, families with children with disabilities are 3 times more 
likely to fall below the federal poverty line. Moreover, women who do not 
receive prenatal care, and who have drug and alcohol related problems are more 
apt to have a child with a disability and are thus more likely to be abusive. 
It is not difficult to understand how volatile combination of these factors pla­
ces thesp children at high risk for abuse. 

In order to give the Committee some sense of the problems we Protective 
Services Professionals experience in dealing with these cases, I would like to 
take a few minutes to describe some children, families, and situations which are 
typical of our work. 

I'd like to tell you about Jim, whom I first met when he was about 6. 
Jim's IQ is 80 and, when I met him, he was living with his retarded mother at 
the home of some relatives. Jim's alcoholic father had forced him and his 
mother to perform sexual acts upon one another and on him. After Jim's mother 
was able to report this abuse to the authorities, the father was arrested and 
sent to prison. 'fhis precipitated a severe crisis for Jim and his mother. 
Relatives refused to keep them and, shortly after I met them, they were 
literally on the street. For over a year, as a Child Protective Services social 
worker, I provided or coordinated the provision of services which included but 
were not limited to: housing, basia living skills, psychiatric oare and 
counseling, medical and dental care, parent-aide services, assistance with 
shopping and budgeting, transportation, crisis intervention, recreation and 
round_the_clock moral sup~ort. 
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Another case which comes to mind is that of 14-year-old, profoundly 
retarded and physioally disabled Jennifer whose desperate mother brought her 
child to our offices at 4:55 on a Friday afternoon and told us, "Here I You live 
with this for a whilel" 

There 1s also the case of 5-year-old Suzie_ Suzie has cerebral palsy and 
literally hops on her knees to get from place to place. We have received and 
investigated 5 abuse referrals on Suzie which have been made by school personnel 
who are required to report when a child has suspicious looking injuries. 
Suzie's legs are frequently oovered with bruises and, when asked what happened, 
Suzie i,lVariably replies brightly, "Iiommy did it." Due to Suzie's intellectual 
and speech limitations it is virtually inpossible to determine for certain 
whether Suzie has been abused. 

Finally, there ere the many cases that Child Protective Agencies receive 
day in and day out which hegi~, "Seven-year-old Rick came in to his special 
education class this morning more agitated and hyperactive than usual. He had a 
blackened eye and some red marks on hiH cheek. When asked what happened, Rick 
stated that he'd taken a note home fre." his teacher yesterday saying that he 
hadn't done his class assignment and Dad had beaten him with the belt." 

Obviously a··major priority must be better programs to prevent the abuse of 
these children. Attention must be focused on improving support programs for 
parents at risk of abusing their ohildren. With the advent of P.L. 99-457, 
infants with disabilities will be identified at birth. This law presents an 
ideal opportunity to meet with families and to determine whether they are at 
risk of harming their children. One exoellent example of such a program exists 
in New York state -- the Infant Health Assessment Program. At-risk families are 
provided stress training courses and other support programs to prevent abuse of 
their children. Commendably, the National Center on Child Abuse and Neglect has 
already funded some demonstration programs 1n this area. However, much more 
needs to be done. 

Recommendations 

1. Data Colle~tion 
The C.C.D.D. believes it is imperative that the National Center on Child Abuse 
collect reliable national data on the number of ohildren with disabilities who 
are abused eaoh year. Currently, data is not colleoted on a national basis. 
Reliable, nationwide data on ubused handicapped children is needed. Variables 
in definitions, services criteria, funding, and reporting mechanisms among the 
states make data collection impossible. At a minimum, these intalee forms should 
be standardized and include information as to whether a child has a disability. 

2. Damonstration and Training Grants 
We would like to see a national demonstration project developed that would train 
eduoators, ohild welfare workers, the health oare providers, ohild protective 
workers, and justioe system employees on how to address the specifio needs of 
ohildren with disabilities who are abused. Generally, children with handicaps 
are less able to defend themselves physically, artiCUlate an abusive incident, 
and comprehend abusive behavior. For eXample, without training, a social 
worker may not lmow how to oommunioa&e with n child with cerebral palsy who has 
no understandable speeoh. Similarly, ohildren with learning disabilities may 
pose spooial difficulties for professionals unable to identify or appreoiate the 
ohild's disabling condition. Speoial education professionals must be trained to 
identify abuse in this population, and to identify high risle families so as to 
prevent abuse. 
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We would also like to see a demonstration grant which would provide speciaHzed 
education and training to disabled children on how to identify. report and 
protect themselves against abuse. 

The National Center on Child Abuse and Neglect has already collected information 
on model pI'ograms in this area. Where information already exists, it must be 
disseminated effectively to communities allover America. 

3. Research 
We also beHeve there is an ul'gent need to conduct a national study which 
investigates the correlation between child abuse and developmental disabilities. 
Obviously we are concerned about children with disabilities who are abused. 
But, there is new evidence and ooncel'n over the growing number of childl'en who 
become disabled due to abuse. There is no nationwide study that addl'esses this 
tragic problem. We need information if we are to be in a position to addl'ess 
tl:is problem. 

4. Early Intervention/Respite Care 

The NCCAN should also be required to work more closely with the Office of 
Special Education and Rehabilitative Services on the lmplementation of P.L. 
99-457 so that support programs can be provided to familips identified at risk 
for abusing infants and children with disabilities. 

We ask this Committee to work also to ensure that the Children's Justice Act, 
P.L. 99-401, is funded at the fult authorization level of $5 million for I'espite 
care demonstration projects and $5 million for ol'isis nurseries. Respite care 
is a proven effective strategy to I'educe stress and keep families togethel'. 
Crisis nUl'series can ease the burden of caring for a disabled child of 
potentially abusive parents. 

5. Special Protection for Infants with Disabilities 
The C.C.D.D. applauds the initiative of the Surgeon General to have the 
Inspector General study the impact of the "Baby Doe" regulations in each state. 
The conclusions will be studied carefully by us, and we would welcome the oppor­
tunity to make recommendations to you at that time. Nevertheless, we would want 
to state olearly that "Baby Doe" shOUld I'emain a part of this bill while main­
taining the intent of the original provisions. 

With reg~rd to Baby Doe, in the state of Maryland you may be interested to know, 
the funds provided under P.L. 98-457 have been used to create an outstanding 
training program for child protective workers and other professionals. This 
program has not only addressed the Baby Doe issue with thoroughness and sen­
sitivity but it has also served to address other issues important to abused and 
neglected children. More funding for training of this type in other areas of 
concern would be extremely valuable. 

There are many complex and serious problems to be addressed in this country with 
regard to the abuse and neglect of ohildren. The recommendations we have 
submitted today are relatively simple and olear cut. I hope they will receive 
your full support. 
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Mr. OWENS. Mr. Ventura, Rick Ventura. 

STATEMENT OF RICK VENTURA, DEPU1'¥ DIRECTOR, ACTION 

Mr. VENTURA. Mr. Chairman, it is a pleasure to be with you 
today and to testify on behalf of ACTION, the Federal domestic 
volunteer agency. 

As ACTION's deputy director, 1 have traveled across the country 
to meet volunteers and community leaders. I have seen firsthand 
the encouraging renewal of volunteer spirit and the activity that 
has come about in the eighties. I have seen a great surge of private 
sector support for volunteers and private involvement in building 
local volunteer projects. I can report that we are succeeding in 
achieving increased growth and effectiveness of our ACTION vol­
unteer programs without greater cost to the taxpayers, and in bol­
stering the efforts of private volunteer initiatives across the 
Nation. As President Reagan has said, the spirit of volunteerism is 
deeply ingrained in us as a Nation. 

Currently more than 400,000 citizens serve as ACTION volun­
teers. They contribute over $350 million in service to our country, a 
return of some 150 percent on our investment, but the dollar value 
of their service does not begin to describe the scope of their accom­
plishment or the benefits gained by both volunteers and those 
whom they serve. 

Since 1964 VISTA-Volunteers In Service To America-has 
sought to reduce poverty in the United States by bringing Ameri­
cans from all walks of life, from all age groups, and from all geo­
graphic areas to address the problems of poverty. Full-time volun­
teers address problems affecting low-income youth such as drug 
abuse, illiteracy, unemployment, hunger and child abuse. Their ac­
tivities also include support for shelters for the homeless, food 
banks, economic development, migrant and refugee assistance, and 
neighborhood revitalization. 

As of September 1986, 127 VISTA volunteers were serving on 31 
child abuse projects. In Buffalo, New York, Parents Anonymous of 
Buffalo and Erie County is a community-based organization for 
abused and troubled minorities living in rural areas. Special focus 
is placed on preventing child abuse. Four VISTA volunteers assist 
in recruiting and training community residents to carry out service 
programs such as the 24-hour Parent Help Line; parent telephone 
exchange; outreach and crisis intervention; and community educa­
tion. A major accomplishment of this group is the development of a 
parent-member volunteer support program. 

VISTA volunteers are also instrumental in helping to combat il­
literacy. A Notice of Availability of funds for literacy core grants 
was published April 20 in the Federal Register. Among the empha­
sis areas being solicited are literacy projects which curb intergener­
ational transfer of illiteracy within low-income families by provid­
ing instruction to parents and their children together. As of Sep­
tember 1986, 474 VISTA's were serving in 108 literacy projects in 
40 States. 

ACTION's demonstration grant program has enabled communi­
ties to test and replicate innovative solutions to chronic social prob­
lems through the development of effective volunteer efforts. Since 
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1982, the demonstration program has awarded over half a million 
dollars to support projects which raise the literacy level of youths 
and adults in economically distressed communities. We have 
worked closely with the recognized leaders in literacy education 
across the country. 

ACTION's three Older American Volunteer Programs offer men 
and women 60 and over the opportunity to apply their knowledge, 
maturity and caring where they are most needed. The Foster 
Grandparent Program has matched low-income seniors with chil­
dren who have special or exceptional needs. Volunteers are as­
signed to schools for the mentally retarded, disturbed and learning 
disabled children, Head Start Programs, juvenile detention centers, 
foster care programs, and in some cases to a child's home. AC­
TION's largest program, the Retired Senior Volunteer Program, 
sponsors 383,000 part-time, nonstipended volunteers who serve in 
nearly every area of social service, including literacy, crime pre­
vention and child abuse. 

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, as I have traveled across America 
and met with thousands of volunteers who are working to fight the 
root causes of poverty, I have seen their power to overcome any ob­
stacle. The American volunteer spirit extends far beyond AC­
TION's programs. By helping community projects become self-suffi­
cient, we are creating programs that will continue to succeed when 
Federal funding ends. ACTION's goal is to help community projects 
get started and to develop the operational excellence that attracts 
local funding and creates new public/private partnerships. 
ACTION is committed to expanding the volunteer tradition and to 
ensuring that every citizen who wishes to contribute will have an 
opportunity to do so. 

Thank you. 
[The prepared statement of Rick Ventura follows:] 
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Mr. Chairman, members of the Subcommittee, it is a pleasure 
to be with you today to testify on behalf of ACTION, the 
Federal Domestic Volunteer Agency. 

As ACTION's Deputy Director, I have traveled around the 
country to meet volunteers and community leaders. I have 
seen firsthand the great renewal of volunteer spirit and 
activity that has come ab~ut in the eighties. I have seen a 
great surge of private sector support for volunteers, and 
private involvement in building local volunteer projects. 

I can report that we are succeeding in achieving increased 
growth ana effectiveness of our ACTION volunteer programs 
without greater cost to the taxpayers, and in bolstering the 
efforts of private volunteer initiatives around the nation. 
As President Reagan has said, "The spirit of voluntarism is 
deeply ingrained in us as a nation. The American people 
u~derstand that there is no substitute for gifts of service 
given from the heart." 

That belief in citizen initiative is translating into many 
new community-based efforts aimed at the root causes of 
poverty. ACTION is proud to be a leader of these efforts. 
Volunteers are essential to America's social progress and we 
are working to see that every American who wants to volunteer 
has an opportunity to do so. 
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Currently, more than 400,000 citizens serve as ACTION 
Volunteers. They contribute over $350,000,000 in services to 
our country, a return of some 150 percent on our investment. 

But the dollar value of their service dOES not begin to 
describe the scope of their accomplishment or the benefits 
gained by both volunteers and those they serve. 

VOLUlrI'BBRS, IN SERVICE TO iU>IERICA (VISTA) 

Since 1964, VISTA, Volunteers in Service to America, has 
sought to reduce po~erty in the United States by bringing 
Americans from all walks of life, from all age groups, and 
from all geographic areas to address thia problem. Full time 
volunteers address problems affecting low-income youth, such 
as drug abuse, illiteracy, unemploymgnt, hunger and child 
abuse. Their activities also include SUPP0ll:t for shelters 
for the homeless, foodbanks, economic development, migrant 
and refugee assistance, and neighborhood revitalization. 

The volunteers, approximately a third of whom are low-income, 
are assigned to public and private non-profit organizations. 
VISTA awards funds, assigns volunteers, and shares technical 
assistance with communities to strengthen their efforts in 
addressing local problems. When VI~TA volunteers help women 
heading households end welfare dependency and enter the work 
force, when older volunteers teach illiterate citizens to 
read or help young people abandon drugs or never use them at 
all, our society gains in every way. In fiscal year 1986, 
VISTA volunteers contributed 2,413 service years to over 500 

communites. This year we again expect to contribute 2,400 

service years. 
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As of September 1986, 127 VISTA Volunteers were serving on 31 
Child Abuse projects. 

In Buffalo New York, Parents Anonymous of Buffalo and Erie 
County, is a community based organization for abused and 
troubled minorities living in rural areas. Special focus is 
placed on preventing child abuse. Four VISTA volunteers 
assist in recruiting and training community residents to 
carry out service programs, such as the 24-hour Parent Help 
Line, parent telephone exchange, outreach and crisis 
interven~ion, and community education. A major 
accomplishment of this group is the development of a 
AParent-Member Volunteer Support Program. a 

In Bowling Green, Kentucky, the Barent River Area Safe Space 
(BRASS) provides emetgency shelter ana support services for 
abused women and children. Here, four VISTA volunteers 
assist in developing programs which explore the cause and 
effects of family violence on children. The volunteers work 
to develop activities for children that build self-esteem, 
communication and socialization skills, and non-violent 
discipline techniques for parents. BRASS's accomplishments 
include creating a counseling and child development program 
for troubled children and youth. 

The Montana Chnpter of the National Committee for Prevention 
of Child Abuse encourages the creation of, and provides 
support to, local cOmfu~~ities that work toward the prevention 
vf child abuse. Ten VISTA volunteers working in the 
communities have increased public awareness and community 
volunteer involvement and have established an information and 
support system for preventing child abuse. 
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ACTION has been at the forefront of the Administration's 
fight against drug abuse. In addition to supporting 
community efforts through the award of Demonstration Grants, 
VISTA volunteers work in alcohol and drug abuse prevention 
projects throughout the country. 

One example of a VISTA project which is now fully funded at 
the local level is the Altheia House in Birmingham, Alabama, 
which is a multi-program, drug and alcohol prevention agency 
that provides alternatives to using drugs. Five VISTA 
volunteers started and managed a substance abuse and 
prevention curriculum for young people in kindergarten 
thrDugh third grade. The volunteers took this curriculum 
into achools and worked ~ith the young. These same VISTA 
volunteers also set up summer recreational programs and 
presented these as an alternative to spending the summer on 
the street. 

Similarly, the Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) and the 
National High School Athletic Association, in cooperation 
with the New Hampshire Office of Alcohol and Drug Abuse 
Prevention, in Concord, New Hampshire, has six VISTA 
volunteers who assist community groups in developing methods 
to respond to youth with alcobol and drug abuee problems. 
Activities include the establishment of a community task 
force. The task force is an example of community partnership 
and includes representatives from law enforcement, education, 
business, health and parent groups. 

VISTA volunteers are also instrumental in helping to combat 
illiteracy. As of September 1986, 474 VISTA's were serving 
in 108 literacy projects in 40 states. 
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In Texas, four VISTA volunteers, serving with the Good 
Samaritan of Garland, are reaching out to support marginally 
literate low-income students with reading, writing, and 
comprehension problems. 

VISTA has approved the placement of 15 volunteers under the 
new VISTA Literacy Corps program to the Center for Community 
Education of Montana State University located in Bozeman, 
Montana. These volunteers will be placed throughout the 
State to coordinate the literacy efforts of adult and 
community. education programs. Eight communities and three 
Indian Reservations will each host a VISTA Literacy Corps 
volunteer. 

Other success stories i~clude the sixteen volunteers assigned 
to the Mayor's Commission on Literacy in Philadelphia, who 
have involved the private sector in the development of a 
city-wide referral outreach system. Six Spanish speaking 
VISTA volunteers assigned to Heritage College in Toppenish, 
Washington, succeeded in publishing English lessons in the 
Yakima Valley Spanish paper AVIVA c and the airing of these 
lessons twice daily on the local Spanish radio station KDNA. 

The ten VISTA volunteers assigned to the Minnesota Literacy 
Council in St. Paul working with Hmong refugees have, through 
outreach efforts, secured the donation of nearly 6,000 

community volunteer hours. In Arkansas, seven 
volunteers assigned to the local Arkansas Literacy Councils 
developed a video literacy public service announcement and 
established a literacy speakers bureau in all counties. 

DEMONSTRATION GRANTS 

ACTION's demonstration grant program has enabled communities 
to test and replicate innovative solutions to chronic social 
problems through the development of effective volunteer 
efforts. 
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Since 1982, the Demonstration Grant Program has awarded over 
half a million dollars to support projects which raise the 
literacy level of youths and adults in economically 
distressed communities. Experience to date demonstrates that 
trained volunteers are effective. We have worked closely 
with Laubach Literacy InteEnational and Literacy Volunteers 
of America. Other literacy projects included Big Brothers/Big 
Sisters of Nassau County in Hempstead, New York, Colonias Del 
Valle located in Pharr, Texas, and the YWCA of EI Paso, and 
community·motivators in New York City. 

ACTION is currently funding the Minneapolis Foundation to 
establish an Urban Literacy Development Fund. The purpose of 
the fund is to provide gFants. communication, training and 
advocacy in support of literacy efforts in 12 urban 
metropolitan areas. These test demonstration sites are part 
of a cooperative plan to increase public, private and 
volunteer resources. Moreover, they will identify 
organizations that address urban /literacy issues, to develop 
alliances and expand resources. 

ACTION received $3 million this fiscal year to mobilize and 
initiate priv~te sector efforts to increase voluntarism in 
preventing drug ~buse through education and public awareness. 

The ACTION Drug Alliance is developing initiatives to expand 
drug abuse prevention ana education activities of 
community-based volunteer groups, with emphasis on long-term 
self-sufficiency through private sector support. 

Our drug abuse prevention and education programs include 
awarding of dei!onstration grants to community projects that 
are models of :Jccess and ongoing self-sufficiency, providing 
technical assistance and information exchange through 



225 

- 7 -

workshops for parent, youth, service, religious, school and 
business groups, and creating a nationwide alliance of 
community organizations, service groups, businesses and 
corporations. Our efforts are aimed at helping parent, 
family, and youth peer groups, become self-sufficient by 
forming partnerships with service, religious and educational 
organizations, the business community, and other privarte 
supporters. 

Further, during the past five years, ACTION has committed , 
approximately 40% of its Special Volllnteer Demonstration 
Program funds, approximately $500,000 each year, to assist 
local volunteer parent groups prevent drug abuse by youth. 
This money has supported 30 statewide volunteer networking 
projects which distribu~e information on the negative 
consequence .... to h~alth of drug abuse and by helping volunteer 
parent groups develop and/or expand their efforts. In 
addition, ACTION has funded national organizations to provide 
technical assistance and resource information to individuals 
and organizations seeking to create a drug free environment 
for youth. 

Compeer in Rochester, New York, addresses the problems of the 
developmentally disabled. This national technical assistance 
organization is replicating a program that matches a 
volunteer with a mentally impaired individual in order to 
help that person achieve a greater degree of 
self-sufficiency. Compeer has helped over 100 local projects 
develop the Compeer Program. 

Compeer recently began work with a homeless project in North 
Dallas to serve as the first Compeer program for the 
homeless. In addition, Compeer effectively serves as a 
homeless prevention program by providing a 'iTolunteer to keep 
mentally impaired individuals from slipping into 
hOlllelessness. 
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The New York Voluntary Enterprise Commission and the New York 
State Department of Social Services are jointly sponsoring a 
foster care independence project that recruits and trains 
volunteers from business, the trades, and other professions 
to teach independent living skills to foster care youth in 
Brooklyn and Syracuse, New York. 

Covenant House, in New York City, is operating a long-term 
residential and job t~aining program for runaway and homeless 
youth. Twenty five percent of the youth in the program are 
from Brooklyn. 

In San Francisco, ACTION awards in FY 85 and FY 87 has 
enabled Youth Advocates,. Inc. to help runaway and homeless 
youth obtain safe housing until they can return home or be 
processed by the juvenile justice system. 

OLDER rumRICAN VOLtm'l'EER PROGlU'llm 

ACTION's three Older American Volunteer Programs offer men 
and women 60 and over the opportunity to apply their 
knowledge, maturity and caring where they are most needed. 
These pograms continue to lead the way by fully using the 
skills and wisdom of older volunteers to help address social 
issues. The Foster Grandparent, Retired Senior Volunteer, 
and Senior Companion Programs provide unparalleled 
experiences in personal development and satisfaction. 

FOSTER GRANDPARBNT PROGRAN 

The Foster Grandparent Program, since 1965, has matched 
low-income seniors with children who have special or 
exceptional needs. Volunteers are assigned to schools for 
the mentally retarded, disturbed and learning disabled 
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children, Head Start Programs, juvenile detention centers, 
boarding s~hools, foster care programs, and in some cases to 
a child's nome. More than 7,000 Foster Grandparents assist 
some 26,000 children in foster care facilities, and 10,000 
additional volunteers are involved in literacy programs 
helping about 37,000 children on any given day. 

RE'l'IRIm SImIOR VOLum.'BER PROGRAM 

The Retired Senior Volunteer Program, initiated in 1971, is 
ACTION's largest program. It currently sponsors 383,000 

part-time, non-stipended volunteers who are age 60 or older. 
RSVP volunteers serve in nearly every area of social service, 
including literacy, cr,ime prevention, in-home care, youth 
counseling, consumer education, and drug abuse prevention 
projects. Programs and services for the mentally retarded 
and developmentally disabled include assignments in 
residential and non residential settings. 

SImIOR cm:n>MIOIll PROGRAJ1;1 

ACTION estimates that in 1988 our appropriation will fund 
some 5,500 Senior Companion volunteer service years through 
our SCP programs. These volunteers will serve more than 
24,400 persons at 118 projects around the United States, 
including 900 volunteers who serve in 22 non-ACTION funded 
projects. One component of the Senior Companion Program, the 
Home Bound Elderly, provides thousands of older Americans an 
alternative to institutional living. 

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, I have travelled across America 
and met with thousands of volunteers as they fight the root 
causes of poverty. I have seen their power to overcome any 
obstacle. Americans volunteer spirit extends far beyond 
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ACTION's programs. We will tap the enormous resources our 
citizens offer. We will work to intensify and extend 
involvement with individuals, businesses, non-profit 
organizations and local governments to create new, lasting 
volunteer programs. By helping community projects become 
self-sufficient we are creating programs that will continue 
to succeed when federal funding ends. ACTION's goal is to 
help community projects get started and to develop the 
operational excellence that attracts local funding and 
creates new public/private sector partnerships. 

Our focus is local. At ACTION, we believe that there are no 
greater resources for meeting the challenges of the 21st 
century than the independence, ingenuity and initiative of 
local citizens. Community volunteers have always been vital 
to the advancement of the United States as a free and 
democratic country. ACTION is committed to expanding that 
volunteer tradition and to ensuring that every citizen who 
wishes to contribute will have an opportunity to volunteer. 
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Mr. OWENS. Mr. Tom Nerney? 

STATEMENT OF THOMAS NERNEY ON BEHALF OF THE ASSOCIA­
TION FOR CHILDREN AND ADULTS WITH SEVERE DISABILITY 

Mr. NERNEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I am here today representing TASH, The Association for Chil­

dren and Adults with Severe Disabilities. TASH is an association of 
over 7,000 individuals in this country, Canada and abroad whose 
sole concern are those folks who are labeled most severely disabled 
by this society. 

My written testimony, which I have already given in, covers 
some of the evidence regarding physical and sexual abuse and some 
of the difficulties facing families, and especially foster parents, 
where approximately 10 percent of all child abuse cases go either 
for temporary or permanent placement. My remarks today I would 
like to confine to two issues. I would like to discuss briefly the role 
of Medicaid in, first, health care, and the issue there is one of med­
ical neglect; and, two, in terms of long-term care, and the issue 
there of course is physical and psychological abuse. I would like to 
end with a few comments on another issue, the growing use of 
State-sanctioned violence against children with disabilities under 
the rubric of aversive therapy. 

Building upon the historical amendments to the Child Abuse Act 
3 years ago, which provided the provision of medically indicated 
treatment for newborns with life threatening conditions, it is neces­
sary I feel to ensure continued access to needed medical care for, 
one, abused children with disabilities and, two, children with dis­
abilities who are at high risk for abuse. Fundamental reform is 
necessary to ensure adequate medical care for these two popula­
tions. 

Reform of Title 19 of the Social Security Act is important, then, 
in conjunction with this hearing on child abuse for two fundamen­
tal reasons. First, natural, foster and adoptive parents of children 
with disabilities must be guaranteed equal access to health care in 
America, through requiring at the very least all health care provid­
ers to accept either current or enhanced payment through Medic­
aid reimbursement, and thereby reducing potential medical neglect 
of abused children with disabilities. 

Second, Title 19 Medicaid must be fundamentally altered by re­
directing public resources now spent to separate disabled children 
who are at risk for abuse from their families-that is, by paying to 
institutionalize disabled children. These funds redirected back to 
our communities provide, almost always at less public cost, services 
to enable a family to care for their disabled child at home and 
thereby greatly reduce the risk for abuse for this population. 

While it is clear that this committee may not have all the juris­
diction necessary to effect these two reforms, it is possible for this 
committee to raise these issues in conjunction with the reauthor­
ization of the Child Abuse Act. You have to imagine, for example, a 
parent turned down by a leading doctor in a community, solely be­
cause that doctor does not accept Medicaid reimbursement. Unfor­
tunately, this is a pervasive problem facing parents with disabled 
children and other caretakers. 
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The un articulated but very real policy of this Government unfor­
tunately under Medicaid forces a family to surrender their child in 
need of services to an institution, especially if that child is develop­
mentally disabled. The institutionalized child then is at higher risk 
for abuse. 

The last issue that I wish to discuss has not historically been ad­
dressed under the area of child abuse. It is the growing use of aver­
sive, often extreme aversive techniques used to modify the behavior 
of persons with disabilities. I would like, with your permission, to 
leave for the record the inquest into the death of Vincent Milletich 
in 1985, who was under the care of the Behavior Research Institute 
in Massachusetts and Rhode Island, who died while being re­
strained with a helmet that emitted static noise into his ears. 

Mr. OWENS. You may submit it for the record. 
Mr. NERNEY. Pardon me? 
Mr. OWENS. You may leave it for the record. 
Mr. NERNEY. Thank you. 
The judge ruled in that case that it was not assault and battery 

because it constituted therapy and consent was obtained from the 
parents. Were Vincent Milletich a resident of a State prison, that 
would never have happened to him. Our State statutes barring this 
kind of abuse of animals are clear. The statutes, especially under 
the 8th Amendment barring cruel or unusual punishment, barring 
these interventions from being used with criminals, are also clear. 

Given the complexity of this issue, I will ask your permission to 
submit one more thing for the record, and that is a monograph pro­
duced by TASH on the history and the present status of aversives 
in this country as they are used with severely disabled people. Al­
though effective nonaversive procedures are available, they are not 
always employed or routinely administered. 

From mild pain and humiliation to extreme pain and, yes, to 
even death, extreme aversive procedures are gradually becoming 
an accepted mechanism for intervening with children and adults 
with disabilities. The conspiracy of silence among professionals and 
others involved in this practice can only be broken with a thorough 
and competent investigation by this Congress, and hopefully this 
committee. 

Thank you. 
[The prepared statement of Thomas Nerney follows:] 
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Child Abuse and Disability 

Depending on the duration and severity of child abuse, 

often disability results, ranging from minor and temporary to 

major and life long. The National Center for Child 

Abuse and Neglect in 1986 reported 1.9 million cases 

of child abuse in 1985 occurring in anywhere from 10 to 

20 percent of the home in the United states. 

There is some evidence to indicate that child abuse is 

likely to happen in some homes of handicapped children 

and certain evidence that child abuse itself is at least 

one major cause of disability. 

To the extenot that data is available, understanding the 

under reporting in this area, children with disabilities 

and their families need much greater protection and resources 

from the present system. 

studies from as far back as 1962 by C. Henry Kempe, M.D., 

found that 85 of 302 abused children in 71 hospitals had 

suffered neurological damage and that 33 of this sample died. 

Janice watson's writing in the September 1984 issue of the 

Exceptional Parent reported on some of the results of the 

Seattle Rape Relief Developmental Disabilities Project. That 

report estimated that as many as five hundred mentally and 

1 
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physically disabled children and adults are the victims of 

sexual abuse each year in the Seattle area alone. 

The emerging literature on disabilities and child abuse (a 

brief list is attached) indicate serious problems endemic 

to both the system set up to protect children from child 

abuse and those systems designed to provid~ services to 

persons with disabilities - chronicled most recently by 

the Senate Sub-Committee on the Handicapped Report on abuse 

and neglect in our public institutions for persons with 

disabilities. 

Another serious side to this national problem lies in the lack 

of adequate services and monitoring for those abused children 

placed in foster care - a number estimated by the National 

Center for child Abuse and Neglect to be approximately 10 percent 

of all reported cases of child abuse. 

Abused children, who have been victimized and trauI,latized, 

present a totally different, and frequently exhausting, parenting 

challenge. Adoptive/foster parents and service providers face a 

myriad of unique problems and concerns when providing care, 

services, and/or managing these children. According to research, 

some young children who have experienced traumatic events (even 

before they possess the ability to speak) may remember these 

episodes accurately when they are three or four years old (Todd 

2 
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and 'Perlmutter, 

past incidents 

1980) • Children have the capacity to remember 

as well as adults (Lindberg, 1980). Abused 

children can and do have memories of their previous abuse, and 

the consequences of those "flash-backs" further compound the 

p.xisting physical, behavioral, emotional, and/or educational 

handicaps foster/adoptive parents encounter (Purdy, 1986). 

Removal from an 

psychological trauma. 

abusive home cannot heal the child 's 

These traumas may still continue to re-

surface at later times. When abuse has occurred in infancy, the 

"now verbal" preschool child may exhibit insorutable behaviors of 

fearfulness, anger, and/or aggression. Foster/adoptive parents 

need to be prepared for these responses and cognizant of the 

probability of a link between tnem. Care providers also need to 

know the signs and symptoms of potential emotional reactions. 

Most of all, foster/adoptive parents of such children need to 

know that although these reactions may not occur, the child (even 

one who is very y,:>ungl may "relive" or remember this abuse 

experience. strategies must be provided to these parents to help 

previously abused children deal with their debilitating, 

emotional scars (Puredy, 1986). 

The successful resolution or management of many of the problems 

of previously abused children depends upon the competence of 

their care and service providers. This is not an easy task when 

dealing with the non-abused population, but becomes even more 

:3 
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complex, frt1strating, and difficult wi th previously abused 

children. Their families face sociological, psychological, and 

physiological variables when attempting to teach appropriate 

social skills and behaviors to these children. Families may 

experience conflicts associated with other family members as a 

result of the stress and demands imposed by providing support to 

the abused child. 

Once children enter the legal and social service system, it is 

probable they will be placed in a foster placement; and perhaps, 

ultimately, in an adoptive placement. Service providers must not 

only plan for the needs of the child but be aware of the special 

problems confronting foster and adoptive parents. There is a 

general disparity in services from one area to another ,.,hether 

within a single state or from state to s1:ate. often, foster 

parents who suspect a child has special needs do not know where 

to go or how to get services. They do not kno~l how to get 

suppcrt for themselves in coping with these children's special 

needs. Service providers needs to be aware of the legal rights 

of foster and adoptive parents. These rights vary by county or 

state, and are especially critical wnen foster/adoptive parents 

need to access special services for these children. Getting 

biological parents or state permission for specialized critical 

medical records may be difficult as well and, in some cases, 

impossible (Purdy, 1986). 

4 
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Foster/adoptive parents need education, information, and 

training. They usually do not kno~'l how to handle the emotional 

and behavioral sequelae associated with abuse. They need a 

comfortable approach to behavior management, especially as they 

have no way of knowing what of their own behavior may produce 

recall/memories from the child's past. 

Given the many and necessary reforms which l'lould be desirable, I 

would like to concentrate solely on the following issues today. 

Building \:.pon the historical amendments to the child Abuse 

Prevention ~nd Treatment Act three years ago which required the 

provision of medically indicated treatment for new-borns with 

life-threatening conditions, it is necessary to insure continued 

access to needed medical care for 1) abused children with 

disability and 2) children with disabilities who are at hIgh risk 

for abuse. 

Fundamental reform is necessary to insure adequate medical care­

for these two populations. Reform of Title XIX of the Social 

Security Act is important for two fundamental reasons: 

First, natural, foster and adoptive parents of children with 

disabilities must be guaranteed equal access to health care in 

America through requiring all health care providers to accept 

either currnt or enhanced payment through Medicaid reimbursement 

5 
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and thereby reducing protential medical neglect of the abused 

children with disabilities. 

Second, Title XIX, Medicaid, must be fundamentally altered 

by re-directing public resources now spent to separate disabled 

children, who are at risk for abuse, from their families, (i.e., 

by paying to institutionalize a disabled person). These funds 

must be re-directed back to our communities, provide almost 

always at less public cost, services to enable a family to care 

for their disabled child at home and thereby greatly reducing the 

risk for abuse for this population. 

While it is clear that this committee may not have all of the 

jurisdiction necessary to effect these two reforms it is possible 

for this committee to raise these issues in ways that may 

encourage other members of the congress to grapple with them. 

Imagine the parent turned down by the leading doctor in a 

community solely because that doctor does not accept medicaid 

reimbursement. Unfortunately this is a pervasive problem facing 

parents with disabled chilr!ren and with other caretakers. The 

unequal treatment of medicaid recipient children with 

disabilities in the provision of medical care is exacerbated by 

this added frustration. 

The unarticulated but real public policy of this government under 

6 
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Medicaid forces a family to su~render their child to an 

institution epecially if the child is developmentally disabled. 

The instititutionalized child is at higher risk for abuse. 

'rhe fundamental reform necessary in the 1CF-MR program, led in 

the last Congress by senator Chafee and Representative Florio 

would have begun to recognize families as the primary caregivers 

for disabled children and would have addressed two major areas 

where child abuse can be ameliorated. First by providing 

families with elementary and inexpensive services such as respite 

care and second, by providing incentive to bring disabled 

children (and adults) out of institutions where abuse and neglect 

are pervasive and return them with essential services to our 

communities. 

One last issue which has not historically been addressed in the 

are of child abuse is the growing use of aversive often 

extreme aversive techniques used to modify the behavior of 

persons with disabilities. 

on September 10, 1986 an inquest was begun in a Massachusetts 

court to determine the circumstances surrounding the death of a 

young man, severely disabled, under the care of the Behavior 

Research Institute. There was no debate surrounding what 

happened to Vincent Milletich - he was placed in restraints, both 

hands and feet and a helmet was placed over his head - a helmet 

7 
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~qhich emitted static through ear phones placed in it. The 

offense which this young man committed was to make a noise, 

deemed inappropriate by the staff, while he was seated. Vincent 

Milletich died a short time later. Although the Behavior 

Research Institute was cited for negligence in the design of the 

helmet they were exonorated of the death. 

The judge ruled that what happened here was not assault and 

battery because it constituted therapy and consent was obtained 

from the parents. 

I use this extreme example only to illustrate the lengths to 

which we have gone in authorizing the infliction of pain and 

punishment - pain and punishment which is already outlawed in 

virtually every state were it to be used on animals and is 

generally prohibited on criminals under the cruel and unusual 

punishment interpretation of the eighth amendment. 

Were Vincent Melletich a residE'.nt of a state prison it is 

probable that this would never have happened. 

Given the complexity of this issue and recognizing possible 

overlapping jurisdictions I would like to request that members of 

this committee look closely at this issue. I am providing with 

this testimony a monograph of the Association for Persons with 

Severe Handicapf:' entitled "Use of Aversive Procedures wi.th 

8 
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Persons who are Disabled: .~ Historical Review and Critical 

Analysis". 

It is my contention that horrible abuse and demeaning 

interventions - interventions which meet the definition of child 

~buse, are more and more routinely sanctioned by professionals in 

every part of this country. Although effective non-aversive 

procedures are availabJe they are not always employed or 

routinely administered. From m~ld pain and humiliation to 

extreme pain and yes, even death, extreme aversive procedures are 

gradually becoming an accepted mechanism for intervening with 

children and adults with disabilities. The conspiracy of silence 

among the professionals and others involved in this practice can 

only be broken with a thorough and competent investigation by 

thi~ Con,,;ress and hopefully this committee. 
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Mr. OWENS. I want to thank you all for testifying and for wait­
ing. It has been a long morning but we are under extreme time 
constraint with respect to completing the l"eauthorization process 
for this bill. Therefore, it was necessary to have this as a conclud­
ing hearing and we wanted to hear from as many people as possi-
b~. . 

I would like to open the questions with a basic question. Ms. 
Joyce Thomas will be sitting in to replace Mr. Roberts and deal 
with any questions related to that area. 

Protective services are funded extensively by the Government, 
already. To what degree can our problems be solved by calling for a 
revamping of protective services, the way they are handled, or the 
inclusion of more preventive services under the protective services 
programs? Is that a reasonable approach? What has your experi­
ence been which would lead you to believe otherwise, or any com­
ments you would like to make on that? 

Ms. COHN. The data that we have gathered to date on preventive 
services suggests that home health visitors, various kinds of parent­
ing education and parent support programs, other programs that 
emanate out of hospitals or community centers, are those that 
appear to be the most effective. It would be my belief that those 
are probably best offered by hospitals, community agencies, and 
the like, public health nurses, if you will, rather than by protective 
services. 

So I think that if we are thinking in terms of primary preventive 
services, we probably need to look to some other agencies within 
State government to take at least a significant portion of the re­
sponsibility. On the other hand, if you were to look at the--

Mr. OWENS. What of the funding, the funds that are provided via 
protective services? 

Ms. COHN. Well, we would have to figure out some ways to in­
volve the right kinds of people. 

Mr. OWENS. What if these other agencies were made eligible to 
receive those funds? 

Ms. COHN. It woula be important to seek the right kind of people 
to deliver those services, I think. These are not services that are 
necessarily best offered by a social worker, which is the typical 
kind of--

Mr. OWENS. That is not what I had in mind. The great problem 
is that we need funding. If some of these activities related to pre­
vention and adoption and justice, et cetera, were eligible for fund­
ing under the child protective services--

Ms. COHN. Where I think the value would be, would be with the 
vast number of cases that are reported to protective services, fami­
lies that. are labeled as at high risk, m~ny of which are opened up 
for treatment. What they need are some preventive or early inter­
vention services, and there I think protective services could playa 
very substantial role. 

Mr. OWENS. Any other comments? 
Ms. THOMAS. Yes. I would like to add to the issue, again pointing 

to the high volumes of minority children who are in the system 
and the whole question of using funds and utilizing funds for train­
ing of increased sensitivity on how to handle these families, how to 
work with these families, and also the criteria for decisionmaking. 
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You alluded earlier to the issue of high numbers of unsubstantiat­
ed cases. There really still is an issue in terms of how decisions are 
being made, what kinds of tools are used by individual workers, 
and all of these aspects now, taking some of factors we know about 
child abuse and neglect and refining and sophisticating our ap­
proach, particularly for the high volumes of vulnerable children 
and the very complex cases that we are faced with. 

Mr. OWENS. You say minority children are in the same category 
as handicapped children? Color becomes a handicapping condition? 

Ms. THOMAS. Well, it is really hard to pit one child issue against 
.mother in that respect. I think there are many handicapped chil­
dren who are minorities, and vice versa. I think the question of 
need, particularly when you look at what is being counted, certain­
ly keeping in mind those things that are not well counted, which is 
the volume of handicapped children in the system, really points to 
we need to do something about the problems that we do see. 

We know that there is an overabundance of cases of minorities 
in the system, and we know the training and the materials and 
sensitivity for workers has not been at the level to address these 
families. We see this in the burn-out. We see this in lack of leader­
ship in the area, and the problem does continue. We need to get on 
both ends of the continuum, in the acute area as well as in the pre­
ventive area. 

Mr. OWENS. Any other comments on the basic question about 
protective services? You have firsthand knowledge of--

Ms. YOUNG. I would like to speak to the issue of prevention pro­
grams through protective services. I think we need more preven­
tion programs in the various disciplines. Protective services is in a 
good position to administer or apply or put together prevention 
programs, but we are so overwhelmed with the work that we are 
doing at the present time, that we have not been able to address 
this area as fully as we might if we had funding to do more in the 
way of prevention programs. 

Mr. OWENS. Any other comments? 
[No response.] 
A lot of frustrations are expressed here. We feel them on our 

side, too, and I wonder what could a more effective NCCAN adviso­
ry board do in terms of helping to resolve some of these problems 
and make better use of the limited funds? We agree you all have 
limited funds and need more funding, but are we using what we 
have as effectively as we can, and could the NCCAN advisory 
board play a major role in seeing to it that we use what we have 
more effectively? Dr. Chadwick, you expressed a great deal of com­
mitment and frustration, I think, in your--

Dr. CHADWICK. Well, I am not so sure if it belongs in the advisory 
board, where it is probably already there, but I think that within 
the NCCAN itself and close to the top-first of all, the whole orga­
nization needs to be moved up a notch or two closer to the Secre­
tary in order to be able to do something useful, but that has been 
said a bunch of times before, and then there needs to be a greater 
health presence there. There needs to be a doctor in NCCAN. 

Mr. OWENS. Any other recommendations for the NCCAN adviso­
ry board? 

Dr. CHADWICK. Or a nurse. 
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Mr. OWENS. No one has any recommendations for the NCCAN 
advisory board? 

Dr. CHADWICK. Or a public health person. 
Ms. COHN. I think that every day there are decisions that are 

probably made at NCCAN or above NCCAN that directly influence 
the kind of programs that they fund and, in the longer term, how 
they will use the results that they get back from those programs 
and that research. It seems to me that with a staff of 8 or 10 or 15 
or 20, people who in essence are somewhat isolated from what is 
going on in the field, one can't always make rational or useful deci­
sions. I think the advisory board is a beginning. There are about 15 
public members on that, as well as representatives from across 
the--

Mr. OWENS. Well, does your organization have any input in rec­
ommending people for NCCAN, or any of your organizations have 
input? 

Ms. COHN. No, no. 
Mr. OWENS. You are not consulted on any of those recommenda­

tions'? 
Ms. COHN. It is not my belief that that is how people are select­

ed, and that would certainly be a useful thing to do, to ask the 
field, "What kinds of people do you think should serve on this advi­
sory board?" but then once you have an advisory board, to ask for 
their advice. You know, if you are thinking about dramatically 
changing how the Federal Government funds a study that gathers 
the only national data base that we have, the national data base 
that the American Humane Association has now been gathering 
for 18 years, and there is a thought about changing that in a dra­
matic way, it would make sense, at least to me, to get some advice 
from people in the field. 

If you have an advisory board, that is the place to begin. Now 
they may not all be the experts on this, but they may be able to 
recommend other people who can. That is the kind of decision that 
is being made this week or this month, that I think desperately 
needs input from the field. I would recommend that the advisory 
board be used extensively for that. 

Ms. THOMAS. I would like to add to that point. There is an adviso­
ry board and it is made public in the Federal Register, which again 
means that when these meetings are held which are open to the 
public, a large percentage of people who do not have access to the 
Federal Register may not even be aware of the presence of this ad­
visory board, which only meets twice a year. 

To add to that, the field is more sophisticated. I think we can 
look at history from the time that Dr. Kempe first talked about the 
battered child syndrome and go back 25 years. We have learned a 
lot but it is more sophisticated. We have more complicated kinds of 
topics that require forums for discussion from members of the field, 
that lends itself to enhancing and understanding of the people 
inside of the Nati.onal Center. I think that those kinds of forums, in 
addition to the advisory committee, should be established. 

We have talked about situations where custody is an issue and 
there is an allegation of abuse. We have talked about issues of 
handicapped children, issues of minorities, and numerous complex 
topics. In order to grapple with these, there need to be some !'emi-
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nars and forums, not ill a conference mechanism which is designed 
primarily as educational, but for think-tank approaches to clarify a 
central kind of thought as to how the priorities should be set. 

Some of these things simply are not occurring. It is a frustration 
for those in the field who look to the National Center for leader­
ship and advice and clarity as they are trying to prepare programs 
of innovation in the community. It is very difficult to find those 
kinds of resources, and that adds to the problems of implementa­
tion of this legislation. 

Mr. OWENS. Would it be useful to have the legislation encourage, 
I won't say mandate but encourage the establishment of coordinat­
ing committees of some kind at the local level, coordinating com­
mittees which would involve people in the area of serving the 
handicapped, the child abuse prevention group, the family violence 
prevention group, et cetera, and maybe even mandate that one­
third of the people serving must be former victims? Would that be 
useful or would it just create a lot of turmoil unnecessarily? They 
would have a function in terms of coordinating and recommending 
who gets what funds, for example, in the local area and for preven­
tive programs. 

Ms. THOMAS. I would probably suggest a task force to make a 
firmer recommendation on that question would perhaps be best, 
rather than to respond immediately. The issue--

Mr. OWENS. I want your gut reaction. 
Ms. THOMAS. Well, the coordination is certainly significant and 

should be formalized. I would say yes, it would be important to 
have that kind of information available. We all know coordination, 
again, is people issues, and sometimes that becomes more compli­
cated. I think bE'cause the field is so broad, that it would really be 
helptill to really question the whole utilization. 

I even suggested, in the development of some of these materials, 
that we look at the staffing and get a better understanding of what 
the problem really is. Is it the same, the turnover, the rapid loss of 
specialists in given areas, is it the same issues within the center as 
affecting professionals in the field? That is a question I don't think 
too many of us know and und.erstand. We know what is in the 
field. We know what burn-out is. We know why people become 
overwhelmed. It may be similar within the institution. 

Mr. OWENS. I am concerned about, do social workers in the pro­
tective agencies talk to people in the preventive programs, and do 
they all talk to district attorney representatIves, police department 
representatives, and what kind of structuring frum the Federal 
level might encourage that they do more of that? 

Ms. YOUNG. Because I am on the local level and I don't have the 
familiarity with all the national issues that many of my colleagues 
have, I can only speak to my experience in my community. We do 

. attempt to get together to talk about a coordinated program, and 
we do include citizens' action groups. We have the benefit--

Mr. OWENS. So you have met with representa.tives of the district 
attorney in the last year or so? 

Ms. YOUNG. That is correct. We do get together. In fact, our 
county is trying to put together a child center which would bring 
together services to abused and neglected children, a prevention 
program, sexually assaulted children, all under one roof, so we are 
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fortunate because we are a relatively affluent county, and this is 
not--

Mr. OWENS. This is all done informally? 
Ms. YOUNG [continuing]. This is not something that can be 

done--
Mr. OWENS. Is this done informally, or is there some county 

mandate or State mandate that they get together? 
Ms. YOUNG. The county has mandated that we bring together 

these services, but we have all been trying to do that for some 
time. I think what Joyce Thomas has said is true, that we need to 
look at ways of communicating with one another. 

We need to look at ways of making that happen, and I don't 
think that we have had enough experience in looking at the vari­
ous ways that we can communicate to say, "Well, this is the way" 
or "That's th~ way," but we need an opportunity to start to study 
the best ways to put together programs that won't get bogged down 
in special interest groups polarizing and just blocking the process 
of delivering these services to children, but will actually facilitate 
communication and cooperation and will make it happen. 

Mr. OWENS. Yes, Ms. Cohn? 
Ms. COHN. Actually, if you look across the country .it is sort of an 

interesting picture. The 41 States that now have Children's Trust 
Funds at the State level have some kind of an advisory body made 
up of public members who represent the variety of interests within 
the field of child abuse, as well as people perhaps from corpora­
tions or other kinds of private concerns, so that is one way in 
which at the State level you get some kind of coordinatioll going 
on, at least with respect to funding. 

I can't give you the exact number, but it may be somewhere be­
tween 18 and 20 States in addition to that which have Governor's 
Advisory Committees on Child Abuse that look both at the way in 
which the Protective Service System is working and also at what 
other kinds of things need to be happening in the State, and those 
most often are composed of people from the variety of different 
kinds of State agencies who are concerned with the problem, as 
well as concerned citizens. 

We also, the National Committee for Prevention of Child Abuse, 
have chapters in all 50 States, and most of them will bring togeth­
er people who represent the variety of interests in one way or an­
other. That is typically at the State level. 

Then when you go to the local community, in most States, in 
most counties or at least in some jurisdiction you will find some 
form of a child abuse coordinating counciL Some of them today are 
probably more skeletal than actually vibrant organizations, just be­
cause of all the work that people who normally serve on those 
councils have to do within their own agencies. They don't have the 
time to go and coordinate because they are so overburdened with 
the cases they have, hut you will find in many, many communities 
either they have been there, are there now, or maybe in some cases 
in fact are pretty vital organizations. 

It seems to me that a wonderful role for the Federal Government 
to play would be to look at ways to provide incentives to communi­
ties, as well as States that maybe don't have Governors' Advisory 
Committees, but specifically to look at incentives for communities 
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to develop or at least refurbish those kinds of councils where they 
have existed, so they can play the kind of role that needs to be 
played, which is that kind of coordination and communication. 

Mr. OWENS. Dr. Chadwick? 
Dr. CHADWICK. Well, Mr. Owens, you have a very radical notion. 

We have been calling this thing with which we deal with child 
abuse a system for years, and of course there has never been one, 
and what you are talking about is, maybe it could become one. I 
absolutely endorse what Ann Cohn is saying about providing Fed­
eral incentives to move in that direction. 

We have, California has, a Children's Trust Fund. We have 50-
odd cou.nties. Each one of them has a Child Abuse Coordinating 
Council. We have one. We get together. We are vibrant. We are 
educational. We do a lot of stuff, but we do not behalf Hke a 
system. We process. As soon as a child abuse report is made, we 
process children. We process families. We spit something out the 
other end. God knows what we are doing. 

The one thing that r. ~eds to be looked for is some way of comput­
ing accountability, responsibility, and some way of tracking what is 
happening by tracking children and families through this system to 
know how well we are doing. The person who starts it has no idea 
how it ends, the way things work now. Although we get together 
and talk, we do not have a systematic approach to the process that 
we are attempting to control, and in fact we do not control it. We 
do not manage it. 

Mr. OWENS. Mr. Nerney? 
Mr. NERNEY. Clearly one of the relationships that ought to be 

forged at the State level is between the State child protective 
agency and the State protective and advocacy agency funded under 
the Developmental Disabilities Act. Where you have some expertise 
in disability under the P and A system which is often missing from 
the child protective agency, I think that would go a long way 
toward helping in the investigation of incidents of abuse that affect 
people with disabilities. Clearly that is a resource that is in place 
right now. 'rhat kind of relationship between those two agencies I 
think would go a long way towards beginning to deal with the 
problem, certainly, of children who are abused and who are also 
disabled. 

Mr. OWENS. Thank you. Thank you all again. We will take into 
consideration your written comments as well as the comments you 
have made today. We do appreciate your patient waiting today. 
Thank you again. 

The hearing of the subcommittee is now adjourned. 
[Whereupon, at 1:39 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned, to recon­

vene subject to the call of the Chair.] 
[Additional material submitted for the record follows.] 
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Chairman Owens and members of the Special Education Subcommittee: 

I am Marlene Young, Executive Director of the National 
Organization for Victim Assistance. Founded in 1975, NOVA is the 
umbrella organization for this country's victims' movement, 
representing a memberShip of some 5,000 agencies and individuals 
and the millions of us who are victimized evety year. 

Your subcommittee is considering reauthorization of the Child 
Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act, the pioneer in Congressional 
support of improved treatment of crime victims. Though NOVA is 
warmly supportive of that entire program, my comments will be 
confined to an addition to the program, the Children's Justice and 
Assist,mce Act (CJAA), passed last year largely at the urging of 
this subcommittee. 

The special merits of CJAA in improving the Federal program of 
dealing with child abuse can be summarized as follows: 

o It puts a special focus on child sexual abuse -- a 
horrific, large portiun of the overall abuse problem, and one 
that has been insufficiently addressed up to nOli; 

o It recognizes th~ critical roles of law enforcement and 
prosecution in res~onding to these cases; 

o And most important, CJAA puts special emphasis on 
interdisciplinary approaches in reforming laws, poliCies, and 
practices to handle these cases and aid its victims. 

Our problems with CJAA are not over these substantive features but 
over its funding mechanism. Initially proposed to have a $12 
million authorization and appropriation, it was Jltimately funded 
with a 4.5 percent share of the "Crime Victims Fund", a dedicated 
trust funn created by the Victims of Crime Act, or VOCA. The 4.5 
percent share translated ipto about $3 million this year. 

The pragmatic reasons for tapping into the VOCA fund uere these: 

o The nominal "loser" in the transaction was a 5 percent 
share going to aid victims of Federal crime, (reduced to 1 
percent under the CJAA anendment). The Department of Justice 
had never implemented that program, and indeed, at the time 
that CJAA was being considered, the Department was deferring 
spending its first-year allocation of the "FederalS percent", 

o There being no current beneficiaries of the "Federal 5 
percent", it seemed fair to the CJAb. proponents to steer those 
VOCA dollars to where they were both needed and wanted -- and 
a "real" S3 million for the Children's Justice program was 
preferable to an "empty" authorization of $12 million. 

There were, then as now, some difficulties with that reasoning: 

o Most obviously, there are indeed victims of Federal crime 
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who have no services available to them -- even though it is 
the fines of Federal offenders -- their offenders -- which 
fund VOCA. ThUS, CJAA made Federal victims suffer for the 
Justice Department's misuse of the "Federal 5 percent" program. 

o Ironically, even while it reduced the Federal victims' 
share to one percent, CJAA also reformed the Federal victims' 
program to protect it from future neglect or mismanagement by 
the Justice Department. TI1US, that program is now a far 
tighter, mandatory service to such victims -- but it has next 
to no resources to carry out its mission. 

o Substantively, the Children's Justice program is an 
anomalous add-on to VOCA (although a welcome improvement to 
the child abuse program). Unlike the other VOCA components, 
CJAA does not pay just for direct services. Also, VOCA had 
already made programs aiding child abuse victims one of three 
priorities to receive VOCA victim assistance subgrants. 
Generically, child abuse got a second bite on the apple. 

o And most basically, Congress was legislating further aid to 
the victims of state crime -- and inducing states to reform 
their criminal laws and procedures -- while reducIng aid to 
the victims of c~imes that are exclusively under the dominion 
of Congressional legislative authority. 

NOVA made these and other arguments to Congress in urging that 
some other mechanism be found to fund CJAA. Though unavailing at 
the time, we have since learned more about the needs -- the unmet 
needs -- of Federal victims since the CJAA!VOCA marriage was 
arranged. 

The follOwing examples suggest the desirability of Congressional 
re-examination of the wisdom of substituting a new child abuse 
program for the sole program for Federal victims: 

o The families of hostages held in Beirut -- as well as 
repatriated hostage families -- are all victims of a uniquely 
Federal crime. Both expert counsel and the wishes of the 
families themselves agree that the powers of mutual support -­
among the far-flung loved ones of a given hostage, and across 
the affected family groups -- are the most effective tools of 
coping with the extreme stresses of hostage-taking. In fact, 
the families were once able to get together periodically, and 
to have their long-distance phone bills subsidized, until 
their private and donated resources ran out. Now, they carry 
on in painful isolation. 

o Last summer, 14 U.S. postal employees were murderpd and 
several others were wounded by one of their co-workers in the 
Edmond, Oklahoma, post office. No Federal "crisis response 
team" existed to help orchestrate services to this close-knit 
family of grieving Federal employees, much less to the 
emergency workers or members of the larger community who were 
stunned by this massacre. Instead, a volunteer team of NOVA 
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staff and consultants filled in, as we have since done after 
other disasters, including a second one with a special tie to 
the national government, namely, the Conrail-Amtrak train 
crash near Baltimore last winter. 

a A problem affecting a larger number of Federal victims is 
the near-void of services to the victims of felonious violence 
found on many American Indian reservations. In a recent 
speech at a NOVA trainirg conference, Iva Tr~ttier, working 
for the Indian Health Service on the Ft. Peck Reservation, 
described the overwhelming numbers of child sexual abuse cases 
she is faced with -- and she has no counterpart victim 
counselors on most reservations. And the Justice Department 
recently spent much of its Federal victim assistance funds 
this year to aid the many victims of just one child molester 
who had been a BIA teacher on the Hopi reservation in Arizona. 

I should underscore that our own education in the need for a 
Federal victim assistance program on Indian reservations has 
focused on the near-epidemic of child sexual abuse on some 
reservations. While that situation should be of special concern 
to this subcommittee, I should also stress that there are 
thousands of other cases of traumatic crime committed on these 
reservations -- and in other places where Federal criminal justice 
authorities have exclusive jurisdiction -- and these victims also 
deserve responsiveness from Congress. 

So how might we begin to respond more compassionately to these 
Federal victims of child abuse and other forms of cruelty? 

Perha?s the most obvious -- and surely the most pragmatic -­
answer l{ould be to simply repeal the Children 1 s Justice and 
Assistance Act. After all, as I understand it, not one cent of 
its VOCA allocation has yet been spent. Like the "Federal 5 
percent" program last year, CJAA has nO "current beneficiaries", 

That is a pseudo-solution that NOVA resists very strongly. 

When CJAA \{as hastily put forward with its new funding scheme, 
NOVA opposed it on two grounds of principle: 

o Victims who have been promised government aid should not be 
treated as non-beneficiaries merely because the bureaucrats 
have not yet made good on that statutory commitment; 

o And policy-makers should not seek to aid one group of 
deserving victims by taking resources away from another group 
of deserving victims. 

We hold to these principles today. Victim& ~f Federal crime 
should not see their hopes of compassionate services r"alized at 
the cost of sbolishing a highly p,'mising Federal initiative to 
aid the \'ic tims of child se:tual abuse. 

A more reasoned and principled aolution would be to sustain the 
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$3 million Federal subsidy of that reform effort, but to do so in 
the same manner that the rest of tl,e Child Abuse Prevention and 
Treatment Ace activities are funded -- through the regular 
authorization and appropriation process. 

Having conferred with a number of victim advocacy organizations, I 
feel confident in saying that NOVA and others -- including child 
abuse-oriented groups -- would actively suppor~ such a plan. 

Speaking personally, I would go further: should Congress sadly 
fail to act on this proposal this year -- when the Child Abuse 
Prevention and Treatment Act is up for reauthorization -- I would 
op)?ose a "counter-attack" on CJAA next year -- when it is VOCA's 
t'.rn to be r,·eauthorize·;. 

Indeed, I would even be reluctant to abandon VOCA's funding of 
eJAA ne~t year unless CJM already had in hand both an 
authorization and a fair appropriation. Thus, I would hope that 
both will be enacted this year. 

In expressing t;~ese views, I am plainly going beyond the policy 
guidance gi.'len to :lie b:r my board, and I am certainly unable to 
:3pea~ fur our ~olleague organizations in the field of victim 
rights and services. But I should stress that my comments fairly 
r~flect the spirit in which many of us are seeking to restore a 
prograo of helping Federal victims even as we seelt to retain a new 
progr.lOl to aU victims of child sexual abuse. 

W" are, in short, approaching this difficult problem ill good 
faith. Though this subcommittee has little jurlsdiction and 
p~rhaps less constituent interest in the plight of Federal 
vlctims, we trust that it too will act in good faith in resolvi<lg 
th" prool"Ol that I h.lve present"d here -- a trust which we hop~ 
will be neither misunderstood nor misplaced. 

In bel1alf of .. 11 those who share the painful, comoon bond of 
criminCll victioization -- children and adults, men and women, and 
"state" 'md "Feder .. 1." victims alike -- I express illY appreciation 
for tllis oP?ortunity t,) urge tlle subcommittee to t.lke the first 
step in correcting an unintended wrong by making a $3 million 
authorization for Children's Justice and Assistance Act activities 
in the ChiLi A'mse Prevention and Treatment Act, 
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arc the ent~re Swbco~ml~tee for t~~s oppcrtun~ty to prcvlce w~:tten 

tes~.:.monbl on t:-OlS 'Jet"~ l"1por-tart :=r-::lg:;"'aM. 

The National Comm1t:ee For Adopt:o~ ~NC?"A: 1S the headquarters of a 

nor-prof~t, vcluntar~ ~o"eme~t t= s~~engt~en adopt~an and re!ated 

ser'l.lces. I\lCFC! :.oas ~:::~rred .:.'" 19Se. Todat:. we have over- 13C vcluntat'";J 

se::.a:ot" i7adcpt.:..cr ::Jt'" ma~a::-~!.~~ se:-"-J:'=ss age'1c!.9s l.n membet"s1"'tlp: t!1us '\!CFA 

has mc:-s pr;.vate , jlc~-p=-:::f:.t adc;:::c:.c~ agerc1.es In membersPlp tr.an any 

ct~er' nat!.ona.!., -cn-5ec~a:":.an :Jr;a ... .:,zat;.or. Trese agerc~as ~a:~ With 

a_: t~~es Dr ad=,~~=~s: ~~;a~t, s;e=~al "eeds, ~r'teL~nt~ona:. NCFA ~s 

also a ~at:8~a: spcn5c~ =f t~e ==~~=:l C~ Ac=~ed~taticn of Se~vlces fc~ 

Fam~::es ard :~~:dr9~> t~e ma~or a==~edlt:~g body fo~ Chl:d welfare 

"!': t:e,;r!'! of t.~e :!::.::::1 ~b:"'5e ?::-svsrt:.:.oT"! arci T:;oeatment Act, the Accptlcn 

Oppcrtw~:t~es ~ct, fc~~s. a:ong wlt~ PUb!lC Law 96-272, the linchp~~ of 

O~::- federa~ p~li=~ towa~=s =~~~d~3~ :r. =~t-of-hcme care and ~~ ~eed of 

adoptlon ser·'~oes. ~~::e ~e are ~ampered b~ a lack of comp:e:e data 
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The Adopt~on Dpp::::t'"t;..n~t"-es Ac~ has ::;f:::e1"" !:leer desct'"::'bed as ~ ... s ";;:,-e" 

used to f~x speoiflc fractures in t~e federa~ pcl~C6 towa~d f~St9~ =ara 

a"d adopt1cn sa~vice5. The Adcpt~=~ 8ppo~tLnLtles Act 15 c~~~ant!~ ~=t 

be1ng appl~ed to at least two maJo~ f~actuLes adequately: m:~or~t~ 

adoption and the pt'"ov~s~on of POR::: ~egal Adop~ion SeL:~::;es, 

In 1978, when t!1is Act LUas passec, f1.ndi.ng adcpt:..·./8 hcmes fo:- ~a~t':r1g 

minoLit~ chLld~9n was a ~a~aL =~a::ergs fac~~g t~e c~lld we:=~ra 

system. Tcc!a~t it is stl.:'l a 'llB..!C:- p.t"'cb:er:-,. ihe fedsLa::' gc·;e:-'"":~e"'':. 

estimates ~Mat t~eLe aLe 35.000 c~l~d=-9~ lega~!8 f~se a~d ~a~~:~; _~ be 

adopted in this countt"b;1; ct:,sr est:mates gc as higr. as SO, cce to 

100,000. These chLldran aLa d.sp=-=pcrt1.0rata!8 mlroL:..t~. 7~s fade~a: 

govet"nment est.l.mates tha~ 52-_ of ~~e5e =h~lcr-sr. ar-s !J.!~lte, t~a-: 39·. :;~ 

these childr-sn ar'B Black, t!""at If~. ar-s Hisparj.c , arc tr.a:: s·~ aros 

class~fied as "ether-'I. 

Net only at's mLnor'lt~ =h~:dr'en ~ct"a l~kelb ~= be ~n fester- car's ~a~~~~g 

to be adapted I they aLe less :':.kc:!::I to !::Ie 'Tlc'Jet:! .:..,tc per-mane:-,,: aCC::'::"'J9 

homes. Fedsr'a:ly rwnctad ~eseat"=~ ~as f~~nc that the o~e =Ma~a=~sr'~s-::= 

most l.lkely to ::-esL..Ilt ~n a C~'!l.':'::i =.::..,,,:~n .... .:.ng to t.lIa.;.t to be ad=~~e::! :s 

mlnc['~t~ status. Fedst"a.!.1.;,d ::~~ds:! ::"'3sea~=;-- t~at e:~al'!1::i8d irn--:;:-:'!:d 

adoptlcn in 1988. found t::at .i.la.:. t.:.. .... g rn.:.r.c:,,:. t:~ eMl :::::-9'1 we::e ':'ess !:"~'e:'d 

placements wr.:.!e :..""! f:::ster care. YS"C, ~l"'CI:".:..tki =~'lll=:'"er 'oIJe:-e s,,::.l.':' 
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adoptive homes fc~ app~ox~mately ~G~ of ~he ~a:t~r.g ~~~c~:t~ =~~:dren. 

found fcr- S'±"; 01: the wait~ng Whl.te :::!llld::-er that yea::-. 

Public Welfa:-s System) 9st.1.rnated -=!'"'at Memes ',uSt'e ar;a.!.~ f:::un::! ;::::-- ::Jr:bt 

37~; of the wait~ng a:aek eh11d['sr a-d 0,-.1" '±2"; of the ,~a~t~;'1;;; ;';'11::e 

childI:"sn. A leS6 st;.;dy ecnd;.;cted :-ep'C"8ser~at':'\/S 

mino['ity child['sn we['s placed and 5~"; of the wa~t~~g ~orm~nc['~t~ 

ehildt'en wet'e placed In adaptive hc:r.es. :::leat'l" tl1e j.lt'a!:::~e,", elf flnd~ng 

hemes 1:0[' UJa1t~ng m~ne[,lty ehl.ld['e~ has ::-emalned a ma~:::[' :::cnOs['~ fo[' 

the 10 yea['s Slncs the enactment cf the Adcptlon Oppc::-tuntles Oct. 

We u::-ge the Subcommlttee to tackle thlS p['oblsm hesd on by a~c~o::-~z:ng 

sul:ficlent I:unds ea::-ma['ked to mlnc::-~ty family ['ecruitment and 

placement. Cut"t"sntly, most agenc:.es. beth pL.b!.ic and pr-:vatB, are 

trying to add::-ess thlS p['cblem wit~ seve['el~ corstral~ed resc~roes. 

s~5temat~c wa~. The D~sc~etLcnaL~ 3r-ants ?t"cb~am ~ncer t~e HHS 8ff~ce 

of Hwman Development SerVlces has f'..lnded scme :!emonst::-'ltlcn ;::['o;;;ra,"s in 

add['~ng mlnc[,lty adoption have ~ot ::-eached a sul:flole~tly 1a::-ge 

segment 01: tre afl:ected populatlon. We belle-Ie 1t 15 t:me 1:0::- the 

Federal gove'C"~ment to take ar, aver =~eatar !ead in ad=~ess~r; tr~s 

p.oblem. We app['eciate tne I:act t~at t~r=~l~g mcne8 at a p['oc!em 15 

often not the solution. HOlJJeve~. :,- t!!;.s s:..twa~:,oT'J seC""lce pr-::ividet"s, 
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~re second serVlce ~esd we ~rge the Succcmm~~tse to address ~egards 

P::::st Lega:' t::jdopt~:::::n 5e:-·"':'::85. Post !..ega.!. Adc::':..l:Jt! SSL"'v!.cas :::":are("s ":0 

those ccl:ect.lcn of s8t""'lces speclf.:.cal!!J cal:'orec to fam:.!l.ss created 

bb adept lor. T~~e f la':'c :If ad::p~lor has p::-agr-2ssed to t:"e pea r!t ' .... hBt"E 

we ~eccgnlze tMat, ~~:.:e adopt:.on !S s~mpl~ another wa~ to c~eate a 

rafT1!.:'Y and ad::Jpti.'18 fam.ll!.8s and =~.!.ldt"8f1 at"8 as I'normall( as ather' 

f'am:.lies and children, there de e:::.st issues unique to acopt.:..cn. For' 

so~e ramll:'8s, these !sswes may ~equlre prafess~onal serv:.css == allow 

resolution; or other :.sswes that a:50 ::-equire professlcna! sarv~ce may 

c::::alesce arownd those :.sswes unlqwe to adoptlon. Toe o~tan t~Dwgh, 

ac::ptive families f:.nc themselves .1lit.h no set"v~ces ava~lal:J.e ot" f:.nd 

t~emselves in a menta: health systsm that lacks any Lncer-sta"c~"'g fot" 

acopt~:::n. 

Federal pcl!c~ towards c~~~d~en a~c acopt!cn ~as always seer the goal 

as the ma~ntena~ce of the fam~ly. The Adcpt~on OppcLt~n!t~es qct has 

as ~ts goal the ;Jr-ov:.s:.cn of pet"Manencs f':Jt" ch:.1dt"en; the natu't"al 

CLtcl~cwth of this aca: ~s t~e ma!~~ena~ce of fa~~:!e5 c~eatec by 

ad::::j.Jt:.on. We see the goa: :Jf Post Lege! Adcpt':'::Jn SSr""l.ces as 

malntal~l.~g adopt~ve faml!lss. Goed Post Lege: ~dapt.:.on Ssr·'lcBs are 

des:g1"'ed to '!lake suppot"ts a'Ja:.lab:s f!:lt" fa"'111.13s so that, t'1e\,; may 

ma.!.;rt:;p.l-n a pesl tlve fa~l!ht t"elatlons~Ja;:::. This aPP!.l8S tc:: the S! tuation 

Ulher-s a ram.l1..y has adc;::ted a =!"n Id 'J.a th s;J8cla.!. needs and is .In need of 

or;:;o.:.ng serVl.ces to ~elp them r " wit~ the c~lld's act~~g cut 

bahav~ot"s; t;'1.S appllss t.':J the fam1:y .1lho adopted a tht"ee-year--old, who 

as a tadd:"sr was :'I"1tJc;\..,Irltar.:.::'ht L"'BrTl=VBd E'!:"::Jm ar .abL:s:"l9 home s:.tl..latl.cn j 
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a:: ad: .:....." =.sa':'.:. ~ .. -; 

t~e same state :::f 

as ~he =~e:d ~f adDpt~or ~~ cr=at:~; a ~ew sec~:~n f~rd:~g 

de~cnstt"a't.!.c;'l pL==g~ams rot" Pest !...e:;a': qd:::pt.:.::::., Se:-··J~ces. :~e a:::a': ::f 

~~e5e p~ograms ShCL!d be mal~~a:~!~; f3~::~es === aC8p~8d =~:~=r9r a;ed 

;".;: -::0 .!.8 ~ears. These demor'5tt"a~:.=!'1 p:"'og:;ams 'JJDL..!.::! go a lo:-g ',.uak 

We sha:: not d~5C~SS ~~ t8C ~uc~ =e~t~ t~e ,eed =or Pest ~eba: A~=~!:.:.cr. 

5sr",:.ces. espec:..ally 1,T"1 t!1e araa of sjJe=.::.al ""secs a~:Jpt.:..o7"'S, We ~·: .... =w 
ethers prov.!.d:ng test:mcry. beth ~r~tte~ and ora!, W~:! be ~~=')~d:~g 

t:-e Subccmml."::tee JJ~th th:.s 1.r==r-na::.:.cf". JJe 'JJou.!d l,U-:e ~o 5':';P1.6 

emphas~ze two pal~ts regarc::~g t~:s need. Past Legal Ado~t.:.c~ SeLv~ce5 

must be seen as er.compass1.ng a:1 fct"''TIs of ad.cpt:lc~ -- ;'8a':'::':--~ If"lfart as 

we:l as spec~al needs. Th~s, ~e belleve. 15 cons~stent W!t~ ~~e 

p~~~CS8 a~ t~e ~dopt~cr Oppc~t~r.~t~e5 ~ctJ ~~ t~s pu~~css 15 sean as 

p~:::vl.d~ng pes:. tl.ve adcpt:.c·, ot=po~tunl. t:..es to all chlldren. Seccrdl~, 

~': must be r-8cognized that P::st. La:;al Adcptlon Sar'/ices t~a,; '/l.ew 

adoption as s~mply anothe~ wab of o~eatlng a famlly a~e the ~est 

ser ... Ji~s. Set"Vl.ces that Vlew adc;:t:.on 3S pat:;,olcgical O:::~ l .... ;--:er-ent:..td 

c~eat~ng dysfwnctlcn are the WCr'st se~v~ces. 

We do wlsh to discwss the heed f8~ :scer-a: f~nd~~g of these Ser~Jlces. 

Lacking funds to help def.ay t~e oosts of these se~·J10es. ma~y adcpt:cn 
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a:;eT'\cuas arE! unable -:'0. pr-OV.1.Ce these seC' }1.r::e5 ~ the resl.41 t ':'s that 

farnt~ies ma~ ~ct ba served cy ~hcse tha~ ~ndaLstand adopt.1.=~ ~he b95~ 

-- adcpt:i..on pt"cfessl.cna:s.. !~stead, t~e5e fal'Tl~1l.9s f:..nd themsE':l"cs 

nav~gat~~g a mer.tal reat!M s~stem tMat does ~ct undeLstand t~e dyra:lcs 

=f adopt:,o!1 or', ',lJ!:::rse, \1:!.8tuS adopt:.:.of' as pathological In itse~.f. ;""8 

have hear-d tales cf adopt::a'/9 =8(11:.1':'85 'llh=J lack~t"!b appr-opr-:.a-:'8 

S8t"\/:.ceS t ~ave scu;r:t. he':p r:-=rr ccrrmL..rn-=i::; menta! health se~":=e 

pL~vlders ~ho ~et"e ~l: ~repat"ad to ~eet t~el~ ~~~qus needs. As a 

r-esult SOMe of these fam:.lles have f'oi..Jr.d t~err.sellJes lJ.tet"al~,= 53C.OCO 

== $l!CJ~OC :'f1 deb-=. ~rd as a :"9S\",;:~, B'!"" :'SSi,.;e !:rat may ~ave s-::.ar!:8':: 

CLot: as :""elat::"/e16 5;. ,"1p:'e I }1as 'Tlus11:-:::omed ;.n-C:::;: S8'Jere d.:.sc:;-ess. 

?::-:::V1Cl'1g feceral fc.rds :r. t!1s area of Post Legal ",copt:on Se::-'nc:es 

aJ':'!::' a110.'..1J ado;::::tlOf'1 agerH:les, bot~ publ:.c and pr-:.vats, to de"elop 

rEspons::.bls =omrrWn,i -=d set""'J.!.ces l~ ~rls area cf spe::ial;.:zat~or. 

Urfortunate:~, at~et" f~nd:'~b ~5 s.!.m~ly not ava.:.labls -- not f~om S~a~e 

coffers and not f~o.~ ~cst healtr ~nsurance. 

The ~atlOi':a!. C~~m'::"'::=ee Fe!:"" ClC:J~t.:.C" loc~,:s f:::-'l;at'"d to ~c:-kl.~g JJ;..th 

member-s =f t~8 S~~=::~~!t~ae =~ t~e t""3a~~~or.!.zat~~n of tre Pd=~~io~ 

OppOr't:'..!!11 ~.:.es ~C""=. ~.,.....t!.J.lB COTTn~8T"'\d CO'ngr-sssJT'.af' OUl8T1S and tre other-

fJ1e!T1bsr-s of t~s Swb::::"':'1m:..t-:'ee f::!:' ~c:'dl.ng heat"!.1""',gs OJ' tn:.s VB!:"~ ~mpo!;'"-:.at1t 

;::::-og::-a",, 

...... 
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At a Urne when some want to legalize a new In­
duotry to create babies for would·be parents (see 
cover story). the field of adoption ts facing a crisis In 
t1lldlng homes for the thousands of American 
children wa!tlng to be adopted. The federal govern· 
ment puts this number at 36.000 children; other 
esUrnates range from 50.000 to 100.000. All agree 
these children are disproportionately BI~.ck 
children; the federal government believes that ap· 
proximately 40% are Black. yet the entire U.S. 
population Is only about 12% Black. 

This current situation makes the federally fund· 
ed research entltledAdoptlon Serulces For Waiting 
Mlnortty and Nonmlnortty Children (WESTAT. 
1986) all the more timely. The research was llmIted 
by two factors: the survey covered eight represen· 
tative sites rather than the entire country and some 
conclusions were made without adequate suppor­
tive data. Nonetheless. the study provides some 
very useful Insights lnOO the challenges posed In fin· 
dlng homes for minority youngsters at a Urne when 
most In the child welfare field admit to belng largely 
unsuccessful. 

Race A Major Factor 
WESTAT found that minority children "'ere 

leoo lI1tely to be In adoptive placement than 
nonmJnority childre ... While h1o-tblrd .. of the 
nonmJnority children had been placed {67~}. 
only 47% of the minority children "'ere In 
placement. Minority children were 0100 found 
to wait longer for IU1 adoptive placement. 
While 45 ~ of the nOJ>minority children ".aited 
lesD than 6 montha, only 27% of the minority 
children did 60. The average waiting time for 
nonmJnority children wall one year ",hile tlle 
average waiting time for minority children 
Willi found to be two years. 

Perhaps the most disturbing findlng of the study 
was that minority children waiting for adoption 
walt longer than nonmlnority children solely 
because of their minority status. WESTAT com· 
pared the waiting minority children and the 
waiting nonmlnority children In the sample on 
several cHaracteristics. Minority and nonmlnority 
children did not differ In their age distribution. 
reason for entering foster care In the first place. or 
on wheth!;llo·the agency had made sp~c!fic recruit· 
ment efforts on their behalf. 

Differences were. however. found on three 
characteristics. Minority children were less likely to 
have a diagnosed disabling cnndltion. Forty.one 
percent of the minority chila. en had no disabling 
condition whereas 29% of the nonmlnority children 
had no dlsabllng condition. Minority children tend· 
ed to havefewer previous placements In foster care. 
And mlnortty chUdren were less likely to have an 
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(continued from page 3] 
discovered that the percentage of minority stair did 
not have a consistent Impact on the dlfference In 
adoptive placement rates between minority and 
nonmlnorlty chUdren for Individual agencies." the 
researchers wrote. 

Critics of adoption ..gency practice ha .. " also 
maJ.ntruned that agencies do not actively 
recruit minority families. This is not au!)" 
ported by the WESTAT research. In all eight 
aitea there waG a well developed recruitment 
progrEml; 1I0me though, were found to have 
be.onlne:istence longer than othem. The resear­
chers loolted a~ the effect of recruitment on 
reducing the dIfferencc" between minority 
placement raten and nonminorlty placement 
rates. They concluded that recruitment wae 
an effective tool: in agencies that hGd an 
establlshed recl"Iutment program, 58'10 of 
waiting children were In adoptive placementll 
while in ..gencies that did not have an 
entabllshed program 47"10 were In adoptive 
placements. (While the researchera noted that 
all agencies had recruitment programa, they 
did not define how they determined which 
agencies had an "eotabU"hed" program and 
which did not.) The researchero did not, 
however, find that recruitment resulted In 
minority children being adopted aD readily ao 
nonminorlty children. "(WJhen looking at the 
effectB of Bu;:h ttgeney practiceB a" active 
recruitment programs," the reDearchers 
wrote, " .... we found that tbeG~ practices were 
related to Illl increaoed adoptive placement 
rate fllr all children, but did not in themaelvea 
help to overcome the diBad'Vantage enperlenc­
ed by minority chlldren." 

Foster Parents Found To Be The Key 
WEST AT did find What may be the key to placing 

minority r.hUdren. or at least they found a variable 
necessary for further study and development. The 
availability of a foster parent resource was the fac­
tor that had the greatest effect upon a minority 
chUd's likelihood of being adopt~d. A foster family 
resource was defined as a foster famUy who Is ,,111· 
tug to adopt a child placed In their home. 

When an agency had an active recruitment pro­
gram and there was a foster family resource 
available for the chUd. the differences between 
minority and nonmlnorlty placement rates diBap· 
penred. In ClIli'eii where both of these factors were In 
place 75"10 of nonmlnorlty children were In adop· 
tlve placement and 79"10 of minority chIldren were 
In adoptive placement. WhUe these specific fln­
dings are based on a total of only 30 children. 
they point to the need to further develop foster 
parents as adoptive resources. or course. the op­
timism that this finding genemtes Is somewhat 
tempered by the fact that WEST AT found minOrity 
chUdren to be s!gnJficantly less likely to have a 

""IJo::.aJ~~u..-V.b..1C='''-I'I:.c:04 
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foster care resource than nonmlnorlty children. 
Agencies have also been criticized for sup­

posedly screening ou.t potential nrl.u .. rhy 
adoptive families by UBing sD-called "uliddle­
clas,," selection erlterla.. This criticism 1& not 
Bupported by this research. In fact, the ~tudy 
"hown that agencies have been aggreftdvely 
W'orlting to expand the pool of potential 
nlinorlty families. 

For example. whUe only 14'" of the nonmlnorlty 
adoptive families had famUy Incomes below 
$20.000 per year. fully 50"10 of minority adoptive 
families had Incomes less than $20.000. And 20'" 
of the minority families had Incomes below 
$10.000 per year. For comparison. the preliminary 
poverty level for 1986 for a family off our was an an· 
nUB.! Income of $11.200. 

Forty-five percent of the fathers In the 
minority families W'ere age 46 or over, with 
14"10 age 61 or over. Only 19"10 of the DOD· 

minority adoptive fathers were age 45 or over 
and only 2"0 were age 61 or over. 

Eighteen percent of all adoptive parents were 
single females or males. WhUe WEST AT did not ex· 
amine mruita! status by minority status. given that 
the data show that minority adoptive applicants are 
held to different criteria than nonmlnorlty ap­
plicants. It Is likely that a greater percentage of 
minOrity adoptions were with single parcn," than Is 
true for noomInority adoptions. Clearly. these data 
do not support the charge of biased. "mlddle·class" 
criteria being applied to minority applicants.) 

. The Placement Gap 
The concluding paragraph of the study shows 

that a gap of nearly 20% exists between minority 
and nonmlnorlty piBcement rates. The researchers 
wrlte that the study "appears to have reemphasiz­
ed carlle. study findings that minority chUdren 
walt longer to be placed In adoptive homes and are 
less likely to be In plscement than honmInority 
children. In 1917. 37 percent of the minority 
chUdren a. .. compared to 54 percent of nonmlnority 
children free for adoption were In adoptive 
placements (Shyne and Schroeder, 1978). Both 
figures decreased In 1982 with 26 percent of the 
UlInority children and 39 percent of the nOlunlnorl­
ty free for adoption placed In 'adoptlve homes 
(Maxlmus. 1983). This percentage did not Incluae 
children placed with foster parents planning to 
adopt. In WESTAT's study of eight sites. 47 percent 
of the minority chUdren as compared to 67 percent 
of the nonm!norlty chJIdren free for adoption were 
In adoptive placements." WESTAT notes that lIB 
study was not based on a national sample, but the 
continuing and ominous dispa!"!ty tu placement 
mles. given the numbers of chUdren currently In 
care and those expected to enter the system, should 
Ypur everyone to work even harder to remedy the 
situation. r ! :. .• .. tot.. .' 

-Jeffrey Rosenberg: MSW 




